
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call David Penrose, Governance Services on 
01432 383690 or e-mail dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

 

Date: Wednesday 25 March 2015 

Time: 1.30 pm 

Place: Committee Room 1, Shire Hall, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 383690 
Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor GJ Powell Herefordshire Council 
Vice-Chairman Diane Jones MBE Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
   
  Councillor JW Millar Herefordshire Council 
 

 Sue Doheny Arden, Herefordshire and Worcester LAT 
 Helen Coombes Director  of Adults Wellbeing 
 Jo Davidson Director for Children's Wellbeing 
 Paul Deneen Healthwatch Herefordshire 
 Dr Andy Watts Clinical Commissioning Group 
 Jo Whitehead Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 Jacqui Bremner Healthwatch representative - Carers Support 
 
 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  25 MARCH 2015 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
  
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a Member of the Committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interests of interest by Members in respect of 
items on the Agenda. 
 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

9 - 14 

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2015. 
 

 

5.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 

 To receive questions from Members of the Public relating to matters within 
the Board’s Terms of Reference. 
 
(Questions must be submitted by midday eight clear working days before the day of the 
meeting (ie on the Wednesday 13 calendar days before a meeting to be held on a Tuesday.)) 
 

 

6.   HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 
 

15 - 22 

 To receive a report on the development of Herefordshire’s Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. 
 

 

7.   HEREFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP OPERATIONAL 
PLANS 2015/16 
 

23 - 34 

 To provide a progress report on the development of Herefordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s (HCCG) operational plan for 2015/16 and to outline 
key elements of the plan. To seek comments from Board members on the 
plan and to provide assurance that the HCCG work programme is aligned to 
the system’s health and social care transformation agenda. 
 

 

8.   COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS 2015/16 
 

35 - 38 

 To highlight in brief commissioning intentions and programmes that promote 
the health and wellbeing of the population of Herefordshire. The in brief 
nature recognises the breath of programmes across Children’s Wellbeing, 
Adults Wellbeing and the Clinical Commissioning Groups work plans to 
assure health and wellbeing and progress allied to inequalities of outcomes 
for the residents of the County. 
 

 

9.   PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 
 

39 - 62 

 To note the statutory annual report of the Director of Public Health on the 
health of people of Herefordshire as required by the Health and Social Care 
Act 2012. 
 
 
 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  25 MARCH 2015 
 

 

 
10.   ASSESSING READINESS FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF BETTER CARE 

FUND PLANS IN 2015-2016 
 

63 - 66 

 To provide an update in relation to the national expectation that local health 
and social care communities will complete a national template to assess 
readiness to implement the Better Care Fund. 
 

 

11.   MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT REPORT 
 

67 - 70 

 To note the needs assessment into mental health undertaken by the HCCG 
between May 2014 and January 20015 for the purpose of understanding the 
needs of the population and to provide an evidence base for future 
commissioning. 
 

 

12.   AUTISM SELF-ASSESSMENT 2014 
 

71 - 102 

 To note that a self-assessment on the progress made on implementing the 
2010 Adult Autism Strategy “Fulfilling and Rewarding Lives”, and its 
subsequent update, has been submitted to Public Health England. 
 

 

13.   JOINT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE LEARNING DISABILITY SELF-
ASSESSMENT FRAMEWORK 2014 
 

103 - 140 

 To note that a self-assessment in response to the Joint Health and Social 
Care Learning Disability Self-Assessment Framework 2014 has been 
submitted to Public Health England. 
 

 

14.   MENTAL HEALTH CRISIS CONCORDAT 
 

141 - 144 

 To receive the Mental Health Concordat draft Action Plan for implementation. 
 

 

15.   ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

145 - 242 

 To receive Briefing Notes on the following subjects: 
 

• Safeguarding Children – progress report 
 

• Update on Primary Care Co-commissioning 
 

• Integrated Urgent Care Pathway Project 
 

• Minutes from the Needs Assessment Assurance Group 
 

 

16.   WORK PROGRAMME 
 

243 - 246 

 To note and comment on the Board’s Work Programme. 
 

 



 

Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board  

Vision and guiding principles July 2012  

Vision: Herefordshire residents are resilient; lead fulfilling lives; are emotionally and 
physically healthy and feel safe and secure. 

Overall outcome: To increase healthy life expectancy and reduce differences in life 
expectancy and healthy life expectancy between communities.  

Principle 1: personal responsibility 

People should be responsible for their own health and wellbeing, and should try to stay fit, 
well and independent for as long as possible. Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board and 
its partners recognise, actively promote and support the contribution made by family, friends, 
the community and other services in helping people to achieve good health and wellbeing, 
with support from professional services when required. 

Principle 2: information and support 

People can do many things to help themselves and their families to stay healthy, but there 
will be times when extra support is required. Information and advice will be available from a 
wide range of sources, easily and quickly, when and where people need it, so that they can 
make informed decisions about what they need to do to remain healthy.  

Principle 3: sustainable services 

Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board and its partners will work together to provide a 
unified service for everyone, through consistently good quality shared care and managed 
networks. Services will be financially viable, safe and sustainable and affordable for 
everyone.  

Principle 4: working together  

Publicly funded services will be delivered in conjunction with the resources of family, friends 
and community to ensure the right service is delivered, at the right place and time needed. 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will facilitate the provision of care as close to home as 
possible and ensure easy access to acute hospital services when needed. Services will 
protect people’s safety, independence and dignity.  

Principle 5: a lifecourse approach  

There are differences in people’s health and wellbeing that start before birth and accumulate 
throughout life. It is important to work with people throughout their lives to improve their 
healthy life expectancy. A vital part of this is sustaining a healthy workforce for the county.  

Principle 6: the ladder of interventions 

Health and wellbeing issues will be addressed, where possible, through the ‘ladder of 
intervention’, which provides a means of integrating lifestyle choices and enforcement action 
into a single strategy for improving health and wellbeing for the people of Herefordshire.  

Principle 7: five ways to wellbeing  

The Five Ways to Wellbeing (Connect, Be Active, Take Notice, Keep Learning, Give) will be 
used by Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board and its partners to support wellbeing in 
the county by enriching people’s lives through cultural opportunities, altruism and 
volunteering. 

5



 

Understanding Herefordshire – The 2012 integrated needs assessment 

Understanding Herefordshire provides a single integrated assessment of the needs of the 
people of Herefordshire, bringing together the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
and the State of Herefordshire Report.  

It is integral to the commissioning cycle, providing an explicit evidence base that will enable 
strategic priorities, commissioning decisions and partnership working to be based upon a 
clear and comprehensive understanding of need.  

It also provides a mechanism to evaluate the effectiveness of commissioning decisions and 
of interventions, with the ability to monitor or “track” progress over time.  

 Understanding Herefordshire explicitly identifies the underlying factors relevant to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board’s vision that Herefordshire residents are resilient; lead fulfilling lives; 
are emotionally and physically healthy and feel safe and secure. 

The essential point of the Integrated Needs Assessment is that it be used to influence and 
inform future decision-making.  

Recommendations from Understanding Herefordshire are that we: 

• Be proactive about our changing demographics, identifying the predicted rise in need for 
services and ways to address it. 

• Develop the infrastructure, services and support networks needed to enable people to 
live independently. As well as direct service provision this will include housing and 
accommodation that facilitates independence, the economy, spatial planning, transport, 
engagement with the third sector and communities, and support for carers. 

• Continue to build on a community based approach, developing our assets of volunteers, 
carers, third sector organisations, active communities and statutory services.  

• Adopt this community based approach to provide comprehensive and integrated services 
and support for people living with Dementia.  

• Ensure that the environment and infra-structure enables people to make healthy choices 
such as cycling and walking, as well as supporting economic growth and improved 
connectivity. 

• Target preventative activities at the major causes of morbidity and premature mortality, in 
particular smoking, alcohol and falls. 

• Make childhood obesity a priority for all stakeholders, tackling the underlying causes as 
part of a joined up strategy.  

• Ensure continued improvement for Early Years and Foundation Programme, primary and 
secondary school children to achieve top quartile performance. 

• Ensure the various strategies targeting families living in poverty are joined up to provide 
an integrated response. 

• Address social inequalities through a comprehensive approach, encompassing 
opportunities such as employment as well as lifestyle behaviours, access to services and 
community engagement. 

• Undertake more in depth analysis in the following areas: 

• Domestic violence 

• The care needs of people with learning disabilities 

• Impact of changes to the welfare system, particularly on families 

 

June 2012 

6



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 

7



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located in the 
circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated 
the building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 

8



 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Health and Wellbeing Board held at 
Committee Room 1, Shire Hall, Hereford on Wednesday 28 
January 2015 at 2.30 pm 
  

Present: Councillor GJ Powell (Chairman) 
 Mrs D Jones MBE (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Board Members: Ms J Bremner, Ms H Coombes, Mrs J Davidson, Mr P Deneen, 

S Doheny, Councillor J Millar and Dr A Watts 
 
  
   
83. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
Apologies were received from Mrs J Whitehead. 
 

84. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)   
 
None. 
 

85. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
None. 
 

86. MINUTES   
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on the 18 November 2014 were approved and signed. 
 

87. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC   
 
None. 
 

88. TO APPOINT A VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD   
 
Dr Watts nominated Mrs Diane Jones as Vice-Chairman for the Board.  Mr P Deneen 
seconded the nomination and Mrs Jones was elected unanimously as Vice-Chairman. 
 
Resolved:  That Mrs Diane Jones MBE be appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board for the term of one year. 
 

89. HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY AND IMPLEMENTATION FOR 
HEREFORDSHIRE   
 
The Interim Consultant in Public Health presented a report on the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  In the ensuing discussion the following points were raised: 
 

• The three themes which included a focus on prevention and wellbeing, a recognition 
of the role of the voluntary sector and an emphasis on self-help and self-care. 

 
• That seven priorities had emerged from consultation, but it would not be possible to 

undertake work on all seven immediately, hence the need for prioritisation. 
 

• That independent providers should also be engaged as part of the consultation 
process in order to ensure that they were not disenfranchised.   

AGENDA ITEM 4

9



 

 

 
• That there was an opportunity for care workers to engage the housebound as 

part of their rounds, so district nurses and practitioners should be involved in this 
process. 

 
Resolved: That a further report be brought to the next meeting. 
 

90. HEALTH PROTECTION COMMITTEE REPORT   
 
(Dr Watts declared an interest as a provider of child immunisation) 
 
The Committee received a report from the Consultant in Public Health on the health 
protection services in Herefordshire. The following points were highlighted during the 
subsequent debate: 
 

• That as the Health Protection Committee met on a quarterly basis, consideration 
could be given to bringing a regular report from the Committee to the Board. 

 
• That take-up of childhood immunisation, particularly the MMR vaccine, was still 

an issue in the County.  The same was true for flu immunisation rates, 
particularly amongst pregnant women.   

 
• That the Breast Screening Coverage target had been achieved and that whilst 

the Cervical Screening Coverage target had not been met, performance was 
higher than the West Midlands average. 
 

• That the suspected Ebola outbreak had highlighted concerns as to how that sort 
of situation should be handled, and a debriefing session had laid out a number of 
recommendations for various organisations.  Implementation of these would be 
monitored by the Multiagency Silver Group.   
 

• That the childhood immunisation statistics were a matter for concern, and it was 
suggest that the federated GP organisation should have a meeting with Public 
Health in order to ask them to self-declare the information concerning 
immunisation.  It was pointed out that information governance rules had changed 
within the NHS after the Primary Care Trusts had been abolished. 
 

• That recommissioning of services and pathways would allow greater choice as to 
how people accessed the sexual health and immunisation services. 

 
• The Director of Adults Wellbeing said that the resilience of the emergency 

planning model and action plan would need to be monitored and tested, and 
suggested that the Minutes of the Emergency Planning Committee should be 
brought to the Board on a regular basis. 
 

Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 

91. DEVELOPMENT OF  CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 2015-18   
 
The Committee received a report on the development of the Children and Young 
People’s Plan 2015 – 18.  Dr Henri Giller, who was working with the Children and Young 
People’s Partnership to create a new plan for Herefordshire, highlighted the following 
areas: 
 

• That the Children and Young People Plan would be integrated into the functions 
discharged by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

10



 

 

• That the plan would run from May 2015-2018, and would provide an opportunity 
to build partnership working within the priorities of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 
 

• There were a number of issues that needed consideration, and these included 
key and locality infrastructure, a refresh of case holding responsibilities and a 
review of joint commissioning arrangements to reflect the partnership needs. 
 

• Clarity was required in the area of governance, and especially with regard to 
business support by the partnership and when the strategic plan cut across joint 
partnership areas. 
 

• That six priority need areas were being considered and a robust draft plan would 
be produced for these areas following consultation. 
 

The Assistant Director, Education and Commissioning tabled the Disabled Children 
Charter.  After a brief discussion, it was agreed that the Health and Wellbeing Board 
would sign up to this Charter. 
 
Resolved: 

(b) progress being made with the development of the children and young 
people’s plan be noted. 

 
92. BETTER CARE FUND SUBMISSION   

 
The Board received a report on the Better Care Fund Plan Submission and Delivery Plan 
Report, delivered on 9th January 2015.  The following areas were discussed: 
 

• The funding contributions from the Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(HCCG) and the Local Authority into the BCF pool.  Whilst the creation of an 
additional pool that would manage the Care Home market had the potential to 
deliver savings, there were challenges in working with the market to release 
those savings.   

 
• Outcomes based commissioning would be undertaken for Care Homes as the 

intention was to move to a market where support was provided within the 
community and people were kept at home as much as possible.   These were 
bold and ambitious schemes, and the intention was to change community health 
services by 1 April 2015.  The Board should be clear delivery was possible by 
this date, because if milestones were missed, the process would struggle to 
catch up. 

 
• That the overarching governance arrangements would ensure that the BCF 

schemes were anchored within the joint commissioning arrangements, and would 
bring clinicians, consultants and Public Health together.  The key to the structure 
was the Joint Commissioning Board, which would be answerable to both the 
HCCG and the Local Authority.  Whilst there were areas of focus that the Board 
would need to consider as part of this process, the managing role would be 
undertaken by the Joint Commissioning Board. 

THAT:  
(a) The children’s integrated needs assessment be noted; and 
 

11



 

 

 

 

 
 

93. MENTAL HEALTH CRISIS CONCORDAT   
 
(Mr P Deneen declared an interest as he had undertaken work for the Police and Crime 
Commissioner) 
 
The Board received a report on the progress made against the Governments guidance 
document ‘Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat, improving outcomes for people 
experiencing mental health crisis care’.  In the ensuing discussion the following points 
were made: 
 

• That issues associated with carers were not being listened too, and a 
conversation was needed with the 2gether NHS Foundation Trust in order to 
ensure that crises for carers could be averted. Agencies should ensure that they 
were aware of issues such as this, and clarity was needed as how agencies 
worked together to ensure that no problem areas were missed. 

 
• That consideration should be given to ensuring that the Section 136 suite in the 

Police Station was being correctly used, and that this would help to ensure that 
there was no silo working between partner agencies and the police force.  

 
Resolved: 
 

 
94. END OF LIFE CARE - HEREFORD POSITION   

 

Resolved: 
 
That:  
 
(a) The plan that was agreed using the delegated power agreed by the Board 

on 16th October 2014 be approved;  
 
(b) the Performance Management and Governance arrangements for the BCF 

be approved; 
 
(c) the national assurance process and feedback be noted; 

(d) the delivery arrangements for BCF be agreed; and 
 

(e) the BCF Briefing Note be approved for circulation to all Local  Authority 
elected members and Health and Wellbeing Board key  stakeholders. 

 

THAT:  
 
(a) the Board noted that the local declaration was signed within the stipulated 

timescales; 
(f) the development of a Herefordshire  Mental Health Crisis Care Declaration 

and Continuous Action Plan be prepared by the 1st March 2015 deadline 
(g) a further update report be submitted to the Board at its next meeting; and; 
(h) the report and the Action Plan be submitted to both the Adults and 

Children’s Safeguarding Boards. 

12



 

 

A brief verbal report was provided on End of Life Care and Dr Watts highlighted the 
following issues: 
 

• that the County performed well in terms of the individuals being able to die in 
their place of choice, but there were cases were improvements could have been 
made.  The End of Life Forum had been set up which included representation 
from all the providers in the County. Late identification of End of Life Care for 
non-malignant conditions was an issue within the County 

 
• National Dying Matters Awareness Week was being organised by the Dying 

Matters Coalition from the 12-18 May, and should be promulgated within the 
County. 

 
• That a scheme to allow GP’s to have conversations about end of life care within 

Nursing Homes would be set up within the year. 
 

• That a cultural change was needed to ensure that the issues around agencies 
working together could be addressed, as different systems could cause confusion 
when dealing with patients.  The End of Life Forum would produce standardised 
systems and paperwork for organisations to use across the system. 

 
During the ensuing discussion, the following points were made: 
 

• That the Board should consider undertaking a project to help demystify death and 
should involve social care and schools and colleges, as this was also an issue for 
young people. 

 
Resolved: That the report be noted. 
 

95. WORK PROGRAMME   
 
The Committee noted and updated its Work Programme. 
 
Resolved: That the Work Programme be approved. 
 

96. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION   
 
The Board received and noted Briefings on the following subjects: 
 

• Care Act Implementation 
 

• Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment  
 

• Public Health Commissioning 
 

• Safeguarding Adults - Making Safeguarding Personal  
 
Resolved: That the briefings be noted. 
 

The meeting ended at 16:45 CHAIRMAN 

13



14



 

MEET

MEET

TITLE

REPO

Class

Open 

Key D

This is a

Wards

County-

Purpo

 T
t

 T

w
 T
 T

Reco

THAT:
(a)
(b)

(c)

F
Jo

TING:

TING DAT

E OF REP

ORT BY: 

sification

Decision

a key decis

s Affecte

-wide 

ose

To provide
the refresh
To provide
public and
wellbeing s
To seek en
To outline 

mmenda

The Bo
Board
health
The B

Further inform
 Robins, Inte

H

TE: 2

PORT: R
S

R
J
H

ion. 

ed

e board m
hed health 
e board me
d key stak
strategy
ndorsemen
the propos

ation(s)

oard discus
members 
and wellbe

Board endo

mation on the
erim Consulta

HEALTH

25 March

REFRESH
STRATEG

Rod Thom
Jo Robi
Health

embers w
and wellbe
embers wi
keholders

nt for the c
sed format

ss the feed
identify th
eing strate
orse both 

e subject of t
ant in Public

& WELL

h 2015 

H OF TH
GY

mson, D
ins, Inte

with the upd
eing strate
ith analysis
on the co

consultation
t of the stra

dback from
eir role in 

egy and act
the appro

his report is 
c Health Tel (

LBEING B

HE HEALT

irector o
erim Co

date on th
egy
s on the fe
onsultation

n and enga
ategy and 

m the consu
championi
tion plans;
oach being

available fro
(01432) 3838

BOARD

TH & WE

of Public 
onsultant

he priorities

eedback re
 linked to

agement fi
action plan

ultation;
ing and co

g taken an

om
882 

ELLBEIN

Health
t in Pu

s and them

eceived fro
o the healt

ndings   
ns

ommunicati

nd the pr

G

ublic 

mes of 

om the 
th and 

ing the 

iorities 

AGENDA ITEM 6

15



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Robins, Interim Consultant in Public Health Tel (01432) 383882 

 

Alternative Options 

1  There are no Alternative Options as the Herefordshire Health & Wellbeing Board has 
been established under the provisions set out in the Health & Social Care Act 2012. 

2 The Board is a key strategic leadership forum that drives ongoing improvements in 
health and wellbeing across Herefordshire. 

3 There is a duty to agree and publish a joint health and wellbeing strategy setting out 
ambitious outcomes for improved health and wellbeing across Herefordshire 

Reasons for Recommendations 

4 It is important that board members take an active role in the development of the key 
themes and priorities of the health and wellbeing strategy and in the plans for 
consultation with the public as a key component of the health and wellbeing strategy 

Key Considerations 

5 There is an early draft version of a health & wellbeing strategy in place with an 
agreed vision and some key principles. There is now an integrated needs 
assessment in place as well as a children and young people’s needs assessment 
which forms the bedrock of any health and wellbeing strategy. 

6 Additional work is required to identify the key themes for the health and wellbeing 
strategy based on the recent developments within the council and across partner 
organisations whereby major proposals new programmes are being developed. 

7 To ensure credibility for the health and wellbeing strategy consultation with the public 
needs to take place  

8 The health and wellbeing board supports relationships between the council and its 
local partners providing new opportunities to explore approaches to commissioning, 
collaborative working, re-design and to support self care of the population. 

9 The health and wellbeing strategy will not replace existing strategies and plans but 
should value to those already in place 

10 The health and wellbeing strategy should enable partners to collectively focus effort 
where impact will be greatest on the health and wellbeing of local people. Community 
Impact

11 See point 9.Drawing on the assets in the communities across Herefordshire will be 
key   to supporting the vision and priorities of the strategy. We need people to take 
more responsibility for their own health and we know that community spirit and 
community support is central to good health. Evidence has shown that higher levels 
of social capital are associated with better health, higher educational attainment, 
better employment and lower crime rates.  

outlined; and; 
(d) The Board consider the links between the Health & Wellbeing Strategy and 

the emerging Economic Masterplan.

16



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Robins, Interim Consultant in Public Health Tel (01432) 383882 

 

12 Actively encouraging and guiding people to live healthier lifestyles and to look after 
themselves, their families and neighbours, will have the double impact of reducing  
pressures on services whilst creating social networks of support. 

Financial Implications 

13 None 

Legal Implications 

14 None 

Risk Management 

15 None 

Consultees

16 A range of officers and elected members of the council have been consulted with as 
have various officers and chairs of local partnerships. The Supportive Communities 
Working Group is overseeing the work.    

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Refresh of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy

Background Papers

None. 

17



18



1 
 

Health & Wellbeing Board 

Refresh of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy  

1 Purpose of Report 

• To provide board members with a progress report on the refresh of the health and 
wellbeing strategy 

• To seek the views of the health and wellbeing board members on the key themes 
identified to date 

• To seek endorsement for the consultation and engagement focus of the strategy  
• To outline the timeline for the development of the strategy and action plan 

2  Key Aim 

To refresh the Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Strategic Approach 2013/2014 and 
develop an action plan that reflects the Herefordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(Understanding Herefordshire 2014), in partnership with the public and key stakeholders. 

3  Important Drivers 

• Resources are scarce 
• Population needs now and in the longer term are greater especially with the ageing 

population and increased levels of long term-conditions 
• Our service infrastructure is fragile and tending to concentrate on higher level needs 
• Current services are overstretched 
• Rural inequalities may be hidden but greatly affect population health and wellbeing as 

identified in the case for change  

4 What do We Already Have in Place? 

• Data, performance information, strategic intelligence from the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (Understanding Herefordshire) and the C&YP Needs Assessment 

• The vision for the population of Herefordshire  

• A set of principles   

o Commitment from partners about the importance of having an overarching strategic 
direction 

o Commitment from partners through the transformation programme to develop a 
whole system approach to health and social care challenges (integration, redesign, 
and community based, self-care)   

o A commitment to joint commissioning across the council and CCG 

o The Better Care Fund  

o Development of 1600 new affordable houses.  Vibrant and willing voluntary sector 
organisations that are spread across the county   

o A suite of other strategic documents and plans that are already in existence  

 

19



2 
 

5 The Approach Taken 

One to one semi structured meetings with key people across the partner organisations 
(including local authority,  NHS,  CCG, Police, voluntary sector and patient/public liaison) to 
identify key areas for inclusion in the Herefordshire H&WBS, their role in implementing the 
strategy and their insight into the uniqueness of Herefordshire . 

Desk top analysis of key strategic documents across partner organisations 

6  The Themes Identified so Far 

• Great data, JSNA full of excellent data and analysis in Understanding Herefordshire  
• Prevention & wellbeing focus (cradle to grave) importance of starting well (strong focus 

on prevention and integration across 0-19 years, including educational attainment, 
parental mental health and poverty) , living well (keeping people fit through lifestyle 
changes to reduce the impact of long term conditions and managing health), ageing well, 
maintaining independence (better quality of life for longer in older years, 

• Reducing inequalities and reaching communities (population groups and rurality, 
,families with substance misuse, alcohol, drug problems and mental health, returning 
veterans) 

• Economic development, investment, prosperity, raising aspiration, skills (young people, 
adults,  mental health) 

• Affordable housing and joint planning with health and social care (older people, Adults 
with Learning Disabilities), improved insulation/fuel poverty (older people & families) 

• Transport and reducing congestion through active travel  
• Development of a stronger focus on mental health and wellbeing 
• Commissioning (Better Care Fund) and transformation as system levers  
• Clear set of priorities and indicators linked to outcomes 
• A strengthened connection between the public sector and social infrastructure 

 
7 Consulting with the Public, Encouraging Self Care and Maximising the 

Contribution of the Local Voluntary Sector 
 

Drawing on the assets in the communities across Herefordshire will be key   to supporting the 
vision and priorities of the strategy. We need people to take more responsibility for their own 
health and we know that community spirit and community support is central to good health. 
Evidence has shown that higher levels of social capital are associated with better health, 
higher educational attainment, better employment and lower crime rates.  

Actively encouraging and guiding people to live healthier lifestyles and to look after 
themselves, their families and neighbours will have the double impact of reducing  pressures 
on services whilst creating social networks of support. 

Feedback on the uniqueness of Herefordshire has highlighted a number of assets both in 
relation to people and place, including;  resilient communities , supportive networks, a high 
quality environment, resilient workforces,  supportive small local businesses, a great place to 

20



3 
 

bring up children, a strong cultural and creative focus, the outdoor spaces and caring and 
compassionate communities.  

8 Consultation 

This is an essential part of the strategy’s development and needs to take account of the 
issues identified in the integrated needs assessment. This will endorse the impact of the 
strategy and start the conversation about self-help and community support. 

We are proposing to do this in a number of ways: 

• Through working with our key partners (on the Supporting Communities Network). 

• By working with local organisations and experts such as Health Watch, carers and 
HVOS. 

• Through the extensive infrastructure in place such as the Community Development 
partnership 

• Through the existing partnership boards such as Adult with Learning Disabilities 

• Use of social media to access young people and key population groups 

• Use of existing surveys completed by Health Intelligence in recent years 
• Through access points and through utilization of staff in existing services 

 
9 How the Strategy will Help 

1. Sets the strategic direction for council and partners to follow,  to improve the health and 
wellbeing of the population with a five year delivery plan  

2. Sets out a strong commitment to improving the health and wellbeing of the entire 
population of Herefordshire   

3. Adds value to the existing work programmes  
4. Identifies and clarifies priorities for action in short and medium term across partners 
5. Enables the board members to hold each other to account for delivery of the 

priorities. 
6. A vehicle for increasing the influence of local people in shaping services 

 
7. Clarity for all including the public on the priorities of the Health & Wellbeing Board 

 
8. An opportunity to engage local people in a conversation about taking control of their own 

health and wellbeing and supporting others to do the same 
 

9. Recognition of the influence of the wider determinants of health and wellbeing and the 
importance of joint working around transport, housing, employment, education and crime 
 

10. A leadership role in recognising and addressing rural inequalities 
 

11. Something to benchmark progress against as we move forward (measuring our progress 
with indicators and outcomes) 

 

 

 

21



4 
 

11  Timeline and Governance 

The Supportive Communities Working Group will act to check the work  

Regular reports to the Health & Wellbeing Board 

Oversight provided by Director of Public Health and Director of Adults Social Care and 
Housing. 

October – December 2014–consultation with key partners and analysis and summary of 
feedback points from relevant internal consultation exercises that have taken place. 

December 2014– mockup of format/make up of strategy 

November 2014-February 2015– consultation with the public on key themes and vision 

February 2015 – long list of options assessed against set of criteria 

March 2015– development of priorities and health and presentation of wellbeing strategy 
(draft) to health & Wellbeing Board members 

12 Key Questions for Board Members 

What do you think of the themes identified so far? 

How can you play a role in championing / communicating the health and wellbeing strategy 
and action plan taking this back to your respective organization, workforces or the groups 
you represent 

Would you add anything to the consultation approach?  

 

Jo Robins, Consultant in Public Health 

November 2014 

 

22



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Hazel Braund – Director of Operations on Tel (01432) 261837 

 

 

Meeting: Health & Wellbeing Board 

Meeting date: 25th March 2015 

Title of report: Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group’s Operational Plan 2015/16 

Report by: Director Of Operations – Herefordshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group 

 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision/key decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To provide a progress report on the development of Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group’s (HCCG) operational plan for 2015/16 and to outline key elements of the plan. To 
seek comments from Board members on the plan and to provide assurance that the HCCG 
work programme is aligned to the system’s health and social care transformation agenda. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the Board comment on and note the content of the HCCGs 2015/16 operational 

plan; and; 

(b) Endorse the plan and the HCCGs work programme. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

23



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Hazel Braund – Director of Operations on Tel (01432) 261837 

 

Alternative options 

1 There are no alternative options to the development of the plan. The CCG is required 
by NHS England to produce an operational plan that takes account of national 
planning guidance, but importantly also draws on local strategies and plans designed 
to deliver improved health outcomes and sustainable health and social care services.  

Reasons for recommendations 

2 The CCGs operational plan is designed to respond to national requirements as 
outlined in the NHS 15/16 planning guidance. Importantly, however, it also draws on 
existing strategies the CCG has been working on with partners together over the last 
year. The CCG wants to make sure that the plan represents this work and would 
welcome any feedback if members believe there are any significant omissions or 
believe it is not cognisant of Herefordshire Health and Social Care systems planned 
direction of travel.  

Key considerations 

3 NHS England issued planning guidance for 2015/16 in December: The Forward View 
into Action: Planning for 2015/16. The CCG is required to refresh its 2 year plans with 
draft submission in mid-February and final submission by April.  

4 A draft summary of the plan is attached to the paper. It provides an outline of the plan 
and key content compiled to date. NHS England has also now provided all CCGs with 
a plan on the page template which all have been asked to use and complete. This 
template is designed to provide assurance to NHS England that the CCG is 
considering all the key fundamentals that have been outlined in the planning 
guidance, and is included in the attachments. Further work is being undertaken to 
ensure improvement plans related to key NHS constitutional targets, outcome 
measures and saving plans are in place, and are aligned and linked to contract 
developments with NHS Providers in Herefordshire. 

5 Integral to the CCG’s work programme is its joint work with Herefordshire Council on 
the Better Care Fund and the wider Transformation Programme, all of which has 
informed and been used as basis for the CCG’s operational plan. This is focused on 
delivering seamless services wrapped around the individual and communities. This 
programme has been established with system leaders across Herefordshire who all 
recognise the interdependent nature of many of these and the need for collaborative 
working. For example, a core component of this programme is the Community 
Collaborative workstream which has been developed jointly with representatives from 
organisations across the Health and Social Care system. One of its main aims is the 
continued development of integrated  and co-ordinated multi–agency networks of 
professional and community resources, based around GP registered populations, 
which is an essential element of the to the CCGs work programme. 

6 The CCG and Herefordshire Council have also formed a shadow Joint 
Commissioning Board which will be the key forum by which significant joint 
commissioning decisions will be made. These arrangements have been developed in 
partnership between both bodies and will be central to delivering elements of the 
Better Care Fund, underpinned by a S75 agreement that will be in place for 15/16. 
The CCG continues to be actively involved in the Children and Young Peoples 
partnership and is a member of, as well as leading some of the supporting work 
streams.  Existing plans of these bodies as well as feedback and input from them 
have informed the content of the CCG’s operational plan for 15/16 and will continue 

24



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Hazel Braund – Director of Operations on Tel (01432) 261837 

 

to do so going forward.  All the CCG’s initiatives and schemes have implementation 
plans in place or in development. These [will] set out clear targets and deliverables 
and their status will reported to the appropriate project/programme board or 
committee regularly throughout 15/16.  

7 A final draft of the full plan will be submitted to NHS England at the beginning of April. 
This draft will take account of feedback from NHS England and other key 
stakeholders. The development of the plan will also be influenced by contract 
negotiations. 

Community impact 

8 The CCG plan will play a key part in delivering Herefordshire’s health and wellbeing 
strategy; it builds on existing plans that are part of the wider system transformation 
work. The JSNA has informed the case for change and the development of many of 
the key programmes of work within the CCGs plans. 

Equality duty 

9 The CCG ensures that its key programmes of work undertake an Equality Impact 
Assessment and it also adheres to the NHS Equality Development scheme, designed 
to ensure it pays due regard to the public sector equality standard and improved 
outcomes for vulnerable groups. 

Financial implications 

10 The CCG is facing a challenging financial landscape for 2015/16. The CCG work 
programme includes schemes that are designed to deliver QIPP savings during 
15/16. 

Legal implications 

11 None for this report 

Risk management 

12 None for this report 

Consultees 

13 The CCG has drawn on plans and strategies already developed and agreed with key 
stakeholders and partners. Draft versions of the plan have also been shared with 
HWBB members for comment prior to the March meeting for feedback. 

Appendices 

14 Appendix 1 –Summary of CCGs 15/16 Operational Plan 

Appendix 2 – CCGs Plan on page and overview of work programme. 

Background papers 

None Identified 

25



26



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Hazel Braund – Director of Operations on Tel (01432) 261837 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Attachment 1: Health & Wellbeing Board Executive Summary 
CCG Operational Plan 2015/16 

12 March 2015 
 

1. Herefordshire’s health care system faces many challenges relating to the sustainability of 
services in a rural county with a geographically dispersed population.  Major transformation 
is required to deliver an improved and more efficient model of care.  The CCG is 
collaborating closely with partners who all recognise that this needs to happen at pace and 
are committed to overcoming any organisational-form or estate constraints preventing the 
development of capable integrated public services.  
 

2. There has been significant progress over the year as system leaders across health and 
social care commissioning have linked with our main providers to agree a new approach to 
reshaping health and social care in the county. At the same time the CCG is ensuring that it 
is true to its principles of putting patients and the public at the heart of everything we do and 
supporting clinical leadership to guide changes that will deliver maximum benefits to 
patients.  
 

3. The CCG in 15/16 will have a strong focus on the achievement of NHS Constitutional targets 
and ensuring high quality care is delivered, in addition it will concentrate its work on the 
following priorities: 
 
• Delivering greater integration of care with a focus on seamless services wrapped around 

the individuals of all ages 
• Enhancing supportive self-management of long term conditions (including CVD and 

CHD)  
• Strengthening Herefordshire’s urgent care system including re-procurement of services 

and improved system management 
 

4. The CCG, as a system leader has a necessarily ambitious improvement programme that is 
currently being delivered within the CCG programme management governance structure. 
The work programme is focused on 8 key areas these are: 
 
• Preventing ill health and improving health 

• Improving  and enhancing planned care 
• Improving Urgent Care  

• Greater Integration of care (health and social care through Better Care Fund) 

• Modernising Mental Health Services 
• Developing Primary Care 

• Improving Health Outcomes for Children 
• High Quality Clinical Services 
 

5. Each work area has a clear set of programmes and projects designed to deliver 
improvements in NHS Constitution and NHS outcome measures as well as QIPP savings.  
Key measures of success include delivery of A&E 4 hr waits, referral to treatment times, 
improved cancer services, improved quality of life for those with long-term conditions, patient 
satisfaction with health services and emergency admissions.  
 

27



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Hazel Braund – Director of Operations on Tel (01432) 261837 

 

6. In developing its plans for 15/16 the CCG has taken account of new local and national policy 
drivers. Importantly the CCG will be taking advantage of emerging opportunities that are 
central to our future plans, these include: 
 
• Co-commissioning of Primary Care – in particular,  the opportunity to integrate the 

strategy for Primary Care with the wider Herefordshire system transformation, 
recognising that Primary Care clinical leadership has the potential to drive successful 
delivery 

• Working more closely with the Local Authority in developing our relationships with 
individuals and their communities,  seeking to reframe this relationship to one of mutual 
responsibility and building our commitment to the personalisation of care 

• Five Year Forward View  -  responding to the questions and opportunities posed in the 
Five Year Forward View and the Dalton Review working closely with our provider 
partners to take a new approach to the challenges in our system 

• The opportunity to review the physical infrastructure through which we provide care and 
develop system wide solutions that are fit for purpose for the long term.  

 
7. In delivering its work programmes the CCG will ensure that it embraces the following values 

in all its work: 
 
• Strong patient and public engagement 
• Quality care is seamlessly provided 

• Access to services is improved 
• Meaningful clinical and staff engagement 

• Operates with openness, integrity and trust  
 

8. The system wide Transformation Programme in Herefordshire provides  an opportunity to 
achieve alignment of  priorities and effort across commissioning and providing organisations, 
with the potential to delivery change at scale and pace. This programme is central to the 
CCGs work programme. Integral to this is the CCGs and Herefordshire Councils Better Care 
Fund Plan with a focus on enhancing seamless integrated care focused on communities and 
individuals. The CCG is committed to the Health and Social Care partners system vision that 
states: 

‘By 2020 Herefordshire system partners will provide seamless integrated care and support 
designed around the needs of individuals, their carers and their families.’ 

We want to be at the leading edge of seamless integration of care and support around 
individuals and their families. For patients, service users and their families this will mean that 

services “wrap around them”, to provide co-ordinated consistent and high quality services 
across organisational boundaries’. 

9. The CCGs 15/16 plan also builds on its 5 year plan that was presented at the HWBB in June 
2015. The CCG will continue to test and refresh its plan as Herefordshire’s Joint Health and 
Wellbeing strategy is re-developed.  The CCG in particular is committed to playing a full part 
in the development of the Supportive Communities workstream of the Transformation 
Programme ensuring that our plans are connected and reflect the systems shared strategic 
priorities.  Critical to this will be the focus on prevention and developing a new relationship 
with individuals and communities where individuals take more responsibility for their own 
care, and families and communities are supported to help those individuals to be as 
independent as possible. 
 

28



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Hazel Braund – Director of Operations on Tel (01432) 261837 

 

10. An overview of the CCG work programme and plan is provided in the following pages. This 
includes: 
 
• The CCG plan on page providing a summary of the CCG’s work programme and 

priorities 
• Summary detail of the CCC’s submission to NHS England focusing on schemes and 

initiatives designed to deliver NHS constitution targets and improvements in outcomes 
 

A final draft of the full plan will be submitted to NHS England at the beginning of April. This 
draft will take account of feedback from NHS England and other key stakeholders. 

29



30



DRAFT

This section provides an overview to our plans and work to date

• Foreword & CCG Vision
• CCG Work Programme
• Refreshed Plan on Page

Overview for Herefordshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board

Introduction Setting1the1
scene

Refreshing1our1
plans

Our Plans Cross;cutting1
themes

Managing1our1
delivery

Appendices

DRAFT
Foreword – Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group is 
committed to transformation and change

The CCG is on track to radically redesign the urgent care system through an outcomes based approach that will result in improved
alignment of  services from GP out of hours and ambulance services through to A&E and the Clinical Assessment Unit. Public 
engagement and clinical involvement have been key features of this work to date.  In addition the CCG is working alongside Wye 
Valley Trust  leadership to review and redesign secondary care services ensuring patients have access to clinically safe and 
effective services. 

Our priority is to ensure that patients receive the best care possible from public services and we believe this is best achieved by 
having a relentless focus on delivery of programmes and projects through to completion. This plan represents an extension of the
delivery of HCCG’s own Two-Year plan,  recognising that the challenges and solutions sit across a number of neighbouring 
organisations.  The CCG is committed to upholding and promoting the NHS Constitution as well as the NHS Mandate, and we 
embrace the description of the NHS it presents. Our GP members are key to the functioning of the CCG, and we will continue to 
engage widely with them during the transformation. Last but not least we will also continue to strengthen our engagement and 
involvement of voluntary sector organisations and individuals who support communities or care for others. 

Dr Andrew Watts Jo Whitehead
Chair Accountable Officer

Herefordshire’s health care system faces many challenges relating to the sustainability of services in a rural county with a 
geographically dispersed population.  Major transformation is required to deliver an improved and more efficient model of care.
The CCG is collaborating closely with partners who all recognise that this needs to happen at pace and are committed to 
overcoming any organisational-form or estate constraints preventing the development of capable integrated public services. 

There has been significant progress over the year as system leaders across health and social care commissioning have linked with
our main providers to agree a new approach to reshaping health and social care in the county. At the same time the CCG is 
ensuring that it is true to its principles of putting patients and the public at the heart of everything we do and supporting clinical
leadership to guide changes that will deliver maximum benefits to patients. 

The CCG is committed to developing integrated teams of multi-disciplinary health and social care professionals around GP 
practice populations.  We have signalled our intention to work closely with the NHS England Area Team to ensure that Primary 
Care transformation is an essential component of the agenda. There have been previous attempts to create integrated community
teams in Herefordshire and the CCG is well placed to gain from this experience to ensure that the lessons learnt are appropriately
applied.

“Our vision- High quality, sustainable, integrated health and social care economy with patients and public at the 
heart of everything we do”

31



DRAFT

• Mixed patient experience and 
outcomes of care

• Urgent care system under 
pressure

• Focus on inputs, activity and 
outputs, not outcomes

• Fragmented provision of 
health and social care 
services

• Silo-based commissioning  of 
services

• Embryonic collaboration 
between system partners

• Poor use of  technology and 
limited sharing of information

• Financial challenge

• Excellent patient and service user 
outcomes and satisfaction with 
services

• High quality, seamless provision of 
care services in Herefordshire in 
the right setting

• Services ‘wrapped around’ 
patients and users

• Financially viable and sustainable 
health and social care economy –
‘one system, one budget’

• Joined-up care systems and 
organisations

• Innovative use of IT and electronic 
shared care records

• Flexible, motivated and fulfilled 
workforce

14/15 18/19Where we are now Where we want to be15/16 16/17 17/18

The CCG’s vision and work programme underpins and supports the 
delivery of the health and care systems vision

Current State Future State

Our Priorities 
• Greater integration of care
• Supportive self management of Long term 

conditions
• Ensuring parity of esteem
• Delivering high quality primary and secondary care
• Improving urgent care system 
• Delivery of NHS Constitution standards

Herefordshire CCG  - Two Year Plan on a Page 2014-16 Herefordshire CCG  - Two Year Plan on a Page 2014-16 

Delivering  System ChangeDelivering  System Change

Our Actions
• Strong patient and public engagement
• Ensuring quality care is seamlessly 

provided
• Delivering improved access to services 
• Meaningful Clinical engagement
• CCG managing the system
• Operating with openness, integrity and 

trust

Our Vision
A high quality, 

sustainable, and 
integrated health 

and care economy, 
with the patient and 

the public at the 
heart of everything 

we do 

CCG’s plans to deliver change and improvement 

• Preventing ill health and improving health

• Improving  and enhancing planned care

• Improving urgent care 

• Greater Integration of care (health and social care 
through Better Care Fund)

• Modernising Mental Health Services

• Developing Primary Care

• Improving Health Outcomes for Children

• High Quality Clinical Services

Key measures of success & progress

• Delivery of NHS Constitution commitments

• Reduction of emergency admissions 

• Improvement in potential life lost

• Patient satisfaction of care

• Delivery of QIPP savings

Introduction Setting1the1
scene

Refreshing1our1
plans

Our Plans Cross;cutting1
themes

Managing1our1
delivery

Appendices

DRAFTThe CCG has a clear work programme designed to ensure NHS 
Constitution Commitments and long term change are delivered

Introduction Setting1the1
scene

Refreshing1our1
plans

Our Plans Cross;cutting1
themes

Managing1our1
delivery

Appendices

32



DRAFT
Delivering  System ChangeDelivering  System Change

Preventing Ill Health & Improving 
Health
CCG Lead:
Clinical  Lead:

• Improving CVD and CHD outcomes and 
reducing associated inequalities

• Greater proactive anticipatory care and 
supported self management (TP, BCF)

• Greater focus on preventative care 
pathways and reductions in admissions  
due to alcohol, smoking and obesity 
related conditions

• Focus on cancer survivorship and 
prevention

• Make greater use of pharmacists: in 
prevention of ill health

• Local agreed care pathways for key 
conditions to ensure consistent practice

• Ensuring appropriate referrals from 
primary to secondary care (including e-
referrals) 

• Enabling effective discharge from 
secondary to primary care

• Education programme  to embed 
pathways across primary care (GP and 
Practice Nurses)

• Timely access to appropriate care and 
advice including diagnostics, cancer)

• Enhanced end of life care

Improving and Enhancing Planned 
Care
CCG Lead: 
Clinical Lead:

CCG Lead: Dr Crispin fisher  & tbc 

Improving Urgent Care
CCG Lead:
Clinical Lead:

• Improve the delivery of urgent care 
services by moving to an outcomes 
based commissioning approach

• Ensure the urgent care system 
provides high quality accessible 
services 

• Reducing the number of avoidable 
admissions, readmissions, repeat 
visits and length of stay

• Enhanced operational urgent care 
system management 

• Managing primary care instigated 
demand

Greater Integration of Care (linked to BCF)
CCG Lead: 
Clinical lead:

• Seamless working across all care settings 
(TP)

• Improved signposting for patients and public 
for health and social care services (TP)

• Putting in place a model for seven day 
working

• Enhanced reablement & intermediate care 
• Modernising community services including 

reablement and intermediate care services 
(TP)

• Integrated voluntary sector and  community 
support into all  care services and pathways 

• Information sharing  between health and 
social care (including NHS Number) (TP)

• Greater use of technology e.g. telecare

Modernising Mental Health Services 
CCG Lead: 
Clinical Lead:

• Ensuring parity of esteem of Mental Health 
with physical health

• Development of all-age Mental Health and 
Well-being Strategy

• •Improvements in Mental Health crisis care
• Focussing on Patient-centred care and in 

self-management across care pathways (TP)
• Awareness of dementia and improvement in 

access to diagnosis
• Using Mental Health needs assessment to 

inform re-provision
• Embedding Liaison psychiatry in Acute Care
• Improving Access to psychological support 

for people with anxiety and depression

• Improved outcomes and access to 
health services for vulnerable children

• Better respite and short term care for 
vulnerable children

• Better outcomes for children with 
disabilities and long-term conditions 
(BCF)

• Transforming mental health services for 
children and young people 

• Improving health outcomes for children 
with special educational needs

• Redevelopment of maternity care 
pathway (including midwifery)

Developing Primary Care
CCG Lead:
Clinical Lead:

• Ensuring equitable access and 
provision of quality primary care 

• Reducing variation in quality of care and 
improving standards 

• Putting in place a model for seven day 
working

• Delivering prevention and early 
intervention (TP)

• Establish future options for sustainable 
Primary Care services in Herefordshire  

• Developing community teams based 
around practice populations

• Development of Co-commissioning 
framework

High Quality Clinical Services
CCG Lead: 
Clinical Lead:

• Enhanced Quality Assurance process 
Focus on quality of care in care homes 
(including assurance process and 
education)

• Developing new models for provision 
linked to five year forward view - which 
are clinically appropriate, high quality, 
patient centred and value for money (TP)

• Specific work on improving stroke and 
cancer services

• Robust safeguarding practice (adults 
and children)

• Engaging public and patients to improve 
outcomes and develop new models of 
provision

• Safe ,cost effective and appropriate use 
of medicines

Herefordshire CCG’s two year plan is focused on eight key strategic 
work areas aimed at delivering our priorities….

Improving Health Outcomes for 
Children
CCG Lead: 
Clinical Lead:

Introduction Setting1the1
scene

Refreshing1our1
plans

Our Plans Cross;cutting1
themes

Managing1our1
delivery

Appendices

*programmes)linked)to)BCF)&)transformation)(tp)

DRAFTThe CCG with its partners have developed a vision for Herefordshire's 
Health and Care system

By 2020 Herefordshire system partners will provide seamless integrated care and support designed around the needs of 
individuals, their carers and their families. 

We want to be at the leading edge of seamless integration of care and support around individuals and their families. For 
patients, service users and their families this will mean that services “wrap around them”, to provide co-ordinated 

consistent and high quality services across organisational boundaries. 

Introduction Setting1the1
scene

Refreshing1our1
plans

Our Plans Cross;cutting1
themes

Managing1our1
delivery

Appendices

33



DRAFT
A new outcome based approach to Urgent Care - based on 
the experience and care that local people have told us they 
want to receive when they need an urgent response from the 
NHS

• Extensive  public engagement public 13/14

• Integrated urgent care pathway from NHS 111to A&E 
with focus on outcomes important to patients and not 
input measures

• Identification of a potential accountable lead provider

Stroke - a robust plan to secure sustainable improvements in 
the service that people in Herefordshire receive. Increased 
investment of £1.1m and clinical network with Gloucestershire 
to ensure access to the best expertise for our patients; 
improved local capacity and pathways. Delivery from 1st April
2015 designed to:

• Improved access to TIA clinics to prevent strokes

• Move to earlier assessment and goal directed care 
planning in partnership with patients and carers

• Where possible Early Supported Discharge to enable 
rehabilitation in peoples own homes

• Focus on survivorship

Dementia - new county-wide strategy and pathway to address 
the issue of the estimated 3,000 people in Herefordshire living 
with dementia, focus on puts earlier diagnosis, better post-
diagnosis support and a more joined up approach between 
health and care providers, to improve quality of life for those 
with dementia and their carers, and increase diagnostic rates 

Our plans for 15/16 will build on progress to date 

“Hospital at Home” - supporting people in their own homes, to 
prevent the need for admission and also to ensure that they are 
discharged from hospital at the earliest appropriate point to support 
long term recovery and independence service. Evaluation 
undertaken in Summer 2014

• 187 patients were able to leave hospital earlier than their 
predicted length of stay when supported by the Early 
Supported Discharge element of the Hospital at Home.

• 301 patients were discharged from the Hospital at Home by 
the end of July 2014. Within 28 days of discharge 16 patients 
(5%) were readmitted to the virtual ward for additional 
treatment and 47 patients (16%) were admitted to hospital.

• Qualitative interviews articulated overwhelmingly positive 
reports of the benefits of the care provided.

Falls response - available 24 hours per day every day including 
Bank Holidays

• Provides a response where no emergency informal contacts 
are available, and emergency services are not required but 
would have attended in the absence of alternative informal 
support services  also 

• Provide assistance to get up following a fall using appropriate 
protocols, aids and equipment and light first aid provision.

• Responding with welfare visits to no answer and incoherent 
calls preventing the default call out of emergency services.

• Assessing risks in the home and signposting with consent to 
appropriate services, e.g. GP, Falls Prevention Team, Social 
Workers, and Handyman Service.

Designed to avoid ambulance dispatch and reduce attendance at 
A&E who have fallen but not injured themselves

34



Further information on the subject of this report is available from Robert Vickers Assistant Director, 
Housing and Community Wellbeing on Tel:  01432 260368 

 

 

Meeting: Health & Wellbeing Board 

Meeting date: 25 March 2015 

Title of report: Commissioning Intentions 2015-16 

Report by: Assistant Director, Housing and Community 
Wellbeing 

  

 

Alternative options 

1. The proposed commissioning intentions are informed by a clear understanding of 
local and national policy intentions, intelligence derived from the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment, the current state of play allied to commissioned and contracted 
services and the market for care and support in Herefordshire and the need to make 
best use of available resources. Therefore the proposed programmes will seek to 
enhance outcomes and promote choice and control for those requiring care and 
support.  

 
Reasons for recommendation 
2. Commissioning is at the heart of everything that we do in terms of promoting choice 
and control and making the best use of available resources. As such the list of 
commissioning intentions will support our Transformation Programmes and the 

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To highlight in brief commissioning intentions and programmes that promote the health and 
wellbeing of the population of Herefordshire. The in brief nature recognises the breath of 
programmes across Children’s Wellbeing, Adults Wellbeing and the Clinical Commissioning 
Groups work plans, to assure health and wellbeing and progress allied to inequalities of 
outcomes for the residents of the County. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) The Board note the broad and specific commissioning intentions. 
(b) To note those areas of commonality and synergy to support increasing 

opportunities for co-commissioning; and 
(c) The development of capability to support commissioning intentions 

that are evidenced based and demonstrate better outcomes for people. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

35



Further information on the subject of this report is available from Robert Vickers Assistant Director, 
Housing and Community Wellbeing on Tel:  01432 260368 

 

redesign of services to assure better outcomes. Implicit within our approach is the 
importance of working together to seize opportunities to do things differently so that 
we can provide comprehensive, complementary services and where appropriate 
integration of function to ensure best value in resources that are available. 

 

Key considerations 

3. Good commissioning is: 

• Person-centred and focused upon outcomes – Good commissioning is 
person-centred and focused upon outcomes that people say matter most to 
them. It empowers people to have choice and control in their lives and over their 
care and support. 

• Promote health and wellbeing for all – Good commissioning promotes health 
and wellbeing, including physical, mental, emotional, social and economic 
wellbeing. This covers promoting protective factors and maximising people’s 
capabilities and support within their communities, commissioning services to 
promote health wellbeing, preventing, delaying or reducing the need for services 
and protecting people from neglect and abuse. 

• Delivers social value – Good commissioning provides value for the whole 
community not just the individual and their carers, the commissioner or the 
provider. 

• Demonstrates a whole systems approach – Good commissioning convenes 
and leads a whole systems approach to ensure the best use of resources in a 
local area through joint approaches between the public, voluntary and private 
sectors. 

• Well led and uses evidence about what works – Good commissioning is led by 
key representatives from all sections of our local community and underpinned by 
principles of co-production, personalisation, integration and the promotion of 
wellbeing. Good commissioning draws upon evidence as to what works well and 
utilises a wide range of information to promote quality outcomes for people, their 
carers and communities, and to support innovation. 

• Provides value for money – Good commissioning provides value for money by 
identifying solutions that ensure a good balance of quality and cost to make the 
best use of resources and achieve the most positive outcomes for people and 
their communities. 

• Develops the commissioning and provider workforce – Good commissioning 
is undertaken by competent and effective commissioners and facilitates the 
development of an effective, sufficient, trained and motivated health and social 
care workforce. It is concerned with sustainability, including the financial viability 
of providers and the coordination of health and social care workforce planning. 

4. The commissioning intentions are ambitious and will seek to respond positively to the 
range of complexities confronting Children’s Wellbeing, Adult Wellbeing and the 
Health Economy, against the continuing financial backdrop of constrained financial 
resources. The areas identified include, but not exhaustive in nature: 

• NHS and Social Care Nursing Care Provider Framework. 

• Mental Health and Wellbeing Pathway and Commissioning Plan. 

• Learning Disability Pathway and Commissioning Plan. 

36



Further information on the subject of this report is available from Robert Vickers Assistant Director, 
Housing and Community Wellbeing on Tel:  01432 260368 

 

• Sexual Health Pathway. 

• Drug and Alcohol Pathway. 

• Obesity and Physical Activity/Behaviour Change Commissioning Plan. 

• Older Peoples Day Opportunities Commissioning Plan. 

• Information, Advice and Signposting Service. 

• Intermediate Care Commissioning Plan. 

• Children’s Health Pathway and Commissioning Plan. 

• Children and Young Peoples Plan. 

• Integrated Pathway moving from Pre-birth to transition into Adulthood. 

• Commissioning of Post 19 opportunities, supporting young people into local 
education and training. 

• Commissioning Direct Services for children and families, including respite and 
fostering to support children with disabilities, rather than residential care. 

• Housing Prevention Strategy. 

• Housing and Affordable Homes Strategy. 

• Older Peoples and Specialist Housing Need Pathway and Commissioning Plan. 

• Carers Strategy Refresh. 

• The redesign of community health services and the development of an adult 
social care operating framework. 

• BCF Commissioning to support the BCF Plan. 

5. As indicated this is not an exhaustive list of commissioning intentions and activities 
and will seek to support the Health and Well Being Board to promote better outcomes 
for the people of Herefordshire. The above commissioning intentions will give 
meaning to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy now moving to a conclusion and 
readiness for implementation. 

    

Community impact 

6. The Understanding Herefordshire 2014 and local needs assessments will provide an 
evidence base to support the commissioning intentions. We will strive to ensure that 
our approaches are comprehensive and complementary and seize those 
opportunities for co-commissioning to ensure that we maximise working together. 

 

Equality duty 

7. An equality impact assessment will be undertaken for each commissioning work   
stream and activity to identify problems, or missed opportunities and adjust policy to 
remove barriers or better promote equality. 
 

Financial Implications 
8. Commissioning Intentions will be founded upon robust financial planning to ensure 
the best use of available resources. 
 

37



Further information on the subject of this report is available from Robert Vickers Assistant Director, 
Housing and Community Wellbeing on Tel:  01432 260368 

 

Legal implications 
9. Commissioning Intentions will be founded upon rigorous legal conditions to ensure 
solid governance of activity and procurements. 

 

Risk management 
10.  Risk will be managed and controlled through the development of robust evidenced 
commissioning plans that have recourse to the governance infrastructures of the 
local authority and clinical commissioning group. 

 

Consultees 

11. Engagement strategies will accompany the development of commissioning intentions 
to support implementation. As indicated earlier our approach will embed co-
production and personalisation. 

 
Appendices 
 
None 
Background papers 
 
None 
 

38



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alison Merry on Tel (01432) 383431 

 

 

MEETING: HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 

MEETING DATE: 25 March 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL 
REPORT 2014-15 

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH (INTERIM) 
 

 
Alternative options 
1. There are no Alternative Options to receiving and publishing the Director of Public 

Health’s Annual Report as the Annual Report is a statutory requirement.  

Reasons for recommendations 

2. The report provides the Director of Public Health’s view on important issues affecting 
the health of the population of Herefordshire and fulfils the requirement that the report 
is published by the local authority. 

3. The annual report has as its focus one of Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board’s 
key themes – giving our children the best start in life. 

4. The annual report supports the priorities of the Children and Young People’s 
Partnership. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To note the statutory annual report of the Director of Public Health on the health of people 
of Herefordshire as required by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT: The Director of Public Health Annual Report 2014 is received by the Council 
and is published, as required by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

39



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alison Merry on Tel (01432) 383431 

 

5. The Director of Public Health Annual Report is a statutory requirement.   

Key considerations 

6. This is the second annual report of the Director of Public Health since the transition of 
public health responsibilities to the local authority under the Health and Social Care 
Act 2012. 

7. The focus of the Director of Public Health’s annual report this year is children and 
young people with a particular emphasis on improving outcomes for 0-5 year olds.  In 
this report the Director of Public Health highlights what can be done to improve a 
wide range of outcomes for children including health, wellbeing, developmental and 
educational outcomes.  The report has been informed by data in the Children’s 
Integrated Needs Assessment (CINA) published in January and the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment, Understanding Herefordshire (UH), and provides a range of 
practical advice on improving children’s outcomes, thereby complementing the 
recommendations in the CINA and UH. 

8. It contains an update on the recommendations from the 2013 Director of Public 
Health’s annual report 

9. The topics highlighted in the report are important to the decision making process 
about local priorities for public health and the local authority for the next planning 
cycle and beyond. 

Community impact 

10. The report emphasises the central role of parents, carers, families and communities 
in ensuring that children get the best possible start in life. 

11. Addressing the issues highlighted in these reports has the potential to positively 
impact on the health and wellbeing of children and young people and the families and 
communities that they live in. 

Equality and human rights 

12. The report is the Director of Public Health’s view of the needs of the county’s 
population experiencing greatest inequalities and poorest health outcomes.  This 
includes examining equitable access to services. The recommendations support the 
Public Sector Equality Duty, under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, which are to: 

 
• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

that is prohibited by or under the Act; 
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and people who do not share it; 
• Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and those who do not share it. 

Financial implications 

13. The report itself has no financial implications and commits no funding. 

40



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alison Merry on Tel (01432) 383431 

 

Legal implications 

14. Section 31 Health and Social Care Act 2012 provides that there is a duty for the 
Director of Public Health to prepare an annual report on the health of the people in 
the area of the local authority, and a duty on the local authority to publish the report. 

Risk management 

15. Failure to produce the Director of Public Health Annual Report would mean as a local 
authority we are not fulfilling our statutory requirement. 

16. Failure to receive the annual report and take action in its decision making could result 
in the council’s failure to improve outcomes for children and young people in 
Herefordshire. 

Consultees 

17. Children’s Wellbeing Directorate 

Appendices 

18. Appendix A – Director of Public Health Annual Report 

Background papers 

19. None identified. 

 

 
 
 

41



42



Herefordshire
A great place to grow up

@HfdsCouncil 

hfdscouncil

www.herefordshire.gov.uk
43



Foreword by Councillor Graham Powell, 
Cabinet Member Adults and Wellbeing

The responsibility
for public health
transferred from the
NHS to local
authorities in April
2013 and brought
with it a
requirement to issue
an annual report
from the Director of
Public Health. I’m
pleased to introduce this, the third annual
report prepared by the Herefordshire public
health team, which has as its focus one of the
Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board‘s
key themes – giving our children the best
possible start in life.

The Health and Wellbeing Board has an
overarching vision that:

“Herefordshire residents are resilient; lead
fulfilling lives; are emotionally and physically 
healthy and feel safe and secure”.

In order to achieve that vision it is critical that
we work together to give children and young
people the best possible start in life and to put
in place the building blocks that will lead them
towards a safe and healthy lifestyle.

Herefordshire is a wonderful place for our
children to grow up but there are significant
differences in health and achievement as we
look across the county. This is why I welcomed
the publication in January of the Children’s
Integrated Needs Assessment, which will bring
focus onto the provision of services that meet
the real needs of our children and young
people.
The health and social care system across
Herefordshire will face many challenges over
the next few years including reductions in
funding and an increasing demand on services
through population growth and ageing. The
Health and Wellbeing strategy is being
refreshed to recognise these challenges and to
ensure that as commissioners, service providers
and residents we work together to improve
the health of the residents of Herefordshire.

I welcome this year’s report from the Director
of Public Health and in particular the focus on
children and young people.

Councillor Graham Powell
Cabinet Member, Adults and Wellbeing
Chair of Herefordshire Health and
Wellbeing Board

www.herefordshire.gov.uk2

44



Introduction by Councillor Jeremy Millar, 
Cabinet Member Children and Young People

I welcome this
report and its focus
on 0-5 year olds
both as Cabinet
Member for
Children and Young
People’s Wellbeing
and on behalf of
Herefordshire’s
Children and Young
People’s Partnership.

Our vision in Herefordshire is that children and
young people are raised with their health and
wellbeing needs met, that they are kept safe
from harm, and that they have the
opportunities to make the most of their
capabilities.  Working together in partnership
across the county to ensure that children get
the best possible start in life is a fundamentally
important part of how we will achieve this.

This report supports the priorities of the
Children and Young People’s Partnership
which are to improve outcomes for our
youngest children aged 0-5 years, improve
outcomes for children with a disability, develop
a “think family” approach and culture across

the partnership to target resources and
support vulnerable families, improve the
emotional and mental health and wellbeing of
children, young people and their parents and
carers, and reduce the number of young
people offending.

This year’s report reinforces the central role of
families in shaping children’s health, wellbeing
and development.  In addition to reporting on
work that is in progress and planned, it
provides suggestions for how families can help
themselves to support their children in the
early years and links to sources of further
information.  It also challenges us as a
community to think about how we can “think
family” and support all of our children to get
off to a great start in life.

I hope that you will enjoy reading this year’s
Director of Public Health annual report.

Councillor Jeremy Millar
Cabinet Member, Children and Young
People
Chair of Herefordshire Children and Young
People's Partnership Board

www.herefordshire.gov.uk 3

Acknowledgments: 
With contributions from the Herefordshire Public Health Department: Rod Thomson, Alison Merry, Susan Lloyd,
Sophie Young and Latha Unny
Designed by Herefordshire Council Design Team: Nick Winwood and Alun Herbert 
With thanks to Jo Davidson, Councillor Graham Powell, Councillor Jeremy Millar, Helen Coombes, Arif Mahmood,
Kristan Pritchard, Jean Masanyero-Bennie, Andy Hough, Gwen Ellison and Helun Sandifort 

45



Introduction by the
Director of Public Health

The starting point
for Herefordshire’s
Health and
Wellbeing Strategy
is the early
childhood years and
the importance of
supportive
communities and
families. In
recognising Herefordshire Council's
commitment to the health and wellbeing of
children and young people, my report this year
is concentrating on how we can improve the
health and wellbeing of our very youngest
children.

From birth to 5 years old children grow
more than they will at any other time of
their lives. Giving a child the best start in life
really does set them up for the future.
Whilst most families are successful in
supporting and caring for themselves and
their children, families sometimes benefit
from extra support to help children to
achieve their full potential.  In this report
you will read how we are working with
families, communities, service providers and
the NHS across Herefordshire to ensure that
families are able to care for themselves and
so that children get the best possible start in
life.

Professor Rod Thomson, Director of
Public Health (Interim), Herefordshire
Council

www.herefordshire.gov.uk4

46



www.herefordshire.gov.uk 5

47



Herefordshire: A great place to

Starting school is a big life event and we
want all our children to be ready for that big
day. This means that the first five years of a
child’s life are vitally important and we know
that supporting our children to live in a home
in which their health and wellbeing needs
are met, where they are kept safe from harm,
and where they are encouraged to maximise
their capabilities is the key to having healthy
and happy children in Herefordshire. 

As a council we want to support children and
families and to do this we need a good
understanding about their lives and what their
needs are.  This year, with partners, we have
undertaken a detailed assessment of the needs of
children and young people in Herefordshire – the
Children’s Integrated Needs Assessment.  This was
published in January 2015 and is available to read
on the council’s website 
(http://factsandfigures.herefordshire.gov.uk/CYP.as
px#Resource_box).

As a result we now have very good information
about local children and families, their needs,
what is going really well for children and young
people and what some of the local challenges are.

From this work, we have identified three particular
priorities for the future health and wellbeing of
children in the 0-5 age group:
• achieving the best possible physical and mental
health and wellbeing,

• ensuring that children are up-to-date with their
immunisations, and

• keeping teeth healthy.

All these things will help to ensure that children
develop as well as they can in these early years
and get off to a great start at school.

Starting well 
Breastfeeding gives babies a great start in life
and we are encouraging breastfeeding by
promoting Start 4 Life, introducing the UNICEF
baby friendly initiative, providing information
about the benefits of breastfeeding to mums
and dads, developing peer support by training
mums to support others to breastfeed, and
through the support that Health Visitors and
Children's Centres provide to parents.
Information about the benefits of breastfeeding
and on where to find support with
breastfeeding in Herefordshire can be found at:

http://www.nhs.uk/start4life/Pages/breastfeedin
g-benefits.aspx
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/health-and-
social-care/children-and-family-care/breastfeedin
g-support
http://www.wyevalley.nhs.uk/services/communit
y-services/health-visiting.aspx

A balanced diet is important for everyone, but
pregnant women, new mums and young
children may have additional needs and so may
benefit from vitamin supplements.   During the
past year we have been working with the
national Healthy Start programme to set up a
Healthy Start vitamin scheme in Herefordshire
which provides vitamin supplements for young
children and pregnant women.  

www.herefordshire.gov.uk6

48



o grow up

We are now working towards increasing the
number of outlets where Healthy Start vitamins
are available.  Parents can find more
information about the Healthy Start programme
from their Health Visitor, local Children’s Centre
or by visiting: http://www.healthystart.nhs.uk.

Many of the foods and drinks that children love
to eat contain surprisingly high levels of sugar
and as a result children often have too much
sugar in their diet.  This can lead to weight gain
and an increased risk of developing diseases
such as type 2 diabetes and heart disease in
later life.  Sugar is also responsible for causing
tooth decay.  Taking care to limit the amount of
sugar that children consume is therefore a very
important part of healthy eating and swapping
sugary food and drinks for healthier alternatives
is a great way to improve children's health and
to help keep teeth strong and healthy.  There
are lots of ideas for sugar swaps here: 
http://www.nhs.uk/Change4Life/Pages/low-
sugar-healthy-snacks.aspx

This year we are also supporting the NHS Sport
and Physical Activity Challenge within primary
schools. 

www.herefordshire.gov.uk 7

49



Dental Health
Children in Herefordshire are more likely to have
tooth decay at age three and age five than
children in other regions of England. In our
county around one in every five three year olds
has signs of tooth decay and this increases to
one in every three five-year-old children. We
tend to see poorer dental health in areas of the
county that are less economically advantaged. 

We are working with Health Visitors and
childcare providers to improve the dental health
of young children in Herefordshire for example
by promoting our “top tips for teeth”, by
providing dental packs to parents and by setting
up supervised toothbrushing schemes.

Percentage of children obese 
or overweight:
Percentage of children obese 
or overweight:

re
c
e
p

ti
o
n

re
ce

pt
io

n

Herefordshire

England

19.3%

22.5%

y
e
a
r 

6
ye

ar
 6

(Period: 2013/14 data)

Herefordshire

England

31.1%

33.5%

Recommended daily activity
levels
Recommended daily activity
levels

toddlers
180 minutes

5-16 year
olds
60 minutes

keeping activeKeeping active

To find out how children can 
become more active
search change 4 Life or visit 
the NHS Choices website

Dental healthDental health

1 in 5 three year olds have tooth decay

1 in 3 five year olds have tooth decay

Age 

3
Age 

5

www.herefordshire.gov.uk8

50



Our top tips for teeth:
• Start brushing your child's teeth as soon as the first tooth comes through
• Brush your child's teeth twice a day with a family fluoride toothpaste containing at least

1,000ppm fluoride (most toothpastes have 1,000ppm – 1,450ppm fluoride. Toothpastes with
less than 1,000ppm fluoride are less effective at preventing decay)

• Make “last thing at night before bed” one of the times when you brush 
• Children up to 3 years of age should only use a smear of toothpaste (see below)
• Children aged 3-6 years should use no more than a pea sized blob of toothpaste (see below)
• After brushing, encourage your child to “spit out and not rinse”
• Children need to be helped to brush and supervised by an adult whilst brushing until they are at

least 7 years old
• Don't let your child eat or lick toothpaste from the tube.

• Take children to see the dentist regularly
• Start taking your child to the dentist as soon as 

the first tooth comes through
• REMEMBER - NHS dental care is FREE for children 

and for pregnant women and for new mums 
(up to 12 months after birth)

Smear - under 3 years Pea sized blob - 3 years +

www.herefordshire.gov.uk 9

51



The NHS provides a programme of routine
vaccinations to all children in order to protect
them against preventable infectious diseases.
Vaccinations work on two important levels.
Firstly they offer protection to the individual child
who receives the vaccination, and secondly they
protect the wider community by reducing the
ability of an infection to spread, but only when
95 or more out of every 100 children have been
vaccinated (this is called 'herd immunity').  In
Herefordshire the percentage of children who are
up-to-date with their routine vaccinations is
lower than the 95% required to provide the best
possible protection for everyone and we are
working with the NHS to increase the numbers
of local children who are immunised.  Up to the
age of one year, the majority of children in
Herefordshire are immunised with approximately
94 in every 100 children receiving their
vaccinations.  However, at two years of age the

uptake of routine vaccinations for Meningitis C
(MenC), Haemophilus influenza type B (Hib) and
Pneumococcal vaccine booster (PCV) is lower
than the England average.  Unvaccinated
children are at potential risk of catching these
diseases each of which can lead to serious illness
and potentially can be fatal.

Make sure your child is protected by taking them
along for their routine vaccinations at the
recommended time.

You can find out more about routine childhood
vaccinations from your Health Visitor, School
Nurse or GP practice or by visiting:
http://www.nhs.uk/Conditions/vaccinations/Page
s/vaccination-schedule-age-checklist.aspx

Protecting our children from infectious diseases 

Protecting our children against
preventable infectious diseases
• Herefordshire’s Healthy Child

Programme encourages parents to get
their child immunised

• Our Health Visitors and School Nurses
are talking to parents and carers about
the importance of childhood
immunisations

• We make sure that medical centres have
systems to call children for their
immunisations through our partner,
NHS England.

www.herefordshire.gov.uk10

52



Education - early years
foundation stage profile
Education - early years
foundation stage profile

60%

Being ready for school 
A child who lives in a family and community in
which their health and wellbeing needs are
met and where they are kept safe from harm is
likely to maximise his/her potential. It’s
important that before a child goes to school he
or she has a basic understanding of speaking,
listening and numbers, taking turns and
sharing, that they are able to do everyday tasks
such as using a knife and fork to eat and that
they are toilet trained. This underpins a child’s
education, which in turn underpins their
emotional wellbeing and their growth into a
strong resilient adult.

We are training staff who work with pre-
school children to help children to develop
their speaking and listening skills and to use
phonics to support the development of
reading skills.
We deliver accredited parenting programmes
in groups and on a one to one basis in
children’s centres, together with family
learning programmes, including work related
skills.
We support providers of early years’ services to
ensure that the transition to reception is as
smooth as possible for the child and their
family.

What are we doing to help children
develop their speaking, listening and
numbers skills?
We have expanded the number of places for 2
year olds entitled to free education.
We are promoting a campaign to encourage
nursery rhymes and reading with children,
including annual reading challenges and
improved access to neighbourhood libraries.
Our 10 children's centres are supporting
parenting and coordinating support services in
specific areas of the county.

What can parents do to help young
children to develop their readiness for
school?
Parents and families are children’s first
teachers and are the most important people
when it comes to helping young children to
develop the skills they will need when they
start school.  Here are some of the things that
parents of pre-school children can do to
develop their child’s readiness for school:
• Playing with your child and encouraging

them to play with other children helps to
develop a wide range of skills including
speaking and listening, sharing and taking
turns, developing confidence and making
friends

• Singing nursery rhymes and children’s songs
helps to develop speaking, listening and
simple maths skills

• Introducing your child to books and stories
from an early age will help to lay the
foundations for reading and writing

• Attending nursery, play-group or other early
years’ provision helps children to develop
many of the skills they will need to get off
to a great start at school.

All three year olds and four year olds are
entitled to 570 hours of free childcare per year
and now some two year olds are also eligible
for this.  More information on childcare in
Herefordshire is available at:
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/education-
and-learning/early-years-and-childcare/childcare

In 2013/14, 60 out of every 100 Herefordshire
children had achieved a ‘good level of
development’.  This is better than the numbers
for the West Midlands (58) and the same as
the England average in the same period.
However it still means that 4 in 10 children are
not achieving a good level of development,
hence the importance of helping children and
their families.

60% of Herefordshire pupils achieved a good level of
development at reception age 4-5 years old

www.herefordshire.gov.uk 11

53



Children and young people with poor mental
health are more likely to have poor educational
attainment and employment prospects, social
relationship difficulties, physical ill health and
substance misuse problems and to become
involved in offending. We also know from the
2014 Chief Medical Officer’s report that
children and young people from the poorest
households are three times more likely to have
a mental health problem than those growing
up in better-off homes.

Supporting parents during pregnancy and the
early years is known to impact positively on
the mental health of children and young
people and a secure parent/child relationship
contributes to a positive attachment and helps
to create emotional resilience in children. 

There are five simple steps that everyone can
use to improve their mental wellbeing –
“connect”, “be active”, “keep learning”,
“give” and “take notice”.  We are using
these “Five Ways to Wellbeing” in our
approach to improving mental wellbeing in
children.  

We are keen to support the mental wellbeing
of local children and young people and their
families and the Children and Young People’s
Partnership has developed a multi-agency
strategy to support emotional wellbeing and
mental health for children, young people and
their families.  We want children, young
people and their families to:

• Be aware of their own emotional
wellbeing and mental health, and that
of others

• Develop good emotional wellbeing
and mental health

• Be able to get further support, advice
and access to more specialised
assistance when they need it. 

Mental health and wellbeing in children and young people

www.herefordshire.gov.uk12

54



http://www.nhs.uk/Conditions/st
ress-anxiety-
depression/Pages/improve-men-
tal-wellbeing.aspx
#Evidence

The Five Steps to 
Wellbeing:
1) Connect
There is strong evidence to show that feeling
close to and valued by other people is a
fundamental human need and contributes to
functioning well.  Social relationships are
important for promoting wellbeing and can act
as a buffer against mental ill health for people of
all ages.

2) Be active
Regular physical activity promotes wellbeing
and is associated with lower rates of depression
and anxiety across all age groups.  The activity
doesn’t need to be particularly intense to make
a difference.  For example walking provides
some level of exercise and has the benefit of
encouraging social interactions.

3) Keep learning
Continued learning through life enhances self-
esteem and encourages social interaction and a
more active life.

4) Give
Giving to others can improve mental wellbeing
from small acts, such as a smile, thank you or
kind word, through to larger acts, such as
volunteering which can improve mental
wellbeing and build social networks.  Research
into actions for promoting happiness has
shown that committing an act of kindness
once a week over a six-week period is
associated with an increase in wellbeing.

5) Take notice
Taking notice, being aware of what is
happening and “savoring the moment” can
help to reaffirm life priorities, enhance self-
understanding and can help people to make
positive choices based on their own values and
motivations.  This is sometimes called
"mindfulness", and it can positively change the
way you feel about life and how you approach
challenges.

www.herefordshire.gov.uk 13

55



We provide extra support for Herefordshire families and
children who are vulnerable 

www.herefordshire.gov.uk14

• We provide facilities/amenities for disabled
children within their homes.

• We act early where children are at risk of
homelessness.

• We work in partnership with a number of
organisations such as West Mercia
Women’s Aid which provides outreach
services to support children and young
people affected by domestic abuse. 

• We provide benefits and debt advice to parents
in difficulty who need support.

• We have a dedicated team and service which
works with looked after children.

For more information visit: 
Children with disabilities and special needs:
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/health-and-social-
care/children-and-family-care/disabilities-and-s
pecial-needs?q=disabled
children&type=suggestedpage

Homelessness:
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/housing/homelessn
ess-and-prevention/homelessness-advice-and-
support

Domestic abuse:
www.westmerciawomensaid.org

56



The Healthy Child Programme

www.herefordshire.gov.uk 15

In Herefordshire we support the aims of the
Healthy Child Programme which include:
• helping parents to develop a strong bond

with their child 
• encouraging breastfeeding
• encouraging children to stay healthy and

safe
• reducing obesity in children by promoting

healthy eating and physical activity
• identifying problems as early as possible so

that any necessary help can be put in place
at the earliest opportunity – for example
problems with health and development
such as learning difficulties or with a child’s
safety such as parental neglect

• protecting children from serious diseases,
through screening and immunisation

• ensuring that children are prepared for
school

• identifying and helping children with
problems that might affect their chances
later in life.

Health Visiting and School Nursing services are
part of the Healthy Child Programme and
provide support to children aged 0-5 (Health
Visiting) and 5-19 (School Nursing) and to their
families and carers.

Herefordshire Council took on commissioning
responsibility for School Nursing in 2013 and
since then we have worked closely with the
local School Nurses to review, redesign and
improve the services they offer to 5-19 year
olds.  In October 2015 the Council will
become responsible for commissioning the
Health Visiting service and we are already
working with the Health Visitors to prepare for
this transfer and to ensure that services for 0-5
and 5-19 year olds work efficiently together
and are integrated with other services for
children, young people and families.

You can find out more about the Healthy Child
Programme and about Health Visitors and
School Nurses in Herefordshire at the following
websites:

https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/giving
-all-children-a-healthy-start-in-life
http://www.wyevalley.nhs.uk/services/communi
ty-services/health-visiting.aspx
http://www.wyevalley.nhs.uk/services/communi
ty-services/school-nursing.aspx

57



At the end of March 2014 Herefordshire’s
public health team celebrated its first full year
integrated into Herefordshire Council.

The move to the Local Authority has
broadened the way in which health is seen in
Herefordshire. Health is no longer the preserve
of the NHS and Herefordshire Council has
embraced its role particularly in preventing ill
health, promoting good health and protecting
residents from infectious disease. This has
been a major change and has enabled the core
public health team to work across the council
in a way that has not happened previously,
and to contribute to health in children’s and
adults’ services including children’s centres,
housing and in many other departments.     

Later in this report we have written an update
on what we have delivered against the
recommendations in last year’s Director of
Public Health Annual Report. In addition, in
2013/14 we also successfully set up the
Herefordshire Health Protection Committee, a
multi-agency group that assures that residents
have appropriate access to immunisation,
screening and protection against
communicable diseases. 

We ran a large number of health awareness
campaigns across the county including HIV
Testing week, Change 4 Life, Dry January,
Sugar Swaps and many more. 

Working with colleagues across health and
social care has given us the opportunity to
contribute an evidence-base where we would
not have had the opportunity in the past,
including producing the Children’s Integrated
Needs Assessment which this report is based
on. 

Progress since last year 

Last year the Director of Public Health's Annual
report was on the topic of Collaborating for
Health in Herefordshire and in it, the Director
of Public Health made recommendations
about:

1. Tackling health inequalities: a community
based asset approach

2. Working together to reduce alcohol related
harm

3. Public health and carers 

We have chosen to change the format of this
year’s report and you will find
recommendations for action this year in the
Children’s Integrated Needs Assessment.
Below is an update on the public health
progress against last year’s recommendations.

Public health in Herefordshire Council 

www.herefordshire.gov.uk16

58



RECOMMENDATION PROGRESS

Tackling health inequalities: a community asset based approach

·    To seek out opportunities for collaboration and work
together on lifestyle behaviour change.

The Council’s Healthy Lifestyle Trainer Service supported a
wide range of healthy summer events including 
promoting Change4Life “Disney 10 minute shake up”,
Wye Weight – group support programme for healthy
weight, Walking for Health and Community Games
(linked to the Olympic legacy).  

·    To gain a better understanding of our communities
and work with them to reduce the social gradient in
health.

A pilot programme of work is being delivered by South
Wye Regeneration Partnership to use community assets
(people and community buildings) so that people get
involved in making healthy lifestyle changes and tackle
inequalities in health.

·    To develop our understanding of people’s 
behaviours and influences on behaviour in
Herefordshire, gaining insight through social
marketing.

A number of social marketing campaigns have been
promoted in Herefordshire including:
Change4Life
No Smoking Day
Stoptober
Alcohol Awareness Week
Sexual Health Awareness Week
and our local campaigns “Change a Little, Save a Lot”.

·    To review existing services and commission healthy
lifestyle behaviour change services such as for stop
smoking and weight management.

We are recommissioning the current behaviour change
services, including NHS Health Checks, a mandatory
service, and Stop Smoking support. These will be in place
for delivery in 2015/16.

Working together to reduce alcohol related harm

·    That the Health and Wellbeing Board and partner
organisations across Herefordshire continue to give
priority to reducing alcohol related harm and to
developing our strategic intelligence about the
complexities of alcohol harm in our community,
focusing on identifying areas of overlap where
combined efforts have the potential to make the 
most impact.

We are in the process of re-commissioning an evidence
based drug and alcohol service. The new service requires
partners across the health and social care system to work
jointly and reduce alcohol related harm. 

·    That partner agencies commit to contributing their
data and intelligence in order that we can build a
comprehensive understanding of alcohol use and 
the consequences of alcohol misuse in Herefordshire.

Data continues to be shared at the Drug and Alcohol
Operational Delivery Group (see below) providing a
picture of alcohol related harm within the County. 

·    That partner agencies commit to a more coordinated
approach to working together to address alcohol
related harm so that resources can be targeted
following a strategic and evidence-based approach.

A new group, Drug and Alcohol Strategic Delivery Group,
has been established to develop a drugs and alcohol
strategy for Herefordshire.

·    That the Alcohol Harm Reduction Group provides a
forum to bring together plans for tackling the
influence of alcohol as it impacts on domestic 
violence and abuse, offender management and
Families in Need.

The former Alcohol Harm Reduction Group has changed
its terms of reference to include drugs, young people and
public places in addition to its work on improving the
night time economy and sharing data on alcohol related
harm. The group is now called the Drug and Alcohol
Operational Delivery Group. 

www.herefordshire.gov.uk 17

59



RECOMMENDATION PROGRESS

Public Health and carers

·    The needs of informal carers should be considered in
the scoping of the 2013/14 Herefordshire Integrated
Needs Assessment.

Close working with Hereford Carers Support. 
Needs Assessment to be progressed in 2014/15

·    Evidence of good practice should be reviewed for
approaches to best support effective and sustainable
informal care.

Close working with Hereford Carers Support. 
Evidence base to be included in needs assessment to be
progressed in 2014/15

·    When allocating resources, health economics
principles should be applied to efficiently meet the
needs of informal carers and benefit the wider health
and social care system.

The Herefordshire Carers Strategy 2012-2015 recognises
the contribution that carers make to the lives of the
person they are caring for and the wider society. The
priorities within the strategy reflect the national priorities
and the need to identify carers at the appropriate time
and to support them to have a life of their own.
Herefordshire Carers Support provides an element of this
through the service they provide.

www.herefordshire.gov.uk18

60



We are working in partnership with families, service providers and NHS Community groups across
Herefordshire so that each child has the opportunity to grow up healthy and happy. There are still
challenges, but here are some of Herefordshire’s successes: 

• Babies are less likely to be born with a low birth weight. 
• Babies are more likely to have been breastfed at birth, although the numbers being breastfed at

6-8 weeks are average.
• Children generally are developmentally ready for school.  
• Herefordshire’s looked after children have better mental health than both the England average

for looked after children and the ‘norm’ for British children who are not looked after.
• Children in reception and year six are less likely to be overweight or obese than children across

the West Midlands and England, although two of every ten of our children are overweight or
obese by the time they are measured in reception class which is a real cause for concern.

• Herefordshire’s children have levels of immunisation coverage for Measles, Mumps and Rubella
that are the same as coverage across England. 

• Looked after children have better rates of immunisation compared to children in the general
population; (92% in 2012-2013; 96% for children who were looked after for 12 months).

You can find out more from these websites:

3 Comparisons are with the West Midlands and England norm. 

Herefordshire: a great place to grow uperefordshire: a great place to grow up

What you can doWhat you can do

3

Start 4 Life
http://www.nhs.uk/start4life/Pages/healthy-pregnancy-baby-
advice.aspx

Herefordshire Council
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/early-
years-and-childcare/supporting-parents-of-children-aged-0-4-years

Change for life
http://www.nhs.uk/change4life/Pages/change-for-life.aspx

61



62



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Robert Vickers, Assistant Director, Housing and Community Wellbeing on Tel:  01432 260368 

 

 

Meeting: Health & Wellbeing Board 

Meeting date: 25 March 2015 

Title of report: Assessing Readiness for Implementation of 
Better Care Fund Plans in 2015-16 

Report by: Assistant Director, Housing and Community 
Wellbeing 

Alternative options 

1. There are no alternative options as this is a national requirement and is a support to 
Better Care Fund implementation. This process enables local health and social care 
communities to stocktake progress in relation to local schemes and progress towards 
implementation. 

 

Classification  

Open 

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide update to the Health and Wellbeing in 
relation to the national expectation that local health and social care communities will 
complete a national template to assess readiness to implement the Better Care 
Fund. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) The Health and Wellbeing Board note the assessment completed by officers 

from Herefordshire Council and Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group. 
(b) The assessment is set within the context of the agreed Section 75 Partnership 

Agreement and the governance arrangements operating allied to the Better 
Care Fund Plan 

(c) Board members comment on the plans. 

AGENDA ITEM 10

63



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Robert Vickers, Assistant Director, Housing and Community Wellbeing on Tel:  01432 260368 

 

Reasons for recommendations 

2. As indicated above this is a national requirement and reporting acknowledges the role 
performed by the Health and Wellbeing Board in relation to the Better Care Fund. 

 

Key considerations 

3. All 151 health and Wellbeing Boards in England have an agreed BCF plan in place 
for 2015 –16. These Plans represent an ambitious programme of work to be delivered 
by local areas from April 2015 onwards. The national BCF Taskforce has put in place 
a support programme from January to March 2015 to provide tools and coaching to 
help preparation for implementation, following on from the support provided to help 
with the planning process. There is a commitment to continuing to provide support in 
2015 –16. 

4. The purpose of the self-assessment is threefold: 

• To support local areas in carrying out a self-assessment of their own 
readiness for delivery to inform discussions locally. 

• To inform the planning and allocation of resources and support that will be 
made available to areas in 2015 -16 to further help implementation and 
delivery of BCF Plans; and 

• To provide feedback to the national team and the headline results to be 
shared back with local areas on an anonymous basis. The data will not be 
shared outside the national Taskforce other than in an aggregated and 
annoymised form. The self-assessment is not a performance management 
tool and will not be used as such. It is recommended that the self-assessment 
is shared with the full Health and Wellbeing Board and this report is illustrative 
of this to help understanding of issues locally. 

5. The process for conducting the self-assessment has been set out nationally and the 
template has been designed to be simple and quick. The timescale for completion will 
allow time for the information to be gathered and distilled to feed into planning for 
2015 -16. 

6. The form is designed to combine the need for responses that can be analysed 
nationally with room for local areas to choose from a range of possible responses to 
reflect upon their own positions. The construction of the form is through a range of 
pre-determined cells with fixed character commentary. 

Community impact 

7. The Understanding Herefordshire 2014 and local needs assessments will provide the 
evidence base to support the BCF Plan and the redesign of services. The system 
wide Transformation Programme incorporating the BCF will be directed by the 
overarching Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Herefordshire which is currently being 
developed. 

8. There is a strong emphasis within the overarching Transformation Programme, and 
within both the Local Authority and the Clinical Commissioning Group on developing 
our community partnerships to ensure services and pathways meet local need and 

64



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Robert Vickers, Assistant Director, Housing and Community Wellbeing on Tel:  01432 260368 

 

that communities are able to take a lead role in the design of how services could be 
delivered in the future. 

9. Service users, carers and frontline staff are and will be actively engaged to support 
the redesign of services through a number of mechanisms including Making it Real 
Board, the Learning Disability Partnership Board and Healthwatch. 

Equality duty 

10. An equality impact assessment will be undertaken for each of the schemes of change 
within the Better Care Fund and Commissioning Strategies and Plans. The equality 
impact assessment will identify potential problems or missed opportunities and adjust 
the policy to remove barriers or better promote equality. 

Financial implications 

11. The financial implications are clearly articulated within the Herefordshire Better Care 
Fund that has been assured nationally and agreed by the local statutory 
commissioners. 

Legal implication 
12. The Better Care Fund was announced in June 2013 to drive the transformation of 
local services to ensure people receive better and more integrated care and support. 
Section 121 Care Act 2014 provides the Better Care Fund arrangements require a 
pooled budget established under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006. A Section 75 
Agreement is an agreement between a local authority and an NHS body in England. 

 

Risk management 
13. The section 75 Agreement allied to the Better Care Fund contains an understanding 
which has been developed by the partners allied to the management of risks. 

 

Consultees 

14. A full engagement strategy will be developed for the BCF as elements are 
implemented and the partners will equally ensure proactive provider engagements. 

Appendices 

Appendix One – Assessing Readiness for Implementation of the Better Care Fund Plans   

 

Background papers 

Herefordshire Better Care Fund Plan 

 

65



66



Further information on the subject of this report is available from Jade Brooks on (01432) 383634 

MEETING: HEALTH & 

MEETING DATE: 25 MARCH 

TITLE OF REPORT: MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS 

REPORT BY: PROGRAMME MANAGER CHILDREN AND 
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, 
CLINICAL

 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To report on the needs assessment into mental health 
2014 and January 20015 for the purpose of understanding the needs of
provide an evidence base for future commissioning.  It 
published evidence; analysis of po
other stakeholders. The report is ready for publication.

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
 

(a) The Board note that the
engagement with the public including service
line staff and other key stakeholders;

(b) The Board note that the Mental Health Needs Assessment is to be utilised in the 
forthcoming Health and Well
Needs Assessment; and

(c) The Board agree that the HC
 

 

subject of this report is available from Jade Brooks on (01432) 383634 

 

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 

25 MARCH 2015 

MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT

PROGRAMME MANAGER CHILDREN AND 
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, HEREFORDSHIRE 
CLINICAL  COMMISSIONING GROUP

needs assessment into mental health undertaken by the HCCG 
for the purpose of understanding the needs of the 

provide an evidence base for future commissioning.  It integrates service mapping;
analysis of population and service data; and engagement of th
The report is ready for publication.  

note that the development of the report has involved over 450
engagement with the public including service-users, carers, local groups, 
line staff and other key stakeholders; 
The Board note that the Mental Health Needs Assessment is to be utilised in the 
forthcoming Health and Well-being Strategy and the refresh of the Joint Strategic 

and 
that the HCCG should publish this report (Appendix A).

subject of this report is available from Jade Brooks on (01432) 383634  

 

ASSESSMENT 

PROGRAMME MANAGER CHILDREN AND 
HEREFORDSHIRE 

COMMISSIONING GROUP (HCCG) 

undertaken by the HCCG between May 
the population and to 

integrates service mapping; review of 
and engagement of the public and 

f the report has involved over 450 hours  of 
users, carers, local groups, front 

The Board note that the Mental Health Needs Assessment is to be utilised in the 
being Strategy and the refresh of the Joint Strategic 

ppendix A). 

AGENDA ITEM 11

67



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Jade Brooks on (01432) 383634  

Alternative Options 

1 The decision to produce a needs assessment was considered a priority by 
Herefordshire CCG in April 2015 to improve the level of information available about 
mental health in the county. No other alternatives were identified. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The Mental Health Needs Assessment is based on a good level of public 
engagement and consideration of the available evidence base. Over 100 children and 
young people; over 300 adults and 75 organisations contributed. Statements 
captured in the interviews are used in the Chapters to ensure that people’s views  
frame the analysis of the needs assessment such as example in Illustration 1 below. 
Further workshops with service-users and carers led to the creation of local outcomes 
that the CCG will use in its future outcomes-based commissioning. 

Illustration 1: Sample of statements by the Public  

 

 

 

 

3 The document represents a comprehensive examination of mental health to inform 
HCCG commissioning intentions. Since the drafting of the document, it has been 
acknowledged that the benefits of the assessment are valuable for other partners and 
partnership activities. For example, the information on children and young people’s 
mental health has informed discussions on the drafting of Children and Young 
People’s Plan and its multi-agency mental health and emotional well-being action 
plan.  

Key Considerations 

4 The Mental Health Needs Assessment comprises of chapters on: 

• Public Mental Health 

• Common Mental Health conditions 

• Severe and enduring mental health conditions 

• Dementia 

• Children and Young People’s Mental Health 

• Suicide Audit 

• Vulnerable Groups (including parental mental health; ADHD) 

• Cross-cutting themes / system chapter 

• Service mapping 

Community Impact 

5 There are a number of areas identified for improvement affecting people with mental 

The last 10 years of my time with the Community Mental Health Services was positive.  
Luckily I saw the same doctor for this period (many do not have this continuity of care) 
and this is when I really became empowered to take charge of my illness.  

Patient/ Service User 

68



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Jade Brooks on (01432) 383634  

health. These include making access to support easier to navigate; improving 
provision of information and advice and supporting people with self-management to 
avoid crisis and deterioration.  

6 The Board is advised that using the Mental Health Needs assessment in future 
commissioning will impact on the community in terms of how HCCG will meet the 
needs of people with mental health and their carers and our communities. 

Equality and Human Rights 

7 It is widely recognised that parity of esteem between mental health and physical 
health is desirable. The close examination of mental health in Herefordshire reveals 
areas for consideration by HCCG and other partners. 

8 Specifically chapters on Herefordshire (chapter 2) children and young people (chapter 
8) and vulnerable people (chapter 9) consider priority groups and inequalities. 

Financial Implications 

9 The recommendations in the Mental Health Needs Assessment are largely for HCCG 
consideration. Other recommendations that might have a multi-agency response and 
associated financial implications will be considered in the developing Mental Health 
Strategy and joint commissioning delivery plan. 

Legal Implications 

10 None   

Risk Management 

11 The major identified risk is non-publication of the document will impact on level of co-
production in future public engagement and public expectation to receive feedback. 

12 To mitigate against this, follow-up events were held to demonstrate how the public’s 
views were used in the production of the report; the resulting recommendations and 
formulation of outcomes. Final publication of the needs assessment will demonstrate 
continued transparency. 

Consultees 

13 The Needs Assessment was presented to the Health and Wellbeing Sub Group 
(Integrated Needs Assessment) on 5th March 2015. 

14 There were many consultees including local self-help groups, secondary schools, 
care homes, voluntary and community organisations, statutory sector organisations. 
Online and paper questionnaires, workshops and interviews were all part of the 
methodology. 

Appendixes 

Appendix A: Mental Health Needs Assessment 

Background Papers 

http://councillors.herefordshire.gov.uk/documents/s50024821/mental%20health%20needs%20assessment%202015.pdf 

 

69



70



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Gorman Commissioning Officer on Tel (01432) 383157 

 

 

Meeting: Health & Wellbeing Board 

Meeting date: 25 March 2015 

Title of report: Autism self-assessment 2014 

Report by: Director of Adult Wellbeing 
 

 

Alternative options 

1 There are no alternative options. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 The report is for information only 

Key considerations 

3 In December 2014 Jon Rouse, Director General of Social Care, Local Government 
and Care Partnerships at the Department of Health and David Pearson, President of 
the Association of Directors of Adult Social Care wrote to Directors of Adult Social 
Services informing them of the third national exercise to evaluate progress in 
implementing the 2010 Adult Autism Strategy Fulfilling and Rewarding Lives and its 
update, which had been published in April 2014.  The assessment was designed to; 
 
a) assist Local Authorities and their partners in assessing progress in implementing 
the Adult Autism Strategy, 
 

Classification  
Open 

Key Decision  
This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 
County-wide  

Purpose 
To note that a self-assessment on the progress made by the Council on implementing the 
2010 Adult Autism Strategy “Fulfilling and Rewarding Lives”, and it’s subsequent update, 
has been submitted to Public Health England.  

Recommendation 

THAT: The Report be noted 

AGENDA ITEM 12

71



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Gorman Commissioning Officer on Tel (01432) 383157 

 

b) see how much progress has been made since the second survey, as at September 
2013 and 
 
c) provide examples of good progress that can be shared and highlight remaining 
challenges. 
The deadline for submissions, made via an on-line return to Public Health England, 
was required by 9 March 2015. Herefordshire’s response was submitted on time. 

Community impact 

4 The self-assessment describes the progress that has been made in the county with 
regard to the National Strategy. The County has its own local strategy with action 
plan which is being implemented through the work of a Partnership Board working 
with a range of local groups and third sector providers 

Equality duty 

5 The self-assessment in itself does not meet any of these duties however, once it is 
implemented, the local Autism Strategy will help advance equality of opportunity 
between people who are disabled and share a relevant protected characteristic and 
people who do not share it.    

Financial implications 

6 None. 

Legal implications 

7 None. This document is for information only  
 

Risk management 

8  None. This document is for information only 

Consultees 

9 The self-assessment was drawn up through consultation with a wide range of 
colleagues and partners including the CCG, 2G and officers from Adult Social Care. 
Partners consulted included members of the Autism Partnership Board, people with 
autism and representatives of the Third Sector. The self-assessment was partially co-
authored by members of the Partnership Board who also oversaw the final version 
before it was submitted to the Department of Health. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 Autism Self-Assessment  

Appendix 2 Direction of travel assessment comparing 2014 with 2013. 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

 

72



Direction of Travel 

Overall Direction of travel
 13
! 19
" 2

New questions 27

RAG ratings 2013 2104
Green 2 2
Amber 6 13
Red 9 9

Note 1: More questions were RAG rated in 2014 than in 2013
Note 2: Total of RAGs do no match DOT figures as not all questions were RAG rated

Issues to be addressed

• We need to update and complete our Autism 
action plan 

• We need to develop a diagnosis pathway 

• We need to improve how we collect and use 
our data 

• We need to improve housing and employment 
opportunities 

Appendix 1 

73



74



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

D
ir

ec
ti

on
 o

f T
ra

ve
l f

ro
m

 2
01

3 
to

 2
01

4 
D

RA
FT

  
A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
  

20
13

 
 

 
21

04
 

 
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

D
ir

ec
ti

on
 o

f t
ra

ve
l 

 
 

G
re

en
 

2 
 

G
re

en
 

2 
 

� ���
 

13
 

 

Am
be

r 
6 

 
Am

be
r 

13
 

 
� ���

 
19

 
 

Re
d 

9 
 

Re
d 

9 
 

� ���
 

2 
Q

16
, Q

31
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
ew

 
27

 
 

 
20

13
 q

ue
st

io
n 

  
Re

sp
on

se
  

 
20

14
 q

ue
st

io
n 

  
Re

sp
on

se
  

 
D

O
T 

N
ot

es
  

1.
 H

ow
 m

an
y 

Cl
in

ic
al

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

s 
do

 
yo

u 
ne

ed
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 to

 
im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 A

du
lt 

Au
tis

m
 

St
ra

te
gy

 in
 y

ou
r l

oc
al

 
au

th
or

ity
 a

re
a?

 

O
ne

 –
 T

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
Cl

in
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
(H

CC
G

) 

 
1.

 H
ow

 m
an

y 
Cl

in
ic

al
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
s 

do
 y

ou
 

ne
ed

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

Ad
ul

t A
ut

is
m

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
in

 y
ou

r 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

? 

O
ne

 –
 T

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
lin

ic
al

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

 (H
CC

G
) 

 

� ���
 

 

2.
 A

re
 y

ou
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

ot
he

r l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
to

 
im

pl
em

en
t p

ar
t o

r a
ll 

of
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
? 

N
o 

 
2.

 A
re

 y
ou

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t p
ar

t o
r a

ll 
of

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

? 

N
o 

 

� ���
 

 

3.
 D

o 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

 n
am

ed
 jo

in
t 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
/s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

er
 o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r a

du
lts

 w
ith

 
au

tis
m

? 

N
o 

- T
he

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 th

e 
le

ad
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

 fo
r 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(a
du

lts
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
nd

 
ol

de
r a

du
lts

), 
an

d 
au

tis
m

 is
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
es

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
  

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
jo

in
t 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 h
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pl
an

s 
of

 
pa

rt
ne

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 a

re
 

al
ig

ne
d 

  

 
3.

 W
ho

 is
 th

e 
jo

in
t 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
/s

en
io

r m
an

ag
er

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r a
du

lts
 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 
Pl

ea
se

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
ei

r 
na

m
e 

an
d 

co
nt

ac
t d

et
ai

ls
 a

nd
 w

ho
 

th
ey

 re
po

rt
 to

. 

N
am

e;
 M

r E
w

an
 A

rc
hi

ba
ld

  
Co

nt
ac

t d
et

ai
ls

; 
Ew
en
.A
rc
hi
ba
ld
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g

ov
.u
k 

Te
l; 

01
43

2 
26

19
70

 
Re

po
rt

s 
to

; M
r R

ob
er

t V
ic

ke
rs

 

 

� ���
  

Be
in

g 
ab

le
 to

 
na

m
e 

a 
le

ad
 

of
fic

er
 is

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

n 
la

st
 y

ea
r  

 
 

 
4.

 W
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

na
m

e 
of

 th
e 

po
st

 fo
r 

th
e 

jo
in

t c
om

m
is

si
on

er
 /

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

 o
f r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s 

Le
ad

 C
om

m
is

si
on

er
 

 
N

ew
  

 

75



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

fo
r a

du
lts

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 
 

 
 

5.
 W

ha
t a

re
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 
th

e 
jo

in
t c

om
m

is
si

on
er

/s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

 o
f r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r a
du

lts
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

To
 c

om
m

is
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
Au

tis
m

. 

 

N
ew

  

 

4.
 Is

 A
ut

is
m

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l J

SN
A?

 
Am

be
r 

St
ep

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

Au
tis

m
 in

 th
e 

20
14

 JS
N

A 
– 

ak
a 

‘U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’  
 

 
6.

 Is
 A

ut
is

m
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
JS

N
A?

 
St

ep
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

 
th

e 
ne

xt
 JS

N
A.

 
 

 

� ���
 

 

 
 

 
6.

01
. D

oe
s 

yo
ur

 lo
ca

l J
SN

A 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 

au
tis

m
? 

O
ur

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 N

ee
ds

 
As

se
ss

m
en

t f
ee

ds
 in

to
 o

ur
 JS

N
A 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

 fu
tu

re
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 

in
cl

ud
e 

Au
tis

m
 

 

N
ew

 

 

5.
 H

av
e 

yo
u 

st
ar

te
d 

to
 c

ol
le

ct
 

da
ta

 o
n 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

 
di

ag
no

si
s 

of
 a

ut
is

m
? 

Re
d 

 
Cu

rr
en

tly
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
sy

st
em

at
ic

 re
co

rd
in

g 
of

 th
is

 
da

ta
 fo

r H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.  

 

 
7.

 H
av

e 
yo

u 
no

w
 s

ta
rt

ed
 to

 c
ol

le
ct

 
da

ta
 o

n 
th

os
e 

pe
op

le
 re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 
an

d/
or

 a
cc

es
si

ng
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
an

d/
or

 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
do

es
 y

ou
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 re

po
rt

 d
at

a 
on

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
 d

ia
gn

os
is

 o
f a

ut
is

m
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
as

 a
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 c
on

di
tio

n,
 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k?

 

D
at

a 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n 
ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 
au

tis
m

 is
 s

pa
rs

e 
an

d 
no

t 
co

lle
ct

ed
 m

et
ho

di
ca

lly
. C

lie
nt

s 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 a

re
 n

ot
 ro

ut
in

el
y 

cu
rr

en
tly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
in

 o
ur

 
ca

se
 re

co
rd

in
g 

sy
st

em
s.

 G
en

er
al

ly
, a

ut
is

m
 is

 
on

ly
 re

co
rd

ed
 w

he
re

 th
e 

ad
ul

t 
is

 a
ls

o 
LD

.  
Th

is
 is

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 

w
hi

ch
 n

ee
ds

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

co
m

in
g 

m
on

th
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

et
te

r 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ac

tiv
ity

 d
at

a.
 

 

� ���
 

 

6.
 D

o 
yo

u 
co

lle
ct

 d
at

a 
on

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 

di
ag

no
si

s 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 m
ee

tin
g 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
 fo

r s
oc

ia
l 

ca
re

 (i
rr

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
of

 w
he

th
er

 
th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
an

y)
? 

N
o 

– 
w

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 h

av
e 

no
 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 w

ay
 o

f c
ol

le
ct

in
g 

da
ta

 o
n 

th
e 

he
al

th
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 
(s

uc
h 

as
 a

ut
is

m
) w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 
gi

ve
 ri

se
 to

 a
 c

lie
nt

’s
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e.

 In
 s

om
e 

ca
se

s 
de

ta
ils

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 in
 c

as
e 

no
te

s 
by

 c
ar

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

as
 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 c

ar
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

an
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
he

re
 

 
8.

 D
o 

yo
u 

co
lle

ct
 d

at
a 

on
 th

e 
to

ta
l 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 k
no

w
n 

to
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
 a

 
di

ag
no

si
s 

of
 a

ut
is

m
 (w

he
th

er
 n

ew
 

or
 lo

ng
-s

ta
nd

in
g)

 m
ee

tin
g 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 

cr
ite

ria
 fo

r s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

(ir
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

of
 w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
an

y)
 

N
o 

 
Cl

ie
nt

s 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 b

ut
 w

ith
ou

t 
LD

 a
re

 n
ot

 ro
ut

in
el

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 o

ur
 c

as
e 

re
co

rd
in

g 
sy

st
em

s.
  T

hi
s 

is
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 
w

hi
ch

 n
ee

ds
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
in

g 
m

on
th

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r r
ep

or
tin

g 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 b
et

te
r 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 d

at
a.

 

 

� ���
 

 

76



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

th
ey

 ju
dg

e 
it 

re
le

va
nt

, b
ut

 n
ot

 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 o
r r

ep
or

te
d 

on
. 

 
 

 
8.

02
. T

he
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 
cr

ite
ria

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 
10

7 
 

N
ew

 
 

 
 

 
8.

03
. T

he
 n

um
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 
cr

ite
ria

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 w
ho

 a
ls

o 
ha

ve
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s?
 

89
 

 
N

ew
 

 

 
 

 
8.

04
. T

he
 n

um
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 
cr

ite
ria

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 w
ho

 a
ls

o 
ha

ve
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 p

ro
bl

em
s?

 
0 

 
N

ew
 

 

 
 

 
8.

05
. T

he
 n

um
be

rs
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 h

av
in

g 
au

tis
m

 b
ut

 n
ot

 m
ee

tin
g 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
? 

3 
 

N
ew

 
 

7.
 D

oe
s 

yo
ur

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pl
an

 re
fle

ct
 lo

ca
l d

at
a 

an
d 

ne
ed

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
au

tis
m

? 

N
o 

 
9.

 D
oe

s 
yo

ur
 L

oc
al

 Jo
in

t S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

Pl
an

 re
fle

ct
 lo

ca
l 

da
ta

 a
nd

 n
ee

ds
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
au

tis
m

? 
  

N
o 

- C
lie

nt
s 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
re

 n
ot

 
ro

ut
in

el
y 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
in

 o
ur

 
ca

se
 re

co
rd

in
g 

sy
st

em
s.

  T
hi

s 
is

 
so

m
et

hi
ng

 w
hi

ch
 n

ee
ds

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

co
m

in
g 

m
on

th
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r 
re

po
rt

in
g 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 

be
tt

er
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ac

tiv
ity

 
da

ta
. 

 

� ���
 

 

8.
 W

ha
t d

at
a 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
so

ur
ce

s 
do

 y
ou

 u
se

? 
Am

be
r/

G
re

en
  

W
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Re

gi
st

er
 w

hi
ch

 a
im

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

no
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

is
 lo

st
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s,
 a

nd
 w

e 
al

so
 e

m
pl

oy
 2

 
FT

E 
SE

N
 P

er
so

na
l A

ss
is

ta
nt

s 
to

 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t t

he
 S

13
9a

 L
D

D
 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

. T
he

 re
gi

st
er

 u
se

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 s

ch
oo

ls
 b

ut
 

do
es

 n
ot

 g
et

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 
G

Ps
. 

 
9.

01
. W

ha
t d

at
a 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
so

ur
ce

s 
do

 y
ou

 u
se

? 
W

e 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

a 
st

ar
t i

n 
co

lle
ct

in
g 

da
ta

 a
nd

 p
la

n 
to

 
pr

od
uc

e 
a 

be
tt

er
 le

ve
l o

f d
et

ai
l 

w
ith

in
 it

. T
he

 d
at

a 
th

at
 w

e 
do

 
co

lle
ct

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
fo

r t
he

 S
AF

 
do

es
 c

on
ta

in
 d

at
a 

on
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 
AS

D
 a

nd
 L

D
 h

ow
ev

er
 th

es
e 

tw
o 

gr
ou

ps
 a

re
 n

ot
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 o
ut

. 
W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 T

au
ru

s 
- 

th
e 

lo
ca

l G
P 

gr
ou

p 
- t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 s
pe

ci
fic

 c
om

m
on

 
co

de
s 

fo
r t

he
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 

th
es

e 
gr

ou
ps

. 

 

� ���
 

Th
is

 w
as

 s
ho

w
n 

as
 ‘A

m
be

r/
G

re
en

’ 
la

st
 y

ea
r.

 T
hi

s 
ra

tin
g 

is
 n

ot
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
th

is
 y

ea
r  

9.
 Is

 y
ou

r l
oc

al
 C

lin
ic

al
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
 o

r 
Cl

in
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

Am
be

r 
Th

e 
CC

G
 w

er
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f o

ur
 A

ut
is

m
 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
al

so
 

 
10

. I
s 

yo
ur

 lo
ca

l C
lin

ic
al

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

 o
r C

lin
ic

al
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

) e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 th

e 

Re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
fr

om
 C

CG
 a

nd
 /

 
or

 th
e 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
 s

its
 o

n 
au

tis
m

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 b
oa

rd
 o

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
an

d 
ar

e 
in

 re
gu

la
r 

 

� ���
 

 

77



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
) e

ng
ag

ed
 in

 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 y

ou
r l

oc
al

 a
re

a?
 

be
en

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

pr
oc

es
s.

 T
he

 C
CG

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 o

ve
rs

ee
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
St

ra
te

gy
.  

 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 in

 y
ou

r l
oc

al
 a

re
a?

 
lia

is
on

 w
ith

 th
e 

LA
 a

bo
ut

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

10
. H

ow
 h

av
e 

yo
u 

an
d 

yo
ur

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 e

ng
ag

ed
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 a

nd
 th

ei
r c

ar
er

s 
in

 p
la

nn
in

g?
 

Re
d 

Th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 li
m

ite
d 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 A
ut

is
m

 
St

ra
te

gy
. T

hi
s 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

. 
It

 is
 in

te
nd

ed
 th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 w

ill
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 p

la
y 

an
 

ac
tiv

e 
ro

le
 in

 th
e 

ne
w

ly
 

cr
ea

te
d 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

Bo
ar

d 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 o
ve

rs
ee

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 

 
11

. H
ow

 h
av

e 
yo

u 
an

d 
yo

ur
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 e
ng

ag
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
au

tis
m

 a
nd

 th
ei

r c
ar

er
s 

in
 

pl
an

ni
ng

? 

So
m

e 
au

tis
m

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e.

 T
he

 C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

Au
tis

m
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

Bo
ar

d 
is

 o
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

 a
nd

 is
 a

 p
ar

en
t/

Ca
re

r 
of

 s
om

eo
ne

 o
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

.  
 

Th
e 

gr
ou

p 
is

 a
ls

o 
re

gu
la

rly
 

at
te

nd
ed

 b
y 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
on

 th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
ei

r 
pa

re
nt

s/
Ca

re
rs

  
W

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

ca
re

rs
 w

he
n 

w
rit

in
g 

ou
r 

st
ra

te
gy

. P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 
an

d 
th

ei
r c

ar
er

s 
ar

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
ou

r A
ut

is
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
. 

M
em

be
rs

 o
f T

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

Bo
ar

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
w

ith
 

Au
tis

m
 h

av
e 

ac
te

d 
as

 a
n 

Ed
ito

ria
l T

ea
m

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
th

is
 

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

 

� ���
 

 

11
. H

av
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

to
 

ev
er

yd
ay

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 

Re
d 

 
Cu

rr
en

tly
 w

e 
on

ly
 h

av
e 

an
ec

do
ta

l e
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
to

 
ev

er
yd

ay
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 

 
12

. H
av

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

to
 g

en
er

al
 c

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

O
nl

y 
an

ec
do

ta
l e

xa
m

pl
es

. 
 

� ���
 

 

 
 

 
13

. I
n 

yo
ur

 a
re

a 
ha

ve
 re

as
on

ab
le

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 b

ee
n 

pr
om

ot
ed

 to
 

en
ab

le
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 to

 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
so

m
e 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 b

ei
ng

 
m

ad
e 

to
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 

 
N

ew
 

 

78



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

ac
ce

ss
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s?
 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
au

tis
m

, a
cr

os
s 

a 
sm

al
l r

an
ge

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
es

 
12

. D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 fr

om
 

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
so

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 
Ad

ul
t s

oc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s?
 

Ye
s 

 
Th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
do

es
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

 a
 

pa
re

nt
al

 re
qu

es
t.

 T
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
 

po
te

nt
ia

l n
ee

d 
fo

r a
du

lt 
so

ci
al

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

s 
th

ey
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

tr
an

si
tio

n.
 T

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
, w

hi
ch

 
is

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 d
et

ai
l i

n 
th

e 
Tr

an
si

tio
n 

Pr
ot

oc
ol

, t
ak

es
 th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
 th

ro
ug

h 
to

 a
n 

Ad
ul

t S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

Pa
ne

l 6
 

m
on

th
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

’s
 1

8t
h 

bi
rt

hd
ay

. 

 
14

. H
ow

 d
o 

yo
ur

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fr
om

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 
to

 A
du

lt 
se

rv
ic

es
 ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 n

ee
ds

 o
f y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
au

to
m

at
ic

. 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

cl
us

iv
e 

of
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

's
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
os

e 
w

ith
ou

t e
du

ca
tio

n 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 
ca

re
 (E

H
C)

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

an
d 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 re

as
on

ab
le

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

 

 

Sh
ow

n 
as

 G
re

en
 

th
is

 y
ea

r h
ow

ev
er

 
RA

G
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

 
 

 
14

.0
1.

 H
ow

 m
an

y 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

as
si

st
an

ce
 in

 th
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
ag

es
 (1

4 
to

 1
7)

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

4?
 

30
 in

 th
e 

ag
e 

ra
ng

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 

w
ith

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
r E

H
C 

pl
an

s 
w

ith
 p

rim
ar

y 
or

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 n

ee
d 

of
 A

SD
 (h

en
ce

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

s)
 

 

N
ew

 

 

 
 

 
14

.0
2 

H
ow

 m
an

y 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 h

av
e 

be
en

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

4?
 

2 
YP

 tu
rn

ed
 1

8 
in

 th
at

 y
ea

r w
ith

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r E

H
C 

pl
an

s 
w

ith
 

pr
im

ar
y 

or
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 n
ee

d 
of

 
AS

D
 (h

en
ce

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

s)
. 

A 
fu

rt
he

r 5
 Y

P 
tu

rn
ed

 1
9.

 

 

N
ew

 

 

13
. D

oe
s 

yo
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 n
ee

ds
 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 A
ut

is
m

? 

Re
d 

 
Cu

rr
en

tly
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
de

di
ca

te
d 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 d
at

a,
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f n
ee

d 
no

t 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 in
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e'

s 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
15

. H
ow

 d
oe

s 
yo

ur
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ta
ke

 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 n
ee

ds
 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 c

ol
le

ct
 th

is
 d

at
a 

 
 

� ���
 

 

 
 

 
16

. H
ow

 d
o 

yo
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 

ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 

Th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 o

ur
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

se
ek

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

 
N

ew
 

 

79



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

ne
ed

s 
of

 w
om

en
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
tr

um
 in

 o
ur

 
co

un
ty

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f g
en

de
r.

  
 

 
 

17
. H

ow
 d

o 
yo

ur
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
ne

ed
s 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

au
tis

m
 

in
 B

M
E 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

? 

Th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 o

ur
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

se
ek

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
tr

um
 in

 o
ur

 
co

un
ty

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f e
th

ni
c 

or
ig

in
 

 

N
ew

 

 

14
. H

av
e 

yo
u 

go
t a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 a
ut

is
m

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
la

n?
 

N
o 

 
18

. H
av

e 
yo

u 
go

t a
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

au
tis

m
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
n?

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
pl

an
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
ut

is
m

 
 

� ���
 

 

15
. I

s 
au

tis
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ei

ng
/b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
st

af
f w

or
ki

ng
 

in
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e?

 

Am
be

r  
A 

da
y’

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 e

nt
itl

ed
 

‘A
ut

is
m

 A
w

ar
en

es
s’

 is
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

. T
hi

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 is

 
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 b
y 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 

AL
D

 te
am

 a
nd

 c
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 b
y 

H
O

O
PL

E.
 It

 is
 o

pe
n 

to
 a

ny
on

e 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

an
 a

du
lt 

w
ith

 a
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 a

ut
is

m
 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 is
 fr

ee
 o

f 
ch

ar
ge

. 

 
19

. I
s 

au
tis

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

be
in

g/
be

en
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

st
af

f w
or

ki
ng

 in
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l 

ca
re

? 

Au
tis

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 is

 
no

t c
ur

re
nt

ly
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 
al

l s
ta

ff
 w

or
ki

ng
 in

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
 b

ut
 is

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f o
ur

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ou
tc

om
es

  
Th

e 
ra

is
in

g 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

am
on

gs
t a

ll 
of

 o
ur

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
st

af
f i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 

de
liv

er
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

is
 

a 
ke

y 
pr

io
rit

y 
in

 o
ur

 lo
ca

l 
St

ra
te

gy
. P

la
ns

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 w

he
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 o
ur

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 p

at
hw

ay
 

(w
hi

ch
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

nd
er

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n)
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r t
en

de
r,

 a
ll 

pr
os

pe
ct

iv
e 

bi
dd

er
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 o

ff
er

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 a

ll 
of

 th
ei

r s
ta

ff
. W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

ur
 lo

ca
l 

G
P 

gr
ou

p 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ut

is
m

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 lo
ca

lly
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r s

ta
ff

. A
 

da
y’

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 e

nt
itl

ed
 ‘A

ut
is

m
 

Aw
ar

en
es

s’
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

de
liv

er
ed

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is
 to

 

 

 � ���
 

  

80



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

st
af

f i
n 

ou
r c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 

an
d 

w
e 

ar
e 

lo
ok

in
g 

to
 e

xp
an

d 
th

is
 c

ou
rs

e 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

st
af

f 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 a

du
lts

. 
16

. I
s 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
be

in
g/

be
en

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 s
ta

ff
 

th
at

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

n 
ho

w
 to

 m
ak

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 in

 th
ei

r 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n?

 

G
re

en
  

O
ve

r 7
5%

 o
f s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
st

af
f 

w
ho

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

at
te

nd
ed

 
au

tis
m

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. 

 
20

. I
s 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ei

ng
/b

ee
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 s

ta
ff

 th
at

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

n 
ho

w
 to

 
m

ak
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

ei
r 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n?

 

N
o 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
be

in
g 

of
fe

re
d 

ho
w

ev
er

 s
ta

ff
 c

an
 

ac
ce

ss
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t t

hr
ou

gh
 o

ur
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 H

ea
lth

 T
ea

m
 o

n 
a 

ca
se

 
by

 c
as

e 
ba

si
s 

 
Th

e 
ra

is
in

g 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

am
on

gs
t a

ll 
of

 o
ur

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
st

af
f i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 

de
liv

er
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

is
 

a 
ke

y 
pr

io
rit

y 
in

 th
e 

St
ra

te
gy

. 
Pl

an
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r s

ta
ff

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

in
cl

ud
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 
th

e 
Ca

re
 A

ct
 is

 fu
lly

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
rig

ht
s 

of
 th

e 
ca

re
rs

 o
f t

ho
se

 
w

ith
 A

ut
is

m
. 

 

� ���
 

  

17
. H

av
e 

Cl
in

ic
al

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

(s
) 

be
en

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f w

or
kf

or
ce

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
rs

 a
nd

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
ag

en
da

? 

N
o 

To
 d

at
e 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
no

t 
be

en
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f w
or

kf
or

ce
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 o
r t

he
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

ag
en

da
  

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 p

la
ns

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

CC
G

 in
 a

 T
as

k 
&

 
Fi

ni
sh

 g
ro

up
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 h
as

 
be

en
 a

sk
ed

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 A
du

lt 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 P
la

n 

 
21

. D
o 

Cl
in

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
(s

) e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

pr
im

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
he

al
th

ca
re

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

au
tis

m
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

ir 
on

go
in

g 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t?
 A

ll 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

pr
od

uc
e 

an
d 

de
liv

er
 e

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 

di
ve

rs
ity

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r t

he
ir 

st
af

f. 
W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

em
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 A
ut

is
m

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

of
fe

r.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 m
ak

e 
au

tis
m

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 m
an

da
to

ry
 fo

r 
al

l h
ea

lth
 s

ta
ff

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
. 

N
o 

 

� ���
 

 

18
. H

av
e 

lo
ca

l C
rim

in
al

 
N

o.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

 
22

. C
rim

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

: D
o 

Ye
s 

 
 

� ���
 

An
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

81



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 e
ng

ag
ed

 in
 

th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
ge

nd
a?

 
Cr

im
in

al
 Ju

st
ic

e 
Sy

st
em

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
ge

nd
a 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

ng
ag

ed
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 A
ut

is
m

 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 th

ey
 w

ill
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

ly
 c

re
at

ed
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

Bo
ar

d 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 o
ve

rs
ee

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

. 

st
af

f i
n 

th
e 

lo
ca

l p
ol

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

en
ga

ge
 in

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

? 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

Po
lic

e 
en

su
re

 th
at

 
of

fic
er

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

n 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 A

ut
is

m
 a

nd
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

. I
n 

20
13

, a
ll 

of
fic

er
s 

un
de

rw
en

t t
ra

in
in

g 
on

 
au

tis
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

th
is

 h
ad

 
be

en
 fo

llo
w

ed
 u

p 
by

 m
an

da
to

ry
 

E-
Tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

 
bu

t n
o 

RA
G

 ra
tin

g 
re

qu
ire

d 
 

 
 

 
23

. C
rim

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

: D
o 

st
af

f i
n 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
ou

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

en
ga

ge
 in

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

? 

N
o 

– 
as

 p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 A

ut
is

m
 

St
ra

te
gy

 w
e 

ar
e 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

ou
rt

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

au
tis

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 th

at
 

is
 o

ff
er

ed
 

 

N
ew

 

 

 
 

 
24

. C
rim

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

: D
o 

st
af

f i
n 

th
e 

lo
ca

l p
ro

ba
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
en

ga
ge

 in
 a

ut
is

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
? 

N
o 

– 
as

 p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 A

ut
is

m
 

St
ra

te
gy

 w
e 

ar
e 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

ro
ba

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
au

tis
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 th
at

 
is

 o
ff

er
ed

 

 

N
ew

 

 

19
. H

av
e 

yo
u 

go
t a

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
lo

ca
l d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
pa

th
w

ay
? 

Re
d 

 
A 

lo
ca

l d
ia

gn
os

tic
 p

at
hw

ay
 is

 
no

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r L
D

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
d.

 

 
25

. H
av

e 
yo

u 
go

t a
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

lo
ca

l a
ut

is
m

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 p

at
hw

ay
? 

W
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 s
po

t p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

on
 a

 c
as

e 
by

 c
as

e 
ba

si
s.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
pa

th
w

ay
 th

is
 n

ee
ds

 to
 

be
 b

ro
ug

ht
 in

-h
ou

se
 a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
th

is
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 a
n 

ag
re

ed
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
pa

th
w

ay
. T

hi
s 

is
su

e 
is

 
so

m
et

hi
ng

 th
at

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

en
su

re
 is

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
di

ag
no

st
ic

 
pa

th
w

ay
 

 

� ���
 

 

82



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

20
. I

f y
ou

 h
av

e 
go

t a
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

lo
ca

l d
ia

gn
os

tic
 

pa
th

w
ay

, w
he

n 
w

as
 th

e 
pa

th
w

ay
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
? 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 - 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
19

 
 

26
. I

f y
ou

 h
av

e 
go

t a
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

lo
ca

l a
ut

is
m

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 p

at
hw

ay
, 

w
he

n 
w

as
 th

e 
pa

th
w

ay
 p

ut
 in

 
pl

ac
e?

 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

 

� ���
 

 

 
 

 
27

. I
n 

th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
 

20
14

, h
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
er

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 o

ut
 o

f a
re

a 
fo

r d
ia

gn
os

is
, 

de
sp

ite
 a

 lo
ca

l d
ia

gn
os

tic
 p

at
hw

ay
 

be
in

g 
in

 p
la

ce
? 

8 
 

4 
of

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 w

er
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 
fo

r A
sp

er
ge

rs
.  

4 
of

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 

w
er

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 fo

r A
ut

is
m

 

 

N
ew

 

 

21
. H

ow
 lo

ng
 is

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

w
ai

t f
or

 re
fe

rr
al

 to
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
se

rv
ic

es
? 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 - 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
19

 
 

28
. I

n 
w

ee
ks

, h
ow

 lo
ng

 is
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
w

ai
t b

et
w

ee
n 

re
fe

rr
al

 a
nd

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t?
 (N

ot
e,

 th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

al
l p

eo
pl

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 

irr
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
 p

rio
rit

is
at

io
n 

st
re

am
s)

 

N
um

be
r -

 N
ot

 k
no

w
n 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 

ha
ve

 d
at

a 
on

 a
ve

ra
ge

 w
ai

tin
g 

tim
es

. T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

ar
ea

 th
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

st
ar

tin
g 

to
 m

on
ito

r a
nd

 w
ill

 
bu

ild
 it

 in
to

 th
e 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 

pa
th

w
ay

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 

 

� ���
 

 

 
 

 
29

. H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

re
fe

rr
ed

 fo
r a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t b
ut

 
ha

ve
 y

et
 to

 re
ce

iv
e 

a 
di

ag
no

si
s?

 

N
um

be
r -

 1
 

 
N

ew
 

 

22
. H

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 h

av
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
pa

th
w

ay
 in

 
th

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r?

 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 - 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
19

 
 

30
. I

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 M

ar
ch

 
20

14
 h

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 h

av
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 d

ia
gn

os
is

 o
f a

n 
au

tis
tic

 
sp

ec
tr

um
 c

on
di

tio
n?

 

N
um

be
r -

 8
 W

e 
ex

pe
ct

 to
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 m
on

ito
r t

hi
s 

m
or

e 
cl

os
el

y 
ne

xt
 y

ea
r o

nc
e 

ou
r 

pa
th

w
ay

 is
 p

la
ce

. 

 

� ���
  

An
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 th
at

 w
e 

w
er

e 
no

t a
bl

e 
to

 
re

sp
on

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

23
. H

as
 th

e 
lo

ca
l C

lin
ic

al
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
(s

)/
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
ta

ke
n 

th
e 

le
ad

 in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

e 
pa

th
w

ay
? 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 - 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
19

 
 

 N
O

T 
A

SK
ED

 IN
 2

01
4 

 
 

 

 N
O

T 
A

SK
ED

 IN
 

20
14

 

 
 

 
31

. H
ow

 m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

di
ag

no
si

s 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 

en
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

ha
d 

m
ov

ed
 o

n 
to

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 e
nd

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
4?

  

N
um

be
r –

 0
 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 h
av

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

O
ur

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
at

hw
ay

 g
oe

s 
as

 fa
r 

as
 d

ia
gn

os
is

 b
ut

 n
ot

 o
nt

o 
af

te
rc

ar
e.

 T
hi

s 
si

tu
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 o
nc

e 
ou

r d
ia

gn
os

tic
 

pa
th

w
ay

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 

 

N
ew

 

  

83



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

24
. H

ow
 w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 d
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
lo

ca
l d

ia
gn

os
tic

 p
at

hw
ay

, 
ie

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
 

m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ith

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 a

ut
is

m
 fo

r 
di

ag
no

si
s 

or
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t 

au
tis

m
 s

pe
ci

fic
 s

er
vi

ce
? 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 - 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
19

 
 

32
. H

ow
 w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 d
es

cr
ib

e 
th

e 
lo

ca
l d

ia
gn

os
tic

 p
at

hw
ay

, i
e 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
 m

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 fo
r d

ia
gn

os
is

 
or

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t a
ut

is
m

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
se

rv
ic

e?
 

O
ur

 p
at

hw
ay

 is
 s

til
l u

nd
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 y
et

 to
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

 
se

rv
ic

es
. O

nc
e 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 it

 w
ill

 
be

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 m

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 a

ut
is

m
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

di
ag

no
si

s 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

 

� ���
  

 An
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 th
at

 w
e 

w
er

e 
no

t a
bl

e 
to

 
re

sp
on

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

25
. I

n 
yo

ur
 lo

ca
l d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
pa

th
 d

oe
s 

a 
di

ag
no

si
s 

of
 

au
tis

m
 a

ut
om

at
ic

al
ly

 tr
ig

ge
r 

an
 o

ff
er

 o
f a

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

Ca
re

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t?

 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 - 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
19

 
 

33
. I

n 
yo

ur
 lo

ca
l d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
pa

th
w

ay
 d

oe
s 

a 
di

ag
no

si
s 

of
 a

ut
is

m
 

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 tr

ig
ge

r a
n 

of
fe

r o
f a

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 C
ar

e 
As

se
ss

m
en

t (
or

 
re

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t i

f t
he

 p
er

so
n 

ha
s 

al
re

ad
y 

ha
d 

a 
cu

rr
en

t c
om

m
un

ity
 

ca
re

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t)

? 

N
o 

 
O

ur
 p

at
hw

ay
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
is

 
tr

ig
ge

r i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

an
 

of
fe

r o
f a

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ar
e 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

 

� ���
  

 An
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 th
at

 w
e 

w
er

e 
no

t a
bl

e 
to

 
re

sp
on

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

26
. W

ha
t p

os
t-

di
ag

no
st

ic
 

su
pp

or
t (

in
 a

 w
id

er
 

pe
rs

on
al

is
at

io
n 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e,

 
no

t j
us

t a
ss

um
in

g 
st

at
ut

or
y 

se
rv

ic
es

), 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
? 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 - 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
19

 
 

34
. C

an
 p

eo
pl

e 
di

ag
no

se
d 

w
ith

 
au

tis
m

 a
cc

es
s 

po
st

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

or
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 a
dj

us
te

d 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gy

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

? 

O
nl

y 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 w

it
h 

LD
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 s

pe
ci

fic
 o

r r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

ad
ju

st
ed

 p
sy

ch
ol

og
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 

 

� ���
  

H
av

e 
as

su
m

ed
 

th
at

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 3

4,
 

35
, 3

6 
&

 3
7 

ar
e 

su
b 

se
ts

 o
f l

as
t 

ye
ar

’s
 q

ue
st

io
n 

26
 

 
 

 
35

. C
an

 p
eo

pl
e 

di
ag

no
se

d 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
or

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

sp
ee

ch
 a

nd
 la

ng
ua

ge
 th

er
ap

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
? 

O
nl

y 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 w

it
h 

LD
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 s

pe
ci

fic
 o

r r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

ad
ju

st
ed

 s
pe

ec
h 

an
d 

la
ng

ua
ge

 
th

er
ap

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

 

 

 
 

 
36

. C
an

 p
eo

pl
e 

di
ag

no
se

d 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
or

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

oc
cu

pa
tio

na
l t

he
ra

py
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
? 

O
nl

y 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 w

it
h 

LD
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 s

pe
ci

fic
 o

r r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

ad
ju

st
ed

 o
cc

up
at

io
na

l t
he

ra
py

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

 

 

 
 

 
37

. I
s 

po
st

-d
ia

gn
os

tic
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
su

pp
or

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

lin
ic

al
 

ps
yc

ho
lo

gy
 o

r o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s?

 

N
o 

- O
nl

y 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 w
it

h 
LD

 c
an

 a
cc

es
s 

po
st

-d
ia

gn
os

tic
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
su

pp
or

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

cl
in

ic
al

 p
sy

ch
ol

og
y 

or
 o

th
er

 

 

N
ew

  

N
o 

RA
G

 ra
tin

g 
re

qu
ire

d 
 

84



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
27

. O
f t

ho
se

 a
du

lts
 w

ho
 

w
er

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
be

in
g 

el
ig

ib
le

 fo
r a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 a
re

 in
 re

ce
ip

t o
f 

a 
pe

rs
on

al
 c

ar
e 

bu
dg

et
, h

ow
 

m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
a 

di
ag

no
si

s 
of

 A
ut

is
m

 b
ot

h 
w

ith
 a

 c
o-

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
w

ith
ou

t?
 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 - 

se
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
19

 
 

38
. O

f t
ho

se
 a

du
lts

 w
ho

 w
er

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
be

in
g 

el
ig

ib
le

 fo
r a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 w
ho

 a
re

 in
 

re
ce

ip
t o

f a
 p

er
so

na
l b

ud
ge

t,
 h

ow
 

m
an

y 
ha

ve
 a

 d
ia

gn
os

is
 o

f A
ut

is
m

 
bo

th
 w

ith
 a

 c
o-

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
w

ith
ou

t?
 

 
 

N
ew

 

 

 
 

 
38

.0
1.

 N
um

be
r o

f a
du

lts
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
in

 re
ce

ip
t o

f a
 

pe
rs

on
al

 b
ud

ge
t 

75
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
38

.0
2.

 N
um

be
r o

f t
ho

se
 re

po
rt

ed
 in

 
1 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

di
ag

no
si

s 
of

 A
ut

is
m

 
bu

t n
ot

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 

60
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
38

.0
3.

 N
um

be
r o

f t
ho

se
 re

po
rt

ed
 in

 
1 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
bo

th
 a

 d
ia

gn
os

is
 o

f 
Au

tis
m

 A
N

D
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

15
 

 
 

 

28
. D

o 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

id
en

tif
ia

bl
e 

co
nt

ac
t p

oi
nt

 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 
w

he
th

er
 o

r n
ot

 in
 re

ce
ip

t o
f 

st
at

ut
or

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

an
 g

et
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

si
gn

po
st

in
g 

au
tis

m
-f

rie
nd

ly
 e

nt
ry

 p
oi

nt
s 

fo
r a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 lo

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

? 

N
o 

– 
ho

w
ev

er
, i

m
pr

ov
ed

 
si

gn
po

st
in

g 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 is
 a

 k
ey

 
as

pe
ct

 o
f o

ur
 re

ce
nt

ly
 c

re
at

ed
 

au
tis

m
 s

tr
at

eg
y.

 T
hi

s 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
em

pl
oy

in
g 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f l

oc
al

 th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

ex
pe

rt
s 

in
 s

ig
np

os
tin

g 
pe

op
le

 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
, t

he
ir 

ca
re

rs
 a

nd
 

th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

 to
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
39

. D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
id

en
tif

ia
bl

e 
co

nt
ac

t p
oi

nt
 w

he
re

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 w
he

th
er

 o
r n

ot
 

in
 re

ce
ip

t o
f s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

n 
ge

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
si

gn
po

st
in

g 
au

tis
m

-f
rie

nd
ly

 e
nt

ry
 p

oi
nt

s 
fo

r a
 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s?

 

W
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
ge

ne
ra

l e
nt

ry
 

po
in

t l
ev

el
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. W
e 

pl
an

 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 m
or

e 
au

tis
m

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
po

in
ts

 o
f a

cc
es

s 
in

 fu
tu

re
. W

e 
ar

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
a 

ne
w

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 h

ub
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

w
ill

 e
xp

ec
t t

he
 p

ro
vi

de
r t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

au
tis

m
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

ou
r p

ar
tn

er
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
Ca

re
rs

 S
up

po
rt

, o
ur

 C
hi

ld
re

ns
 

Te
am

 a
nd

 o
ur

 W
eb

 T
ea

m
 to

 
de

si
gn

 a
n 

au
tis

m
-f

rie
nd

ly
 e

nt
ry

 
po

in
t f

or
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
su

ch
 a

s 

 

� ���
  

N
o 

RA
G

 ra
tin

g 
re

qu
ire

d 
bu

t D
O

T 
is

 p
os

iti
ve

 

85



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

th
e 

‘L
oc

al
 O

ff
er

’. 
29

. D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 p

at
hw

ay
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 b
ut

 
w

ith
ou

t a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
ar

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 

su
pp

or
t?

 

N
o 

– 
ho

w
ev

er
, t

he
 c

re
at

io
n 

of
 

su
ch

 a
 p

at
hw

ay
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 n

ew
 

au
tis

m
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

 
40

. D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 
pa

th
w

ay
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 
bu

t w
ith

ou
t a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

lty
 to

 
ac

ce
ss

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
ar

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

up
po

rt
? 

 

N
o 

 
W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

ou
r l

oc
al

 N
AS

 b
ra

nc
h 

of
fic

e 
to

 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t a
 

pa
th

w
ay

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
a 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

ar
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
up

po
rt

 

 

� ���
  

Bu
t p

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 

30
. D

o 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
ll 

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 h

av
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 th

ei
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

? 

Am
be

r  
Th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
ad

vo
ca

cy
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 h
ow

ev
er

, 
cu

rr
en

tly
, n

ot
 a

ll 
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

ha
ve

 re
ce

iv
ed

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 th

ei
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 

 
41

. D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 
ha

ve
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 th
ei

r s
pe

ci
fic

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
? 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 p
la

ce
. W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
al

l a
dv

oc
at

es
 re

ce
iv

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 
m

ee
t t

he
ir 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 

 

� ���
  

  

31
. D

o 
ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 
w

ho
 c

ou
ld

 n
ot

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
lly

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 

ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
, c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t p

la
nn

in
g,

 a
pp

ea
ls

, 
re

vi
ew

s,
 o

r s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ha
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

n 
ad

vo
ca

te
? 

G
re

en
  

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 re
qu

ire
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
an

 b
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 a

n 
ad

vo
ca

te
. 

 
42

. D
o 

ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

ho
 

co
ul

d 
no

t o
th

er
w

is
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
lly

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 n
ee

ds
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
, 

ca
re

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 

ap
pe

al
s,

 re
vi

ew
s,

 o
r s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 tr
ai

ne
d 

ad
vo

ca
te

? 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 
re

qu
ire

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

an
 b

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 a
n 

ad
vo

ca
te

. L
oc

al
 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
co

nt
in

ua
lly

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
t 

be
co

m
in

g 
m

or
e 

au
tis

m
-a

w
ar

e 
 

 

� ���
 

 

32
. C

an
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 

ac
ce

ss
 s

up
po

rt
 if

 th
ey

 a
re

 
no

n 
Fa

ir 
Ac

ce
ss

 C
rit

er
ia

 
el

ig
ib

le
 o

r n
ot

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r 

st
at

ut
or

y 
se

rv
ic

es
? 

N
o 

– 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

ad
ul

t s
oc

ia
l 

ca
re

 p
er

so
na

l b
ud

ge
ts

 y
ou

 
m

us
t b

e 
Fa

ir 
Ac

ce
ss

 C
rit

er
ia

 
el

ig
ib

le
  

Br
oa

de
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n,

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 

no
t e

lig
ib

le
 b

ut
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

no
t 

Au
tis

m
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

 
43

. C
an

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
cc

es
s 

su
pp

or
t i

f t
he

y 
ar

e 
no

n 
Fa

ir 
Ac

ce
ss

 
Cr

ite
ria

 e
lig

ib
le

 o
r n

ot
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r 
st

at
ut

or
y 

se
rv

ic
es

? 
  

Ye
s 

– 
 

As
 a

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 d

ut
y 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
no

t e
lig

ib
le

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

om
e 

pr
ev

en
ta

tiv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

 

� ���
 

Th
is

 is
 a

 p
oo

rly
 

w
or

de
d 

qu
es

tio
n.

 
W

e 
do

 p
ro

vi
de

 
ba

si
c 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

bu
t 

w
he

th
er

 th
is

 c
an

 
tr

ul
y 

be
 re

ga
rd

ed
 

as
 ‘s

up
po

rt
’ c

ou
ld

 
be

 d
eb

at
ed

.  
  

33
. H

ow
 w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t l
oc

al
 s

up
po

rt
 in

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
 b

ei
ng

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

Re
d 

Cu
rr

en
tly

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 m

in
im

al
 

am
ou

nt
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 lo

ca
l 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
ch

oi
ce

 h
ow

ev
er

 
an

 im
pr

ov
ed

 le
ve

l o
f 

 
44

. H
ow

 w
ou

ld
 y

ou
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
le

ve
l 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t l

oc
al

 s
up

po
rt

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

ar
ea

 b
ei

ng
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 m

od
er

at
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
ab

ou
t 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 w

hi
ch

 is
 e

ith
er

 
in

co
m

pl
et

e 
or

 n
ot

 re
ad

ily
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 

 

� ���
 

 

86



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

si
gn

po
st

in
g 

of
 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 is

 a
 k

ey
 a

sp
ec

t o
f o

ur
 

re
ce

nt
ly

 c
re

at
ed

 a
ut

is
m

 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

au
tis

m
 W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
le

ve
l, 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t r
el

ev
an

t 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
. 

 
 

 
45

. W
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

re
 c

ar
er

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

ha
vi

ng
 

au
tis

m
 a

nd
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

su
pp

or
t o

ff
er

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
? 

Ca
re

rs
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

re
 o

ff
er

ed
 

to
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r 

ad
ul

t s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

U
nd

er
 th

e 
Ca

re
 A

ct
 w

e 
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
at

 c
ar

er
s 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 a
ut

is
m

 a
nd

 
el

ig
ib

le
 fo

r s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

su
pp

or
t 

w
ill

 in
 fu

tu
re

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ne
ed

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
w

ar
ds

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 

su
ch

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

he
re

 a
nd

 w
he

n 
ne

ed
ed

. 

 

N
ew

 

 

34
. D

oe
s 

yo
ur

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 
st

ra
te

gy
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 id

en
tif

y 
Au

tis
m

? 

Re
d 

 
Th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
m

en
tio

n 
of

 A
ut

is
m

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t l

oc
al

 
ho

us
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
. H

ow
ev

er
, 

ho
us

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 is

 a
 k

ey
 

th
em

e 
w

ith
in

 o
ur

 a
ut

is
m

 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 th

ey
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 fu

tu
re

 
ve

rs
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 
st

ra
te

gy
.  

  

 
46

. D
oe

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 id

en
tif

y 
Au

tis
m

? 
Th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

Au
tis

m
 (a

s 
di

st
in

ct
 fr

om
 n

ee
ds

 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s)
 

no
t s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 m

en
tio

ne
d 

in
 

ou
r c

ur
re

nt
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

 
O

ur
 H

ou
si

ng
 T

ea
m

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 o

ut
 a

 s
ur

ve
y 

on
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

ll 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
or

 A
ut

is
m

. 
Th

e 
su

rv
ey

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 
di

sc
us

se
d 

an
d 

co
m

m
en

te
d 

up
on

 
by

 o
ur

 A
ut

is
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
G

ro
up

   
 

 

� ���
 

 

 
 

 
47

. D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 p

ol
ic

y 
of

 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 o

ff
ic

es
 

al
l h

av
e 

at
 le

as
t o

ne
 s

ta
ff

 m
em

be
r 

w
ho

 h
as

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 a

ut
is

m
 to

 h
el

p 
pe

op
le

 m
ak

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 fi

ll 
in

 

N
o 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 
am

on
gs

t o
ur

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
st

af
f i

s 
a 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
y 

of
 o

ur
 A

ut
is

m
 

St
ra

te
gy

. S
ta

ff
 in

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 

 

N
ew

 

 

87



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

rm
s?

 
of

fic
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

an
y 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 w

e 
id

en
tif

y 
as

 w
e 

im
pl

em
en

t o
ur

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 
35

. H
ow

 h
av

e 
yo

u 
pr

om
ot

ed
 

in
 y

ou
r a

re
a 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 th
e 

Au
tis

tic
 

Sp
ec

tr
um

? 

Re
d 

 
To

 d
at

e,
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 
m

in
im

al
 w

or
k 

in
 th

is
 a

re
a.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
be

tt
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
f s

ta
ff

 
in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
 is

 a
 k

ey
 th

em
e 

w
ith

in
 

ou
r a

ut
is

m
 s

tr
at

eg
y.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

in
cl

ud
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l J

ob
Ce

nt
re

 P
lu

s 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

 
48

. H
ow

 h
av

e 
yo

u 
pr

om
ot

ed
 in

 
yo

ur
 a

re
a 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

f 
pe

op
le

 o
n 

th
e 

Au
tis

tic
 S

pe
ct

ru
m

? 

Au
tis

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
is

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
on

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

ba
si

s.
 

Lo
ca

l e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t s
up

po
rt

 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
Au

tis
m

. S
om

e 
co

nt
ac

t m
ad

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l j

ob
 

ce
nt

re
s 

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t i
s 

a 
ke

y 
pr

io
rit

y 
in

 
ou

r a
ut

is
m

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 A

d-
ho

c 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 s

ev
er

al
 o

f o
ur

 
pa

rt
ne

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 w

e 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

lo
ca

l l
ow

 le
ve

l 
co

nt
ac

t w
ith

 Jo
b 

Ce
nt

re
s.

 M
or

e 
w

or
k 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a.
 

 

� ���
 

 

36
. D

o 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 a
du

lt 
se

rv
ic

es
 h

av
e 

an
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t f

oc
us

? 

Am
be

r  
O

ur
 re

ce
nt

ly
 a

gr
ee

d 
Tr

an
si

tio
ns

 P
ro

to
co

l h
ig

hl
ig

ht
s 

th
e 

ro
le

s 
of

 p
os

t 1
6 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, J
ob

 
Ce

nt
re

Pl
us

 a
nd

 s
ch

oo
ls

 in
 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 fo
r t

ra
ns

iti
on

 
in

to
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g,
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 a

nd
 

gr
an

ts
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 

pe
op

le
 in

to
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r 
ga

in
 n

ew
 s

ki
lls

 a
nd

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
fu

rt
he

r e
du

ca
tio

n 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 

 
49

. D
o 

au
tis

m
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 a
du

lt 
se

rv
ic

es
 h

av
e 

an
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t f

oc
us

? 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t/
 

ac
tiv

ity
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

Ch
ild

re
ns

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 h

av
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

a 
‘N

ew
 

H
or

iz
on

s 
H

ub
’ f

or
 th

os
e 

ag
ed

 1
9 

to
 2

5 
of

fe
rin

g 
da

y 
co

lle
ge

 
pl

ac
em

en
t i

n 
lif

e 
sk

ill
s,

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t l
iv

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

 T
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

ff
er

ed
 to

 
th

os
e 

w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
a 

si
m

ila
r a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t i

s 
be

in
g 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ith

 
Au

tis
m

.  
Th

e 
O

ff
ic

er
 w

ho
 is

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
ra

ns
iti

on
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
si

ts
 o

n 
ou

r P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 G
ro

up
. 

 

� ���
 

 

88



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

37
. A

re
 th

e 
CJ

S 
en

ga
gi

ng
 

w
ith

 y
ou

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
pa

rt
ne

r i
n 

yo
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r a
du

lts
 w

ith
 

au
tis

m
? 

Re
d 

Re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l C

rim
in

al
 Ju

st
ic

e 
Sy

st
em

 
w

er
e 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 A

ut
is

m
 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
ke

d 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
ne

w
ly

 c
re

at
ed

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
Bo

ar
d 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 o

ve
rs

ee
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
. T

hi
s 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
s 

ye
t 

to
 b

eg
in

 

 
50

. A
re

 th
e 

Cr
im

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 (p
ol

ic
e,

 p
ro

ba
tio

n 
an

d,
 if

 
re

le
va

nt
, c

ou
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s)
 e

ng
ag

ed
 

w
ith

 y
ou

 a
s 

ke
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 in
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fo
r a

du
lts

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 

D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

 a
du

lt 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 c

rim
in

al
 ju

st
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

re
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

; 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 c
rim

in
al

 
ju

st
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ag

en
ci

es
 s

it 
on

 
au

tis
m

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 b
oa

rd
 o

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
lin

ks
 to

 th
e 

Cr
im

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 is
 a

 k
ey

 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r o
ur

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
G

ro
up

. W
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 h
av

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
Po

lic
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 s
itt

in
g 

on
 o

ur
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

G
ro

up
 a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 g

et
tin

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

co
ur

ts
 

an
d 

pr
ob

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 

 

� ���
 

 

 
 

 
51

. I
s 

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ad

ul
t s

er
vi

ce
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
on

 th
e 

Au
tis

tic
 S

pe
ct

ru
m

 in
 c

us
to

dy
 

su
ite

s 
an

d 
no

m
in

at
ed

 

Th
er

e 
is

 n
ot

 re
lia

bl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 A
du

lt 
se

rv
ic

e 
'p

la
ce

s 
of

 s
af

et
y'

 

 

N
ew

 

 

 
 

 
52

. W
ha

t a
re

 y
ou

 d
oi

ng
 d

iff
er

en
t 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 T

hi
nk

 A
ut

is
m

 –
 th

e 
up

da
te

 to
 th

e 
20

10
 A

du
lt 

Au
tis

m
 

St
ra

te
gy

? 

As
 a

 d
ire

ct
 re

su
lt 

of
 “

Th
in

k 
Au

tis
m

” 
– 

th
e 

up
da

te
 to

 th
e 

20
10

 A
du

lt 
Au

tis
m

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

e 
ha

ve
 in

cl
ud

ed
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 H

at
e 

Cr
im

e 
as

 a
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

y 
w

ith
in

 
ou

r l
oc

al
 s

tr
at

eg
y.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

ur
 lo

ca
l I

nc
lu

si
on

 
O

ff
ic

er
 o

nt
o 

ou
r P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

Bo
ar

d 
an

d 
he

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 lo

ca
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 c

om
bi

ne
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 N
AS

 
‘L

iv
in

g 
in

 F
ea

r’
 re

po
rt

 w
ith

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
th

at
 h

e 
ha

s 
ga

th
er

ed
 

el
se

w
he

re
 fr

om
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 

 

N
ew

 

 

89



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

re
gi

on
.  

Th
is

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
in

fo
rm

 
fu

tu
re

 lo
ca

l d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

nd
 

po
lic

ie
s.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f 
ou

r l
oc

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ol

ic
e 

fo
rc

e 
on

 o
ur

 B
oa

rd
  

 
 

 
53

. D
es

cr
ib

e 
br

ie
fly

 (u
p 

to
 1

50
0 

Lo
ng

 C
om

m
en

t c
ha

ra
ct

er
s)

 O
N

E 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

of
 y

ou
r C

ou
nc

il,
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 c
ar

e 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 A
ut

is
m

, w
hi

ch
 y

ou
 th

in
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l. 

  
 

N
ew

 

 

 
 

 
54

. D
es

cr
ib

e 
br

ie
fly

 (u
p 

to
 1

50
0 

ch
ar

ac
te

rs
) a

n 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

of
 y

ou
r 

Co
un

ci
l, 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

ca
re

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 A

ut
is

m
, w

hi
ch

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 A
ut

is
m

 in
 y

ou
r a

re
a 

th
in

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

os
t s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l a
nd

 
he

lp
fu

l. 

In
 th

e 
pa

st
 e

ig
ht

ee
n 

m
on

th
s 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

as
 s

et
 u

p 
an

 
Au

tis
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
. T

hi
s 

w
as

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 th

at
 h

ad
 n

ot
 

be
en

 in
 e

xi
st

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 a
nd

 it
 h

as
 g

iv
en

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
 fo

cu
s 

an
d 

vo
ic

e 
on

 h
ow

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

th
ou

gh
t o

f a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. T

he
 

Bo
ar

d 
is

 c
ha

ire
d 

by
 s

om
eo

ne
 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
nd

 w
ho

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
ca

re
r f

or
 s

om
eo

ne
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
. 

Th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
ha

s 
se

ve
ra

l r
eg

ul
ar

 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 a
ut

is
m

. 
Th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
en

tr
al

 to
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 to
 

de
liv

er
 o

ur
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

it 
is

 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

Th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
ha

s 
al

so
 ra

is
ed

 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 th

at
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 
po

si
tiv

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
do

ne
 to

 k
ee

p 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r a
ll 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
, t

he
ir 

ca
re

rs
 a

nd
 th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
 in

 

 

N
ew

 

 

90



A
ut

is
m

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t –
 C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
of

 2
01

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

N
ot

e 
- T

hi
s 

co
m

m
en

t w
as

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

fo
r i

nc
lu

si
on

 b
y 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
is

m
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

Bo
ar

d 
 

 
 

 
55

. H
ow

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
pl

an
ni

ng
 to

 
sp

en
d 

yo
ur

 S
ec

tio
n 

31
 c

ap
ita

l g
ra

nt
 

of
 £

18
,5

00
? 

  

W
e 

pl
an

 t
o 

sp
en

d 
th

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
31

 c
ap

ita
l 

gr
an

t 
on

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

te
le

ca
re

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

be
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 

w
ho

 a
re

 i
n 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
an

d 
w

ho
 

ne
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

up
po

rt
 t

o 
he

lp
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
. W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

us
e 

th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 c
ar

er
s 

an
d 

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
, t

hr
ou

gh
 o

ur
 

Au
tis

m
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

Bo
ar

d,
 

to
 

in
flu

en
ce

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s,

 
su

ch
 

as
 

i-p
ad

s,
 

to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

 
ch

oi
ce

, 
in

cl
us

io
n,

 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

.  

 

N
ew

 

 

O
pt

io
na

l S
el

f-
ad

vo
ca

te
 

st
or

ie
s 

 
N

on
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

  
 

10
. O

pt
io

na
l S

el
f-

ad
vo

ca
te

 
ac

co
un

ts
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

N
on

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 

 
 

 

 

91



92



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

 
20

14
 A

ut
is

m
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
– 

W
or

d 
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 th
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
  

 
1.

  I
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

1:
  

 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

Cl
in

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
s 

do
 y

ou
 n

ee
d 

to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 A

du
lt 

Au
tis

m
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

in
 y

ou
r l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
? 

O
ne

 (1
) 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: P

le
as

e 
in

di
ca

te
 w

hi
ch

 o
ne

s 
th

es
e 

ar
e 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
  

Q
ue

st
io

n 
2:

   
 

Ar
e 

yo
u 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t p
ar

t o
r a

ll 
of

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

? 
N

o 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

: I
f y

es
, n

am
e 

th
es

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
id

en
tif

y 
w

hi
ch

 p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ho
w

 y
ou

 a
re

 d
oi

ng
 th

is
.  

W
ha

t p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
si

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
Au

tis
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 o

r e
qu

iv
al

en
t?

 
N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 

2.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
3:

  
  

W
ho

 is
 th

e 
jo

in
t c

om
m

is
si

on
er

/s
en

io
r m

an
ag

er
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r a
du

lts
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

Pl
ea

se
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

ei
r n

am
e 

an
d 

co
nt

ac
t d

et
ai

ls
 a

nd
 w

ho
 th

ey
 re

po
rt

 to
. 

N
am

e;
 M

r E
w

an
 A

rc
hi

ba
ld

  
Co

nt
ac

t d
et

ai
ls

; E
w
en
.A
rc
hi
ba
ld
@
he
re
fo
rd
sh
ire
.g
ov
.u
k 

Te
l; 

01
43

2 
26

19
70

 
Re

po
rt

s 
to

; M
r R

ob
er

t V
ic

ke
rs

  
Q

ue
st

io
n 

4:
  

 
W

ha
t i

s 
th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 th

e 
po

st
 fo

r t
he

 jo
in

t 
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

/s
en

io
r m

an
ag

er
 o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

Le
ad

 C
om

m
is

si
on

er
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
5:

  
 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
jo

in
t c

om
m

is
si

on
er

/s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

 o
f r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r a
du

lts
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

To
 c

om
m

is
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r a

du
lts

 w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Au
tis

m
. 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
6:

  
Is

 A
ut

is
m

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l J

SN
A?

 
Am

be
r  

St
ep

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 JS

N
A.

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

6.
01

:  
D

oe
s 

yo
ur

 lo
ca

l J
SN

A 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

O
ur

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t f

ee
ds

 in
to

 o
ur

 JS
N

A 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
 fu

tu
re

 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 in
cl

ud
e 

Au
tis

m
 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: P

ro
vi

de
 a

 w
eb

 li
nk

 a
nd

 p
ag

e 
re

fe
re

nc
es

. 
N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

7:
  

 
H

av
e 

yo
u 

no
w

 s
ta

rt
ed

 to
 c

ol
le

ct
 d

at
a 

on
 th

os
e 

pe
op

le
 re

fe
rr

ed
 

to
 a

nd
/o

r a
cc

es
si

ng
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
an

d/
or

 h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

do
es

 
yo

ur
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

 re
po

rt
 d

at
a 

on
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

 
di

ag
no

si
s 

of
 a

ut
is

m
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
s 

a 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

co
nd

iti
on

, i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k?

 

Re
d 

D
at

a 
re

co
rd

ed
 o

n 
ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 is
 s

pa
rs

e 
an

d 
no

t c
ol

le
ct

ed
 

m
et

ho
di

ca
lly

. C
lie

nt
s 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
re

 n
ot

 ro
ut

in
el

y 
cu

rr
en

tly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 o

ur
 c

as
e 

re
co

rd
in

g 
sy

st
em

s.
 G

en
er

al
ly

, a
ut

is
m

 is
 o

nl
y 

re
co

rd
ed

 w
he

re
 

th
e 

ad
ul

t i
s 

al
so

 L
D

.  
Th

is
 is

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 w

hi
ch

 n
ee

ds
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
in

g 
m

on
th

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 

be
tt

er
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ac

tiv
ity

 d
at

a.
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
8:

  
  

D
o 

yo
u 

co
lle

ct
 d

at
a 

on
 th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 k

no
w

n 
to

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ith

 a
 d

ia
gn

os
is

 o
f a

ut
is

m
 

(w
he

th
er

 n
ew

 o
r l

on
g-

st
an

di
ng

) m
ee

tin
g 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
 fo

r s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

(ir
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

of
 w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 re

ce
iv

e 
an

y)
 

N
o 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: C

om
m

en
t b

rie
fly

 if
 y

ou
 w

is
h 

on
 h

ow
 y

ou
 

co
lle

ct
 th

es
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 lo
ca

lly
. 

If 
so

, w
ha

t i
s:

 (N
ot

e:
 S

om
e 

pe
op

le
 m

ay
 b

e 
co

un
te

d 
in

 b
ot

h 
gr

ou
ps

 2
 a

nd
 3

) 

Cl
ie

nt
s 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 b
ut

 w
ith

ou
t L

D
 a

re
 n

ot
 ro

ut
in

el
y 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
in

 o
ur

 c
as

e 
re

co
rd

in
g 

sy
st

em
s.

  T
hi

s 
is

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 w

hi
ch

 n
ee

ds
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
in

g 
m

on
th

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

et
te

r 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ac

tiv
ity

 d
at

a.
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
8.

02
 

Th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

10
7 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
8.

03
:  

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

ho
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s?

 
89

 

93



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
8.

04
  

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

ho
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s?
 

0 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

8.
05

  
Th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 h

av
in

g 
au

tis
m

 b
ut

 n
ot

 m
ee

tin
g 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 c

rit
er

ia
? 

3 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

9:
  

 
D

oe
s 

yo
ur

 L
oc

al
 Jo

in
t S

tr
at

eg
ic

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

Pl
an

 re
fle

ct
 lo

ca
l d

at
a 

an
d 

ne
ed

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 
  

N
o 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: C

lie
nt

s 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 a

re
 n

ot
 ro

ut
in

el
y 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
in

 o
ur

 c
as

e 
re

co
rd

in
g 

sy
st

em
s.

  T
hi

s 
is

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 w

hi
ch

 n
ee

ds
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
in

g 
m

on
th

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ou
r r

ep
or

tin
g 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

et
te

r c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 d

at
a.

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

9.
01

: 
 

W
ha

t d
at

a 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

so
ur

ce
s 

do
 y

ou
 u

se
? 

Am
be

r 
W

e 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

a 
st

ar
t i

n 
co

lle
ct

in
g 

da
ta

 a
nd

 p
la

n 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
 b

et
te

r l
ev

el
 o

f 
de

ta
il 

w
ith

in
 it

. T
he

 d
at

a 
th

at
 w

e 
do

 c
ol

le
ct

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
fo

r t
he

 S
AF

 d
oe

s 
co

nt
ai

n 
da

ta
 o

n 
th

os
e 

w
ith

 A
SD

 a
nd

 L
D

 h
ow

ev
er

 th
es

e 
tw

o 
gr

ou
ps

 a
re

 n
ot

 
se

pa
ra

te
d 

ou
t.

 W
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 T
au

ru
s 

– 
th

e 
lo

ca
l G

P 
gr

ou
p 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

om
m

on
 c

od
es

 fo
r t

he
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

es
e 

gr
ou

ps
. 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: P

ro
vi

de
 a

 w
eb

 li
nk

 to
 a

 lo
ca

l p
ub

lis
he

d 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 n

um
be

rs
 o

r s
ay

 w
he

re
 th

is
 c

an
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
. N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

10
:  

   

Is
 y

ou
r l

oc
al

 C
lin

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
 o

r C
lin

ic
al

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
) 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 

in
 y

ou
r l

oc
al

 a
re

a?
 

Am
be

r 
Re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 C
CG

 a
nd

 /
 o

r t
he

 s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
it 

on
 a

ut
is

m
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

bo
ar

d 
or

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

in
 re

gu
la

r l
ia

is
on

 w
ith

 th
e 

LA
 a

bo
ut

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
11

:  
H

ow
 h

av
e 

yo
u 

an
d 

yo
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 
an

d 
th

ei
r c

ar
er

s 
in

 p
la

nn
in

g?
 

Am
be

r 
So

m
e 

au
tis

m
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e.

 T
he

 C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

Au
tis

m
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 is
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
tr

um
 a

nd
 is

 a
 p

ar
en

t/
Ca

re
r o

f 
so

m
eo

ne
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
tr

um
.  

 T
he

 g
ro

up
 is

 a
ls

o 
re

gu
la

rly
 a

tt
en

de
d 

by
 a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
on

 th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
ei

r p
ar

en
ts

/C
ar

er
s 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: W

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 a

nd
 th

ei
r c

ar
er

s 
w

he
n 

w
rit

in
g 

ou
r s

tr
at

eg
y.

 P
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
nd

 th
ei

r c
ar

er
s 

ar
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f o

ur
 A

ut
is

m
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

. M
em

be
rs

 o
f T

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 A
ut

is
m

 h
av

e 
ac

te
d 

as
 a

n 
Ed

ito
ria

l T
ea

m
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

th
is

 s
el

f-
as

se
ss

m
en

t.
  

Q
ue

st
io

n 
12

:  
   

H
av

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

to
 g

en
er

al
 c

ou
nc

il 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
au

tis
m

? 

Re
d 

O
nl

y 
an

ec
do

ta
l e

xa
m

pl
es

. 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: S

pe
ci

fy
 w

ha
t y

ou
 d

id
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 y
ou

r s
co

re
. N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

13
:  

In
 y

ou
r a

re
a 

ha
ve

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 b

ee
n 

pr
om

ot
ed

 to
 

en
ab

le
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
s?

 
Am

be
r 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
so

m
e 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
to

 p
ub

lic
 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
, a

cr
os

s 
a 

sm
al

l r
an

ge
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
14

:  
 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
ur

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fr
om

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 

Ad
ul

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 n
ee

ds
 o

f y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

G
re

en
 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
au

to
m

at
ic

. T
ra

in
in

g 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e'

s 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

An
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f p

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
w

ith
ou

t 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 c

ar
e 

(E
H

C)
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
w

he
re

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

an
d 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

14
.0

1:
  

 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
as

si
st

an
ce

 in
 th

e 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

ag
es

 (1
4 

to
 1

7)
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4?

 

30
 in

 th
e 

ag
e 

ra
ng

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 w

ith
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

r E
H

C 
pl

an
s 

w
ith

 p
rim

ar
y 

or
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 
ne

ed
 o

f A
SD

 (h
en

ce
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
pl

an
s)

 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
14

.0
2:

  
H

ow
 m

an
y 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 h
av

e 
be

en
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
2 

YP
 tu

rn
ed

 1
8 

in
 th

at
 y

ea
r w

ith
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

r E
H

C 
pl

an
s 

w
ith

 p
rim

ar
y 

or
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 

94



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4?

 
ne

ed
 o

f A
SD

 (h
en

ce
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
pl

an
s)

. 
A 

fu
rt

he
r 5

 Y
P 

tu
rn

ed
 1

9.
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
15

:  
H

ow
 d

oe
s 

yo
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
ne

ed
s 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

? 
Re

d 
W

e 
do

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

ol
le

ct
 th

is
 d

at
a.

  

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: C

om
m

en
t -

 T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

is
su

e 
th

at
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

si
ng

 in
 o

ur
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 fo
llo

w
 th

is
 s

el
f-

as
se

ss
m

en
t  

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

16
:  

 
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

ur
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 n
ee

ds
 o

f w
om

en
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

Th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
se

ek
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

ll 
pe

op
le

 o
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

 in
 o

ur
 c

ou
nt

y 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f g

en
de

r.
  

Q
ue

st
io

n 
17

:  
 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 

ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 n

ee
ds

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

au
tis

m
 in

 B
M

E 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
? 

Th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
se

ek
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

ll 
pe

op
le

 o
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

 in
 o

ur
 c

ou
nt

y 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f e

th
ni

c 
or

ig
in

 

3.
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
18

:  
H

av
e 

yo
u 

go
t a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 a
ut

is
m

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
la

n?
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ut
is

m
 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: W

ha
t s

ta
ff

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

ag
en

ci
es

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

? 
 P

ro
vi

de
 a

 li
nk

 if
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

  
Q

ue
st

io
n 

19
:  

 
Is

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ei

ng
/b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
st

af
f w

or
ki

ng
 in

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e?
 

Am
be

r 
Au

tis
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 is
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
st

af
f 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
 b

ut
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f o

ur
 

fo
cu

s 
on

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
ou

tc
om

es
 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: T

he
 ra

is
in

g 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

am
on

gs
t a

ll 
of

 o
ur

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
st

af
f i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 d

el
iv

er
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

is
 a

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
y 

in
 

ou
r l

oc
al

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
 P

la
ns

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

he
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 o
ur

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 p

at
hw

ay
 (w

hi
ch

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n)

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r t

en
de

r,
 a

ll 
pr

os
pe

ct
iv

e 
bi

dd
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 o
ff

er
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 a
ll 

of
 th

ei
r s

ta
ff

. W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
ur

 lo
ca

l G
P 

gr
ou

p 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 lo
ca

lly
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r s

ta
ff

. A
 d

ay
’s

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 e
nt

itl
ed

 ‘A
ut

is
m

 A
w

ar
en

es
s’

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

 to
 s

ta
ff

 in
 o

ur
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
lo

ok
in

g 
to

 e
xp

an
d 

th
is

 c
ou

rs
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
st

af
f w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 a

du
lts

. 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

20
:  

Is
 s

pe
ci

fic
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 b

ei
ng

/b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 s
ta

ff
 th

at
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 
st

at
ut

or
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 o
n 

ho
w

 to
 m

ak
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 in
 th

ei
r 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n?

 

Am
be

r 
N

o 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 o
ff

er
ed

 h
ow

ev
er

 s
ta

ff
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
hr

ou
gh

 o
ur

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 H
ea

lth
 T

ea
m

 o
n 

a 
ca

se
 b

y 
ca

se
 b

as
is

 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

: T
he

 ra
is

in
g 

of
 a

ut
is

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
am

on
gs

t a
ll 

of
 o

ur
 fr

on
t l

in
e 

st
af

f i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 d
el

iv
er

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
is

 a
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

y 
in

 
th

e 
St

ra
te

gy
. P

la
ns

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r s
ta

ff
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

Ca
re

 A
ct

 is
 

fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

rig
ht

s 
of

 th
e 

ca
re

rs
 o

f t
ho

se
 w

ith
 A

ut
is

m
. 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
21

:  
 

D
o 

Cl
in

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
(s

) e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

pr
im

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
he

al
th

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 in

cl
ud

e 
au

tis
m

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
ir 

on
go

in
g 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t?

 
N

o 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: A

ll 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

pr
od

uc
e 

an
d 

de
liv

er
 e

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r t

he
ir 

st
af

f. 
W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

em
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 A
ut

is
m

 is
 p

ar
t 

of
 th

is
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

ff
er

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

au
tis

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 m

an
da

to
ry

 fo
r a

ll 
he

al
th

 s
ta

ff
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

.  
Q

ue
st

io
n 

22
:  

Cr
im

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

: D
o 

st
af

f i
n 

th
e 

lo
ca

l p
ol

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

en
ga

ge
 in

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

? 
Ye

s 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

: W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

Po
lic

e 
en

su
re

 th
at

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

n 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 A

ut
is

m
 a

nd
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

. I
n 

20
13

, a
ll 

of
fic

er
s 

un
de

rw
en

t t
ra

in
in

g 
on

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

th
is

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
fo

llo
w

ed
 u

p 
by

 m
an

da
to

ry
 E

-T
ra

in
in

g.
  

Q
ue

st
io

n 
23

:  
Cr

im
in

al
 Ju

st
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
: D

o 
st

af
f i

n 
th

e 
lo

ca
l c

ou
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
en

ga
ge

 in
 a

ut
is

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
? 

N
o 

– 
as

 p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 A

ut
is

m
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

w
e 

ar
e 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

ou
rt

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

ut
is

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 th

at
 is

 o
ff

er
ed

 
 

95



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
24

:  
Cr

im
in

al
 Ju

st
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
: D

o 
st

af
f i

n 
th

e 
lo

ca
l p

ro
ba

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

en
ga

ge
 in

 a
ut

is
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

? 
N

o 
– 

as
 p

ar
t o

f o
ur

 A
ut

is
m

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

e 
ar

e 
se

ek
in

g 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l p
ro

ba
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

le
ve

l o
f a

ut
is

m
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 th

at
 is

 o
ff

er
ed

 
4.

 D
ia

gn
os

is
 le

d 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l N
H

S 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

25
:  

  

H
av

e 
yo

u 
go

t a
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

lo
ca

l a
ut

is
m

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 p

at
hw

ay
? 

Re
d 

W
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 s
po

t p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

on
 a

 c
as

e 
by

 c
as

e 
ba

si
s.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
pa

th
w

ay
 th

is
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t i
n-

ho
us

e 
an

d 
w

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
n 

ag
re

ed
 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 p

at
hw

ay
. 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: T

hi
s 

is
su

e 
is

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 th

at
 w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

is
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 p

at
hw

ay
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
26

:  
 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 g

ot
 a

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
lo

ca
l a

ut
is

m
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 p
at

hw
ay

, w
he

n 
w

as
 th

e 
pa

th
w

ay
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
? 

N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: N

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

27
:  

 
In

 th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4,

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
er

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 o

ut
 o

f a
re

a 
fo

r d
ia

gn
os

is
, d

es
pi

te
 a

 lo
ca

l d
ia

gn
os

tic
 

pa
th

w
ay

 b
ei

ng
 in

 p
la

ce
? 

N
um

be
r 8

  

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: 4

 o
f t

he
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

er
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 fo
r A

sp
er

ge
rs

.  
4 

of
 th

e 
pe

op
le

 w
er

e 
re

fe
rr

ed
 fo

r A
ut

is
m

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

28
:  

 
In

 w
ee

ks
, h

ow
 lo

ng
 is

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

w
ai

t b
et

w
ee

n 
re

fe
rr

al
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t?
 

(N
ot

e,
 th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
al

l p
eo

pl
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 ir
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

of
 p

rio
rit

is
at

io
n 

st
re

am
s)

 
N

um
be

r  
- N

ot
 k

no
w

n 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: W

e 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
da

ta
 o

n 
av

er
ag

e 
w

ai
tin

g 
tim

es
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

n 
ar

ea
 th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
st

ar
tin

g 
to

 m
on

ito
r a

nd
 w

ill
 b

ui
ld

 it
 in

to
 th

e 
di

ag
no

st
ic

 
pa

th
w

ay
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

29
:  

 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 h

av
e 

be
en

 re
fe

rr
ed

 fo
r a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t b
ut

 h
av

e 
ye

t t
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
di

ag
no

si
s?

 
N

um
be

r -
 1

 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

: C
om

m
en

t 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

30
:  

 
In

 th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

ho
w

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 d
ia

gn
os

is
 o

f a
n 

au
tis

tic
 s

pe
ct

ru
m

 c
on

di
tio

n?
 

N
um

be
r -

 8
  

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: W

e 
ex

pe
ct

 to
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 m
on

ito
r t

hi
s 

m
or

e 
cl

os
el

y 
ne

xt
 y

ea
r o

nc
e 

ou
r p

at
hw

ay
 is

 p
la

ce
. 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
31

: 
 

H
ow

 m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
di

ag
no

si
s 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 e
nd

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

ha
d 

m
ov

ed
 o

n 
to

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 e
nd

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
4?

 
N

um
be

r -
 0

 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: W

e 
do

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

av
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 p

la
ce

. O
ur

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
at

hw
ay

 g
oe

s 
as

 fa
r a

s 
di

ag
no

si
s 

bu
t n

ot
 o

nt
o 

af
te

rc
ar

e.
 T

hi
s 

si
tu

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 o

nc
e 

ou
r d

ia
gn

os
tic

 p
at

hw
ay

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

32
:  

H
ow

 w
ou

ld
 y

ou
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

lo
ca

l d
ia

gn
os

tic
 p

at
hw

ay
, i

e 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

 m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 a

ut
is

m
 fo

r d
ia

gn
os

is
 o

r a
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t a
ut

is
m

 s
pe

ci
fic

 s
er

vi
ce

? 
 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: O

ur
 p

at
hw

ay
 is

 s
til

l u
nd

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 y

et
 to

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 m

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 O
nc

e 
it 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

it 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 in
to

 m
ai

ns
tr

ea
m

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
di

ag
no

si
s 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
Q

ue
st

io
n 

33
:  

 
In

 y
ou

r l
oc

al
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 p
at

hw
ay

 d
oe

s 
a 

di
ag

no
si

s 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 a
ut

om
at

ic
al

ly
 tr

ig
ge

r a
n 

of
fe

r o
f a

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ar
e 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

(o
r r

e-
as

se
ss

m
en

t i
f t

he
 p

er
so

n 
ha

s 
al

re
ad

y 
ha

d 
a 

cu
rr

en
t c

om
m

un
ity

 c
ar

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t)
? 

N
o 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: O

ur
 p

at
hw

ay
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
is

 tr
ig

ge
r i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
an

 o
ff

er
 o

f a
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ar

e 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

34
: 

 
Ca

n 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
or

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

ps
yc

ho
lo

gy
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
? 

Re
d 

O
nl

y 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

it
h 

LD
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
or

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

ps
yc

ho
lo

gy
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

35
:  

 
Ca

n 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
or

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

sp
ee

ch
 a

nd
 la

ng
ua

ge
 th

er
ap

y 
Re

d 
O

nl
y 

pe
op

le
 d

ia
gn

os
ed

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 w
it

h 
LD

 c
an

 a
cc

es
s 

po
st

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

or
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 a
dj

us
te

d 
sp

ee
ch

 a
nd

 la
ng

ua
ge

 th
er

ap
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 

96



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

? 
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
36

:  
 

Ca
n 

pe
op

le
 d

ia
gn

os
ed

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
cc

es
s 

po
st

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

or
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 a
dj

us
te

d 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l t
he

ra
py

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
? 

Re
d 

O
nl

y 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

it
h 

LD
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
 d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
or

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

oc
cu

pa
tio

na
l t

he
ra

py
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
37

:  
 

Is
 p

os
t-

di
ag

no
st

ic
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t s
up

po
rt

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

cl
in

ic
al

 p
sy

ch
ol

og
y 

or
 o

th
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s?
 

N
o 

- O
nl

y 
pe

op
le

 d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

it
h 

LD
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
po

st
-d

ia
gn

os
tic

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t s
up

po
rt

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

lin
ic

al
 p

sy
ch

ol
og

y 
or

 o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

5.
 C

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
38

 
O

f t
ho

se
 a

du
lts

 w
ho

 w
er

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
be

in
g 

el
ig

ib
le

 fo
r a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 w
ho

 a
re

 in
 re

ce
ip

t o
f a

 p
er

so
na

l 
bu

dg
et

, h
ow

 m
an

y 
ha

ve
 a

 d
ia

gn
os

is
 o

f A
ut

is
m

 b
ot

h 
w

ith
 a

 c
o-

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 w
ith

ou
t?

 

(W
he

re
 re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
ns

w
er

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 2

 a
nd

 3
, t

he
 to

ta
l s

ho
ul

d 
eq

ua
l t

he
 

to
ta

l f
or

 q
ue

st
io

n 
1)

 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
38

.0
1:

 
N

um
be

r o
f a

du
lts

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 b
ei

ng
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r a
du

lt 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 in

 re
ce

ip
t o

f a
 p

er
so

na
l b

ud
ge

t 
75

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

38
.0

2:
 

N
um

be
r o

f t
ho

se
 re

po
rt

ed
 in

 1
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
di

ag
no

si
s 

of
 A

ut
is

m
 b

ut
 n

ot
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 
60

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

38
.0

3:
 

N
um

be
r o

f t
ho

se
 re

po
rt

ed
 in

 1
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

bo
th

 a
 d

ia
gn

os
is

 o
f A

ut
is

m
 A

N
D

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
15

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

39
:  

 
D

o 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

id
en

tif
ia

bl
e 

co
nt

ac
t p

oi
nt

 w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

he
th

er
 o

r n
ot

 in
 re

ce
ip

t o
f s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

n 
ge

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
si

gn
po

st
in

g 
au

tis
m

-f
rie

nd
ly

 e
nt

ry
 p

oi
nt

s 
fo

r a
 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s?

 

W
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
ge

ne
ra

l e
nt

ry
 p

oi
nt

 le
ve

l o
f s

er
vi

ce
. W

e 
pl

an
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 m
or

e 
au

tis
m

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
po

in
ts

 o
f a

cc
es

s 
in

 fu
tu

re
. W

e 
ar

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
a 

ne
w

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 h
ub

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 w
ill

 e
xp

ec
t t

he
 p

ro
vi

de
r t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

au
tis

m
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

: W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ar
er

s 
Su

pp
or

t,
 o

ur
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 T
ea

m
 a

nd
 o

ur
 W

eb
 T

ea
m

 to
 d

es
ig

n 
an

 a
ut

is
m

-
fr

ie
nd

ly
 e

nt
ry

 p
oi

nt
 fo

r l
oc

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

‘L
oc

al
 O

ff
er

’. 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

40
:  

 
D

o 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 p

at
hw

ay
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 b
ut

 w
ith

ou
t a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

lty
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
ar

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 

su
pp

or
t?

 
N

o 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

ur
 lo

ca
l N

AS
 b

ra
nc

h 
of

fic
e 

to
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 p
at

hw
ay

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
ar

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

up
po

rt
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
41

:  
D

o 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 h
av

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 
th

ei
r s

pe
ci

fic
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
? 

 

Am
be

r 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
ad

vo
ca

cy
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

 p
la

ce
. W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
ll 

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: T

ra
in

in
g 

in
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s 

ar
e 

tw
o 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 o
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

w
ar

ds
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
w

or
ki

ng
  

Q
ue

st
io

n 
42

: 
   

D
o 

ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

ho
 c

ou
ld

 n
ot

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
lly

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 n
ee

ds
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
, c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t p

la
nn

in
g,

 
ap

pe
al

s,
 re

vi
ew

s,
 o

r s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ha
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 tr

ai
ne

d 
ad

vo
ca

te
? 

Am
be

r 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 re
qu

ire
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 
ca

n 
be

 re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 a

n 
ad

vo
ca

te
. L

oc
al

 a
dv

oc
ac

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 c

on
tin

ua
lly

 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

t b
ec

om
in

g 
m

or
e 

au
tis

m
-a

w
ar

e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: C

om
m

en
t:

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

43
:  

 
Ca

n 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
cc

es
s 

su
pp

or
t i

f t
he

y 
ar

e 
no

n 
Fa

ir 
Ac

ce
ss

 C
rit

er
ia

 e
lig

ib
le

 o
r n

ot
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s?

   
Ye

s 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

: P
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ex
am

pl
e 

of
 th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f s
up

po
rt

 th
at

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 y

ou
r a

re
a 

an
d 

ho
w

 y
ou

 m
ea

su
re

 if
 it

 is
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l 
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
44

:  
H

ow
 w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t l
oc

al
 

Am
be

r  
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 m
od

er
at

e 
le

ve
l o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ab
ou

t s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 

97



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

su
pp

or
t a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
ar

ea
 b

ei
ng

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

au
tis

m
? 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

hi
ch

 is
 e

ith
er

 in
co

m
pl

et
e 

or
 n

ot
 re

ad
ily

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
  

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

le
ve

l, 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t r
el

ev
an

t s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
. 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
45

:  
   

W
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

re
 c

ar
er

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

ha
vi

ng
 

au
tis

m
 a

nd
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

su
pp

or
t o

ff
er

ed
 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

? 

G
re

en
 

Ca
re

rs
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

re
 o

ff
er

ed
 to

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r a
du

lt 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: U

nd
er

 th
e 

Ca
re

 A
ct

 w
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 c

ar
er

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

ha
vi

ng
 a

ut
is

m
 a

nd
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

su
pp

or
t w

ill
 in

 fu
tu

re
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
ne

ed
s.

 W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
w

ar
ds

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

he
re

 a
nd

 w
he

n 
ne

ed
ed

.  
6.

 H
ou

si
ng

 &
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

46
: 

  

D
oe

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 id

en
tif

y 
Au

tis
m

? 
Re

d 
Th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 A

ut
is

m
 (a

s 
di

st
in

ct
 fr

om
 n

ee
ds

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r d
is

ab
ili

tie
s)

 n
ot

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
in

 o
ur

 c
ur

re
nt

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

: O
ur

 H
ou

si
ng

 T
ea

m
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t a

 s
ur

ve
y 

on
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

ll 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
or

 A
ut

is
m

. T
he

 s
ur

ve
y 

be
in

g 
us

ed
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

di
sc

us
se

d 
an

d 
co

m
m

en
te

d 
up

on
 b

y 
ou

r A
ut

is
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 G
ro

up
   

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

47
:  

  

D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
 p

ol
ic

y 
of

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 o

ff
ic

es
 a

ll 
ha

ve
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 s

ta
ff

 m
em

be
r w

ho
 h

as
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 a
ut

is
m

 to
 

he
lp

 p
eo

pl
e 

m
ak

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 fi

ll 
in

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

rm
s?

 
N

o 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: C

om
m

en
t -

 In
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
ut

is
m

 a
m

on
gs

t o
ur

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
st

af
f i

s 
a 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
y 

of
 o

ur
 A

ut
is

m
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 S
ta

ff
 in

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 
of

fic
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 a

ny
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
e 

id
en

tif
y 

as
 w

e 
im

pl
em

en
t o

ur
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 

7.
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
48

: 
  

H
ow

 h
av

e 
yo

u 
pr

om
ot

ed
 in

 y
ou

r a
re

a 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
f 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
th

e 
Au

tis
tic

 S
pe

ct
ru

m
? 

Am
be

r  
Au

tis
m

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
on

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 b

as
is

. 
Lo

ca
l e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

Au
tis

m
. S

om
e 

co
nt

ac
t m

ad
e 

w
ith

 
lo

ca
l j

ob
 c

en
tr

es
 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t i

s 
a 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
y 

in
 o

ur
 a

ut
is

m
 s

tr
at

eg
y.

 A
d-

ho
c 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
 s

ev
er

al
 o

f o
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

nd
 w

e 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

lo
ca

l l
ow

 le
ve

l c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 Jo
b 

Ce
nt

re
s.

 M
or

e 
w

or
k 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a.
  

Q
ue

st
io

n 
49

:  
D

o 
au

tis
m

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 a

du
lt 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
av

e 
an

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t f
oc

us
? 

Am
be

r 
Tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t/

 a
ct

iv
ity

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: C

hi
ld

re
ns

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

ve
 c

re
at

ed
 a

 ‘N
ew

 H
or

iz
on

s 
H

ub
’ f

or
 th

os
e 

ag
ed

 1
9 

to
 2

5 
of

fe
rin

g 
da

y 
co

lle
ge

 p
la

ce
m

en
t i

n 
lif

e 
sk

ill
s,

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

liv
in

g 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.
 T

hi
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
ff

er
ed

 to
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
a 

si
m

ila
r a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t i

s 
be

in
g 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
w

ith
 A

ut
is

m
.  

Th
e 

O
ff

ic
er

 w
ho

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
ra

ns
iti

on
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t s
its

 o
n 

ou
r P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 G

ro
up

.  
8.

 C
ri

m
in

al
 Ju

st
ic

e 
Sy

st
em

 (C
JS

) 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

50
:  

Ar
e 

th
e 

Cr
im

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 (p
ol

ic
e,

 p
ro

ba
tio

n 
an

d,
 if

 
re

le
va

nt
, c

ou
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s)
 e

ng
ag

ed
 w

ith
 y

ou
 a

s 
ke

y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 in

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fo

r a
du

lts
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
? 

Am
be

r 
D

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ad

ul
t s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 c

rim
in

al
 

ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 a
re

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
; r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
 fr

om
 c

rim
in

al
 ju

st
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ag

en
ci

es
 s

it 
on

 a
ut

is
m

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 b
oa

rd
 o

r a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
: I

m
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
lin

ks
 to

 th
e 

Cr
im

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 is
 a

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r o

ur
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 G

ro
up

. W
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 h
av

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 
th

e 
lo

ca
l P

ol
ic

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 s

itt
in

g 
on

 o
ur

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 G
ro

up
 a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 g

et
tin

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

co
ur

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
ba

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

  
Q

ue
st

io
n 

51
 

Is
  a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

du
lt 

se
rv

ic
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

Re
d 

Th
er

e 
is

 n
ot

 re
lia

bl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 A

du
lt 

se
rv

ic
e 

'p
la

ce
s 

of
 s

af
et

y'
 

98



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
Au

tis
tic

 S
pe

ct
ru

m
 in

 c
us

to
dy

 s
ui

te
s 

an
d 

no
m

in
at

ed
  

9.
  L

oc
al

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
ti

ce
 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
52

:  
 

W
ha

t a
re

 y
ou

 d
oi

ng
 d

iff
er

en
t b

ec
au

se
 o

f T
hi

nk
 A

ut
is

m
 –

 th
e 

up
da

te
 to

 th
e 

20
10

 A
du

lt 
Au

tis
m

 S
tr

at
eg

y?
 

As
 a

 d
ire

ct
 re

su
lt 

of
 “

Th
in

k 
Au

tis
m

” 
– 

th
e 

up
da

te
 to

 th
e 

20
10

 A
du

lt 
Au

tis
m

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

e 
ha

ve
 in

cl
ud

ed
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 H

at
e 

Cr
im

e 
as

 a
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

y 
w

ith
in

 o
ur

 lo
ca

l s
tr

at
eg

y.
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 in
cl

ud
ed

 o
ur

 lo
ca

l I
nc

lu
si

on
 O

ff
ic

er
 o

nt
o 

ou
r P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 h
e 

is
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
lo

ca
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 c

om
bi

ne
 th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 
N

AS
 ‘L

iv
in

g 
in

 F
ea

r’
 re

po
rt

 w
ith

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
th

at
 h

e 
ha

s 
ga

th
er

ed
 e

ls
ew

he
re

 fr
om

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

re
gi

on
.  

Th
is

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
in

fo
rm

 fu
tu

re
 lo

ca
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 

al
so

 s
tr

en
gt

he
ne

d 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f o
ur

 lo
ca

l C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ol
ic

e 
fo

rc
e 

on
 o

ur
 B

oa
rd

  
Q

ue
st

io
n 

53
: I

f 
yo

u 
w

is
h,

  
D

es
cr

ib
e 

br
ie

fly
 (u

p 
to

 1
50

0 
Lo

ng
 C

om
m

en
t c

ha
ra

ct
er

s)
 O

N
E 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
of

 y
ou

r C
ou

nc
il,

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 c

ar
e 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 A

ut
is

m
, w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 th
in

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 

  

Q
ue

st
io

n 
54

:  
 

D
es

cr
ib

e 
br

ie
fly

 (u
p 

to
 1

50
0 

ch
ar

ac
te

rs
) a

n 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

of
 y

ou
r 

Co
un

ci
l, 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 c

ar
e 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

Au
tis

m
, w

hi
ch

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 A
ut

is
m

 in
 y

ou
r a

re
a 

th
in

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 

m
os

t s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l a

nd
 h

el
pf

ul
. 

In
 th

e 
pa

st
 e

ig
ht

ee
n 

m
on

th
s 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

as
 s

et
 u

p 
an

 A
ut

is
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
. 

Th
is

 w
as

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 th

at
 h

ad
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

in
 e

xi
st

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

an
d 

it 
ha

s 
gi

ve
n 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 a

 fo
cu

s 
an

d 
vo

ic
e 

on
 h

ow
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
th

ou
gh

t o
f a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 T

he
 B

oa
rd

 is
 c

ha
ire

d 
by

 s
om

eo
ne

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

 a
nd

 w
ho

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
ca

re
r f

or
 

so
m

eo
ne

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

. T
he

 B
oa

rd
 h

as
 s

ev
er

al
 re

gu
la

r m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 a
ls

o 
ha

ve
 a

ut
is

m
. 

Th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

en
tr

al
 to

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 o
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
it 

is
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

he
 B

oa
rd

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
ra

is
ed

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 th
at

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 p

os
iti

ve
 w

ill
 b

e 
do

ne
 to

 k
ee

p 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 
an

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r a

ll 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
ut

is
m

, t
he

ir 
ca

re
rs

 a
nd

 th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

 in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

N
ot

e 
- T

hi
s 

co
m

m
en

t w
as

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 fo

r i
nc

lu
si

on
 b

y 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 A
ut

is
m

 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
Bo

ar
d 

 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
55

:  
H

ow
 is

 y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

pl
an

ni
ng

 to
 s

pe
nd

 y
ou

r S
ec

tio
n 

31
 c

ap
ita

l 
gr

an
t o

f £
18

,5
00

? 
  

W
e 

pl
an

 to
 s

pe
nd

 th
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

31
 c

ap
ita

l g
ra

nt
 o

n 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 te
le

ca
re

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t w

hi
ch

 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 w

ho
 a

re
 i

n 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

an
d 

w
ho

 n
ee

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

su
pp

or
t 

to
 h

el
p 

ac
hi

ev
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
. W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

us
e 

th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 c

ar
er

s 
an

d 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
Au

tis
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
, 

to
 

in
flu

en
ce

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 i

-p
ad

s,
 t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
 c

ho
ic

e,
 in

cl
us

io
n,

 ri
gh

ts
 a

nd
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
.  

 
10

. O
pt

io
na

l S
el

f-
ad

vo
ca

te
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

of
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
Ac

co
un

ts
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
es

 b
y 

se
lf-

ad
vo

ca
te

 s
to

rie
s.

  U
p 

to
 3

 s
to

rie
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
de

d.
 T

he
se

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 o

nl
y 

di
re

ct
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

se
lf-

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
of

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
es

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
re

qu
iri

ng
 o

r u
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  T
he

y 
m

ay
 b

e 
de

sc
rip

tio
ns

 o
f g

oo
d 

or
 b

ad
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
.  

Th
ey

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

sh
or

t -
 le

ss
 th

an
 2

00
0 

ch
ar

ac
te

rs
 in

 to
ta

l. 
 T

he
y 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

y 
an

y 
ac

tu
al

 p
eo

pl
e 

or
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

.  
Fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
yo

u 
sh

ou
ld

 re
pl

ac
e 

na
m

es
 o

f w
or

k 
sc

he
m

es
 w

ith
 [W

or
k 

Sc
he

m
e]

 e
tc

. A
ll 

su
bm

itt
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

es
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 
w

ill
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

in
 fu

ll 
su

bj
ec

t o
nl

y 
to

 e
di

tin
g 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 a

no
ny

m
is

ed
. P

ub
lic

at
io

n 
w

ill
 g

ro
up

 th
em

 in
 th

e 
se

ct
io

n 
he

ad
in

gs
 o

f t
he

 q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
 s

o 
id

ea
lly

 y
ou

 s
ho

ul
d 

sp
ec

ify
 w

hi
ch

 s
ec

tio
n 

th
ey

 re
la

te
 to

 (a
lth

ou
gh

 o
bv

io
us

ly
 s

om
e 

m
ay

 re
la

te
 to

 m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 s

ec
tio

n)
. 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
56

.0
1 

Se
lf-

Ad
vo

ca
te

 A
cc

ou
nt

 1
 

 

99



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

Ty
pe

 o
f Q

ue
st

io
n:

 L
on

g 
Co

m
m

en
t 

Sp
ec

ify
 th

e 
se

ct
io

n 
to

 w
hi

ch
 th

is
 re

la
te

s 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

56
.0

2 
Co

m
m

en
t:

 S
ec

tio
n 

 to
 w

hi
ch

 S
el

f-
Ad

vo
ca

te
 A

cc
ou

nt
 1

 re
la

te
s 

Ty
pe

 o
f Q

ue
st

io
n:

 C
om

m
en

t 
Sp

ec
ify

 th
e 

se
ct

io
n 

to
 w

hi
ch

 th
is

 re
la

te
s 

 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
56

.0
3 

Se
lf-

Ad
vo

ca
te

 A
cc

ou
nt

 2
 

Ty
pe

 o
f Q

ue
st

io
n:

 L
on

g 
Co

m
m

en
t 

Sp
ec

ify
 th

e 
se

ct
io

n 
to

 w
hi

ch
 th

is
 re

la
te

s 

 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
56

..0
4 

Co
m

m
en

t:
 S

ec
tio

n 
 to

 w
hi

ch
 S

el
f-

Ad
vo

ca
te

 A
cc

ou
nt

 2
 re

la
te

s 
Ty

pe
 o

f Q
ue

st
io

n:
 C

om
m

en
t 

Sp
ec

ify
 th

e 
se

ct
io

n 
to

 w
hi

ch
 th

is
 re

la
te

s 

 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
56

..0
5 

Se
lf-

Ad
vo

ca
te

 A
cc

ou
nt

 3
 

Ty
pe

 o
f Q

ue
st

io
n:

 L
on

g 
Co

m
m

en
t 

Sp
ec

ify
 th

e 
se

ct
io

n 
to

 w
hi

ch
 th

is
 re

la
te

s 

 

 
11

. C
om

pl
et

io
n 

de
ta

ils
 - 

W
hi

ch
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ty

pe
s 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
 w

er
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
is

 s
el

f-
as

se
ss

m
en

t?
 

60
.0

1 
Lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ad
ul

t s
oc

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

Ye
s 

60
.0

2 
Lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

D
ep

t o
f C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
se

rv
ic

es
  

Ye
s 

60
.0

3 
Lo

ca
l e

du
ca

tio
n 

au
th

or
ity

  
n/

a 
60

.0
4 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 b
oa

rd
  

N
o 

60
.0

5 
Lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t  

Ye
s 

60
.0

6 
Cl

in
ic

al
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
Ye

s 
60

.0
7 

Pr
im

ar
y 

H
ea

lth
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

  
Ye

s 
60

.0
8 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
H

ea
lth

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
  

N
o 

60
.0

9 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

  
N

o 
60

.1
0 

Po
lic

e 
 

N
o 

60
.1

1 
Pr

ob
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

 
N

o 
60

.1
2 

Co
ur

t s
er

vi
ce

  
N

o 
60

.1
3 

Lo
ca

l c
ha

rit
ab

le
 /

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 /

 s
el

f a
dv

oc
ac

y 
/ 

 in
te

re
st

 g
ro

up
s 

Ye
s 

60
.1

4 
Pe

op
le

 o
n 

th
e 

au
tis

m
 s

pe
ct

ru
m

 
Ye

s 
60

.1
5 

In
fo

rm
al

 c
ar

er
s,

 fa
m

ily
, f

rie
nd

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

on
 th

e 
au

tis
tic

 s
pe

ct
ru

m
 

Ye
s 

N
ot

e 
– 

ou
r A

ut
is

m
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 h
el

pe
d 

to
 w

rit
e 

th
is

 s
el

f-
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
 Si

gn
 o

ff
 

61
.0

1 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f A
du

lt 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
H

el
en

 C
oo

m
be

s 
61

.0
2 

CC
G

 C
hi

ef
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

O
ff

ic
er

 
Jo

 W
hi

te
he

ad
  

 

100



Au
tis

m
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
5 

– 
th

ird
 it

er
at

io
n 

N
ot

e 
– 

th
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
 s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
 s

ho
w

s 
a 

92
.2

%
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
ra

te
 - 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
qu

es
ti

on
s 

sh
ow

n 
as

 b
ei

ng
 in

co
m

pl
et

e;
  

D
ia

gn
os

is
 –

 Q
2 

– 
as

ks
 fo

r t
he

 d
at

e 
th

e 
di

ag
no

si
s 

pa
th

w
ay

 w
as

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 –
 w

e 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
a 

pa
th

w
ay

 h
en

ce
 n

o 
da

te
 g

iv
en

  
D

ia
gn

os
is

 –
 Q

4 
– 

as
ke

d 
fo

r a
ve

ra
ge

 w
it 

fig
ur

es
 fo

r d
ia

gn
os

is
 –

 w
e 

do
 n

ot
 k

no
w

 th
es

e 
he

nc
e 

no
 fi

gu
re

 g
iv

en
 

D
ia

gn
os

is
 –

 Q
8 

– 
As

ke
d 

if 
ou

r p
at

hw
ay

 is
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 o
r s

pe
ci

al
iz

ed
 –

 a
s 

ou
r p

at
hw

ay
 is

 n
ot

 in
 p

la
ce

 n
o 

ca
te

go
ry

 g
iv

en
  

Ca
re

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

 Q
1 

(p
ar

tia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e)
 –

 w
e 

ha
ve

 g
iv

en
 th

e 
fig

ur
es

 –
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
cl

ea
r r

ea
so

n 
w

hy
 th

is
 a

pp
ea

rs
 to

 b
e 

on
ly

 b
e 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
   

Lo
ca

l G
oo

d 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Q

2 
– 

op
tio

na
l q

ue
st

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
di

d 
no

t a
ns

w
er

 
Se

lf-
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 Q

1 
– 

op
tio

na
l q

ue
st

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
di

d 
no

t a
ns

w
er

  
Co

m
pl

et
io

n 
D

et
ai

ls
 Q

1 
(p

ar
tia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e)

 –
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
– 

no
t c

le
ar

 w
hy

 th
ey

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

as
 in

co
m

pl
et

e 
 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

D
et

ai
ls

 Q
2 

(p
ar

tia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e)
 –

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

– 
no

t c
le

ar
 w

hy
 th

ey
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
as

 in
co

m
pl

et
e 

 

101



102



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Gorman Commissioning Officer on Tel (01432) 383157 

 

 

Meeting: Health & Wellbeing Board 

Meeting date: 25 March 2015 

Title of report: Joint Health and Social Care Learning 
Disability Self-Assessment Framework 2014 

Report by: Director of Adults Wellbeing 
 

Alternative options 

1 There are no alternative options. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2 The report is for information only 

Key considerations 

3 In September 2014 Andrea Pope-Smith, the Joint Chair of the ADASS Learning 
Disability Policy Network and Jane Cummings, the Chief Nursing Officer for England 
wrote to Directors of Adult Social Services informing them of the launch of the annual 
national Joint Health and Social Care Learning Disability Self-Assessment.   
The Learning Disability Health Self-Assessment Framework began being used in 
England in 2007/8. It has become an important guide for the NHS and Local 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision.  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To note that a self-assessment in response to the Joint Health and Social Care Learning 
Disability Self-Assessment Framework 2014 has been submitted to Public Health England. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT: The Report be noted 

AGENDA ITEM 13

103



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Gorman Commissioning Officer on Tel (01432) 383157 

 

Authorities. It has helped them to recognise the overall needs, experience and wishes 
of young people and adults with learning disabilities and their carers. This has made it 
easier to bring these perspectives into the tasks of determining local commissioning 
priorities and monitoring services.  The deadline for submissions was the end of 
January 2015. Herefordshire’s response was submitted on time 

 
Community impact 
4 The self-assessment describes the progress that has been made in developing 

services for people with Learning Disabilities in the county. The local Learning 
Disability Partnership Board has recently been revived and has started work on 
overseeing the development and provision of services and will be central to the 
development and delivery of an self-assessment action plan   

Equality duty 

5 The self-assessment in itself does not meet any of these duties however, the work of 
developing local services for those with Learning Disabilities will help advance 
equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and those who do not.    

Financial implications 

6 None. 

Legal implications 

7 None. This document is for information only  

Risk management 

8  None. This document is for information only 

Consultees 

9 The self-assessment was drawn up through consultation with a wide range of 
colleagues and partners including the CCG, 2G and officers from Adult Social Care. 
During January a series of consultation meetings were held with service users across 
the county and their views have helped inform the self-assessment. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Direction of travel assessment comparator of 2014performance against 2013 

Appendix 2  - Joint Health and Social Care Learning Disability Self-Assessment 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

 

104



1

Direction of Travel 
RAG Ratings 2013 2014
Total number of questions 27 23
Green 5 6
Amber 14 11
Red 3 6
Not answered 5 0
IHAL to complete 
Improving Health and Lives Learning Disabilities Observatory

0 4

Direction of travel 
 9
! 9
" 5

Cannot compare 4

Issues to be addressed

• We need an action plan
• We need to develop a Learning Disability 
Strategy

• We need to improve how we collect and use 
our data 

• We need to develop a strategy to improve job 
prospects for people with Learning 
Disabilities.

Appendix 1

105



106



Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 8
 

  Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
  

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

  
20

13
 

20
14

 
 

To
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 to
 a

ns
w

er
 

27
 

23
* 

*T
he

re
 w

er
e 

27
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 in
 to

ta
l h

ow
ev

er
 IH

AL
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
ur

 o
f t

he
m

 (S
ho

w
n 

as
 X

 in
 b

lu
e)

 
G

re
en

 
5 

6 
 

A
m

be
r 

14
 

11
 

 
Re

d 
 

3 
6 

 
N

ot
 a

ns
w

er
ed

**
 

5 
 

**
N

o 
da

ta
 w

as
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 fo
r t

he
se

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 in

 2
01

3 
(S

ho
w

n 
as

 X
 in

 y
el

lo
w

) 
IH

A
L 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

 
0 

4 
 

 D
ir

ec
ti

on
 o

f t
ra

ve
l  

� ���
 

9 
A1

 
A4

 
A6

 
A7

 
A8

 
A9

 
B3

 
C4

 
C6

 
 

� ���
 

9 
A2

 
B4

 
B5

 
C3

 
B7

 
C1

 
C2

 
C7

 
C8

 
 

� ���
 

5 
B1

 
B2

 
B6

 
B8

 
C5

 
 

 
 

 
Ca

nn
ot

 c
om

pa
re

  
 

4 
A3

 
A5

 
B9

 
C9

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
ll 

qu
es

ti
on

s 
re

ad
 a

cr
os

s 
fr

om
 2

01
3 

to
 2

10
4 

w
it

h 
th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 C

9 
20

13
 

 
20

14
 

 
D

O
T 

A1
. L

D
 Q

O
F 

re
gi

st
er

 in
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 

A 
A1

: L
ea

rn
in

g 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
Q

ua
lit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

(Q
O

F)
 

re
gi

st
er

 in
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 

G
 

� ���
 

A2
. S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 - 
Pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

re
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 d
is

ea
se

 
pr

ev
en

tio
n,

 h
ea

lth
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
he

al
th

 a
re

as
: O

be
si

ty
, D

ia
be

te
s,

 C
ar

di
o 

va
sc

ul
ar

 d
is

ea
se

 
an

d 
Ep

ile
ps

y 

R 

A2
: F

in
di

ng
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

in
g 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 h
ea

lth
 c

on
di

tio
ns

: o
be

si
ty

, 
di

ab
et

es
, c

ar
di

ov
as

cu
la

r d
is

ea
se

, e
pi

le
ps

y 
R 

� ���
 

A3
. A

nn
ua

l H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

s 
an

d 
An

nu
al

 H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

 R
eg

is
te

rs
 

A 
A3

: A
nn

ua
l h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
s 

an
d 

an
nu

al
 h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
 re

gi
st

er
s 

To
 b

e 
an

sw
er

ed
 b

y 
IH

A
L 

 
X 

N
/A

 

A4
. H

ea
lth

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s 
H

ea
lth

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s 
ar

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 A
nn

ua
l H

ea
lth

 
Ch

ec
ks

 (A
H

C)
 in

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

  
R 

A4
: S

pe
ci

fic
 h

ea
lth

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

ar
ge

ts
 (H

ea
lth

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s)
 a

re
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
An

nu
al

 H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

s 
in

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 
A 

� ���
 

A5
. S

cr
ee

ni
ng

  C
om

pa
ra

tiv
e 

da
ta

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 
vs

. s
im

ila
r a

ge
  

A 
A5

: N
at

io
na

l C
an

ce
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 (b
ow

el
, b

re
as

t a
nd

 
ce

rv
ic

al
)  

   
 T

o 
be

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 b

y 
IH

A
L 

 
X 

N
/A

 

A6
. P

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
of

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 s

ta
tu

s 
to

 o
th

er
 

he
al

th
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 
X 

A6
: P

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
of

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 s

ta
tu

s 
to

 
ot

he
r h

ea
lth

ca
re

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 

A 
� ���

 

A7
. L

ea
rn

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
lia

is
on

 fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 a

cu
te

 
se

tt
in

g 
X 

A7
: L

ea
rn

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
lia

is
on

 fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 

ac
ut

e 
se

tt
in

g 
A 

� ���
 

A8
: N

H
S 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
: d

en
tis

tr
y,

 o
pt

om
et

ry
, 

co
m

m
un

ity
 p

ha
rm

ac
y,

 p
od

ia
tr

y 
X 

A8
: N

H
S 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
: d

en
tis

tr
y,

 o
pt

om
et

ry
, 

co
m

m
un

ity
 p

ha
rm

ac
y,

 p
od

ia
tr

y 
A 

� ���
 

A9
. O

ff
en

de
r H

ea
lth

 &
 th

e 
Cr

im
in

al
 Ju

st
ic

e 
Sy

st
em

 
X 

A9
: O

ff
en

de
r h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 th
e 

Cr
im

in
al

 Ju
st

ic
e 

Sy
st

em
 

R 
� ���

 

107



Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 8
 

  
 

 
 

 
B1

. R
eg

ul
ar

 C
ar

e 
Re

vi
ew

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s 
kn

ow
 o

f a
ll 

fu
nd

ed
 in

di
vi

du
al

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
pa

ck
ag

es
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l l
ife

 s
ta

ge
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r o

n-
go

in
g 

pl
ac

em
en

t m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 re
vi

ew
s.

 

A 

B1
: I

nd
iv

id
ua

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
pa

ck
ag

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s 
kn

ow
 th

at
 a

ll 
fu

nd
ed

 in
di

vi
du

al
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l 

ca
re

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l l
ife

 
st

ag
es

 a
re

 re
vi

ew
ed

 re
gu

la
rly

. 
R 

� ���
 

B2
. C

on
tr

ac
t c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

Fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
im

ar
ily

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

A 

B2
: L

ea
rn

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

on
tr

ac
t c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

– 
fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

im
ar

ily
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s.

 

R 
� ���

 

B3
. A

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
f M

on
ito

r C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

Tr
us

ts
 

 
A 

B3
: M

on
ito

r a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

 
As

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 M

on
ito

r R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Tr

us
ts

 
G

 
� ���

 

B4
. A

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 in
 

al
l p

ro
vi

de
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 
A 

B4
: A

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
a 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
. 

A 
� ���

 

B5
. T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

Re
cr

ui
tm

en
t -

 In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

A 
B5

: S
el

f-
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

an
d 

ca
re

rs
 in

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

A 
� ���

 
B6

. C
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ca
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f s
ta

ff
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

m
pa

ss
io

n,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 a

nd
 re

sp
ec

t a
nd

 c
om

es
 fr

om
 a

 v
al

ue
 b

as
ed

 
cu

ltu
re

. 

G
 

B6
: C

om
pa

ss
io

n,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 a

nd
 re

sp
ec

t. 
To

 b
e 

an
sw

er
ed

 b
y 

se
lf-

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 –
 c

ar
er

s.
 F

am
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
gr

ee
 th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 tr
ea

t p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
co

m
pa

ss
io

n,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 a

nd
 re

sp
ec

t. 

A 
� ���

 

B7
. L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
St

ra
te

gi
es

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
up

po
rt

, 
ca

re
 a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

re
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f E

qu
al

ity
 Im

pa
ct

 
As

se
ss

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

re
 c

le
ar

 a
bo

ut
 h

ow
 th

ey
 w

ill
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s.
 

R 

B7
: C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 fo
r s

up
po

rt
, c

ar
e 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

is
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f I

m
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

re
 c

le
ar

 a
bo

ut
 h

ow
 th

ey
 w

ill
 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s.
 

R 
� ���

 

B8
. C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
ca

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 a

ll 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

ch
an

ge
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s,

 
w

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

G
 

B8
: C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
le

ad
 to

 c
ha

ng
es

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s 
ca

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 a

ll 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

ch
an

ge
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s,

 w
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 

A 
� ���

 

B9
. M

en
ta

l C
ap

ac
ity

 A
ct

 &
 D

ep
riv

at
io

n 
of

 L
ib

er
ty

 
A 

D
at

a 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 M

en
ta

l C
ap

ac
ity

 A
ct

 a
nd

 D
ep

riv
at

io
n 

of
 L

ib
er

ty
 

w
ill

 b
e 

so
ur

ce
d 

fr
om

 n
at

io
na

lly
 T

o 
be

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 b

y 
IH

A
L 

 
X 

N
/A

 

 
 

 
 

 
C1

. E
ff

ec
tiv

e 
Jo

in
t W

or
ki

ng
 

G
 

C1
: E

ff
ec

tiv
e 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

  
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 a
cr

os
s 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e.
 

G
 

� ���
 

C2
. L

oc
al

 a
m

en
iti

es
 a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

A 
C2

: L
oc

al
 a

m
en

iti
es

 a
nd

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
A 

� ���
 

C3
. A

rt
s 

an
d 

cu
ltu

re
 

G
 

C3
: A

rt
s 

an
d 

cu
ltu

re
  

G
 

� ���
 

C4
. S

po
rt

 &
 le

is
ur

e 
A 

C4
: S

po
rt

s 
an

d 
le

is
ur

e 
 

G
 

� ���
 

C5
. S

up
po

rt
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 in

to
 a

nd
 in

 
A 

C5
: E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t  

R 
� ���

 

108



Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 8
 

 em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

C6
. E

ff
ec

tiv
e 

Tr
an

si
tio

ns
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
X 

C6
: P

re
pa

rin
g 

fo
r a

du
lth

oo
d 

G
 

� ���
 

C7
. C

om
m

un
ity

 in
cl

us
io

n 
an

d 
Ci

tiz
en

sh
ip

 
A 

C7
: I

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t i

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

 
A 

� ���
 

C8
. P

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pe

rs
on

al
 b

ud
ge

ts
 

A 
C8

: C
ar

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

ra
tin

g.
  

 
A 

� ���
 

C9
. F

am
ily

 C
ar

er
s 

G
 

C9
: O

ve
ra

ll 
ra

tin
g 

fo
r t

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t.
  

To
 b

e 
an

sw
er

ed
 b

y 
IH

A
L 

 
X 

N
/A

 

 W
he

re
 h

av
e 

do
ne

 w
or

se
 th

an
 in

 2
01

3?
 

 B1
, B

2,
 C

5 
(a

ll 
do

w
nw

ar
d 

D
O

T 
in

to
 R

ed
 fr

om
 A

m
be

r)
  &

 B
6,

 B
8,

 (a
ll 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
D

O
T 

in
to

 A
m

be
r f

ro
m

 G
re

en
) 

 
 

20
13

 W
ha

t d
id

 w
e 

sa
y?

  
 

20
14

 W
ha

t d
id

 w
e 

sa
y?

  
N

ot
es

  
B1

 
 

Be
tw

ee
n 

1s
t A

pr
il 

20
12

 to
 3

1s
t M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
- 2

96
 L

D
 

Cl
ie

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 S

AQ
, S

up
po

rt
 P

la
n 

or
 S

up
po

rt
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

ew
. A

ll 
LD

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
us

er
s 

w
ith

 e
lig

ib
le

 n
ee

ds
 fo

r a
 

se
rv

ic
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

LD
 T

ea
m

 a
nd

 w
ho

 a
re

 o
pe

n 
to

 th
e 

te
am

 
ar

e 
on

 a
 p

la
n 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r 

(2
01

3-
14

). 
W

e 
ha

ve
 3

 jo
in

t f
un

de
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s 
an

d 
th

ey
 

w
er

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 o

n 
24

.9
.1

2,
 1

9.
10

.1
2 

an
d 

25
.0

6.
13

. 
Fo

r N
H

S 
fu

nd
ed

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
a 

da
ta

ba
se

 o
f p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 n

ow
 

in
 p

la
ce

. A
n 

O
O

C 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

of
fic

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ap
po

in
te

d 
to

 
le

ad
 a

n 
M

D
T 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 re

vi
ew

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t o

n 
a 

fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 b

as
is

. A
ll 

cl
ie

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

in
 th

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r.

 
Al

l l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

fu
nd

ed
 p

la
ce

m
en

t p
ac

ka
ge

s 
ar

e 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

vi
a 

Fr
am

ew
or

ki
. C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ha
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 L
A-

fu
nd

ed
 

pa
ck

ag
es

 o
f c

ar
e,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

de
ta

ils
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
re

vi
ew

s.
 T

he
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

a 
cl

ea
r p

ro
ce

ss
 in

 p
la

ce
 

fo
r t

he
 a

nn
ua

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

ac
ka

ge
s 

of
 c

ar
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r.
 

Jo
in

t-
fu

nd
ed

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
ar

e 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

fr
om

 
bo

th
 fu

nd
in

g 
bo

di
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 
is

 s
ha

re
d.

 
A

M
BE

R 
(M

ov
in

g 
to

 g
re

en
 in

 2
01

4)
 

 
D

ur
in

g 
20

13
/1

4,
 A

du
lts

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
58

5 
cl

ie
nt

s 
(R

AP
 P

1)
.  

O
f t

hi
s 

to
ta

l, 
40

0 
cl

ie
nt

s 
ha

d 
an

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
re

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

su
pp

or
t p

la
n 

or
 re

vi
ew

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
nd

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 1
3 

ca
re

rs
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t/

re
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
ca

re
 p

la
n 

or
 

re
vi

ew
.  

Th
is

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 b

el
ow

 ta
rg

et
, b

ut
 in

 
20

14
/1

5 
w

e 
w

ill
 a

im
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

up
on

 th
is

 th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f h
ig

h 
co

st
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 

w
he

re
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 c
lie

nt
s 

w
ill

 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

. 
W

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 h

av
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
LD

 U
se

r G
ro

up
 

an
d 

th
ey

 fe
lt 

th
ey

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
ei

r 
su

pp
or

t p
la

nn
in

g 
to

 s
et

 g
oa

ls
 a

nd
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
se

lf-
ad

vo
ca

cy
. T

he
y 

al
so

 fe
lt 

su
pp

or
te

d 
an

d 
sa

fe
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

Th
is

 q
ue

st
io

n 
as

ke
d 

us
 to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 9
0%

 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 th
er

ef
or

e 
w

e 
ha

ve
 to

 s
te

p 
do

w
n 

to
 

RE
D

 
  (N

ot
e 

–l
as

t y
ea

r w
e 

w
er

e 
co

nf
id

en
t o

f s
te

pp
in

g 
up

 to
 a

 
gr

ee
n)

 
 

B2
 

 
91

%
 o

f c
as

es
 re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
vi

si
t l

as
t y

ea
r.

 
W

e 
al

so
 c

on
du

ct
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 

ob
ta

in
 o

n 
go

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

ac
tiv

ity
 d

at
a 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

on
th

ly
 

 
84

%
 o

f l
ea

rn
in

g 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 v

is
it 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 A

pr
il 

20
13

 to
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

4.
  T

he
se

 v
is

its
 in

cl
ud

ed
 g

ai
ni

ng
 

Th
is

 q
ue

st
io

n 
as

ke
d 

us
 to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 9
0%

 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 th
er

ef
or

e 

109



Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 8
 

 

re
tu

rn
s 

fr
om

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
us

er
s 

an
d 

st
af

f t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

 q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ta

lk
in

g 
to

 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

vi
si

t.
 W

e 
al

so
 c

on
du

ct
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t.

 W
e 

w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 w
ho

 c
om

e 
in

to
 o

ur
 Q

ua
lit

y 
Co

nc
er

ns
 

pr
oc

es
s,

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
ou

t f
ur

th
er

 s
up

po
rt

iv
e 

qu
al

ity
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
vi

si
ts

. W
e 

al
so

 re
ce

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ac
tiv

ity
 

da
ta

 fr
om

 o
ur

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 w

ho
 a

re
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. T

hi
s 

is
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r a
gr

ee
d 

ba
si

s.
 

W
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 h
av

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

 
w

ho
 fe

lt 
su

pp
or

te
d 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

ei
r 

an
nu

al
 re

vi
ew

s 
bu

t a
ls

o 
fe

lt 
th

at
 g

re
at

er
 s

up
po

rt
 

co
ul

d 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 h
el

p 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
s 

re
al

is
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 c
an

 a
sk

 fo
r a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

ir 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

t 
an

y 
tim

e 
sh

ou
ld

 th
ey

 w
is

h 
to

 c
ha

ng
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

w
e 

ha
ve

 to
 re

m
ai

n 
RE

D
 

C5
 

 
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

on
 fr

om
 b

ei
ng

 p
ar

t o
f w

or
k 

ba
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

t 
ou

r R
ye

fie
ld

 c
en

tr
e 

fo
ur

 S
er

vi
ce

 U
se

rs
 w

er
e 

em
pl

oy
ed

 
(p

ar
t t

im
e)

 b
y 

a 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

fir
m

. T
hi

s 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t h
as

 n
ow

 c
ea

se
d,

 w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 1

 S
er

vi
ce

 
U

se
r b

ei
ng

 in
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

ne
 d

ay
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

at
 a

 
lo

ca
l f

ac
to

ry
. T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f a
ct

iv
ity

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
at

 o
ur

 
ce

nt
re

s 
ha

ve
 a

n 
el

em
en

t o
f "

w
or

k"
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

et
hi

c.
 F

or
 

ex
am

pl
e 

th
e 

Ry
ef

ie
ld

 C
af

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

as
 5

 tr
ai

ne
es

 
un

de
rg

oi
ng

 w
or

k 
ba

se
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 /
 w

or
k 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
 

2 
Se

rv
ic

e 
U

se
rs

 a
t t

he
 S

t O
w

en
 C

en
tr

e 
ha

ve
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f p
ap

er
 ro

un
ds

 a
nd

 1
6 

Se
rv

ic
e 

U
se

rs
 v

ol
un

te
er

 a
t w

or
k 

ba
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 2

 S
er

vi
ce

 U
se

rs
 

ha
ve

 p
ar

t-
tim

e 
pa

id
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t.

 A
t t

he
 W

id
em

ar
sh

 
Ce

nt
re

 3
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

se
rs

 v
ol

un
te

er
 to

 e
xt

er
na

l 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 (G

od
's

 a
cr

e,
 R

ed
 C

ro
ss

, c
at

he
dr

al
 g

ar
de

ns
) 

an
d 

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
U

se
rs

 a
re

 in
 w

or
k 

ba
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 W

e 
ha

ve
 a

 
Sk

ill
s 

fo
r D

ai
ly

 L
iv

in
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

th
at

 is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 th

is
 c

an
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

to
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t.

 W
e 

ar
e 

ke
en

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 c

ha
ng

es
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

na
tio

na
lly

 s
o 

th
at

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

Ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

p 
fu

nd
in

g 

 
W

e 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 p
lo

t a
, e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t p

at
hw

ay
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 L
D

.  
A 

nu
m

be
r o

f o
ur

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 li

vi
ng

 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 M
en

ca
p 

an
d 

EC
H

O
, 

su
pp

or
t p

eo
pl

e 
in

to
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
or

 s
ho

rt
 te

rm
 

pa
id

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ch

em
es

. W
he

re
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
ha

s 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 m
ov

e 
in

to
 fu

ll 
tim

e 
w

or
k 

th
en

 
th

e 
Sh

aw
 T

ru
st

 s
up

po
rt

 th
em

 to
 fi

nd
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
 

w
or

k 
of

 m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ve
r 1

6 
ho

ur
s 

pe
r w

ee
k.

   
An

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
of

 a
 lo

ca
l s

oc
ia

l e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

D
 to

 fi
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t i
s 

th
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 In

te
re

st
 C

om
pa

ny
; ‘

M
iE

nt
er

pr
is

e’
, 

(s
ee

 h
tt

p:
//

w
w

w
.m

ie
nt

er
pr

is
e.

or
g.

uk
/ 

) 
Th

ey
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 s
up

po
rt

 6
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 s

el
f-

em
pl

oy
m

en
t w

ith
 2

 m
or

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 s

el
f-

em
pl

oy
ed

 s
ta

tu
s.

  
W

e 
ha

ve
 re

ce
nt

ly
 c

on
su

lte
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

. 
Th

ey
 w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

at
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 (s

uc
h 

as
 th

os
e 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
ab

ov
e)

 
th

at
 w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

id
 th

em
 to

 g
et

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t. 
Th

ey
 a

ls
o 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 in

 th
e 

pa
st

 s
om

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 w
or

ki
ng

 s
ch

em
es

 th
at

 h
ad

 
no

w
 fi

ni
sh

ed
. 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

a 
“c

le
ar

 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

to
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t”

 –
 th

is
 is

 a
 

m
in

im
um

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 

G
re

en
 o

r A
m

be
r t

he
re

fo
re

 a
 

RE
D

 

110



Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 8
 

 B6
 

 
Th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
 d

ur
in

g 
20

13
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y.
 N

ew
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t w
ith

 a
 fo

cu
s 

on
 q

ua
lit

y.
 A

ll 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

rs
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 s

ig
n 

up
 to

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

D
ig

ni
ty

 in
 C

ar
e 

ch
ar

te
r.

 
O

ur
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Sc

he
du

le
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 

cl
ea

r s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r g
ai

ni
ng

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r e
xp

er
ie

nc
es

 o
f t

ho
se

 
se

rv
ic

es
. W

e 
al

so
 h

av
e 

an
 a

nn
ua

l p
la

n 
of

 h
ow

 c
us

to
m

er
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 w
ill

 b
e 

so
ug

ht
 a

nd
 h

ow
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

fe
d 

ba
ck

 to
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s.

 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 w
ith

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t.

 W
e 

al
so

 a
sk

 fo
r e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t T

he
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

us
es

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
of

 g
ai

n 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 a

 c
ro

ss
 s

ec
tio

n 
of

 
cu

st
om

er
s.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 a
 c

le
ar

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

le
ad

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
an

d 
al

l p
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
up

 to
 d

at
e 

pe
rs

on
 c

en
tr

ed
 c

ar
e 

pl
an

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
sy

st
em

at
ic

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 d

em
an

d,
 s

er
vi

ce
 s

ho
rt

fa
lls

 a
nd

 c
us

to
m

er
 

un
m

et
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s.
 

Cu
st

om
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f a

pp
ra

is
al

 fo
r 

ke
y 

st
af

f. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, r
ev

ie
w

s 
of

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

ut
co

m
es

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
an

d 
be

tt
er

 ri
sk

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

 
Th

is
 ra

tin
g 

is
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 
as

ke
d 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ar

er
s 

Su
pp

or
t, 

w
ho

 w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 s
ur

ve
y 

a 
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 c
as

es
 w

he
re

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
ca

re
r h

ad
 b

ot
h 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

D
es

pi
te

 th
is

 o
nl

y 
be

in
g 

a 
sm

al
l s

am
pl

e,
 

th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f r

es
po

ns
es

.  
O

ve
r h

al
f o

f 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
sa

id
 th

at
 a

gr
ee

d 
th

at
 a

ll 
or

 m
os

t 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

tr
ea

te
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 c

om
pa

ss
io

n,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 

an
d 

re
sp

ec
t.

  T
he

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

w
ho

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
no

t t
re

at
ed

 w
ith

 c
om

pa
ss

io
n,

 d
ig

ni
ty

 
an

d 
re

sp
ec

t d
id

, i
n 

so
m

e 
ca

se
s,

 s
ug

ge
st

 th
at

 th
e 

la
ck

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 fu
nd

in
g 

w
as

 th
e 

ca
us

e 
fo

r 
th

is
. 

W
e 

al
so

 h
av

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 c

on
su

lte
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r 

G
ro

up
. T

he
 g

ro
up

 a
gr

ee
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 b

e 
se

lf-
ad

vo
ca

te
s,

 h
ad

 c
irc

le
 o

f 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

nd
, i

f r
eq

ui
re

d,
 c

ou
ld

 a
cc

es
s 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

dv
oc

ac
y.

 

Th
is

 y
ea

r w
e 

w
er

e 
re

lia
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

op
in

io
ns

 o
f c

ar
er

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

th
em

se
lv

es
.  

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 re

m
ai

n 
a 

gr
ee

n 
fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 h
ad

 
to

 a
gr

ee
 th

at
 a

ll 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

tr
ea

t p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
co

m
pa

ss
io

n,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 a

nd
 

re
sp

ec
t. 

A
s 

th
ey

 d
id

 n
ot

 a
gr

ee
 w

e 
ca

n 
on

ly
 b

e 
an

 A
m

be
r  

 

B8
 

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 s

pe
ci

fic
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 w
he

re
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
an

d 
w

hi
st

le
 

bl
ow

in
g 

ha
ve

 c
ha

ng
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 M

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 
gi

ve
n 

as
su

ra
nc

es
 o

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

of
 w

hi
st

le
 b

lo
w

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s.

 
A 

w
hi

st
le

 b
lo

w
in

g 
cl

au
se

 is
 w

rit
te

n 
in

to
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 o
ur

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
. R

es
id

en
tia

l A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 s
ta

te
 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 a

ll 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

an
d 

en
ac

tm
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 w
hi

st
le

 b
lo

w
in

g.
 T

he
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

Re
vi

ew
 te

am
 a

ls
o 

as
k 

ab
ou

t 
W

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
on

 th
ei

r m
on

ito
rin

g 
vi

si
ts

 o
f t

he
se

 

 
Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
23

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

Ad
ul

ts
 S

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 in

 2
01

3/
14

.  
As

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s,
 c

ha
ng

es
 

to
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

er
e 

m
ad

e.
 O

ne
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

ex
am

pl
e 

w
as

 a
 S

up
po

rt
ed

 L
iv

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
y 

w
he

re
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
fr

om
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l 
w

or
ke

rs
, a

 n
ew

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
w

as
 d

ra
w

n 
in

 c
o-

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
w

ith
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

us
er

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
as

 fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

a 
co

-p
ro

du
ce

d 
re

te
nd

er
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
aw

 a
 n

ew
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r t
ak

e 
ov

er
.  

W
e 

al
so

 h
av

e 
a 

ro
lli

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 q
ua

lit
y 

To
 b

e 
gr

ee
n 

“9
0%

 o
r m

or
e 

of
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ca
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 

us
e 

se
rv

ic
es

,”
  

A
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 o
nl

y 
au

di
te

d 
84

%
 w

e 
ha

ve
 to

 b
e 

A
m

be
r  

111



Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 8
 

 

pr
ov

id
er

s.
 F

or
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 D
om

ic
ili

ar
y 

Ca
re

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s,

 th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 In

te
re

st
 D

is
cl

os
ur

e 
Ac

t 1
99

8 
w

hi
ch

 
co

ve
rs

 W
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

is
 o

n 
th

e 
lis

t o
f r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, w

ith
in

 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
, w

hi
ch

 th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
ha

ve
 to

 a
dh

er
e 

to
. 

H
av

in
g 

a 
W

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r n

ew
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

Re
vi

ew
 te

am
 re

vi
ew

 th
is

 d
ur

in
g 

th
ei

r v
is

its
. 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
.  

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 8

4%
 o

f L
D

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 w

er
e 

au
di

te
d 

in
 2

01
3/

14
  

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t t
er

m
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

, c
om

pl
ai

nt
s,

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 w

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 W
he

re
 h

av
e 

w
e 

do
ne

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 in
 2

01
3?

 
 A2

, B
4,

 B
5,

 B
7,

 C
1,

 C
2,

 C
3,

 C
7,

 C
8 

 
 

20
14

 W
ha

t h
av

e 
w

e 
sa

id
? 

N
ot

es
  

A2
 

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 u

p-
to

-d
at

e 
re

co
rd

s 
of

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f p

at
ie

nt
s 

w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
pr

ac
tic

e 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

re
le

va
nt

 
co

m
or

bi
di

tie
s.

 D
is

ea
se

-s
pe

ci
fic

 re
vi

ew
s 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Q

O
F 

an
d 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 s
co

re
 v

er
y 

hi
gh

 in
 

th
e 

cl
in

ic
al

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Q

O
F.

 
W

e 
do

 c
ol

le
ct

 d
at

a 
fo

r p
re

va
le

nc
e 

of
 a

ll 
4 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
in

 a
ll 

pr
ac

tic
es

 in
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
op

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

in
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 L
D

. 
W

e 
in

te
nd

 to
 c

ol
le

ct
 s

pe
ci

fic
 o

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
  

H
ow

ev
er

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 fo
r t

hi
s 

SA
F 

w
e 

on
ly

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
 R

ed
 ra

g 
ra

tin
g 

as
 w

e 
ha

ve
 n

o 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
da

ta
 w

ith
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

th
at

 d
o 

no
t h

av
e 

a 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

. 
W

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 h

av
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
LD

 U
se

r G
ro

up
. T

he
y 

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

ha
ve

 g
oo

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 G

P’
s 

cl
in

ic
s 

an
d 

ph
ar

m
ac

ie
s.

 T
he

y 
ha

ve
 h

ad
 re

ce
nt

 h
ea

lth
 c

he
ck

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 h

ea
lth

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s.
 M

os
t h

av
e 

ho
sp

ita
l p

as
sp

or
ts

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

 m
ed

ic
al

 s
ta

ff
 s

ho
ul

d 
th

ey
 b

e 
ad

m
itt

ed
 to

 
ho

sp
ita

l 

W
e 

ne
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

da
ta

 to
 b

e 
Am

be
r o

r G
re

en
 –

 w
e 

do
 n

ot
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
Re

d 

B4
 

 
Fu

rt
he

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
ee

n 
to

 th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r a
ll 

cl
ie

nt
s 

du
rin

g 
20

13
/1

4.
  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

Ad
ul

ts
 B

oa
rd

 (H
SA

B)
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 w

or
k 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 a

 n
ew

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t c

ha
ir 

fo
r t

he
 g

ro
up

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
.  

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g,

 th
er

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 g
ro

up
 lo

ok
in

g 
to

 fu
rt

he
r  

im
pr

ov
e 

th
es

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

, i
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
an

d 
em

be
dd

in
g 

‘M
ak

in
g 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 P
er

so
na

l’ 
an

d 
al

so
 

en
su

rin
g 

Ca
re

 A
ct

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

  T
he

re
 w

as
 a

 s
m

al
l i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

le
rt

s 
ra

is
ed

 fo
r L

D
 c

lie
nt

s 
du

rin
g 

20
13

/1
4 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 th
es

e 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
to

 re
fe

rr
al

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

  T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 s
ug

ge
st

 th
at

 re
po

rt
in

g 
of

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
fo

r c
lie

nt
s 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

is
 b

ec
om

in
g 

m
or

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 c

on
su

lte
d 

w
ith

 L
D

 U
se

rs
 w

ho
 fe

lt 
th

at
 th

er
e 

w
as

 g
oo

d 
su

pp
or

t a
ro

un
d 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

, t
ha

t t
he

y 
ha

d 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 s
af

e 
pl

ac
es

 

W
e 

ar
e 

as
ke

d 
to

 s
ay

 th
at

 
“C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 
ro

bu
st

, t
ra

ns
pa

re
nt

 a
nd

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 

ov
er

se
en

 b
y 

a 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

Ad
ul

ts
 B

oa
rd

…
” 

as
 th

is
 

re
sp

on
se

 w
as

 s
up

pl
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 T

ea
m

 th
is

 
sh

ou
ld

 re
m

ai
n 

an
 A

m
be

r  
B5

 
 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f t

ra
in

in
g 

ev
en

ts
 th

at
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

th
e 

di
re

ct
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

, c
ar

er
’s

 a
nd

 
fa

m
ili

es
 in

 p
re

se
nt

in
g 

an
d 

ta
lk

in
g 

to
 s

ta
ff

 fr
om

 th
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

Te
am

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

st
af

f f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
Ad

ul
t W

el
lb

ei
ng

. T
he

re
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 a
 re

-f
oc

us
in

g 
of

 th
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 w
hi

ch
 n

ow
 h

as
 a

 
fa

r g
re

at
er

 n
um

be
r o

f i
ts

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 a
re

 ‘e
xp

er
ts

 b
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e’
 

To
 b

e 
gr

ee
n 

w
e 

ar
e 

as
ke

d 
to

 
sh

ow
 th

at
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 

112



Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 8
 

 

In
 fu

tu
re

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

e 
m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 th

ei
r c

ar
er

’s
 a

nd
 fa

m
ily

 in
 

re
cr

ui
tin

g 
st

af
f t

o 
th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 T
ea

m
. 

W
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 h
av

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

. T
he

y 
w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 th

ey
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 s
ta

ff
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. A
n 

LD
 d

ra
m

a 
gr

ou
p 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 lo
ok

in
g 

in
to

 m
ak

e 
a 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 D
VD

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
w

id
er

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 tr

an
sp

or
t c

om
pa

ni
es

 o
r s

ho
ps

 to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
. 

fa
m

ili
es

 in
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

O
ur

 r
es

po
ns

e 
do

es
 n

ot
 

in
di

ca
te

 th
is

 s
o 

it
 r

em
ai

ns
 a

n 
A

m
be

r  

B7
 

 
W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ou

r o
ve

ra
rc

hi
ng

 L
D

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

ou
r s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
fo

r L
D

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t,
 L

D
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

, A
ut

is
m

 a
nd

 L
D

 h
ou

si
ng

. W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
of

 o
ur

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

re
 u

p 
to

 
da

te
 a

nd
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
. T

he
 ti

m
el

in
e 

fo
r c

om
pl

et
io

n 
re

co
gn

is
es

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f c
o-

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
lis

te
ni

ng
 to

 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r p

ar
en

t/
ca

re
rs

. E
qu

al
ly

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f s
ch

ed
ul

in
g 

an
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
to

 th
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

. T
he

 P
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

ro
ss

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
an

d 
is

 a
 

bu
ild

in
g 

bl
oc

k 
to

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 B

et
te

r C
ar

e 
Fu

nd
. 

Ch
an

ge
s 

m
ad

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pa
st

 1
2 

m
on

th
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 tr
an

sf
er

rin
g 

of
 th

e 
D

ay
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 a

 n
ew

 p
ro

vi
de

r,
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

EI
A’

s.
  A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 p

la
nn

ed
 in

 2
01

3/
14

 fo
r t

ra
ns

fe
r o

f L
D

 d
ay

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 
Ap

ril
 a

nd
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

4,
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

   

To
 b

e 
gr

ee
n 

or
 a

m
be

r a
ll 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

an
d 

Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

re
 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

 
W

e 
ca

nn
ot

 s
ay

 th
at

 o
ur

 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

re
 u

p 
to

 d
at

e 
an

d 
in

 p
la

ce
 –

 
re

m
ai

n 
a 

Re
d 

 

C1
 

 
A 

Se
ct

io
n 

75
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t i
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

th
e 

Cl
in

ic
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
. T

he
 H

ea
lth

 
an

d 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd
 m

ee
ts

 re
gu

la
rly

 a
nd

 it
 o

ve
rs

ee
s 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Jo
in

t S
tr

at
eg

ic
 N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 (J
SN

As
) 

an
d 

Jo
in

t H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

(J
H

W
Ss

). 
 

O
ur

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 re
in

vi
go

ra
te

d.
 It

 m
ee

ts
 re

gu
la

rly
 a

nd
 it

s 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
co

ns
is

ts
 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

, c
ar

er
s,

 e
xp

er
ts

 b
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e,
 th

e 
CC

G
, s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, C
ou

nc
ilo

rs
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
St

af
f. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 
an

 a
ct

iv
e 

Au
tis

m
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 w
hi

ch
 a

ls
o 

ha
s 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

in
g 

co
-p

ro
du

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p.
 O

ur
 Jo

in
t 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

Bo
ar

d 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

e 
co

-c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
he

 in
te

nt
io

n 
is

 th
at

 th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

-p
ro

du
ce

d 
to

 a
ss

ur
e 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
w

ill
 d

is
til

 th
e 

ke
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 ‘V

al
ui

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
 a

nd
 ‘V

al
ui

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
N

ow
’ t

o 
en

su
re

 o
ut

co
m

es
 

ba
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 to
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g.
 

A
lr

ea
dy

 a
 g

re
en

 - 
N

o 
ne

ed
 to

 
up

ra
te

   
 

C2
 

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

Sa
fe

 P
la

ce
s 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 c

an
 g

o 
to

 fo
r h

el
p 

if 
th

ey
 fe

el
 

th
re

at
en

ed
.  

  S
af

e 
pl

ac
es

 a
re

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Ci
ty

, a
ll 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

N
ew

to
n 

Fa
rm

 a
nd

 
Ya

rp
ol

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 C
en

tr
es

.  
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
 C

ha
ng

in
g 

Pl
ac

es
 fa

ci
lit

y 
at

 th
e 

ne
w

ly
 b

ui
lt 

‘O
ld

 M
ar

ke
t’ 

sh
op

pi
ng

 c
om

pl
ex

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 p

la
ns

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
Ch

an
gi

ng
 P

la
ce

s 
fa

ci
lit

y 
at

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 u
pg

ra
de

d 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Le
is

ur
e 

Ce
nt

re
.  

O
n 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t w

e 
is

su
e 

co
nc

es
si

on
ar

y 
bu

s 
pa

ss
es

 to
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

D
 a

llo
w

in
g 

fr
ee

 tr
av

el
 o

n 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

to
 W

al
es

. A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

 fo
r p

as
s 

ho
ld

er
s 

w
e 

ca
n,

 o
n 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

of
 n

ee
d 

fr
om

 th
ei

r G
P'

s 
or

 o
th

er
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e,

 is
su

e 
Co

m
pa

ni
on

 P
as

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

na
bl

es
 a

no
th

er
 p

er
so

n 
to

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
 th

e 
pa

ss
 h

ol
de

r s
ho

ul
d 

th
ey

 
be

 u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

to
 tr

av
el

 a
lo

ne
.  

To
 b

e 
G

re
en

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

sh
ow

 “
Ex

te
ns

iv
e 

an
d 

eq
ui

ta
bl

y 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 h
av

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 

ad
ju

st
ed

 lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
 

se
rv

ic
es

, c
ha

ng
in

g 
pl

ac
es

 
an

d 
sa

fe
 p

la
ce

s,
 (o

r s
im

ila
r 

sc
he

m
es

), 
in

 p
ub

lic
 v

en
ue

s 
an

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 s

uc
h 

sc
he

m
es

 a
re

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

” 

113



Th
e 

LD
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
- C

om
pa

ri
ng

 2
10

3 
an

d 
20

14
 

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 8
 

 

W
e 

ca
n 

on
ly

 s
ho

w
 lo

ca
l (

no
t 

w
id

es
pr

ea
d)

 e
xa

m
pl

es
 s

o 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

n 
A

m
be

r  
 

C3
 

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
Co

un
ci

l a
nd

 it
s 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 E
qu

al
ity

 &
 H

um
an

 R
ig

ht
s 

Ch
ar

te
r.

 O
ne

 o
f o

ur
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, E
CH

O
, r

un
s 

an
 a

ct
iv

e 
th

ea
tr

e 
gr

ou
p 

– 
th

e 
‘A

bo
ut

 F
ac

e 
Th

ea
tr

e 
Co

m
pa

ny
’ -

 fo
r L

D
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

U
se

rs
. I

n 
Ju

ne
 o

f 2
01

4 
th

e 
co

m
pa

ny
, i

n 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
Bu

lm
er

s 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

he
ld

 a
 c

el
eb

ra
tio

n 
of

 
or

ch
ar

ds
 a

t L
yd

e 
Co

ur
t H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. T
hi

s 
co

ns
is

te
d 

of
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

s 
to

 a
n 

au
di

en
ce

 
of

 1
00

 p
lu

s.
  

Th
e 

ne
w

 O
de

on
 C

in
em

a 
in

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 o
pe

ne
d 

O
ld

 M
ar

ke
t s

ho
pp

in
g 

co
m

pl
ex

 h
ol

ds
 A

ut
is

m
 F

rie
nd

ly
 s

ho
w

in
gs

 o
f 

fil
m

s 
on

 S
un

da
y 

M
or

ni
ng

s.
  

W
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 h
av

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

 w
ho

 fe
lt 

th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l t

he
at

re
 –

 th
e 

Co
ur

ty
ar

d 
- a

nd
 

th
e 

ne
w

 c
in

em
a,

 w
as

 g
oo

d 
an

d 
fe

lt 
th

ey
 w

er
e 

w
el

l s
up

po
rt

ed
 to

 a
tt

en
d 

th
es

e 
ve

nu
es

 

To
 b

e 
gr

ee
n 

w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

sh
ow

 “
Ex

te
ns

iv
e 

an
d 

eq
ui

ta
bl

y 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ha

vi
ng

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 
ad

ju
st

ed
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 e
tc

 “
 

G
re

en
 la

st
 y

ea
r 

– 
gr

ee
n 

ag
ai

n 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

C7
 

 
W

e 
in

vo
lv

e 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
in

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 o
ur

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
Bo

ar
d 

an
d 

ou
r A

ut
is

m
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

. W
e 

al
so

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 o
ur

 ‘M
ak

in
g 

It
 R

ea
l’ 

Bo
ar

d 
w

hi
ch

 e
ns

ur
es

 th
at

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
an

d 
un

de
rs

to
od

. A
n 

ex
am

pl
e 

of
 h

ow
 w

e 
ha

ve
 w

or
ke

d 
us

in
g 

a 
co

-p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

se
en

 a
t a

 lo
ca

l 
Su

pp
or

te
d 

Li
vi

ng
 fa

ci
lit

y 
w

he
re

 w
e 

w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
n,

 in
te

rv
ie

w
 c

on
tr

ac
to

rs
, a

w
ar

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 a

nd
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

th
e 

m
ob

ili
sa

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 re

ce
nt

ly
 c

on
su

lte
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

. T
he

 G
ro

up
 w

er
e 

al
l a

bl
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

at
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

ci
rc

le
 o

f s
up

po
rt

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

ei
r c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t p

la
ns

. P
eo

pl
e 

di
d 

no
t a

lw
ay

s 
kn

ow
 w

ha
t t

he
 n

am
e 

of
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t w

as
 e

.g
. h

ea
lth

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 b
ut

 w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 e
xp

re
ss

 w
ha

t t
he

y 
di

d 
an

d 
ho

w
 th

ey
 d

id
 it

. 

To
 b

e 
G

re
en

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

sh
ow

 “
Cl

ea
r e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 c

o-
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
” 

W
e 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 s

ho
w

 s
om

e 
co

-p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

bu
t n

ot
 

un
iv

er
sa

l c
o-

pr
od

uc
ti

on
 –

 
re

m
ai

ns
 A

m
be

r  

C8
 

 
Th

is
 ra

tin
g 

is
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
sk

ed
 o

f H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ar
er

s,
 w

ho
 w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 s

ur
ve

y 
a 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 c

as
es

 w
he

re
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
 h

ad
 b

ot
h 

re
ce

iv
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  D

es
pi

te
 th

er
e 

on
ly

 b
ei

ng
 a

 v
er

y 
sm

al
l 

re
sp

on
se

 ra
te

 (f
iv

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
in

 to
ta

l),
 th

er
e 

w
as

 a
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f r
es

po
ns

es
.  

Tw
o 

of
 th

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

ha
pp

y 
th

at
 th

ei
r n

ee
ds

 w
er

e 
be

in
g 

m
et

 a
nd

 o
ne

 w
as

 n
ei

th
er

 s
at

is
fie

d 
no

r d
is

sa
tis

fie
d.

 T
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 tw

o 
w

er
e 

no
t 

sa
tis

fie
d 

th
at

 th
ei

r n
ee

ds
 w

er
e 

be
in

g 
m

et
.  

Fo
r t

he
se

 re
sp

on
de

nt
s,

 a
ga

in
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
er

e 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
is

su
es

; 
bo

th
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

fe
w

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

w
he

re
 c

ar
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 o
f s

ta
ff

in
g.

   

To
 b

e 
G

re
en

 “
M

os
t c

ar
er

s 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 th

ei
r n

ee
ds

 
w

er
e 

be
in

g 
m

et
” 

– 
ou

r 
H

CS
 

su
rv

ey
 o

nl
y 

sh
ow

ed
 “

M
os

t 
Ca

re
rs

 w
er

e 
sa

ti
sf

ie
d 

“ 
{N

ot
e 

– 
th

e 
H

CS
 s

ur
ve

y 
on

ly
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
5 

re
sp

on
se

s 
so

 
th

is
 is

 n
ot

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
al

ly
 s

ou
nd

 
– 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
n 

A
m

be
r  

 

114



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

TH
IS

 IS
 T

H
E 

TE
XT

 A
N

D
 F

IG
U

RE
S 

A
S 

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 O

N
 T

H
E 

PH
E 

SP
RE

A
D

SH
EE

T 
A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
 Jo

in
t H

ea
lt

h 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

20
13

/1
4 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
A

 –
 S

ta
yi

ng
 h

ea
lt

hy
. 

 
 

St
an

da
rd

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
on

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
A1

: L
ea

rn
in

g 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
Q

ua
lit

y 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

(Q
O

F)
 

re
gi

st
er

 in
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 

Th
er

e 
is

 c
on

ce
rn

 th
at

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

(L
D

) a
re

 u
nk

no
w

n 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
do

 n
ot

 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 g
et

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

th
e 

he
al

th
ca

re
 th

ey
 n

ee
d.

 T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r a

im
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

of
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

re
gi

st
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

eq
ui

ty
 o

f a
cc

es
s 

to
 

he
al

th
ca

re
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 A
ll 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
us

in
g 

th
e 

Q
O

F.
 L

oc
al

 d
at

a 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
sc

ru
tin

is
ed

 a
nd

 s
ys

te
m

s 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
in

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

ar
e 

pu
t o

n 
th

e 
Q

O
F 

re
gi

st
er

. 
M

ea
su

re
 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

LD
 re

gi
st

er
s 

re
fle

ct
 p

re
va

le
nc

e 
da

ta
 A

N
D

 d
at

a 
st

ra
tif

ie
d 

in
 e

ve
ry

 
re

qu
ire

d 
da

ta
 s

et
 (e

.g
. a

ge
 /

 c
om

pl
ex

ity
 /

 a
ut

is
m

 d
ia

gn
os

is
 /

 b
la

ck
 

an
d 

m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
ci

tie
s 

et
c.

). 

W
e 

ha
ve

 u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

re
co

rd
s 

of
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f p
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

in
 e

ac
h 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 D
ow

n 
Sy

nd
ro

m
e 

Re
gi

st
er

s 
re

fle
ct

 p
re

va
le

nc
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 
ar

e 
st

ra
tif

ie
d 

by
 c

om
pl

ex
ity

 a
nd

 a
ge

 /
 a

ut
is

m
 /

 e
th

ni
ci

ty
.  

 
LD

 re
gi

st
er

s 
re

fle
ct

 p
re

va
le

nc
e 

da
ta

 b
ut

 a
re

 n
ot

 s
tr

at
ifi

ed
 in

 e
ve

ry
 

re
qu

ire
d 

da
ta

 s
et

 (e
.g

. a
ge

 /
 c

om
pl

ex
ity

). 
 

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

on
 L

D
 re

gi
st

er
s 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
Q

O
F.

 
 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

A2
: F

in
di

ng
 a

nd
 

m
an

ag
in

g 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 

he
al

th
 c

on
di

tio
ns

: 
ob

es
ity

, d
ia

be
te

s,
 

ca
rd

io
va

sc
ul

ar
 d

is
ea

se
, 

ep
ile

ps
y 

Cu
rr

en
tly

 th
er

e 
is

 li
tt

le
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

om
pa

ra
tiv

e 
da

ta
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

no
n-

le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

op
ul

at
io

n,
 y

et
 w

e 
kn

ow
 th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ha

ve
 p

oo
re

r a
cc

es
s 

to
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 a
nd

 d
ie

 y
ou

ng
er

 th
an

 
th

ei
r n

on
-le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
er

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 la
ck

 o
f r

ob
us

t d
at

a 
fr

om
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

JS
N

A 
an

d 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

l-B
ei

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

ca
n 

be
 

in
fo

rm
ed

. T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r l

oo
ks

 a
t f

ou
r m

aj
or

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 h
ea

lth
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 (o
be

si
ty

, d
ia

be
te

s,
 c

ar
di

ov
as

cu
la

r d
is

ea
se

 a
nd

 e
pi

le
ps

y)
 to

 
en

ab
le

 lo
ca

lit
ie

s 
re

sp
on

d 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

to
 c

lin
ic

al
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 b
e 

in
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

po
si

tio
n 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 o

f r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

ad
ju

st
ed

 
he

al
th

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 
M

ea
su

re
  

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

W
e 

co
m

pa
re

 tr
ea

tm
en

t a
nd

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r a
ll 

fo
ur

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 

be
tw

ee
n 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 in
: t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

at
 lo

ca
l G

P 
le

ve
l. 

 

 
W

e 
co

m
pa

re
 tr

ea
tm

en
t a

nd
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
. 

 

115



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

 
N

o 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
da

ta
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 u

p-
to

-d
at

e 
re

co
rd

s 
of

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f p

at
ie

nt
s 

w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
pr

ac
tic

e 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

re
le

va
nt

 c
om

or
bi

di
tie

s.
 D

is
ea

se
-s

pe
ci

fic
 re

vi
ew

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
Q

O
F 

an
d 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 s
co

re
 v

er
y 

hi
gh

 in
 th

e 
cl

in
ic

al
 s

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Q
O

F.
 

W
e 

do
 c

ol
le

ct
 d

at
a 

fo
r p

re
va

le
nc

e 
of

 a
ll 

4 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

in
 a

ll 
pr

ac
tic

es
 in

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
in

 th
os

e 
w

ith
 L

D
. W

e 
in

te
nd

 to
 c

ol
le

ct
 s

pe
ci

fic
 o

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
  

H
ow

ev
er

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 fo
r t

hi
s 

SA
F 

w
e 

on
ly

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
 R

ed
 ra

g 
ra

tin
g 

as
 

w
e 

ha
ve

 n
o 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

da
ta

 w
ith

 th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
th

at
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e 
a 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
. 

W
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 h
av

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

. T
he

y 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

go
od

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 G
P’

s 
cl

in
ic

s 
an

d 
ph

ar
m

ac
ie

s.
 T

he
y 

ha
ve

 h
ad

 re
ce

nt
 h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 h
ea

lth
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s.

 M
os

t 
ha

ve
 h

os
pi

ta
l p

as
sp

or
ts

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

 m
ed

ic
al

 s
ta

ff
 s

ho
ul

d 
th

ey
 b

e 
ad

m
itt

ed
 to

 
ho

sp
ita

l 
 

St
an

da
rd

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
on

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
A

3:
 A

nn
ua

l h
ea

lt
h 

ch
ec

ks
 a

nd
 a

nn
ua

l h
ea

lt
h 

ch
ec

k 
re

gi
st

er
s 

IH
A

L 
w

ill
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 fo
r a

ll 
lo

ca
lit

ie
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

na
ti

on
al

 d
at

a 
so

ur
ce

.  
N

ot
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 lo

ca
lly

.  
M

ea
su

re
 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

80
%

 o
r m

or
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 o
n 

th
e 

G
P 

D
ES

 
Re

gi
st

er
 h

ad
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 h
ea

lth
 c

he
ck

. 
 

 
Be

tw
ee

n 
41

%
 a

nd
 7

9%
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 G

P 
D

ES
 

Re
gi

st
er

 h
ad

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
 

 

 
Fe

w
er

 th
an

 4
0%

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 o
n 

th
e 

G
P 

D
ES

 
Re

gi
st

er
 h

ad
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 h
ea

lth
 c

he
ck

. 
 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

A4
: S

pe
ci

fic
 h

ea
lth

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
ar

ge
ts

 
(H

ea
lth

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s)
 a

re
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 

th
e 

An
nu

al
 H

ea
lth

 C
he

ck
s 

in
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 

Th
e 

LD
 D

ES
 (2

01
3/

14
) g

ui
da

nc
e 

pu
ts

 th
e 

on
us

 o
n 

G
Ps

 to
 g

en
er

at
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l h

ea
lth

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

ar
ge

ts
 (h

ea
lth

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s)
 a

t 
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 h
ea

lth
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 a

nn
ua

l h
ea

lth
 c

he
ck

s 
an

d 
he

al
th

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

ar
ge

ts
 

(h
ea

lth
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s)

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

pe
rs

on
 c

en
tr

ed
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 in
di

vi
du

al
is

ed
 h

ea
lth

 o
ut

co
m

es
. T

hi
s 

in
di

ca
to

r p
ro

vi
de

s 
an

 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pr

im
ar

y,
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t c

om
m

un
ity

 te
am

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t w

hi
ch

 s
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 c

ar
e 

re
fe

rr
al

s.
 It

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

e 
pe

rs
on

 w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 (a
nd

 th
ei

r c
ar

er
, i

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

) w
ith

 a
 

cl
ea

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f ‘
w

ha
t n

ee
ds

 to
 h

ap
pe

n’
 o

ve
r t

he
 n

ex
t 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

70
%

 o
r m

or
e 

th
an

 o
f A

nn
ua

l H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

s 
ge

ne
ra

te
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

 

116



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

he
al

th
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
ar

ge
ts

 (h
ea

lth
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
). 

 
50

%
 - 

69
%

 o
f A

nn
ua

l H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

s 
ge

ne
ra

te
 s

pe
ci

fic
 h

ea
lth

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
ar

ge
ts

 (h
ea

lth
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
). 

W
e 

ha
ve

 u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

re
co

rd
s 

of
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f p
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

in
 e

ac
h 

pr
ac

tic
e 

ha
vi

ng
 a

 H
ea

lth
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 (H

AP
). 

Th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
is

 h
ig

h 
an

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

ud
ite

d 
ho

w
ev

er
 w

e 
ca

n 
on

ly
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 R

ed
 - 

N
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 th
e 

An
nu

al
 H

ea
lth

 C
he

ck
 a

nd
 

H
ea

lth
 A

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
.  

W
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 h
av

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

. T
he

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

ei
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 re

vi
ew

s.
 

 
Fe

w
er

 th
an

 5
0%

 o
f A

nn
ua

l H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

s 
ge

ne
ra

te
 s

pe
ci

fic
 h

ea
lth

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
ar

ge
ts

 (h
ea

lth
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
). 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

A
5:

 N
at

io
na

l C
an

ce
r S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 (b
ow

el
, b

re
as

t a
nd

 
ce

rv
ic

al
)  

   
  

IH
A

L 
w

ill
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 fo
r a

ll 
lo

ca
lit

ie
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

na
ti

on
al

 d
at

a 
so

ur
ce

.  
N

ot
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 lo

ca
lly

.  
M

ea
su

re
 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

Sc
re

en
in

g 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r t
he

 s
am

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

(+
 o

r –
 5

%
) o

f 
el

ig
ib

le
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
as

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

op
ul

at
io

n 
(2

3%
). 

 

 
Sc

re
en

in
g 

ta
ke

s 
pl

ac
e 

fo
r h

al
f t

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
or

 m
or

e 
of

 e
lig

ib
le

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
f 

sc
re

en
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 g
en

er
al

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 

 

 
Sc

re
en

in
g 

ta
ke

s 
pl

ac
e 

fo
r l

es
s 

th
an

 h
al

f t
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 e

lig
ib

le
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
ra

te
 o

f 
sc

re
en

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 g

en
er

al
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
or

 d
at

a 
un

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

A6
: P

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

of
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 s

ta
tu

s 
to

 o
th

er
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

H
ea

lth
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 s

ta
te

 th
at

 h
av

in
g 

no
 p

rio
r w

ar
ni

ng
 o

f s
om

eb
od

y’
s 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
 n

ee
ds

 re
su

lti
ng

 
fr

om
 th

ei
r d

is
ab

ili
ty

 p
re

ve
nt

s 
th

em
 fr

om
 b

ei
ng

 a
bl

e 
to

 fu
lly

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
ne

ed
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
. T

hi
s 

in
di

ca
to

r 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f s
ta

nd
ar

di
se

d 
lo

ca
l s

ys
te

m
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 p

ro
bl

em
. T

he
 p

at
ie

nt
 jo

ur
ne

y 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
tr

ac
ka

bl
e 

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ca
re

. B
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 s
ta

tu
s 

in
 th

e 
re

fe
rr

al
 w

ill
 g

iv
e 

no
tic

e 
to

 th
e 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
r e

na
bl

in
g 

th
em

 to
 m

ak
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 le
ad

 to
 a

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 D
N

A’
s,

 le
ng

th
 o

f s
ta

y 
an

d 
in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 re

pe
at

 a
tt

en
da

nc
es

. 
M

ea
su

re
 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

  
 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
ca

re
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 c
an

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
a 

sy
st

em
 fo

r i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

LD
 s

ta
tu

s 
on

 re
fe

rr
al

s 
ba

se
d 

 

117



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

up
on

 th
e 

LD
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

in
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 a

nd
 a

ct
in

g 
on

 a
ny

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
. T

he
re

 is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 b
ot

h 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 c
on

se
nt

 a
re

 in
he

re
nt

 to
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 
em

pl
oy

ed
. 

 
Th

er
e 

is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 a

 lo
ca

l a
re

a 
te

am
/c

lin
ic

al
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

w
id

e 
sy

st
em

 fo
r e

ns
ur

in
g 

LD
 s

ta
tu

s 
an

d 
su

gg
es

te
d 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 if

 re
qu

ire
d,

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 re

fe
rr

al
s.

 
Th

er
e 

is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 b
ot

h 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 c
on

se
nt

 
ar

e 
in

he
re

nt
 to

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

. 

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
he

al
th

 F
ac

ili
ta

to
r f

or
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ha

s 
 w

or
ke

d 
lo

ca
lly

 w
ith

 a
ll 

th
e 

G
P 

pr
ac

tic
es

  o
n 

th
e 

co
di

ng
 o

f L
ea

rn
in

g 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

pa
tie

nt
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

be
in

g 
gi

ve
n 

a 
st

an
da

rd
iz

ed
 c

od
e 

(9
18

e 
– 

O
n 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 re

gi
st

er
), 

th
is

 e
ns

ur
es

 th
at

 
w

he
n 

re
fe

rr
al

s 
an

d 
su

m
m

ar
ie

s 
ar

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

P 
pr

ac
tic

e 
it 

w
ill

 h
ig

h 
lig

ht
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

 h
as

 L
D

. 
Th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

he
al

th
 fa

ci
lit

at
or

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 h
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

 
‘H

os
pi

ta
l P

as
sp

or
t’

 th
at

 a
cc

om
pa

ni
es

 p
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ith
 L

D
 to

 h
os

pi
ta

l t
o 

hi
gh

lig
ht

 th
ei

r 
ne

ed
s 

so
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ad

e.
 S

om
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
ls

o 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 

ce
rt

ai
n 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f s
ta

ff
 fr

om
 a

cu
te

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 ra
is

e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 L

D
 a

nd
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 
m

ak
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 
 

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

lo
ca

l a
re

a 
te

am
/c

lin
ic

al
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

w
id

e 
sy

st
em

 fo
r e

ns
ur

in
g 

LD
 s

ta
tu

s 
an

d 
su

gg
es

te
d 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
re

fe
rr

al
s.

 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

A7
: L

ea
rn

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
lia

is
on

 fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 p

ro
ce

ss
 in

 
ac

ut
e 

se
tt

in
g 

In
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

 fo
r A

ll 
(r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
10

) t
he

 v
al

ue
 o

f a
dv

oc
ac

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 li

ai
so

n 
is

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
a 

cl
ea

r c
al

l f
or

 T
ru

st
 B

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ub

lic
ly

 re
po

rt
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 M
an

y 
Tr

us
ts

 h
av

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 li

ai
so

n 
nu

rs
es

 th
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

is
 m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 w
ay

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 li

ai
so

n 
fu

nc
tio

n 
ca

n 
be

 d
el

iv
er

ed
. T

hi
s 

in
di

ca
to

r s
ee

ks
 to

 e
xp

lo
re

 th
e 

fu
ll 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 li

ai
so

n 
fu

nc
tio

n 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

. O
f 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 is
 w

he
th

er
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ar
e 

ga
th

er
in

g 
an

d 
us

in
g 

H
ES

 d
at

a 
to

 in
fo

rm
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 o
n 

w
he

re
 th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 n

ee
d 

fo
r a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 fu

nc
tio

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

tr
en

ds
 a

nd
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 n
ee

d.
 

M
ea

su
re

 
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
  

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 fu
nc

tio
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 o
r e

qu
iv

al
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s,
 a

lig
ne

d 
w

ith
 k

no
w

n 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
ct

iv
ity

 d
at

a 
in

 th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 s
ite

s 
an

d 
th

er
e 

is
 b

ro
ad

er
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
bo

ar
d 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 fo

rm
al

 re
po

rt
in

g 
/ 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ro

ut
es

. 

 

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 li
ai

so
n 

fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

vi
de

r s
ite

s 
co

ve
re

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

. P
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

re
 n

ot
 y

et
 u

si
ng

 k
no

w
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 d

at
a 

to
 e

ff
ec

tiv
el

y 
em

pl
oy

 L
D

 li
ai

so
n 

fu
nc

tio
n 

ag
ai

ns
t d

em
an

d.
 

Cu
rr

en
tly

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
he

al
th

 fa
ci

lit
at

or
 g

oe
s 

so
m

e 
w

ay
 to

 fu
lfi

lli
ng

 th
is

 ro
le

 h
ow

ev
er

 it
 

is
 o

nl
y 

on
 a

n 
ad

 h
oc

 b
as

is
. 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
he

al
th

 fa
ci

lit
at

or
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
es

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 s

om
e 

st
af

f g
ro

up
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ho

sp
ita

l, 
i.e

. H
CA

s,
 S

tu
de

nt
 N

ur
se

s,
 P

ar
am

ed
ic

s,
 s

om
e 

w
ar

ds
 o

n 
a 

ne
ed

s 
le

d 
ba

si
s.

 

118



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 th
e 

ho
sp

ita
l p

as
sp

or
t s

ch
em

e 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 L
D

 in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

ho
sp

ita
l a

nd
 it

 is
 

al
so

 a
n 

in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 a

dm
is

si
on

 p
ap

er
w

or
k 

to
 a

sk
 if

 p
at

ie
nt

 h
as

 L
D

 a
nd

 if
 th

ey
 

ha
ve

 b
ro

ug
ht

 a
 p

as
sp

or
t w

ith
 th

em
. 

 
N

o 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 li

ai
so

n 
fu

nc
tio

n 
or

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 in
 o

ne
 o

r m
or

e 
ac

ut
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 tr
us

ts
 p

er
 s

ite
. 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

A8
: N

H
S 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 

pr
im

ar
y 

ca
re

: d
en

tis
tr

y,
 

op
to

m
et

ry
, c

om
m

un
ity

 
ph

ar
m

ac
y,

 p
od

ia
tr

y 

An
y 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

cc
es

se
d 

by
 a

 p
er

so
n 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 a
dj

us
t w

ha
t i

t d
oe

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
ad

di
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

. T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r c

ap
tu

re
s 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f w

he
re

 th
is

 is
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

 w
el

l i
n 

w
id

er
 p

rim
ar

y 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

nt
is

tr
y,

 o
pt

om
et

ry
, c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ha

rm
ac

y 
an

d 
po

di
at

ry
. I

n 
or

de
r f

or
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 to
 o

cc
ur

 ro
ut

in
el

y,
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ne
ed

 a
 

w
ay

 to
 b

ot
h 

re
co

rd
 th

e 
pa

tie
nt

s 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 s
ta

tu
s 

an
d 

de
sc

rib
e 

th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t r
eq

ui
re

d.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

4 
lis

te
d,

 N
O

T 
th

os
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

. 
M

ea
su

re
 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

Al
l p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
cc

es
si

ng
/u

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

 
kn

ow
n 

an
d 

pa
tie

nt
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
is

 c
ap

tu
re

d.
 A

ll 
of

 th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
pl

an
s 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t.
 

 

 
So

m
e 

of
 th

es
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
la

ns
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
Fo

r s
om

e 
of

 th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 d

en
tis

tr
y,

 w
e 

ar
e 

co
nt

en
t t

ha
t r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
an

d 
th

at
 p

la
ns

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. W

e 
ar

e 
st

ill
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
ot

he
r a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 p
od

ia
tr

y.
 T

he
re

 is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 s
om

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ca
n 

fla
g 

pa
tie

nt
s 

w
ith

 L
D

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

, t
hi

s 
is

 in
 G

P 
ca

re
 a

nd
 

de
nt

is
tr

y,
 b

ut
 th

is
 d

oe
s 

no
t h

ow
ev

er
 a

s 
ye

t r
ea

ch
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l P
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 
W

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 h

av
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
LD

 U
se

r G
ro

up
 a

nd
 th

ey
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
po

si
tiv

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 o
f u

si
ng

 d
en

tis
tr

y,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
lin

ic
s 

an
d 

ph
ar

m
ac

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 

an
d 

th
ey

 fe
el

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
th

ei
r n

ee
ds

 m
et

 in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s.
  

 
Pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

cc
es

si
ng

/u
si

ng
 th

es
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 
no

t f
la

gg
ed

 o
r i

de
nt

ifi
ed

. T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 c
ar

e.
 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

A9
: O

ff
en

de
r h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
th

e 
Cr

im
in

al
 Ju

st
ic

e 
Sy

st
em

 

Ev
id

en
ce

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
7%

 o
f t

he
 p

ris
on

 p
op

ul
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 a
 g

re
at

er
 n

um
be

r i
n 

th
e 

cr
im

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 h

av
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 It
 is

 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

he
se

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ha
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ga
th

er
ed

 fr
om

 lo
ca

l c
rim

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
s 

on
 p

re
va

le
nc

e 
w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 re

ga
rd

in
g:

 
• 

W
ha

t i
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 

119



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

• 
En

su
rin

g 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
Th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r c

ap
tu

re
s 

lo
ca

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
da

ta
 a

bo
ut

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

in
 p

ris
on

 a
nd

 th
e 

cr
im

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 

an
d 

ho
w

 th
ei

r h
ea

lth
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
. 

M
ea

su
re

 
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
  

 
Lo

ca
l C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
ha

ve
 a

nd
 a

ct
 o

n 
da

ta
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 
an

d 
pr

ev
al

en
ce

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 in

 th
e 

cr
im

in
al

 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

. 
• 

Lo
ca

l c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ha
ve

 a
 w

or
ki

ng
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 

re
gi

on
al

, s
pe

ci
al

is
t p

ris
on

 h
ea

lth
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
AN

D
 

• 
Th

er
e 

is
 g

oo
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 h
ea

lth
 n

ee
ds

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

D
 in

 lo
ca

l p
ris

on
s 

an
d 

w
id

er
 c

rim
in

al
 ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

 a
nd

 
a 

cl
ea

r p
la

n 
ab

ou
t h

ow
 s

uc
h 

ne
ed

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

m
et

 A
N

D
 

• 
Pr

is
on

er
s 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

w
ith

 L
D

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
an

 a
nn

ua
l 

he
al

th
 c

he
ck

 w
hi

ch
 g

en
er

at
es

 a
 h

ea
lth

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

, o
r a

re
 

sc
he

du
le

d 
to

 h
av

e 
on

e 
in

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

6 
m

on
th

s 
AN

D
 

• 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 1
00

%
 o

f a
ll 

ca
re

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
rs

on
al

 
bu

dg
et

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

t l
ea

st
 a

nn
ua

lly
. 

 

 
In

 th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

(o
r e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

) a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ag
re

ed
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 L

D
 in

 
al

l o
ff

en
de

r h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

e.
g.

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
. O

ff
en

de
r h

ea
lth

 te
am

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
LD

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 k

no
w

 h
ow

 b
es

t t
o 

su
pp

or
t i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
he

al
th

 n
ee

ds
 A

N
D

 T
he

re
 is

 e
as

y 
re

ad
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cr

im
in

al
 ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

 

 

 
Th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
sy

st
em

at
ic

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 d

at
a 

ab
ou

t t
he

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 L

D
 in

 th
e 

cr
im

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
. T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
sy

st
em

at
ic

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r s
ta

ff
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
cr

im
in

al
 ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

. T
he

 lo
ca

l o
ff

en
de

r h
ea

lth
 te

am
 d

oe
s 

no
t y

et
 h

av
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
ne

ed
s 

of
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 d

oe
s 

no
t h

av
e 

a 
pr

is
on

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 it

s 
bo

un
da

rie
s.

 W
e 

do
 h

ow
ev

er
 

ha
ve

 a
n 

LD
 p

ris
on

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
se

ns
e 

th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 L

D
 p

la
ce

d 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
co

un
ty

 fo
r c

rim
in

al
 ju

st
ic

e 
pu

rp
os

es
. W

e 
kn

ow
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 L

D
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

YO
T 

sy
st

em
. W

e 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

se
 p

eo
pl

e 
ho

w
ev

er
 w

e 
ar

e 
at

 th
is

 ti
m

e 
un

ab
le

 to
 s

ay
 w

ith
 c

er
ta

in
ty

 th
at

 s
ta

ff
 w

he
re

 o
ur

 re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
pl

ac
ed

 d
o 

un
de

rg
o 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

r t
ha

t t
he

y 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t r

eg
ul

ar
 re

vi
ew

s.
  

 
  

120



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

Jo
in

t H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
20

13
/1

4 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

B 
– 

St
ay

in
g 

sa
fe

 
 

St
an

da
rd

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
on

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
B1

: I
nd

iv
id

ua
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
pa

ck
ag

e 
re

vi
ew

s 

Re
gu

la
r C

ar
e 

Re
vi

ew
 –

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 a
bo

ut
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 in
 a

ll 
ca

se
s 

w
he

re
 a

 p
er

so
n 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 is
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

ca
re

 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

be
hi

nd
 th

is
 s

up
po

rt
 a

re
 re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 a
 c

o-
pr

od
uc

tiv
e 

an
d 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
w

ay
. 

M
ea

su
re

 
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

kn
ow

 th
at

 a
ll 

fu
nd

ed
 in

di
vi

du
al

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l l

ife
 s

ta
ge

s 
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 re

gu
la

rly
. 

 

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 1
00

%
 o

f a
ll 

ca
re

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
rs

on
al

 b
ud

ge
ts

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

12
 m

on
th

s 
ar

e 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
is

 s
el

f-
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 

 

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
t l

ea
st

 9
0%

 o
f a

ll 
ca

re
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pe

rs
on

al
 

bu
dg

et
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
12

 m
on

th
s 

ar
e 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 th

is
 s

el
f-

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

 

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 9

0%
 o

f a
ll 

ca
re

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
rs

on
al

 b
ud

ge
ts

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

12
 m

on
th

s 
is

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 s
el

f-
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 

D
ur

in
g 

20
13

/1
4,

 A
du

lts
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

58
5 

cl
ie

nt
s 

(R
AP

 P
1)

.  
O

f t
hi

s 
to

ta
l, 

40
0 

cl
ie

nt
s 

ha
d 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t,
 re

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t,

 s
up

po
rt

 p
la

n 
or

 re
vi

ew
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
nd

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 1
3 

ca
re

rs
 re

ce
iv

ed
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t/
re

as
se

ss
m

en
t,

 c
ar

e 
pl

an
 o

r r
ev

ie
w

.  
Th

is
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 b
el

ow
 ta

rg
et

, b
ut

 in
 2

01
4/

15
 w

e 
w

ill
 a

im
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

up
on

 th
is

 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f h

ig
h 

co
st

 p
la

ce
m

en
ts

 w
he

re
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 c
lie

nt
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

. 
W

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 h

av
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
LD

 U
se

r G
ro

up
 a

nd
 th

ey
 fe

lt 
th

ey
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

ei
r s

up
po

rt
 p

la
nn

in
g 

to
 s

et
 g

oa
ls

 a
nd

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

se
lf-

ad
vo

ca
cy

. T
he

y 
al

so
 

fe
lt 

su
pp

or
te

d 
an

d 
sa

fe
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

B2
: L

ea
rn

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 a
sk

s 
lo

ca
lit

ie
s 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 h

ow
 th

or
ou

gh
 th

ei
r c

on
tr

ac
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ar
e.

 T
hi

s 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

en
su

re
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 re

vi
ew

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

im
en

te
d 

by
 ro

bu
st

 c
on

tr
ac

t m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

M
ea

su
re

  
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
– 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
im

ar
ily

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 th

ei
r f

am
ily

 
ca

re
rs

.  

 

121



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 1
00

%
 o

f h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
: 1

) h
av

e 
ha

d 
fu

ll 
sc

he
du

le
d 

an
nu

al
 c

on
tr

ac
t r

ev
ie

w
s;

 2
) d

em
on

st
ra

te
 a

 d
iv

er
se

 
ra

ng
e 

of
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 o
ut

co
m

es
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
un

 a
nn

ou
nc

ed
 v

is
its

. E
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
re

gu
la

rly
 re

vi
ew

ed
 is

 re
po

rt
ed

 a
t e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

bo
ar

d 
le

ve
l i

n 
bo

th
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e.
 

 

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
t l

ea
st

 9
0%

 o
f h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

: 1
) h

av
e 

ha
d 

fu
ll 

sc
he

du
le

d 
an

nu
al

 c
on

tr
ac

t r
ev

ie
w

s;
 2

) d
em

on
st

ra
te

 a
 d

iv
er

se
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 o

ut
co

m
es

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

. 
Ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 re

vi
ew

ed
 is

 re
po

rt
ed

 a
t 

ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
bo

ar
d 

le
ve

l i
n 

bo
th

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e.
 

 

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 9

0%
 o

f h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
: 1

) h
av

e 
ha

d 
fu

ll 
sc

he
du

le
d 

an
nu

al
 c

on
tr

ac
t r

ev
ie

w
s;

 2
) d

em
on

st
ra

te
 a

 d
iv

er
se

 ra
ng

e 
of

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 o
ut

co
m

es
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
. 

84
%

 o
f l

ea
rn

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

vi
si

t t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t t

he
 

ye
ar

 A
pr

il 
20

13
 to

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4.

  T
he

se
 v

is
its

 in
cl

ud
ed

 g
ai

ni
ng

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
us

er
s 

an
d 

st
af

f t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

 q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ta

lk
in

g 
to

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
vi

si
t. 

W
e 

al
so

 c
on

du
ct

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 q

ua
lit

y 
se

lf-
as

se
ss

m
en

t.
 W

e 
w

or
k 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 w

ho
 c

om
e 

in
to

 o
ur

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Co
nc

er
ns

 p
ro

ce
ss

, c
ar

ry
in

g 
ou

t f
ur

th
er

 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 v
is

its
. W

e 
al

so
 re

ce
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ac

tiv
ity

 d
at

a 
fr

om
 o

ur
 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. T
hi

s 
is

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r a

gr
ee

d 
ba

si
s.

 
W

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 h

av
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
LD

 U
se

r G
ro

up
 w

ho
 fe

lt 
su

pp
or

te
d 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
w

ith
in

 th
ei

r a
nn

ua
l r

ev
ie

w
s 

bu
t a

ls
o 

fe
lt 

th
at

 g
re

at
er

 s
up

po
rt

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 h
el

p 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
s 

re
al

is
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 c
an

 a
sk

 fo
r a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

ir 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
sh

ou
ld

 
th

ey
 w

is
h 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

B3
: M

on
ito

r a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

 
 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 H
ea

lth
ca

re
 fo

r A
ll 

in
 2

00
8 

th
e 

Ca
re

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 (C
Q

C)
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f e

ss
en

tia
l 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r h
ea

lth
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 m

ee
t i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
as

su
re

 a
 m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 c

ar
e,

 to
 b

e 
of

fe
re

d 
to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 S
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 M
O

N
IT

O
R 

(t
he

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t r

eg
ul

at
or

 o
f F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
Tr

us
ts

 (F
T)

 a
do

pt
ed

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

in
to

 th
ei

r 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

 A
s 

th
es

e 
ar

e 
m

in
im

al
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

it 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 th
at

 a
ll 

FT
’s

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

es
e.

 T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

to
r n

ot
 o

nl
y 

se
ek

s 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
th

at
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

ca
se

 b
ut

 e
xp

ec
ts

 c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 g

at
he

re
d 

fr
om

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

is
 a

nd
 th

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 w

he
re

 tr
us

ts
 s

tr
iv

e 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
st

at
us

, c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 

at
ta

in
m

en
t o

f m
on

ito
r s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

122



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

M
ea

su
re

  
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 M
on

ito
r R

is
k 

As
se

ss
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

Tr
us

ts
 

 

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s 
re

vi
ew

 m
on

ito
r r

et
ur

ns
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 a
ct

ua
l 

ev
id

en
ce

 u
se

d 
by

 F
T’

s 
in

 a
gr

ee
in

g 
ra

tin
gs

. E
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
nd

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 n
on

-F
T’

s 
in

 th
ei

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 to

w
ar

ds
 m

on
ito

r c
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

 

Th
e 

2g
et

he
r F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
Tr

us
t i

s 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
, o

ld
er

 a
du

lts
 a

nd
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lt 

as
se

ss
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t l
ea

rn
in

g 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

he
al

th
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 tr

ea
tm

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s.

  W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

Tr
us

t 
(W

VT
) a

re
 n

ot
 a

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

Tr
us

t b
ut

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
al

l o
th

er
 a

cu
te

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 h

ea
lth

 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 n

am
ed

 le
ad

 fo
r L

D
 li

nk
 fo

r W
VT

 a
nd

 W
VT

 p
la

n 
el

ec
tiv

e 
ad

m
is

si
on

s 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s.

  W
VT

 h
av

e 
a 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 g
ro

up
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 a
cu

te
/L

D
 te

am
/c

ar
er

s/
PA

LS
/v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r a

nd
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 c
ou

nc
il.

  
Th

e 
ai

m
s 

of
 th

is
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 im

pr
ov

ed
 L

D
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
r a

nd
 c

ar
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 C
ar

er
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ar

er
s 

ch
ar

te
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 W

VT
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
ls

o 
a 

w
id

e 
us

e 
of

 H
os

pi
ta

l P
as

sp
or

t b
y 

LD
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 g

oo
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 it
s 

us
e 

by
 W

VT
 s

ta
ff

. F
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
or

k 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 L

D
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 is

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 in

 s
ta

ff
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 tr

us
t w

id
e 

is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

re
vi

ew
 m

on
ito

r r
et

ur
ns

 o
f F

T 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

 E
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 a

nd
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 n

on
-F

T’
s 

in
 

th
ei

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 m

on
ito

r c
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

 

 

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s 
do

 n
ot

 a
ss

ur
e 

th
em

se
lv

es
 o

f t
he

 o
n-

go
in

g 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
vi

a 
m

on
ito

r r
et

ur
ns

 fo
r e

ac
h 

FT
 O

R 
fo

r n
on

-F
T.

 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
Tr

us
t’

s 
po

si
tio

n 
in

 w
or

ki
ng

 
to

w
ar

ds
 m

on
ito

r s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 F

T 
st

at
us

. 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

B4
: A

du
lt 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

  
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 s
af

et
y,

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g.
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

W
in

te
rb

ou
rn

e 
Vi

ew
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 g
oo

d 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

e 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

fa
ilu

re
s 

an
d 

ris
ks

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

of
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
, b

ot
h 

in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 a
nd

 a
cr

os
s 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. T
hi

s 
m

us
t c

ea
se

. T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 a

sk
s 

lo
ca

lit
ie

s 
to

 ro
bu

st
ly

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 in

 a
ll 

pr
ov

id
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t. 
M

ea
su

re
  

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
As

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
.  

 
 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 ro

bu
st

, t
ra

ns
pa

re
nt

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 o

ve
rs

ee
n 

by
 a

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
Ad

ul
ts

 B
oa

rd
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
fr

om
 c

hi
ef

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
an

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 u

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

. 

 

123



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

Ev
er

y 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 p
ro

vi
de

r s
er

vi
ce

 h
as

 a
ss

ur
ed

 th
ei

r b
oa

rd
 

an
d 

ot
he

rs
 th

at
 q

ua
lit

y,
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
is

 a
 c

lin
ic

al
 a

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
rio

rit
y 

w
ith

in
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

he
re

 a
re

 c
on

tr
ac

tu
al

 c
la

us
es

 re
qu

iri
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 to

 
w

or
k 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 fo
ru

m
 w

or
k 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 th

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
ge

nd
a 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s 

fo
r a

nd
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 S
er

io
us

 C
as

e 
Re

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
Lo

ca
l L

ea
rn

in
g 

Fr
om

 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

Ex
er

ci
se

s.
 A

ss
ur

an
ce

 is
 re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 A
du

lts
 B

oa
rd

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 u

si
ng

 D
H

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
Ad

ul
ts

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
(S

AA
F)

 o
r e

qu
iv

al
en

t A
N

D
 re

po
rt

ed
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
of

 w
he

th
er

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
de

si
re

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

er
e 

m
et

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
. 

 
So

m
e 

Ev
id

en
ce

 o
f r

ob
us

t, 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

t a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 o

ve
rs

ee
n 

by
 a

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
Ad

ul
ts

 B
oa

rd
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
fr

om
 c

hi
ef

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
an

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 u

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

. 
So

m
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 e
ve

ry
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 p
ro

vi
de

r s
er

vi
ce

 h
as

 
as

su
re

d 
th

ei
r b

oa
rd

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s 

th
at

 q
ua

lit
y,

 s
af

et
y 

an
d 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
is

 a
 c

lin
ic

al
 a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

y 
w

ith
in

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

. T
he

re
 a

re
 c

on
tr

ac
tu

al
 c

la
us

es
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 to

 w
or

k 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
po

lic
y 

fo
r s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g.

 T
he

re
 is

 s
om

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
ct

iv
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 
fo

ru
m

 w
or

k 
ad

dr
es

si
ng

 th
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

ge
nd

a 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g.

 L
im

ite
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
is

 re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 A

du
lts

 B
oa

rd
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 u
si

ng
 D

H
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

Ad
ul

ts
 A

ss
ur

an
ce

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

(S
AA

F)
 o

r e
qu

iv
al

en
t A

N
D

 re
po

rt
ed

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

of
 w

he
th

er
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

de
si

re
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
f t

he
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 
of

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
er

e 
m

et
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

. 

Fu
rt

he
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ee
n 

to
 th

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r a

ll 
cl

ie
nt

s 
du

rin
g 

20
13

/1
4.

  H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

Ad
ul

ts
 B

oa
rd

 (H
SA

B)
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 w

or
k 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 a

 n
ew

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ch
ai

r f
or

 th
e 

gr
ou

p 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

.  
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g,
 th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
 g

ro
up

 
lo

ok
in

g 
to

 fu
rt

he
r  

im
pr

ov
e 

th
es

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

, i
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
an

d 
em

be
dd

in
g 

‘M
ak

in
g 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 P
er

so
na

l’ 
an

d 
al

so
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

Ca
re

 A
ct

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

  
Th

er
e 

w
as

 a
 s

m
al

l i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
le

rt
s 

ra
is

ed
 fo

r L
D

 c
lie

nt
s 

du
rin

g 
20

13
/1

4 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 th

es
e 

pr
og

re
ss

in
g 

to
 re

fe
rr

al
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

in
cr

ea
se

d.
  T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 

su
gg

es
t t

ha
t r

ep
or

tin
g 

of
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

fo
r c

lie
nt

s 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
is

 b
ec

om
in

g 
m

or
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
on

su
lte

d 
w

ith
 L

D
 U

se
rs

 w
ho

 fe
lt 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

as
 g

oo
d 

su
pp

or
t a

ro
un

d 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
, t

ha
t t

he
y 

ha
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
af

e 
pl

ac
es

 

 
Th

er
e 

is
 li

tt
le

 o
r n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f c
le

ar
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 
 

  

124



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

St
an

da
rd

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
on

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
B5

: S
el

f-
ad

vo
ca

te
s 

an
d 

ca
re

rs
 in

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
‘E

xp
er

ts
 b

y 
Ex

pe
rie

nc
es

’. 
A 

nu
m

be
r o

f b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
re

po
rt

s 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 w
he

n 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 L

oc
al

iti
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 fr
om

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 o

f r
ou

tin
el

y 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

in
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

M
ea

su
re

  
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t:

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t.

  
 

 
In

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 s

pe
ci

fic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
er

e 
is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 a
ll 

of
 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 in
 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t a

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
. C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
of

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ca
n 

pr
ov

id
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f c

on
tr

ac
tin

g 
fo

r l
ea

rn
in

g 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 (f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

as
 p

ar
t o

f D
is

ab
ili

ty
 E

qu
al

ity
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

). 

 

 
In

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 s

pe
ci

fic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
er

e 
is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 s
om

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 in

 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. C
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

of
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

n 
pr

ov
id

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f c
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

fo
r l

ea
rn

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 (f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
as

 p
ar

t o
f D

is
ab

ili
ty

 E
qu

al
ity

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
). 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f t

ra
in

in
g 

ev
en

ts
 th

at
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

th
e 

di
re

ct
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

s,
 c

ar
er

’s
 a

nd
 fa

m
ili

es
 in

 p
re

se
nt

in
g 

an
d 

ta
lk

in
g 

to
 s

ta
ff

 fr
om

 th
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
Te

am
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
st

af
f f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ts

 o
f A

du
lt 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
. T

he
re

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
be

en
 a

 re
-f

oc
us

in
g 

of
 th

e 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 w

hi
ch

 n
ow

 h
as

 a
 fa

r 
gr

ea
te

r n
um

be
r o

f i
ts

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 a
re

 ‘e
xp

er
ts

 b
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e’
 

In
 fu

tu
re

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

e 
m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t o

f s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 th

ei
r 

ca
re

r’
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 in

 re
cr

ui
tin

g 
st

af
f t

o 
th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 T
ea

m
. 

W
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 h
av

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

. T
he

y 
w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 

th
at

 th
ey

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 s
ta

ff
 re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. A
n 

LD
 d

ra
m

a 
gr

ou
p 

is
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 lo
ok

in
g 

in
to

 m
ak

e 
a 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 D
VD

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
w

id
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 

tr
an

sp
or

t c
om

pa
ni

es
 o

r s
ho

ps
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s.

. 
 

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t i

n 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 le
ve

ls
 o

f d
is

ab
ili

ty
 e

qu
al

ity
 tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

B6
: C

om
pa

ss
io

n,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 

an
d 

re
sp

ec
t.

 T
o 

be
 

an
sw

er
ed

 b
y 

se
lf-

ad
vo

ca
te

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 - 
ca

re
rs

  
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ca
n 

sh
ow

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f s

ta
ff

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
m

pa
ss

io
n,

 d
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 re
sp

ec
t a

nd
 c

om
es

 fr
om

 a
 v

al
ue

 b
as

ed
 c

ul
tu

re
. I

t i
s 

cl
ea

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
W

in
te

rb
ou

rn
e 

Vi
ew

 re
po

rt
 a

nd
 w

id
er

 
ev

id
en

ce
 fr

om
 S

ix
 L

iv
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

Co
nf

id
en

tia
l I

nq
ui

ry
 th

at
 c

om
pa

ss
io

n 
is

 c
or

e 
to

 th
e 

be
st

 c
ar

e 
fo

r p
eo

pl
e.

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 a

sk
s 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

to
 th

in
k 

ab
ou

t h
ow

 th
is

 c
an

 b
e 

as
su

re
d 

in
 a

ll 
ca

re
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

. T
hi

s 
is

 a
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
 b

ut
 it

 is
 fe

lt 
to

 b
e 

vi
ta

l t
ha

t a
ll 

ar
ea

s 
co

ns
id

er
 th

is
. I

n 
th

is
 y

ea
r’

s 
se

lf-
as

se
ss

m
en

t c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

125



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

th
at

 th
is

 q
ue

st
io

n 
is

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 b

y 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 u
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ily

 m
em

be
rs

. T
he

 re
as

on
 fo

r t
hi

s 
is

 th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 b
es

t 
pl

ac
ed

 to
 a

ns
w

er
 th

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
ei

r e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 T
hi

s 
qu

es
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
be

st
 a

ns
w

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 (o

r e
qu

iv
al

en
t)

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 o

f f
am

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
an

d 
se

lf-
ad

vo
ca

te
s.

  
M

ea
su

re
  

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
Fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

gr
ee

 th
at

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

tr
ea

t p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 c
om

pa
ss

io
n,

 d
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 re
sp

ec
t.

  
 

 
Fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

gr
ee

 th
at

 a
ll 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
do

. 
 

 
Fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

gr
ee

 th
at

 
so

m
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
do

. 
Th

is
 ra

tin
g 

is
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
sk

ed
 o

f H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ar
er

s 
Su

pp
or

t,
 

w
ho

 w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 s
ur

ve
y 

a 
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 c
as

es
 w

he
re

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
ca

re
r 

ha
d 

bo
th

 re
ce

iv
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  D

es
pi

te
 th

is
 o

nl
y 

be
in

g 
a 

sm
al

l s
am

pl
e,

 th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 
of

 re
sp

on
se

s.
  O

ve
r h

al
f o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 s
ai

d 
th

at
 a

gr
ee

d 
th

at
 a

ll 
or

 m
os

t p
ro

vi
de

rs
 

tr
ea

te
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 c

om
pa

ss
io

n,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 a

nd
 re

sp
ec

t.
  T

he
 re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 
th

at
 th

ey
 w

er
e 

no
t t

re
at

ed
 w

ith
 c

om
pa

ss
io

n,
 d

ig
ni

ty
 a

nd
 re

sp
ec

t d
id

, i
n 

so
m

e 
ca

se
s,

 
su

gg
es

t t
ha

t t
he

 la
ck

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 fu
nd

in
g 

w
as

 th
e 

ca
us

e 
fo

r t
hi

s.
 

W
e 

al
so

 h
av

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 c

on
su

lte
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

. T
he

 g
ro

up
 a

gr
ee

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 

ha
d 

be
en

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
lf-

ad
vo

ca
te

s,
 h

ad
 c

irc
le

 o
f s

up
po

rt
s 

an
d,

 if
 re

qu
ire

d,
 c

ou
ld

 
ac

ce
ss

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

dv
oc

ac
y.

 
 

Fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
an

d 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
gr

ee
 th

at
 fe

w
 

or
 n

o 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

do
. 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

B7
: C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 

im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 a

bo
ut

 h
ow

 e
ff

ec
tiv

el
y 

yo
ur

 lo
ca

lit
y 

as
se

ss
es

 a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

es
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

lo
ca

l a
nd

 h
ea

lth
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 w

ith
 c

le
ar

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 d

em
an

d.
 In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 E

qu
al

ity
 A

ct
 2

01
0 

du
tie

s 
ar

e 
m

et
. 

M
ea

su
re

  
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 fo

r s
up

po
rt

, c
ar

e 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
is

 th
e 

su
bj

ec
t o

f I
m

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
re

 c
le

ar
 a

bo
ut

 h
ow

 th
ey

 w
ill

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s.

  

 

 
Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 
an

d 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 u

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

. 
 

 
U

p 
to

 d
at

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

re
 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
 

126



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

 
N

ot
 a

ll 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 
pl

ac
e.

 
W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ou

r o
ve

ra
rc

hi
ng

 L
D

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

ou
r 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 fo

r L
D

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t,
 L

D
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g,

 A
ut

is
m

 a
nd

 L
D

 h
ou

si
ng

. W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

of
 o

ur
 Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
re

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
Th

e 
tim

el
in

e 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

io
n 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f c

o-
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

lis
te

ni
ng

 
to

 a
nd

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r p
ar

en
t/

ca
re

rs
. E

qu
al

ly
 th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f s

ch
ed

ul
in

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

to
 th

e 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
. 

Th
e 

Pl
an

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
ro

ss
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

an
d 

is
 a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
bl

oc
k 

to
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 B
et

te
r C

ar
e 

Fu
nd

. 
Ch

an
ge

s 
m

ad
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pa

st
 1

2 
m

on
th

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 tr

an
sf

er
rin

g 
of

 th
e 

D
ay

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 a
 n

ew
 p

ro
vi

de
r,

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
EI

A’
s.

  A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
ha

ng
es

 p
la

nn
ed

 in
 

20
13

/1
4 

fo
r t

ra
ns

fe
r o

f L
D

 d
ay

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 A
pr

il 
an

d 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
4,

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

   
 

St
an

da
rd

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
on

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
B8

: C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

le
ad

 to
 

ch
an

ge
s 

 
 

Th
is

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
re

qu
ire

s 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

th
at

 in
te

gr
at

es
 le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s,
 in

ci
de

nt
s,

 p
at

ie
nt

, c
ar

er
 

an
d 

st
af

f f
ee

db
ac

k 
w

ith
 w

id
er

 le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 n
at

io
na

l r
ep

or
ts

 a
nd

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 s

af
et

y,
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 F
ai

lin
gs

 b
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 to
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
ra

is
ed

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

at
 th

e 
ce

nt
re

 o
f t

he
 W

in
te

rb
ou

rn
e 

Vi
ew

 R
ev

ie
w

. E
vi

de
nc

e 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
f r

ob
us

t p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
 a

ss
ur

e 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

, q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 o
f p

eo
pl

e’
s 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
.  

M
ea

su
re

 
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

er
s 

ca
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 a
ll 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
ch

an
ge

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s,
 w

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

 
 

 
90

%
 o

r m
or

e 
of

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ca
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 

us
e 

se
rv

ic
es

, (
e.

g.
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s,
 s

ur
ve

ys
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
ch

ec
ki

ng
). 

Th
er

e 
is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
us

e 
of

 a
 w

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
po

lic
y 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. 

 

 
50

-8
9%

 o
f c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 
us

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, (

e.
g.

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s,

 s
ur

ve
ys

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

ch
ec

ki
ng

). 
Th

er
e 

is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

us
e 

of
 a

 w
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

po
lic

y 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 

Th
er

e 
w

er
e 

23
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
Ad

ul
ts

 S
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

in
 2

01
3/

14
.  

As
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s,
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
er

e 
m

ad
e.

 O
ne

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
w

as
 a

 
Su

pp
or

te
d 

Li
vi

ng
 fa

ci
lit

y 
w

he
re

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

fr
om

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
, a

 
ne

w
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
n 

w
as

 d
ra

w
n 

in
 c

o-
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

w
ith

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
us

er
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

as
 

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

a 
co

-p
ro

du
ce

d 
re

te
nd

er
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
aw

 a
 n

ew
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r t
ak

e 
ov

er
.  

W
e 

al
so

 h
av

e 
a 

ro
lli

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 q
ua

lit
y 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
.  

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
hi

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 8

4%
 o

f L
D

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 w

er
e 

au
di

te
d 

in
 2

01
3/

14
  

127



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t t
er

m
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo

r p
ro

vi
de

rs
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, c

om
pl

ai
nt

s,
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 a
nd

 w
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

.  
 

Le
ss

 th
an

 5
0%

 o
f c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 
us

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, (

e.
g.

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s,

 s
ur

ve
ys

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

ch
ec

ki
ng

). 
Th

er
e 

is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

us
e 

of
 a

 w
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

po
lic

y 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 

 

Pl
ea

se
 n

ot
e:

 D
at

a 
in

 re
la

ti
on

 to
 M

en
ta

l C
ap

ac
it

y 
A

ct
 a

nd
 D

ep
ri

va
ti

on
 o

f L
ib

er
ty

 w
ill

 b
e 

so
ur

ce
d 

fr
om

 n
at

io
na

lly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

da
ta

 s
et

s 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

w
ill

 
no

t n
ee

d 
su

bm
it

ti
ng

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

hi
s 

Se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t (

as
 it

 w
as

 in
 th

e 
20

12
/1

3 
ve

rs
io

n)
. 

Jo
in

t H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
20

13
/1

4 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

C 
– 

Li
vi

ng
 w

el
l. 

 St
an

da
rd

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
on

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
C1

: E
ff

ec
tiv

e 
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
  

 
Th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 lo

ok
s 

fo
r t

he
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 fo
rm

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

ac
e 

w
hi

ch
 fo

st
er

 th
e 

be
st

 jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s.
 In

fo
rm

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 w

el
co

m
ed

, a
s 

ar
e 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
ns

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
w

he
re

 th
es

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

si
gn

ed
 u

p 
to

 fo
rm

al
ly

 if
 n

ot
 y

et
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

M
ea

su
re

  
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e.

  
 

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

w
el

l f
un

ct
io

ni
ng

 fo
rm

al
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
Th

er
e 

is
 c

le
ar

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 s
in

gl
e 

po
in

t o
f h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
, j

oi
nt

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 o

r p
oo

le
d 

bu
dg

et
s,

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

te
am

s.
 

A 
Se

ct
io

n 
75

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t i

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
th

e 
Cl

in
ic

al
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

Th
e 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd
 m

ee
ts

 re
gu

la
rly

 a
nd

 it
 o

ve
rs

ee
s 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Jo
in

t 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 (J

SN
As

) a
nd

 Jo
in

t H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

(J
H

W
Ss

). 
 

O
ur

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 re
in

vi
go

ra
te

d.
 It

 m
ee

ts
 re

gu
la

rly
 

an
d 

its
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
co

ns
is

ts
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
, c

ar
er

s,
 e

xp
er

ts
 b

y 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e,

 th
e 

CC
G

, 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s,

 C
ou

nc
ilo

rs
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
St

af
f. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
n 

ac
tiv

e 
Au

tis
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
Bo

ar
d 

w
hi

ch
 a

ls
o 

ha
s 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

in
g 

co
-p

ro
du

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p.
 O

ur
 Jo

in
t 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

Bo
ar

d 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

e 
co

-
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

he
 in

te
nt

io
n 

is
 th

at
 th

is
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
-p

ro
du

ce
d 

to
 a

ss
ur

e 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

r o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

w
ill

 d
is

til
 th

e 
ke

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 ‘V

al
ui

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
 a

nd
 ‘V

al
ui

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
N

ow
’ t

o 
en

su
re

 o
ut

co
m

es
 b

as
ed

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 to
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g.
 

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

so
m

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f f
un

ct
io

ni
ng

 fo
rm

al
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

 

128



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. T
he

re
 is

 c
le

ar
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
• 

Si
ng

le
 p

oi
nt

 o
f h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

• 
Jo

in
t c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
/ 

or
 p

oo
le

d 
bu

dg
et

 
• 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

te
am

s 
 

Jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 h
as

 n
ot

 m
et

 e
ith

er
 o

f t
he

 a
bo

ve
 m

ea
su

re
s.

 
 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

C2
: L

oc
al

 a
m

en
iti

es
 a

nd
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
Th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 a

sk
s 

fo
r e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

br
oa

de
r s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 
co

m
m

un
ity

, r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t n
ee

ds
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

. I
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

he
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

by
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
of

 th
os

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

hi
ch

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 lo
ca

l a
m

en
iti

es
 a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 a

 w
ay

 
th

at
 m

ak
es

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 
M

ea
su

re
  

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

Ex
te

ns
iv

e 
an

d 
eq

ui
ta

bl
y 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 h

av
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 a
dj

us
te

d 
lo

ca
l 

tr
an

sp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s,
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

pl
ac

es
 a

nd
 s

af
e 

pl
ac

es
, (

or
 s

im
ila

r 
sc

he
m

es
), 

in
 p

ub
lic

 v
en

ue
s 

an
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 s
uc

h 
sc

he
m

es
 a

re
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
 e

ff
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 

 
Lo

ca
l b

ut
 n

ot
 w

id
es

pr
ea

d 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f a
ll 

of
 th

es
e 

ty
pe

s 
of

 
sc

he
m

es
. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
Sa

fe
 P

la
ce

s 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 c
an

 g
o 

to
 fo

r h
el

p 
if 

th
ey

 fe
el

 th
re

at
en

ed
.  

  S
af

e 
pl

ac
es

 a
re

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Ci
ty

, a
ll 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

N
ew

to
n 

Fa
rm

 a
nd

 Y
ar

po
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
tr

es
.  

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

 C
ha

ng
in

g 
Pl

ac
es

 fa
ci

lit
y 

at
 th

e 
ne

w
ly

 b
ui

lt 
‘O

ld
 M

ar
ke

t’ 
sh

op
pi

ng
 c

om
pl

ex
 

an
d 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 p

la
ns

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

Ch
an

gi
ng

 P
la

ce
s 

fa
ci

lit
y 

at
 th

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 u

pg
ra

de
d 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Le

is
ur

e 
Ce

nt
re

.  
O

n 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t w
e 

is
su

e 
co

nc
es

si
on

ar
y 

bu
s 

pa
ss

es
 to

 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 L
D

 a
llo

w
in

g 
fr

ee
 tr

av
el

 o
n 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
to

 W
al

es
. A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
 fo

r p
as

s 
ho

ld
er

s 
w

e 
ca

n,
 o

n 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
of

 n
ee

d 
fr

om
 th

ei
r 

G
P'

s 
or

 o
th

er
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e,
 is

su
e 

Co
m

pa
ni

on
 P

as
se

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
na

bl
es

 
an

ot
he

r p
er

so
n 

to
 a

cc
om

pa
ny

 th
e 

pa
ss

 h
ol

de
r s

ho
ul

d 
th

ey
 b

e 
un

su
ita

bl
e 

to
 tr

av
el

 
al

on
e.

  
 

Re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

le
ve

ls
 o

f s
up

po
rt

 in
 th

es
e 

sc
he

m
es

 d
o 

no
t 

re
ac

h 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
ab

ov
e.

 
 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

C3
: A

rt
s 

an
d 

cu
ltu

re
  

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 a
sk

s 
fo

r e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

nd
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
br

oa
de

r s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 

129



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

 
co

m
m

un
ity

, r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t n
ee

ds
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

. I
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

he
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

by
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
of

 th
os

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

hi
ch

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 lo
ca

l a
m

en
iti

es
 a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 a

 w
ay

 
th

at
 m

ak
es

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 
M

ea
su

re
  

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

Ex
te

ns
iv

e 
an

d 
eq

ui
ta

bl
y 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

ha
vi

ng
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 a

dj
us

te
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 to

 u
se

 a
m

en
iti

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

in
em

a,
 

m
us

ic
 v

en
ue

s,
 th

ea
tr

e,
 fe

st
iv

al
s 

an
d 

th
at

 th
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f s

uc
h 

ev
en

ts
 a

nd
 v

en
ue

s 
ar

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 e
ff

ec
tiv

el
y.

 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

Co
un

ci
l a

nd
 it

s 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

&
 H

um
an

 R
ig

ht
s 

Ch
ar

te
r.

 O
ne

 o
f o

ur
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, E
CH

O
, r

un
s 

an
 a

ct
iv

e 
th

ea
tr

e 
gr

ou
p 

– 
th

e 
‘A

bo
ut

 F
ac

e 
Th

ea
tr

e 
Co

m
pa

ny
’ -

 fo
r L

D
 S

er
vi

ce
 U

se
rs

. I
n 

Ju
ne

 o
f 2

01
4 

th
e 

co
m

pa
ny

, i
n 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

Bu
lm

er
s 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
he

ld
 a

 c
el

eb
ra

tio
n 

of
 o

rc
ha

rd
s 

at
 

Ly
de

 C
ou

rt
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. T
hi

s 
co

ns
is

te
d 

of
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

s 
to

 a
n 

au
di

en
ce

 o
f 1

00
 p

lu
s.

  
Th

e 
ne

w
 O

de
on

 C
in

em
a 

in
 th

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 o

pe
ne

d 
O

ld
 M

ar
ke

t s
ho

pp
in

g 
co

m
pl

ex
 h

ol
ds

 
Au

tis
m

 F
rie

nd
ly

 s
ho

w
in

gs
 o

f f
ilm

s 
on

 S
un

da
y 

M
or

ni
ng

s.
  

W
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 h
av

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

 w
ho

 fe
lt 

th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

th
ea

tr
e 

– 
th

e 
Co

ur
ty

ar
d 

- a
nd

 th
e 

ne
w

 c
in

em
a,

 w
as

 g
oo

d 
an

d 
fe

lt 
th

ey
 w

er
e 

w
el

l 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 a

tt
en

d 
th

es
e 

ve
nu

es
 

 
Lo

ca
l b

ut
 n

ot
 w

id
es

pr
ea

d 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
ha

vi
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 a
dj

us
te

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

es
e 

am
en

iti
es

. T
he

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 s
uc

h 
ev

en
ts

 a
nd

 v
en

ue
s 

ar
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
 e

ff
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 

 
Re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 o
f t

he
se

 a
m

en
iti

es
 d

o 
no

t r
ea

ch
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

 

  
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

C4
: S

po
rt

s 
an

d 
le

is
ur

e 
 

 
Th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 a

sk
s 

fo
r e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 a
nd

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

br
oa

de
r s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 
co

m
m

un
ity

, r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t n
ee

ds
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

. I
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

he
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

by
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
of

 th
os

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

hi
ch

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 lo
ca

l a
m

en
iti

es
 a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 a

 w
ay

 
th

at
 m

ak
es

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 
M

ea
su

re
  

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

Ex
te

ns
iv

e 
an

d 
eq

ui
ta

bl
y 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

ly
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 h
av

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 

ad
ju

st
ed

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 v
en

ue
s 

fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

us
e 

of
 lo

ca
l p

ar
ks

, l
ei

su
re

 c
en

tr
es

, s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

s 
an

d 
w

al
ki

ng
 

gr
ou

ps
. D

es
ig

na
te

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
at

or
s 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

ex
pe

rt
is

e 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 T
he

re
 is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

Th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 te
am

 p
hy

si
o 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t, 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

le
is

ur
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
ha

s 
w

or
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 in
cl

us
iv

e 
le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
ex

er
ci

se
 c

ho
ic

es
 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

D
 lo

ca
lly

. T
he

y 
al

so
 w

or
ke

d 
w

ith
 H

al
o 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

da
y 

on
 3

rd
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
4 

w
hi

ch
 s

aw
 o

ve
r 6

0 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

ts
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ta

ki
ng

 p
ar

t.
 It

 is
 h

op
ed

 to
 m

ak
e 

th
is

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 e

ve
nt

. 
Ad

di
tio

na
lly

, i
ns

pi
re

d 
by

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 2

01
2 

O
ly

m
pi

cs
 w

e 
ha

ve
 h

el
d 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 

130



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
ed

 e
ff

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 G
am

es
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 c
om

in
g 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 c

el
eb

ra
te

 
sp

or
tin

g 
an

d 
cu

ltu
ra

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
.  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 2
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 G

am
es

 w
as

 h
el

d 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
4 

It
 is

 p
la

nn
ed

 th
at

 fu
rt

he
r g

am
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 2

01
5.

  
W

e 
ha

ve
 re

ce
nt

ly
 c

on
su

lte
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

LD
 U

se
r G

ro
up

 w
ho

 fe
lt 

th
at

 th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

po
rt

s 
an

d 
le

is
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

er
e 

go
od

.  
Th

ey
 fe

lt 
su

pp
or

te
d 

an
d 

w
el

co
m

ed
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 
at

te
nd

ed
, b

ut
 th

ey
 fo

un
d 

th
at

 a
tt

en
di

ng
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
as

 s
om

et
im

es
 re

st
ric

te
d 

du
e 

to
 

lim
ite

d 
tr

an
sp

or
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

 
 

Lo
ca

l b
ut

 n
ot

 w
id

es
pr

ea
d 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
ha

vi
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 a
dj

us
te

d 
sp

or
ts

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 v
en

ue
s 

fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

us
e 

of
 lo

ca
l p

ar
ks

, l
ei

su
re

 
ce

nt
re

s,
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
po

ol
s 

an
d 

w
al

ki
ng

 g
ro

up
s.

 D
es

ig
na

te
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

at
or

s 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 e
xp

er
tis

e 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 T
he

re
 is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
 e

ff
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

  

 
Re

as
on

ab
le

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 o
f t

he
se

 a
m

en
iti

es
 d

o 
no

t r
ea

ch
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

C5
: E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t  

 
Th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 is

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t t
ha

t n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

th
e 

be
st

 c
ha

nc
e 

of
 g

et
tin

g 
a 

jo
b.

 E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 th

at
 fi

nd
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ix

 o
f s

up
po

rt
 

by
 m

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 a

nd
 d

at
a 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

ic
tu

re
 a

re
 im

po
rt

an
t. 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t l
in

k 
to

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r p

re
pa

rin
g 

fo
r a

du
lth

oo
d 

(C
6)

 w
he

re
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
an

d 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

sh
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 g
et

 
jo

bs
. 

M
ea

su
re

  
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

 
Cl

ea
r p

ub
lis

he
d 

lo
ca

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r s
up

po
rt

in
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

in
to

 p
ai

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t.
 R

el
ev

an
t d

at
a 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

co
lle

ct
ed

 a
nd

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 it
s 

ai
m

s.
 

 

 
Cl

ea
r p

ub
lis

he
d 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r s

up
po

rt
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
in

to
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t b

ut
 li

m
ite

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
im

s 
be

in
g 

m
et

 o
r o

ut
co

m
es

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

 

 
N

ot
 m

ee
tin

g 
ei

th
er

 o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 

W
e 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
 p

lo
t a

, e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t p
at

hw
ay

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

D
.  

A 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

ur
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
liv

in
g 

pr
ov

id
er

s,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 M

en
ca

p 
an

d 
EC

H
O

, s
up

po
rt

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
to

 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

w
or

k 
or

 s
ho

rt
 te

rm
 p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t s

ch
em

es
. W

he
re

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 h

as
 th

e 

131



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 m

ov
e 

in
to

 fu
ll 

tim
e 

w
or

k 
th

en
 th

e 
Sh

aw
 T

ru
st

 s
up

po
rt

 th
em

 to
 fi

nd
 a

nd
 

su
st

ai
n 

w
or

k 
of

 m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ve
r 1

6 
ho

ur
s 

pe
r w

ee
k.

   
An

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
of

 a
 lo

ca
l s

oc
ia

l e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 L
D

 to
 fi

nd
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t i

s 
th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 In
te

re
st

 C
om

pa
ny

; ‘
M

iE
nt

er
pr

is
e’

, (
se

e 
ht

tp
:/

/w
w

w
.m

ie
nt

er
pr

is
e.

or
g.

uk
/ 

) 
Th

ey
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 s
up

po
rt

 6
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 s

el
f-

em
pl

oy
m

en
t w

ith
 2

 m
or

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 

to
w

ar
ds

 s
el

f-
em

pl
oy

ed
 s

ta
tu

s.
  

W
e 

ha
ve

 re
ce

nt
ly

 c
on

su
lte

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
LD

 U
se

r G
ro

up
. T

he
y 

w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
at

 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 (s

uc
h 

as
 th

os
e 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
ab

ov
e)

 th
at

 w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
id

 th
em

 
to

 g
et

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t. 
Th

ey
 a

ls
o 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 in

 th
e 

pa
st

 s
om

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 e

ng
ag

ed
 in

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 w
or

ki
ng

 s
ch

em
es

 th
at

 h
ad

 n
ow

 fi
ni

sh
ed

. 
 

St
an

da
rd

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
on

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
 C

6:
 P

re
pa

rin
g 

fo
r a

du
lth

oo
d 

 
 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
tr

an
si

tio
ns

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

is
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
s 

a 
w

ay
 o

f a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

di
ff

ic
ul

tie
s 

co
nf

ro
nt

ed
 b

y 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
 a

t t
ra

ns
iti

on
. P

re
vi

ou
s 

re
se

ar
ch

 h
as

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
 k

ey
 

ne
ed

 a
t t

hi
s 

tim
e,

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

 ‘l
oc

al
 o

ff
er

’ w
ith

in
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
Ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
Fa

m
ili

es
 A

ct
 w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 th

is
.  

A 
fo

un
da

tio
n 

fo
r g

oo
d 

su
pp

or
t d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

fr
om

 c
hi

ld
ho

od
 to

 a
du

lt 
lif

e 
is

 c
o-

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 lo
ca

l p
la

ns
 a

nd
 h

av
in

g 
a 

so
un

d 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

ba
se

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
ne

ed
 to

 in
fo

rm
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

. T
hi

s 
de

sc
rip

to
r a

sc
er

ta
in

s 
if 

lo
ca

lit
ie

s 
ha

ve
 g

oo
d 

pl
an

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

lo
ca

lly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 m

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
in

g 
ad

ul
th

oo
d.

  
M

ea
su

re
  

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
/n

ot
es

 
 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 m

on
ito

re
d 

st
ra

te
gy

, s
er

vi
ce

 p
at

hw
ay

s 
an

d 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t a

cr
os

s 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e.
 T

he
re

 is
 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f c

le
ar

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
fo

r a
du

lth
oo

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

r f
un

ct
io

ns
 

th
at

 h
av

e 
jo

in
t h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

sc
ru

tin
y 

an
d 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
ac

ro
ss

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
ad

ul
t s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 re
gu

la
r m

ul
ti 

ag
en

cy
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 d
is

cu
ss

 a
nd

 p
la

n 
fo

r T
ra

ns
iti

on
s.

 M
ee

tin
gs

 
ar

e 
at

te
nd

ed
 b

y 
Ed

uc
at

io
n,

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

, A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
fr

om
 H

ea
lth

 a
ls

o 
in

vo
lv

ed
. T

he
 ‘L

oc
al

 O
ff

er
’ i

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
ils

 
w

eb
si

te
  

Th
er

e 
is

 a
ls

o 
a 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 fo
r T

ra
ns

iti
on

s 
th

at
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 th
e 

pa
th

w
ay

 to
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 

to
w

ar
ds

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 fr

om
 a

ge
 1

4 
on

w
ar

ds
. A

du
lts

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

ve
 a

 p
ar

t t
im

e 
so

ci
al

 w
or

ke
r 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Ad

ul
t L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

Te
am

 w
ho

 m
an

ag
es

 th
e 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
pa

th
w

ay
. S

he
 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
po

si
tiv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 a

cr
os

s 
Ch

ild
re

n’
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n.
 A

s 
su

ch
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 h
as

 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
gi

ve
n 

fo
r t

he
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
t o

f a
 fu

ll 
tim

e 
Se

ni
or

 P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 a
nd

 
an

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 S

oc
ia

l W
or

ke
r s

o 
th

at
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

an
 e

ve
n 

gr
ea

te
r f

oc
us

 o
n 

Tr
an

si
tio

ns
 

an
d 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 p
la

nn
in

g.
 A

ll 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
as

 th
ey

 
m

ov
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
du

lth
oo

d 
ta

ke
s 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
Pl

an
 (E

H
CP

). 
 

Th
er

e 
is

 s
om

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f c
le

ar
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

fo
r a

du
lth

oo
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 

132



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

or
 fu

nc
tio

ns
 th

at
 h

av
e 

jo
in

t e
du

ca
tio

n,
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

sc
ru

tin
y 

an
d 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
ac

ro
ss

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
ad

ul
t s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
 

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f c

le
ar

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
fo

r a
du

lth
oo

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

r 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 th

at
 in

cl
ud

e 
jo

in
t e

du
ca

tio
n,

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
sc

ru
tin

y 
an

d 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

ac
ro

ss
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

ad
ul

t s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

C7
: I

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t i

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

 
 

Th
is

 is
 a

bo
ut

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
rs

on
al

 b
ud

ge
ts

. T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 s

ee
ks

 to
 s

tim
ul

at
e 

ar
ea

s 
to

 c
on

tin
ua

lly
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 
an

d 
re

ly
 o

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 p

la
nn

in
g.

  

M
ea

su
re

  
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

 
Cl

ea
r e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 c

o-
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

he
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
us

e 
th

is
 to

 in
fo

rm
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 

 

 
Cl

ea
r e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 c

o-
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
 a

ll 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

 u
se

s 
to

 in
fo

rm
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 o
r n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f c
o-

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

W
e 

in
vo

lv
e 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 o

ur
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 o
ur

 A
ut

is
m

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
. W

e 
al

so
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

ar
e 

fu
lly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 o

ur
 ‘M

ak
in

g 
It

 R
ea

l’ 
Bo

ar
d 

w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

an
d 

un
de

rs
to

od
. A

n 
ex

am
pl

e 
of

 h
ow

 w
e 

ha
ve

 w
or

ke
d 

us
in

g 
a 

co
-p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

ca
n 

be
 s

ee
n 

at
 a

 lo
ca

l S
up

po
rt

ed
 L

iv
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

y 
w

he
re

 w
e 

w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s 

to
 d

es
ig

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 in

te
rv

ie
w

 c
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, 
aw

ar
d 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
nd

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
th

e 
m

ob
ili

sa
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 re
ce

nt
ly

 c
on

su
lte

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
LD

 U
se

r G
ro

up
. T

he
 G

ro
up

 w
er

e 
al

l a
bl

e 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
at

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r c
irc

le
 o

f s
up

po
rt

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

ei
r c

ar
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t p

la
ns

. P
eo

pl
e 

di
d 

no
t a

lw
ay

s 
kn

ow
 w

ha
t t

he
 n

am
e 

of
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t w

as
 e

.g
. h

ea
lth

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 b
ut

 w
er

e 
ab

le
 to

 e
xp

re
ss

 w
ha

t t
he

y 
di

d 
an

d 
ho

w
 

th
ey

 d
id

 it
. 

 
Th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 
fa

m
ili

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 c

o-
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g.

 

 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

 C
8:

 C
ar

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

ra
tin

g.
  

Co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
SA

F 
ra

is
ed

 a
 s

tr
on

g 
ca

ll 
fo

r f
am

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
to

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
a 

pl
ac

e 
to

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

ab
ou

t t
he

ir 
ne

ed
s 

in
 

133



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s.

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 a

sk
s 

fo
r e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
ar

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 n

ot
 o

nl
y 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g,
 b

ut
 

in
 w

id
er

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

as
 n

ot
 a

ll 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
ar

e 
kn

ow
n 

to
 o

r u
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
bu

t n
ee

d 
a 

vo
ic

e 
in

 
th

e 
sh

ap
in

g 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
.  

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 ra

te
d 

by
 fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
s.

 E
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f t
he

 fo
ru

m
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 d

o 
th

is
 a

re
 C

ar
er

s’
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

s,
 C

ar
er

s 
Ce

nt
re

s 
or

 lo
ca

l c
ar

er
 n

et
w

or
ks

. I
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
as

 w
id

e 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 fa
m

ily
 c

ar
er

s 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e.
  

• 
Th

is
 m

ea
su

re
 u

se
s 

a 
qu

es
tio

n 
in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l V

al
ui

ng
 F

am
ili

es
 F

or
um

: H
ow

 s
at

is
fie

d 
ar

e 
yo

u 
th

at
 y

ou
r n

ee
ds

 a
s 

a 
fa

m
ily

 c
ar

er
 a

re
 m

et
? 

• 
Co

ns
id

er
 c

ar
er

s’
 h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
s 

fr
om

 G
P’

s,
 c

ar
er

s’
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

re
le

va
nt

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 g
ui

da
nc

e/
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fr

om
 m

ai
ns

tr
ea

m
 a

nd
 c

ar
er

s’
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  
W

e 
w

ill
 w

an
t t

o 
kn

ow
 h

ow
 th

is
 q

ue
st

io
n 

w
as

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 a

nd
 h

ow
 m

an
y 

ca
re

rs
 w

er
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

M
ea

su
re

  
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

/n
ot

es
 

 
M

os
t c

ar
er

s 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 th

ei
r n

ee
ds

 w
er

e 
be

in
g 

m
et

. 
 

 
M

os
t c

ar
er

s 
w

er
e 

ne
ith

er
 s

at
is

fie
d 

no
r d

is
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 th

ei
r 

ne
ed

s 
w

er
e 

be
in

g 
m

et
. 

Th
is

 ra
tin

g 
is

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

sk
ed

 o
f H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ar

er
s,

 w
ho

 
w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 s

ur
ve

y 
a 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 c

as
es

 w
he

re
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
 h

ad
 b

ot
h 

re
ce

iv
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  D

es
pi

te
 th

er
e 

on
ly

 b
ei

ng
 a

 v
er

y 
sm

al
l r

es
po

ns
e 

ra
te

 (f
iv

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
in

 to
ta

l),
 th

er
e 

w
as

 a
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f r
es

po
ns

es
.  

Tw
o 

of
 th

e 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

ha
pp

y 
th

at
 th

ei
r n

ee
ds

 w
er

e 
be

in
g 

m
et

 a
nd

 o
ne

 w
as

 n
ei

th
er

 s
at

is
fie

d 
no

r d
is

sa
tis

fie
d.

 
Th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 tw
o 

w
er

e 
no

t s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 th

ei
r n

ee
ds

 w
er

e 
be

in
g 

m
et

.  
Fo

r t
he

se
 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s,

 a
ga

in
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
er

e 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
is

su
es

; b
ot

h 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

fe
w

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

w
he

re
 c

ar
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 o
f s

ta
ff

in
g.

   
 

M
os

t c
ar

er
s 

th
ou

gh
t t

ha
t t

he
ir 

ne
ed

s 
w

er
e 

no
t b

ei
ng

 m
et

. 
 

 
St

an
da

rd
 d

es
cr

ip
ti

on
 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

  
C9

: O
ve

ra
ll 

ra
tin

g 
fo

r t
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t.

  
To

 b
e 

an
sw

er
ed

 b
y 

IH
AL

  
 

TH
IS

 W
IL

L 
CR

EA
TE

 A
 N

EW
 O

VE
RA

LL
 R

AT
IN

G
 F

O
R 

TH
E 

AS
SE

SS
M

EN
T.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

IH
AL

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 s
el

f-
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 w
ill

 to
ta

l r
at

in
gs

 fo
r a

ll 
qu

es
tio

ns
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l 

ra
tin

g 
of

 h
ow

 y
ou

r H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd
 A

re
a 

is
 d

oi
ng

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 g
et

tin
g 

an
d 

st
ay

in
g 

he
al

th
y,

 
be

in
g 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 li
vi

ng
 w

el
l. 

 Jo
in

t H
ea

lt
h 

an
d 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

A
ss

es
sm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
20

13
/1

4 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

 
Se

ct
io

n 
D

 –
 T

he
 c

on
te

xt
 in

 n
um

be
rs

  
St

an
da

rd
 

de
sc

ri
pt

io
n 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
 /

 n
ot

es
 

A:
 D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
s 

Th
is

 q
ue

st
io

n 
as

ks
 h

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
kn

ow
n 

to
 th

e 
he

al
th

 s
er

vi
ce

 in
 y

ou
r a

re
a.

 T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 fr
om

 G
Ps

. T
he

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f h
av

in
g 

a 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 s
ho

ul
d 

fo
llo

w
 Q

O
F 

re
gi

st
er

 
ru

le
s 

fo
r i

de
nt

ify
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s.

 T
hi

s 
m

ay
 e

ith
er

 b
e 

do
ne

 d
ire

ct
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

CC
G

 o
r c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 

CC
G

 o
r A

re
a 

te
am

 

134



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

su
pp

or
t u

ni
t u

si
ng

 M
iQ

ue
st

 q
ue

rie
s,

 o
r b

y 
di

re
ct

 li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
. P

eo
pl

e 
liv

in
g 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 w
ith

 
G

Ps
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
.  

Co
m

pl
ex

 o
r p

ro
fo

un
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 h

er
e 

m
ea

ns
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 c
om

pl
ic

at
ed

 b
y 

se
ve

re
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

of
 c

on
tin

en
ce

, 
m

ob
ili

ty
 o

r b
eh

av
io

ur
, o

r s
ev

er
e 

re
pe

tit
iv

e 
be

ha
vi

ou
r w

ith
 n

o 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

sp
ee

ch
, (

i.e
. r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

se
ve

re
 a

ut
is

m
). 

 
(R

ef
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f P
ub

lic
 C

ar
e 

(2
00

9)
 E

st
im

at
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ev
al

en
ce

 o
f s

ev
er

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 in
 a

du
lts

. I
PC

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
 

1.
) 

ht
tp

:/
/i

pc
.b

ro
ok

es
.a

c.
uk

/p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

/p
df

/E
st

im
at

in
g_

th
e_

pr
ev

al
en

ce
_o

f_
se

ve
re

_l
ea

rn
in

g_
di

sa
bi

lit
y_

in
_a

du
lts

.p
df

 ) 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 th

er
e 

in
 y

ou
r l

oc
al

it
y:

 
N

U
M

BE
R 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
kn

ow
n 

to
 G

Ps
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 
N

U
M

BE
R 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
kn

ow
n 

to
 G

Ps
 

as
 h

av
in

g 
a 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 w

ho
 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
ex

 o
r 

pr
of

ou
nd

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ti

es
 (S

ee
 n

ot
e)

 

N
U

M
BE

R 
kn

ow
n 

to
 G

Ps
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 w
ho

 
al

so
 h

av
e 

an
 A

ut
is

tic
 S

pe
ct

ru
m

 
D

is
or

de
r 

Ag
ed

 0
 to

 1
3 

in
cl

us
iv

e?
 

18
 

5 
3 

Ag
ed

 1
4 

to
 1

7 
in

cl
us

iv
e?

 
27

 
14

 
11

 
Ag

ed
 1

8 
to

 3
4 

in
cl

us
iv

e?
 

30
6 

18
4 

64
 

Ag
ed

 3
5 

to
 6

4 
in

cl
us

iv
e?

 
48

1 
23

1 
45

 
Ag

ed
 6

5 
an

d 
ov

er
  

10
3 

57
 

3 
Ag

ed
 0

 to
 1

7 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

an
d 

re
co

rd
ed

 a
s 

be
in

g 
fr

om
 a

n 
et

hn
ic

 m
in

or
ity

? 
3 

4 
 

Ag
ed

 1
8 

an
d 

ab
ov

e 
an

d 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

s 
be

in
g 

fr
om

 a
n 

et
hn

ic
 m

in
or

ity
? 

16
 

7 
 

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
un

ab
le

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
ag

e 
br

ea
kd

ow
n 

at
 th

is
 le

ve
l o

f d
et

ai
l t

he
n 

co
m

pl
et

e 
ei

th
er

 A
 O

R 
B 

be
lo

w
: 

A.
 A

ge
d 

0 
to

 1
7 

in
cl

us
iv

e?
 

 
 

 
A.

 A
ge

d 
18

 a
nd

 o
ld

er
? 

 
 

 
B.

 A
ll 

ag
es

? 
 

 
4 

Ch
an

ge
s 

- N
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r.
  

 
St

an
da

rd
 

de
sc

ri
pt

io
n 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
 /

 n
ot

es
 

B:
 C

an
ce

r 
sc

re
en

in
g 

 
 

Th
is

 q
ue

st
io

n 
as

ks
 fo

r t
he

 n
um

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 fo
r e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
th

re
e 

na
tio

na
l c

an
ce

r s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 a

nd
 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r w

ho
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

th
e 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 e
xa

m
in

at
io

n.
 In

 e
ac

h 
ca

se
 y

ou
 a

re
 a

sk
ed

 fo
r n

um
be

rs
 fo

r t
he

 
w

ho
le

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s.
 T

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 fr

om
 G

Ps
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 
ei

th
er

 b
e 

do
ne

 d
ire

ct
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

CC
G

 o
r c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
su

pp
or

t u
ni

t u
si

ng
 M

iQ
ue

st
 q

ue
rie

s,
 o

r b
y 

di
re

ct
 li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 

pr
ac

tic
es

. D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
is

 ro
ut

in
el

y 
as

 a
n 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
is

su
e.

  

CC
G

 o
r A

re
a 

te
am

  
 

Ce
rv

ic
al

 C
an

ce
r 

Sc
re

en
in

g 
W

ho
le

 E
lig

ib
le

 P
op

ul
at

io
n 

(t
hi

s 
N

U
M

BE
R 

of
 th

e 
W

ho
le

 
N

U
M

BE
R 

of
 w

om
en

 w
it

h 
N

U
M

BE
R 

of
 w

om
en

 w
it

h 

135



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

in
cl

ud
es

 w
om

en
 w

it
h 

an
d 

w
it

ho
ut

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

) 
El

ig
ib

le
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

ho
 h

ad
 

a 
ce

rv
ic

al
 s

m
ea

r t
es

t*
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 w
ho

 
ar

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 w
ho

 
ha

d 
a 

ce
rv

ic
al

 s
m

ea
r 

te
st

* 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

w
om

en
 a

re
 th

er
e 

in
 

th
e 

ag
e 

ra
ng

e 
25

 to
 6

4 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

an
d 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
no

t h
ad

 a
 

hy
st

er
ec

to
m

y 
(ie

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r 

ce
rv

ic
al

 c
an

ce
r s

cr
ee

ni
ng

)?
 

42
85

3 
20

02
0 

26
7 

40
 

Br
ea

st
 C

an
ce

r S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 

W
ho

le
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
(t

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
no

n-
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 
pe

op
le

 w
it

h 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 
po

pu
la

ti
on

s)
 

N
U

M
BE

R 
of

 th
e 

W
ho

le
 

El
ig

ib
le

 P
op

ul
at

io
n 

w
ho

 h
ad

 
m

am
m

og
ra

ph
ic

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 in

 
th

e 
la

st
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s?
 

N
U

M
BE

R 
of

 w
om

en
 w

it
h 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 w
ho

 
ar

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 

N
U

M
BE

R 
of

 w
om

en
 w

it
h 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 w
ho

 
ha

d 
m

am
m

og
ra

ph
ic

 
sc

re
en

in
g 

in
 th

e 
la

st
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s?
 

H
ow

 m
an

y 
w

om
en

 a
re

 th
er

e 
in

 
th

e 
ag

e 
ra

ng
e 

50
 to

 6
9 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
(ie

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r b

re
as

t c
an

ce
r 

sc
re

en
in

g)
? 

25
98

4 
17

54
1 

98
 

41
 

Bo
w

el
 C

an
ce

r 
Sc

re
en

in
g 

W
ho

le
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
(t

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
no

n-
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 
pe

op
le

 w
it

h 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 
po

pu
la

ti
on

s)
 

N
U

M
BE

R 
of

 th
e 

W
ho

le
 

El
ig

ib
le

 P
op

ul
at

io
n 

w
ho

 
sa

ti
sf

ac
to

ri
ly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 

bo
w

el
 c

an
ce

r s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 in

 
th

e 
la

st
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

N
U

M
BE

R 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
it

h 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ti

es
 w

ho
 

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 

N
U

M
BE

R 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
it

h 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ti

es
 w

ho
 

sa
ti

sf
ac

to
ri

ly
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
bo

w
el

 c
an

ce
r s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 in
 

th
e 

la
st

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 th

er
e 

in
 

th
e 

ag
e 

ra
ng

e 
60

 to
 6

9 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

(ie
 a

re
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r b
ow

el
 c

an
ce

r 
sc

re
en

in
g)

? 

25
34

4 
18

37
6 

92
 

13
 

Ch
an

ge
s 

- N
o 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r.

  
 

St
an

da
rd

 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

n 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

 /
 n

ot
es

 
C:

 W
id

er
 h

ea
lth

  
 

Th
is

 q
ue

st
io

n 
as

ks
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

Bo
dy

 M
as

s 
In

de
x 

(B
M

I) 
pr

of
ile

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 w

ho
 

ha
ve

 c
om

m
on

 a
nd

 im
po

rt
an

t h
ea

lth
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 m

on
ito

re
d 

in
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
op

ul
at

io
n 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 re
gi

st
er

s 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 G
Ps

 fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
O

ut
co

m
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

 T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 fr
om

 G
Ps

. T
hi

s 
m

ay
 e

ith
er

 b
e 

do
ne

 d
ire

ct
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

CC
G

 o
r c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
su

pp
or

t u
ni

t u
si

ng
 M

iQ
ue

st
 q

ue
rie

s,
 o

r b
y 

di
re

ct
 li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 

pr
ac

tic
es

. T
he

se
 a

re
 ro

ut
in

el
y 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
 o

f m
aj

or
 h

ea
lth

 is
su

es
 th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 m
on

ito
re

d 
by

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 

CC
G

 o
r A

re
a 

te
am

  
 

136



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

.  
A

ll 
qu

es
ti

on
s 

re
la

te
 to

 th
e 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

N
U

M
BE

R 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
it

h 
le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

  
O

n 
th

e 
31

st
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

4 
- H

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 th

er
e 

ag
ed

 1
8 

an
d 

ov
er

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

re
co

rd
 o

f t
he

ir 
bo

dy
 m

as
s 

in
de

x?
 

31
7 

O
n 

th
e 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 th
er

e 
ag

ed
 1

8 
an

d 
ov

er
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
bo

dy
 m

as
s 

in
de

x 
in

 th
e 

ob
es

e 
ra

ng
e 

(3
0 

or
 

hi
gh

er
)?

 
12

5 

O
n 

th
e 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 th
er

e 
ag

ed
 1

8 
an

d 
ov

er
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
bo

dy
 m

as
s 

in
de

x 
in

 th
e 

un
de

rw
ei

gh
t r

an
ge

 
(w

he
re

 B
M

I i
s 

le
ss

 th
an

 1
8.

5 
N

ot
e 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
ch

an
ge

d 
fr

om
 S

AF
 2

01
4 

to
 a

lig
n 

w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l o
be

si
ty

 o
bs

er
va

to
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

)?
 

13
 

O
n 

th
e 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 a
ge

d 
18

 a
nd

 o
ve

r a
re

 k
no

w
n 

to
 th

ei
r d

oc
to

r t
o 

ha
ve

 c
or

on
ar

y 
he

ar
t d

is
ea

se
? 

As
 p

er
 

th
e 

Q
O

F 
Es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
Ca

rd
io

va
sc

ul
ar

 D
is

ea
se

 P
rim

ar
y 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
In

di
ca

to
r S

et
  

10
 

O
n 

th
e 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 o
f a

ny
 a

ge
 a

re
 k

no
w

n 
to

 th
ei

r d
oc

to
r t

o 
ha

ve
 d

ia
be

te
s 

(in
cl

ud
e 

bo
th

 ty
pe

 I 
an

d 
ty

pe
 

II 
di

ab
et

es
 h

er
e)

? 
As

 p
er

 th
e 

Q
O

F 
Es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
D

ia
be

te
s 

In
di

ca
to

r S
et

 
74

 

O
n 

th
e 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 o
f a

ny
 a

ge
 a

re
 k

no
w

n 
to

 th
ei

r d
oc

to
r t

o 
ha

ve
 a

st
hm

a?
 A

s 
pe

r t
he

 Q
O

F 
Es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
As

th
m

a 
In

di
ca

to
r S

et
  

60
 

O
n 

th
e 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 o
f a

ny
 a

ge
 a

re
 k

no
w

n 
to

 th
ei

r d
oc

to
r t

o 
ha

ve
 d

ys
ph

ag
ia

? 
6 

O
n 

th
e 

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 o
f a

ny
 a

ge
 a

re
 k

no
w

n 
to

 th
ei

r d
oc

to
r t

o 
ha

ve
 e

pi
le

ps
y?

 A
s 

pe
r t

he
 Q

O
F 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

Ep
ile

ps
y 

In
di

ca
to

r S
et

 
19

8 

Ch
an

ge
s 

- N
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r.
  

 
St

an
da

rd
 

de
sc

ri
pt

io
n 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
 /

 n
ot

es
 

D
: M

or
ta

lit
y 

 
 

Th
is

 q
ue

st
io

n 
as

ks
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

di
ed

 in
 th

e 
pa

st
 y

ea
r.

 T
he

se
 w

ill
 

be
 u

se
d 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

nu
m

be
rs

 g
iv

en
 in

 Q
ue

st
io

n 
A 

ab
ov

e 
to

 c
al

cu
la

te
 s

ta
nd

ar
di

se
d 

m
or

al
ity

 ra
tio

s.
 O

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
17

 in
 th

e 
Co

nf
id

en
tia

l I
nq

ui
ry

 in
to

 P
re

m
at

ur
e 

D
ea

th
s 

of
 P

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s,

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 w
ill

 w
an

t m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 m

on
ito

r t
hi

s.
  

CC
G

 o
r A

re
a 

te
am

  
 

H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
it

h 
a 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 r

es
id

en
t i

n 
yo

ur
 lo

ca
lit

y 
di

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

1s
t A

pr
il 

20
13

 a
nd

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4?

 
N

U
M

BE
R 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

it
h 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
  

 
Ag

ed
 0

 to
 1

3 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

0 
Ag

ed
 1

4 
to

 1
7 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
0 

Ag
ed

 1
8 

to
 3

4 
 

1 
34

Ag
ed

 3
5 

to
 6

4 
in

cl
us

iv
e 

1 
Ag

ed
 6

5 
an

d 
ol

de
r 

7 
Ch

an
ge

s 
- N

o 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r.

  

137



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

 
St

an
da

rd
 

de
sc

ri
pt

io
n 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
 /

 n
ot

es
 

E:
 A

nn
ua

l h
ea

lth
 

ch
ec

ks
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
 

 

La
st

 y
ea

r t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
qu

es
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

as
ke

d.
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
fo

r n
at

io
na

l d
at

a 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

th
is

 y
ea

r a
ll 

bu
t o

ne
 c

an
 b

e 
an

sw
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
na

tio
na

l s
ou

rc
es

. T
he

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 q
ue

st
io

n 
(H

ea
lth

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s)
 is

 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

 R
AG

 ra
tin

g.
  

TH
ES

E 
D

A
TA

 W
IL

L 
BE

 P
RO

V
ID

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E 
LE

A
RN

IN
G

 D
IS

A
BI

LI
TI

ES
 O

BS
ER

V
A

TO
RY

 –
 Y

O
U

 N
EE

D
 T

A
KE

 N
O

 A
CT

IO
N

.  

D
A

TA
 P

RO
V

ID
ED

 
BY

 L
EA

RN
IN

G
 

D
IS

A
BI

LI
TI

ES
 

O
BS

ER
V

A
TO

RY
. 

H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 a
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
ge

d 
18

 a
nd

 o
ve

r w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
s 

el
ig

ib
le

 fo
r a

n 
An

nu
al

 H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

ed
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Sc
he

m
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

01
 A

pr
il 

20
12

 a
nd

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3?

 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

ge
d 

18
 a

nd
 o

ve
r h

ad
 a

n 
An

nu
al

 H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

ed
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Sc
he

m
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

01
 A

pr
il 

20
12

 a
nd

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3?

 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 a

ge
d 

18
 a

nd
 o

ve
r w

ith
 a

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 h

av
e 

a 
H

ea
lth

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

? 
O

n 
th

e 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
G

P 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

re
 th

er
e 

in
 y

ou
r a

re
a?

 
O

n 
th

e 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
G

P 
pr

ac
tic

es
 s

ig
ne

d 
up

 to
 a

 L
ES

 o
r D

ES
 fo

r t
he

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

nn
ua

l h
ea

lth
 c

he
ck

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 2

01
2-

20
13

? 
Ch

an
ge

s 
- D

A
TA

 P
RO

V
ID

ED
 B

Y 
LE

A
RN

IN
G

 D
IS

A
BI

LI
TI

ES
 O

BS
ER

V
A

TO
RY

.  
 

St
an

da
rd

 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

n 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

no
te

s 
Lo

ca
l l

ea
d 

fo
r 

m
ea

su
re

 /
 n

ot
es

 
F:

 1
 U

se
 o

f g
en

er
al

 
ho

sp
ita

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

 

Al
l N

H
S 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Tr

us
ts

 h
os

pi
ta

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
ss

ur
e 

M
on

ito
r t

ha
t t

he
y 

ha
ve

 s
ys

te
m

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
ud

it 
th

es
e 

sy
st

em
s 

re
gu

la
rly

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
pu

bl
ic

. T
he

 C
ar

e 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 re

ce
nt

ly
 s

ta
rt

ed
 to

 a
sk

 a
bo

ut
 s

im
ila

r i
ss

ue
s 

in
 a

ll 
ho

sp
ita

ls
 a

t i
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

. Y
ou

 s
ho

ul
d 

ob
ta

in
 th

e 
an

sw
er

s 
to

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
qu

es
tio

ns
 b

y 
as

ki
ng

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ho
sp

ita
ls

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f c
ar

e 
yo

ur
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

. I
t i

s 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 e
nq

ui
re

 a
bo

ut
 te

rt
ia

ry
 

ca
re

 o
r t

o 
en

qu
ire

 a
ft

er
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

ad
m

itt
ed

 to
 d

is
ta

nt
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

.  

 

Pl
ea

se
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
su

m
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
fr

om
 a

ll 
ge

ne
ra

l h
os

pi
ta

ls
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 c
ar

e 
to

 th
e 

ar
ea

  
N

U
M

BE
R 

of
 s

pe
lls

 /
 a

tt
en

da
nc

es
 /

 
pe

op
le

 w
he

re
 th

e 
pe

rs
on

 w
as

 
id

en
ti

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 

N
U

M
BE

R 
of

 s
pe

lls
 /

 
at

te
nd

an
ce

s 
/ 

pe
op

le
 - 

al
l 

pe
op

le
 (t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
co

nt
ex

t -
 

th
es

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 c
al

cu
la

te
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
s)

 
H

ow
 m

an
y 

H
O

SP
IT

AL
 P

RO
VI

D
ER

 S
PE

LL
S 

of
 in

pa
tie

nt
 S

ec
on

da
ry

 C
ar

e 
w

er
e 

be
en

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 u

nd
er

 a
ny

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 s

pe
ci

al
ty

 E
XC

EP
T 

th
e 

ps
yc

hi
at

ric
 s

pe
ci

al
tie

s 
(S

pe
ci

al
ty

 
co

de
s 

70
0-

71
5)

 b
et

w
ee

n 
1s

t A
pr

il 
20

13
 a

nd
 3

1s
t M

ar
ch

 2
01

4 
 

14
 

 

Co
m

m
en

t  
Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
14

 a
dm

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 2

01
3/

14
 w

he
re

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 w
as

 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

s 
a 

di
ag

no
si

s 
(a

ny
 p

os
iti

on
). 

 T
he

 U
K 

pr
ev

al
en

ce
 is

 

138



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

el
f-

As
se

ss
m

en
t 2

01
4/

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  V
er

si
on

 –
 F

in
al

 A
s 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
2.

1%
 (1

.5
m

ill
io

n 
pe

op
le

 n
at

io
na

lly
) w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 im

pl
y 

th
at

 w
e 

co
ul

d 
ex

pe
ct

 to
 h

av
e 

ap
pr

ox
 8

00
 in

pa
tie

nt
 a

dm
is

si
on

s 
pe

r y
ea

r.
  

It
 a

pp
ea

rs
 th

at
 w

e 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

id
en

tif
y 

ad
m

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

w
ith

 o
ur

 S
U

S 
da

ta
 

H
ow

 m
an

y 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

Ca
re

 O
ut

pa
tie

nt
 A

TT
EN

D
AN

CE
S 

w
er

e 
be

en
 re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
pe

op
le

 
un

de
r a

ny
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 s
pe

ci
al

ty
 E

XC
EP

T 
th

e 
ps

yc
hi

at
ri

c 
sp

ec
ia

lti
es

 (S
pe

ci
al

ty
 c

od
es

 
70

0-
71

5)
 b

et
w

ee
n 

1s
t A

pr
il 

20
13

 a
nd

 3
1s

t M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

 

 
 

H
ow

 m
an

y 
AT

TE
N

D
AN

CE
S 

at
 A

cc
id

en
t &

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

01
 A

pr
il 

20
13

 - 
31

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

4 
 

 
 

H
ow

 m
an

y 
PE

O
PL

E 
ha

ve
 a

tt
en

de
d 

Ac
ci

de
nt

 &
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
01

 A
pr

il 
20

13
 - 

31
 M

ar
ch

 
20

14
 m

or
e 

th
an

 3
 ti

m
es

? 
 

Th
is

 fi
gu

re
 o

nl
y 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

 
Ch

an
ge

s 
- Q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
nd

 w
or

di
ng

 m
od

ifi
ed

 to
 c

la
ri

fy
.  

  
St

an
da

rd
 

de
sc

ri
pt

io
n 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

Lo
ca

l l
ea

d 
fo

r 
m

ea
su

re
 /

 n
ot

es
 

F:
 2

 U
se

 o
f g

en
er

al
 

ho
sp

ita
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
 

 C
on

tin
ui

ng
 H

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
Se

ct
io

n 
11

7 
Af

te
r C

ar
e 

 

Pl
ea

se
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
su

m
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
fr

om
 a

ll 
ge

ne
ra

l h
os

pi
ta

ls
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 c
ar

e 
to

 th
e 

ar
ea

  
 

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 H

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
- H

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
in

 r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
(C

H
C)

? 
16

8 

Se
ct

io
n 

11
7 

- H
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

ar
e 

in
 r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f c
ar

e 
fu

nd
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

t u
nd

er
 S

ec
tio

n 
11

7 
of

 th
e 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 A
ct

? 
45

 

  

139



140



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

 

MEETING: 

MEETING DATE: 

TITLE OF REPORT: 

REPORT BY: 

 

  

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

The purpose of this Report is to 
made against the HM Government 
Concordat, Improving outcomes for people experien
(February 2014)  regarding the development of a local 

Recommendation 

THAT: the Board endorse the Cr
 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options as this is a national requirement for each locality to 
make a commitment to the principles of the Crisis Care Concordat.

 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jade Brooks on (01432)  

 

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 

25 MARCH 2015 

CRISIS CARE CONCORDAT 

PROGRAMME MANAGER CHILDREN AND 
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, 
HEREFORDSHIRE CLINICAL 
COMMISSIONING GROUP 

 

Report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board of the pr
HM Government guidance document ‘Mental Health Crisis Care

Concordat, Improving outcomes for people experiencing mental heal
regarding the development of a local Action Plan. 

endorse the Crisis Care Concordat Action Plan 2015/16.

There are no alternative options as this is a national requirement for each locality to 
make a commitment to the principles of the Crisis Care Concordat.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  

 

PROGRAMME MANAGER CHILDREN AND 

the Health and Wellbeing Board of the progress 
guidance document ‘Mental Health Crisis Care 

cing mental health crisis care’ 

dat Action Plan 2015/16. 

There are no alternative options as this is a national requirement for each locality to 
make a commitment to the principles of the Crisis Care Concordat. 

AGENDA ITEM 14

141



Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jade Brooks on (01432)  

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The nationally published Concordat is a shared agreed statement, signed by senior 
representatives from all the organisations involved. It covers what needs to happen 
when people in mental health crisis need help – in policy making and spending 
decisions, in anticipating and preventing mental health crises wherever possible, and in 
making sure effective emergency response systems operate in localities when a crisis 
does occur. 

3 The Concordat expects that in every locality in England, local partnerships of health, 
criminal justice and local authority agencies will agree and commit to local Mental Health 
Crisis Declarations. These will consist of commitments and actions at a local level that 
will deliver services that meet the principles of the national concordat. (Our local 
declaration is in Appendix 1). 

4 A paper outlining the declaration and intention to construct an action plan was presented 
to the Health and Well-being Board on the 28th January 2015. The Board recommended 
that the Safeguarding Boards be consulted in this work and that the final action plan 
should be presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

5 Herefordshire Action Plan represents a number of service transformation objectives that 
will improve delivery of care. The Plan also represents an improvement in all agencies 
co-operating to monitor and share information so that a better understanding is 
available. 

Key Considerations 

6 This work requires a strengthening of local relationships with key partners, ensuring 
roles and responsibilities are agreed and understood around mental health crisis care; 
consideration of the best combination of early interventions services that would support 
local need; improved monitoring of the frequency and use of police custody and Health 
settings as places of safety and review the appropriateness of each use to inform Place 
of Safety provision; workforce development; ensuring effective and appropriate use of 
restraint and local plans to deliver 24/7 crisis care, seven days a week. 

Community Impact 

7 The recently developed HCCG’s Mental Health Needs Assessment has informed the 
work of the Crisis Care Action Plan considerations as well as coroner’s inquest report 
and local case studies. The feedback from service-users, their carers and members of 
the public gathered during the development of the Needs Assessment stated that people 
wanted help earlier to avoid crisis and that a crisis action plan was regarded important to 
service-users. 

Equality and Human Rights 

8 People with mental health issues and in crisis are amongst the most vulnerable 
populations in our community. The Crisis Concordat is about improving response; 
access and services for this population. 

9 In addition to that A Criminal Use of Police Cells (CQC, HMIC et al 2013) draws attention 
to the human rights and dignity issues that are potentially undermined for those being 
detained under section 136 in Police cells 

  

142



Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jade Brooks on (01432)  

 

Financial Implications 

10 To be established as part of individual actions within the Crisis Care Action Plan. 

Legal Implications 

11 Adherence to the implementation of the recently published revised Code of Practice for 
the Mental Health Act.   

Risk Management 

12 The major identified risk is implementation of the action plan by partners during 2015/16. 

13 Mitigation of this risk will be through the regular oversight of the Multi-Agency Mental 
Health Group, already in existence for the purpose of mental health crisis care. 

Consultees 

14 The following Partnerships have been consulted during the production of the Action 
Plan: 

• Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board 9th March 2015 

• Herefordshire Safeguarding Adults Board 16th March 2015 

• Herefordshire Community Safety Partnership 23rd March 2015 

• Multi-Agency Mental Health Group 11th March 2015. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1: Herefordshire Crisis Care Concordat Action Plan 

Background Papers 

Crisis Care Concordat paper to Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board 28th January 2015 

Department of Health - Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat – Improving outcomes for people 
experiencing mental health crisis (February 2014) 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/mental-health-crisis-care-agreement 

HM Government - Closing the gap: priorities for essential change in mental health. (January 
2014) 
https://www.gov.uk/.../Closing_the_gap_V2_-_17_Feb_2014.pdf 
 

Department of Health - Valuing mental health equally with physical health or “Parity of Esteem” 
(November 2013) 
http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/qual-clin-lead/pe/ 
 

Department of Health - No health without mental health; a cross government mental health 
outcomes strategy for people of all ages (February 2011) 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-mental-health-strategy-for-england 
 
Care Quality Commission-  ‘A Safer Place to Be’ – a survey of health-based places of safety in 
England (October 2014) 
http://www.cqc.org.uk/content/safer-place-be 

 

143



Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Jade Brooks on (01432)  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

144



Further information on the subject of this r
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and

 

Meeting: 

Meeting date: 

Title of report: 

Report by: 
 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not an executive decision

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

The purpose of the report is to 
Department for Education Review and the 
Local Government Association Peer Diagnostic
Ofsted Action Plan  

Recommendation(s) 

THAT the following be noted
(a) outcome of the Department for Education

conducted on 15 and 16 December 2014
(b) outcome of the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board

Government Association
conducted between 17

(c) progress to date on the Ofsted action plan
 

rmation on the subject of this report is available from
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

25 March 2015 

Children’s Safeguarding Update

Head of Safeguarding and Review 

This is not an executive decision.  

e purpose of the report is to brief the Health and Wellbeing Board of the outcome of the 
Department for Education Review and the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board 
Local Government Association Peer Diagnostic as well as providing progress

the following be noted:  
Department for Education review (as detailed at

conducted on 15 and 16 December 2014; 
Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board

Government Association peer diagnostic (as detailed at 
conducted between 17-19 November 2014; and 
progress to date on the Ofsted action plan (as detailed at Appendix 3

eport is available from 
260804 

Children’s Safeguarding Update 

Head of Safeguarding and Review  

of the outcome of the 
Children’s Board 

as well as providing progress to date on the 

(as detailed at Appendix 1) 

Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board Local 
(as detailed at Appendix 2) 

Appendix 3). 

AGENDA ITEM 15

145



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

 Alternative options 

1. There are no alternative options as the purpose of the report is to provide a briefing on 
children’s safeguarding. 

Reasons for recommendations 

2. To enable the Health and Wellbeing Board to consider whether there is adequate 
progress in improvements in safeguarding services, in the light of external reviews and 
monitoring of progress against the improvement plan..   

Key considerations 

Department for Education Review 

3. As reported to Health and Wellbeing Board on 16 October 2015, Ofsted carried out 
their inspection of children’s safeguarding in May 2014 and judged safeguarding to be 
“requires improvement”.    

4. As part of the process of lifting the Department for Education intervention notice which 
was issued in 2012, the Department for Education carried out a review on 15 and 16 
December 2014.    

5. The purpose of the review was to establish whether the council had maintained its 
improvement since the Ofsted inspection.     

6. As result of the review, the Department for Education have been broadly reassured as 
to the progress the Local Authority has made against the Ofsted Action Plan, and 
recognised the pace of improvement by the Council and partner agencies, and in 
particular the cross party political support towards the prioritisation of safeguarding 
vulnerable children in Herefordshire. 

7. The Department for Education were particularly pleased to see progress with respect 
to: 

•  Senior management team and lead members continue to be visible, 
approachable and supportive. This is valued by staff and partners.  

•  There are open communications and lots of dialogue. People feel listened to, 
consulted and included in changes and new ways of working - for example the 
Children of Herefordshire Improvement and Partnership Programme.  

•  Frameworki is improved, is more user friendly, and contains additional 
bespoke fields for capturing voice of child and child sexual exploitation 
intelligence.  

•  There is increased management oversight, supervision and audit – all fully “on 
the agenda” now.  

•  The offer for social workers is good. The support and mentoring for newly 
qualified social workers  remains effective and well received. There are now 
opportunities for progression to senior social worker roles and the Academy for 
growing your own is well supported.  

 

146



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

•  Council commitment to the children’s service agenda is clear.  

 There are areas which were identified which require further attention. These 
issues are in line with our own assessment: 

•  Evidencing the child’s voice is improving but there is more work to do on 
embedding this across every partner organization as the norm.  

•  Concerns remain over the internal Business Support function – some staff feel 
overwhelmed with “admin type” work, and are concerned that reduced 
administrative support will affect available time for reflective practice and training.  

•  There are capacity issues with police partners, where presence is required 
across adult and children meetings/conferences/boards and attendance levels 
cannot be maintained.  

•  There is increasing confidence in the figures, and the data being produced is 
much richer and more reliable – although some operational staff rely on 
management analysis rather than using the data themselves to drive better 
practice. 

8. The Department for Education were keen to ensure that clear transitional 
arrangements were in place to step responsibility for driving improvement forward 
across from the Improvement Board, and that the recommendations of the Local 
Government Association peer diagnostic had been used to inform future plans. They 
were also keen to ensure that the process of recruiting to a new Independent Chair of 
the Board would not deflect from progress. As such, the Department for Education are 
positive that on receipt of such assurances that they will be recommending to the 
Minister to withdraw the intervention notice upon the local authority before the 
dissolution of parliament and the general election in May 2015. 

Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board Local Government Association peer 
diagnostic 

9. As part of its approach to continuous improvement, the Herefordshire Safeguarding 
Children’s Board arranged for the Local Government Association to conduct a peer 
diagnostic.  The diagnostic took place between 17-19 November 2014.   Herefordshire 
was one of five pilot authorities to undertake a diagnostic.  

10. The purpose of the diagnostic was to provide evidence that the Herefordshire 
Safeguarding Children’s Board were able to take over the function of the Herefordshire 
supporting and protecting children improvement Board (improvement board) should the 
Department for Education decide that the intervention notice could be lifted.  

11. A copy of the letter outlining the recommendations from the Local Government 
Association is attached at appendix 2.    

12. The key areas for improvement are: 

• Developing synergy of plans across the Herefordshire Safeguarding 
Children’s Board, Children and Young People’s Partnership and Health and 
Wellbeing Board to ensure key priorities are shared and understood 

• Sharpen focus on outcomes for children and ensure the council and its 
partners know how the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board is 
making a difference 

147



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

• Adopt the principles of the Children of Herefordshire’s Improvement and 
Partnership Programme (CHIPP) in the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s 
Board’s work develop a project management culture to support the Boards 
work 

• Prioritise the priorities – identify key priorities to focus on and develop 
performance scorecards for each 

• Strengthen the Business Unit to ensure capacity to deliver 

13. The key areas of strengths are: 

• Excellent progress since the peer review 14 months ago, in particular in the 
development of the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub 

• Ambitious: to be good by 2016/17 

• Strong cross party political commitment to the safeguarding agenda 

• Clear prioritisation of children’s agenda within the council 

• There is a strong commitment to corporate parenting 

• The Children’s Integrated Needs Assessment provides a valuable tools to 
enable clear prioritisation 

• Excellent progress in responding quickly to the challenge of Child Sexual 
Exploitation 

• Regular meetings Independent Chair of the Herefordshire Safeguarding 
Children’s Board and Chief Executive, Director for Children’s Wellbeing and 
Cabinet Member for Children’s 

Ofsted Action Plan 

14. Following the Ofsted inspection in May 2012, the council was required to produce an 
action plan to address the areas for improvement identified during the inspection.  The 
first version of the action plan was presented to Cabinet on 1 October for comment 
prior to submission to Ofsted on 6 October.  Ofsted have confirmed their satisfaction 
with the action plan and recognise that it provides a robust framework covering all the 
areas for improvement identified from their Inspection in May 2014, and the progress 
already made in response. 

15. Work on the action plan is continuous and is delivered through the children’s wellbeing 
transformation programme.  A progress report is attached at appendix 3, together with 
a copy of the action plan (appendix 4).   

16. Within the progress report, it is worth noting: 

• Significant developments within Frameworki to support staff in undertaking 
their child protection work and improve performance reporting 

• Increased focus and capacity deployed to the children with a disability service 

• Development of the Child Sexual Exploitation strategy and operational 
response within Herefordshire and across the West Mercia Alliance 

• The implementation of a robust quality assurance framework 

• The development and implementation of the new Levels of Need guidance 

148



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

17. All the above have been recognised as good practice developments in response to our 
Ofsted recommendations by the Department for Education and the Local Government 
Association Peer Diagnostic. 

Progress since the reviews 

18. The pace of progress since these review has not relented, and significant 
developments in response to the recommendations are in train, including; 

•  A review and restructure of business support functions, with increased 
capacity to support to the workforce. This will go live from 1st April 2015 from 
when it is hoped that we will have a more stable business support workforce. 
There have particular challenges in the interim phase with numbers of temporary 
admin staff supporting the child protection conference chairing processes, albeit 
performance to timescales has been maintained. 

•  A contract to coordinate the development of our children’s voice work, to 
ensure the new children and young people’s plan is fully inclusive has been 
awarded. The objective of this service will be to develop and implement a system 
for collecting and analysing the views of children and young people on their 
needs and on their experiences of services.  This intelligence on the “voice of the 
child” will form part of the local joint strategic needs assessment and will be used 
to inform the planning, delivery and improvement of a range of local services and 
to ensure that services meet the needs of children and young people. 

 
•  The partnership agreement to fund the development of the Safeguarding 

Board’s business unit, to incorporate the community safety partnership agenda 
and functions . This development will help to ensure Herefordshire Council’s legal 
compliance with the Children’s and Adult statute, provide the necessary 
assurance to support with compliance with recommendation 156 of the recent 
Ofsted inspection, support the development and implementation of an effective 
strategic approach in line with Safeguarding best practice principles that ensures 
the protection of Herefordshire’s service users and carers and oversee progress 
of the improvement agenda for Children’s Wellbeing Services. 

•  The recruitment to a new Independent Chair of the Herefordshire 
Safeguarding Children’s Board has taken place, and from 1 April 2015, Sally 
Halls will take over from Dave McCallum in this role. Sally is a highly experience 
Board chair, acting in this capacity for both Shropshire and Somerset. 

•  It is also right to reflect on the Board’s learning from the peer diagnostic, 
Department for Education review and the transition from the Improvement Board. 
A number of systemic themes have emerged, which are perhaps resonant with 
wider partnership experiences. These centre on the clarity of governance 
arrangements and the need to ensure the identification of cross cutting priorities 
without duplication of activity. Beneath this is the need to ensure appropriate 
challenge mechanisms are in place and the impact they are having is evidenced. 
Equally critical will be the need to demonstrate the impact of the boards work on 
the lives of individual children and young people, a challenge for all partnership 
working, to measure the impact of strategic activity in practice. 

•  As part of the board’s challenge role, there is more work to do in holding 
partner agencies accountable with respect to the outcomes of single agency 
inspection activity. Both West Mercia Police and Wye Valley Trust have been 

149



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

through such processes and have received a number of recommendations with 
respect to safeguarding improvements required, and the Board needs to increase 
its scrutiny role to hold such organisations to account over the delivery of 
resultant action plans than has been the case. A part of this process will be 
reinforcing this aspect of the boards statutory function with partner agencies. 

Community impact 

19. The successful implementation of the action plan will bring about further improvement 
towards achieving the council’s priorities of keeping children and young people safe 
and giving them a great start in life and enabling residents to live safe, healthy and 
independent lives; improving access to learning opportunities at all levels and improved 
outcomes for children and young people.   

Equality duty 

20. As the action plan continues to be implemented, equality impact assessments will be 
carried out where relevant to ensure that due regard is paid to the public sector equality 
duty as set out below: 

• "A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to - 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct ... 
prohibited by or under this Act;  

• advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

• foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

Financial implications 

21. The actions included in the plan in appendix 3 can be contained within the current 
year’s budget.  Each of the areas for improvement is being progressed within the 
context of the directorate’s transformation programme, the Children of Herefordshire’s 
Improvement and Partnership Programme (CHIPP). As the transformation programme 
develops, detailed financial planning will be taking place with regard to the actions and 
where appropriate further reports will be presented to cabinet or the cabinet member. 

Legal implications 

22. There are no legal implications. 

150



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
John Roughton, Head of Safeguarding and Review on Tel (01432) 260804 

 

Risk management 

23. Risks associated with the failure to implement the action plan are: 

• Reputation - should the council remain under an improvement notice. In 
particular, this has the impact of adversely affecting the recruitment and retention 
strategy and associated caseload management problems, which in turn have the 
potential to negatively impact on performance and quality of service for children 
and families. The council returns to a position where there are widespread failures 
to protect children and young people from harm. 

• The Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board is unable to demonstrate to the 
Minister its ability and capacity to effectively govern the improvement of the multi-
agency response to safeguarding children, to enable him to be sufficiently 
reassured to lift the improvement notice.  

• These risks are being mitigated through the production of a robust transition plan 
to ensure that the improvement function imposed on the Local Authority by the 
Department for Education has been transferred to the Herefordshire Safeguarding 
Children’s Board, in full consultation with the Department for Education to  their 
satisfaction. The independent chair of the Improvement Board will continue to act 
as a ‘critical friend’ to the Local Authority over the next six months to support and 
ensure continued focus on key improvement priorities. 

Consultees 

24. The views of the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board and the Herefordshire 
Improvement Board have been included within the report and the action plan.  

Appendices 

Appendix 1 Department for Education letter 

Appendix 2  Letter from Local Government Association in connection with the Herefordshire 
Safeguarding Children’s Board peer diagnostic 

Appendix 3 Progress update on Ofsted action plan 

Appendix 4 Ofsted action plan 

 

Background papers 

• None identified. 

151



152



 
Jo Davidson 
Director of People’s Services 
Herefordshire Council 
Brockington 
35 Hafod Road 
Hereford 
HR1 1SH 

16 January 2015 

Dear Jo, 

Angela Windle and I would like to thank the Council’s senior leadership team; 
Councillors; staff (in particular, Caroline and John for organising the focus 
groups and logistics); and partners, for contributing to the Departmental 
review on 15 and 16 December 2014.   

Our discussions and the information you provided gave a comprehensive 
picture of improvement and impact since the Improvement Notice was issued 
in February 2013.  A summary of our key findings is attached at Annex A, and 
I would be very grateful if you could arrange for this to be shared with all those 
concerned. 

Our overall assessment is that the Council has made good progress since we 
last visited in April 2014.  This improvement has also been evidenced by the 
outcomes of the recent Ofsted inspection and the LGA diagnostic peer review 
of the LSCB in November.  

It was evident that pace has increased since the last DfE review and that the 
senior management team continues to drive change throughout the 
service.  The workforce demonstrated confidence, strength, and passion in 
their commitment to effective safeguarding practice.  

We heard your plans to create the conditions for success and to be a learning 
organisation with a stable and experienced leadership team.  We heard how 
you plan to improve practice by further development of management oversight 

Department for Education 
Local Authority Improvement  
& Interventions Unit 
Ground Floor 
Sanctuary Buildings 
Westminster 
SW1P 3BT 
 
www.education.gov.uk/help/contactus 

Appendix 1

153



and timely decision making; improved management confidence; clear 
evidence of the voice of the child through assessment; meaningful and valued 
supervision; and building resilience in the system to embed confidence, 
challenge, and escalation.  

We heard that there is cross-party political support and commitment to 
improving children’s services and it was good to hear that funding will be 
protected and that leaders show an active interest in the work of front-line 
social work teams.  There were strong messages from leadership that 
safeguarding and child protection practice in Herefordshire would not be 
allowed to slip back as it has in the past; and that improvement is on a long 
term course to get to ‘good’.  

There were a number of key messages we wanted to share with you, these 
included a strong sense of delivery and drive in the MASH; a workforce that 
feels safe and which is clear on its role; and a culture of improvement and 
consultation is now evident. Staff reported that management oversight and 
supervision had improved and that there were now opportunities for training 
and development and movement between teams to augment and strengthen 
learning. Managers, some staff, and partners now have regular access to 
performance data and the various audit processes are starting to embed.   

Staff continued to welcome the visibility of the Lead Member, Councillors and 
senior staff and the recent stability at management level.  Overall staff 
reported morale as good, and were proud to be part of the service 
improvements and seem optimistic for the future.  

Partners were positive about the recent pace in improvement and the 
MASH.  They valued council investment in children’s services and in 
Frameworki, and welcomed the increased level of challenge, improved data 
reports and partners feeding back information from their agencies. There is 
now stronger group partnership working and effective working between the IB, 
HSCB and other Boards.   

A number of key issues were raised during the focus groups. In particular, 
staff, and partners especially, need to understand the future vision and within 
that how you plan to get to 'good'.  It is important to communicate clear 
messages and plans to all stakeholders on roles and responsibilities and what 
still needs to be achieved, and how. Concerns remain in some teams about 
the Business Support (BS) and what your internal review will bring, it seems 
that some teams have closer working relationships with BS than others and 
therefore levels of support are not equitable.    

In the next phase of implementation we would expect to see, and therefore 
recommend, that: 

· improvement work is fully embedded, sustained and becomes the 
standard for the Council; 

· Herefordshire addresses the over-reliance of agency staff and aims for 
workforce stability at all levels;  

154



 

· immediate plans are put in place to recruit a new HSCB chair and the       
necessary arrangements for a smooth handover are implemented; 

 

· a clear plan for the transfer of Improvement Board work to the HSCB, 
Children's Trust, and the authority and partners is developed and agreed 
to ensure clarity of what responsibilities transition to where; which outlines 
your vision of getting to 'good', and when the  intervention is stepped 
down will provide confidence to Ministers and stakeholders;  and 

 

· gap analysis on the performance data is undertaken which focuses on 
areas of non-compliance and offer explanations and solutions. 

The Improvement Notice continues to remain in place until the Minister can be 
confident that the quality of practice and service performance is embedded 
and sustainable and, in particular, that transition arrangements from his 
Improvement Board to the HSCB are robust. We therefore look forward to 
speedy progress on the recommendations outlined above.  

In the meantime, Angela will draw together messages from the focus group 
discussions, your self-assessment, the letter from Tony Johnson and the 
reports from Paul Curran and Dave McCallum in readiness to provide 
evidence of progress to the Minister.  

I am copying this letter to Councillor Tony Johnson, Councillor Jeremy Millar, 
Councillor Attwood, Alistair Neill, Paul Meredith, Dave McCallum and Paul 
Curran.  

Yours sincerely 

OLIVER BROOKE     

155



Annex A 

Herefordshire 18 month review – summary of feedback from focus 
groups 

Key positive messages 

· The “Requires Improvement” rating from the last inspection feels right.  

· SMT and Lead Members continue to be visible, approachable and 
supportive. This is valued by staff and partners.  

· Senior management stability is welcomed but still feels new – staff 
would become concerned if this “unravels” as some contracts are due 
to end shortly.  

· There are open communications and lots of dialogue.  People feel 
listened to, consulted and included in changes and new ways of 
working - for example CHIPPS.   

· There is increasing confidence in the figures, and the data being 
produced is much richer and more reliable – although some operational 
staff rely on management analysis rather than using the data 
themselves to better drive practice.  

· Morale seems good and there is an evident passion within the MASH.  

· Staff (including agency) have opportunities to move around the service, 
learn different practices and now have time to train – with some staff 
involved in delivering training.  

· Caseloads remain at a managable level but vary from team to team 
and within teams. It may be helpful to set a standard for each team as 
well as trigger points to identify where remedial action is required 
should these triggers be reached. 

· Frameworki is improved, is more user friendly, and contains additional 
bespoke fields for capturing voice of child and CSE 
intelligence.  Increased smarter use of performance data at many 
different levels internally and externally is welcomed. Partners were 
grateful for real, trustable data and noted that the Council’s financial 
investment in the system is clear. 

· There is increased management oversight, supervision and audit – all 
fully “on the agenda” now. 

· There is greater connectivity and communication between teams within 
the Council. 

· Staff are now clear about what is required of them and case 
progression is much more effective as a result. 

· The offer for social workers is good. The support and mentoring for 
NQSWs remains effective and well received.  There are now 
opportunities for progression to senior SW roles and the Academy for 
growing your own is well supported.  

156



· Partners reported more joint-working and increased challenge – both 
ways. 

· People feel the service infrastructure is much stronger so that when 
processes and changes need making this can now happen quite 
quickly.          
  

· Council commitment to the children’s service agenda is clear.  

 

Less positive messages 

· Some partners were unclear as to how to the council would “Get to 
Good” in terms of what the next steps are and what that means for the 
future for the council and for their organisations, this will require further 
planning and communication of the vision.  

· Changes at senior management level have been unsettling and 
potential for more changes is a concern to staff. 

· Evidencing the child’s voice is improving but there is more work to do 
on embedding this across the system as the norm.   

· Concerns remain over the internal Business Support function – some 
staff feel overwhelmed with “admin type” work, and are concerned that 
reduced administrative support will affect available time for reflective 
practice and training.  

· Although caseloads are currently manageable, some staff had 
concerns over potential “caseload creep” and the effect on finding time 
to reflect, and undertake training. 

· There are capacity issues with police partners, where presence is 
required across adult and children meetings/conferences/boards and 
attendance levels cannot be maintained. 

· Partners are unclear about funding levels for the HSCB Business 
Support Unit moving forward. 

 

157



158



 
 
                                                                                              
 
 
Jo Davidson 
Director of Children’s Services 
Herefordshire County Council 
Plough Lane 
Hereford          
        22nd November 2014  
 
Dear Jo, 
 
Herefordshire County Council 
LSCB Diagnostic Pilot 
 
On behalf of the team I would like to thank Herefordshire County Council, 
partner agencies and the HSCB for commissioning the recent LSCB 
diagnostic pilot.  Your diagnostic was one of five pilots that will inform the 
January 2015 roll out of the LGA LSCB diagnostic programme.  

It is important to emphasise that this was not an inspection but a critical friend 
diagnostic delivered by a team of peers. The aim was to provide an informed, 
external perspective on the quality of the LSCB, its key strengths and areas 
for improvement. The team interviewed key stakeholders, either individually or 
as part of a focus group, as well as undertaking a comprehensive review of 
current documentation. At your request two optional elements were added; 
first, an audit validation exercise focusing on initial plans; second, a review of 
police engagement and child sexual exploitation processes.  
 
This letter sets out in detail our findings which were initially presented to an 
invited audience at the conclusion of the diagnostic.  
 
Following an executive summary our findings are set out under the following 
headings 

• Overarching messages 
• Working Together Compliance 
• Board Effectiveness 
• Evidence of Challenge and Holding to Account 
• Capacity, Training and Managing Resources 
• Vision, Strategy & Leadership 
• Audit validation – initial plans 
• Child sexual exploitation 
• Recommendations 

Appendix one provides additional analysis of the audit validation exercise. 
We are grateful to Andy Churcher, Caroline Marshall, Chris Jones and Betty 
Lynch for the efforts they put into preparing for and supporting our visits.  The 
people we met were very welcoming and demonstrated a willingness to use 

 

Appendix 2

159



the diagnostic as an opportunity for learning.  We recognise that many of 
these people made themselves readily available to us at short notice and we 
thank them for their flexibility.   

 
Executive Summary 
 
You have made considerable progress in the fourteen months since the LGA 
safeguarding peer review of autumn 2013; there is a renewed confidence 
within the council and its partners. HSCB is recognising priority areas for 
improvement and driving learning. The Herefordshire Safeguarding Children 
Board is clear sighted about the extent of the improvements to reach good 
and the Intervention Notice still remains. Nevertheless you are now confident 
in your own ability to manage the future and to take over oversight of 
improvement from the Improvement Board and driving improvements on the 
effectiveness of the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board itself. 
 
In our view, the key to future Board success is a clear focus on a small 
number of immediate priorities that drive the work in every element of the 
Board. At present, priorities are not particularly well co-ordinated across the 
various levels of activity. The employment of project management techniques 
will help you to work smarter and achieve demonstrable impact.  
 
There is strong corporate support on improvement, and although needing to 
become more formalised, you have begun to ensure effective coordination 
and liaison across key strategic relationships and fora. 
 
You have strengthened challenge, and can point to a number of successful 
challenges by the Board, such as ensuing the inclusion of the voice of the 
child within the Children’s Partnership Plan and taking on the findings from 
multi agency audits. There is a greater degree of transparency and openness 
at the Board and you recognise the scale of improvements that are needed. 
Whilst there is clear evidence of improvements in performance reporting you 
know that this has to improve further so that HSCB can maximise its 
effectiveness.   
 
There is clear evidence that multi agency training and learning from your SCR 
is having an impact at the frontline. You recognise the need to provide the 
Board with more effective and better resourced business support and are 
working with partners to secure sustainable levels of funding to achieve this. 
 
You are aware that in making the effective transition from the Improvement 
Board, the current pace, depth and relevance of the Board will need to 
increase. Your improved sense of purpose and focus as a partnership has 
served you well so far and you are confident of taking Board oversight to the 
next level and we identified the capability for you to undertake this task 
effectively. 
 
You have already begun to plan for the transition from the Improvement 
Board. You need to include in your transition plan risk analysis and 

160



contingency planning. A six month programme of transition support, including 
coaching and mentoring for key Board members, would help to ensure that 
the Board maintains sufficient and effective oversight, challenge and pace in 
the period after the Intervention Notice.  
 

161



Overarching messages    
 
• Clarity of role and priorities for HSCB: We believe that there is a 

need to clarify and assert the oversight and challenge role of the 
HSCB, and to focus down on driving a small number of immediate 
priorities that will continue to enhance improvement of frontline 
safeguarding. At the moment that which distinguishes the role of the 
HSCB from the Improvement Board, and other fora such as the 
Children’s Partnership and Community Safety Partnership is not clear 
to everyone. HSCB activity is not coordinated on a small number of key 
priorities that drive the strategic board, the steering group and your sub 
groups. 

• Take the initiative on improvement: You have been under the 
spotlight in terms of improvement but we saw a renewed confidence 
that you can manage this process yourselves; and a willingness to take 
the sometimes difficult decisions that will inevitably be necessary 

• Reactive to proactive: We feel that you need to move from reacting to 
external critique and inspection to a proactive approach based upon 
forthright self assessment, where you use your own self knowledge, 
constantly re-evaluated, to identify and act on areas for improvement 

• Process to outcomes: At the moment you are too process focused, 
the aim of structures is to achieve measurable outcomes for children;  
processes will only take you so far and the Board needs to concentrate 
on what will achieve measurable improvement in practice against key 
outcomes and keep reporting this 

• Do less but focus: You are spreading your resources across many 
areas, we suggest that you do less but focus your attention upon circa 
six key priorities that link across the work of the strategic board, the 
steering group and your subgroups, that way you can begin to show 
impact 

• Network network network: You are open to external learning 
opportunities and continuing to make the most of the support and new 
ideas that these bring is essential, and this is having an impact; as you 
take over from the Improvement Board you will continue to need the 
support and guidance these networks give you as a sounding board 
and to provide coaching and mentoring  

• Beg borrow and steal: You can save yourself time and energy by 
using the success of others wisely; do not be afraid to beg, borrow and 
steal ideas to save developing your own solutions to everything 

• It’s about the big picture not just ticking the box on documents: 
We have seen that sometimes completing a task is equated with 
achieving improvement; for example in May 2014 HSCB completed a 
self assessment but this does not appear to be updated or re-evaluated 
to reflect whether/how the Board has progressed. By consistently 
revisiting the findings and using the self assessment as a living 
document that you self evaluate against at subsequent meetings you 
will improve its value in supporting improvement. The value of a self 
assessment, or QA report findings, or challenge to an agency on lack 
of progress, lies solely in what you do with it on an ongoing basis to 
ensure something of value occurs on the back of the original action.  

162



Working together compliance 
 
Strengths 
 
• You have renewed and reinvigorated your local threshold document; 

this has been widely disseminated and is helping to drive improvement 
in frontline practice. Staff value the document you have produced 
  

• The SCR and Child Death Review arrangements are working well and 
we were impressed by the quality of the people we interviewed. The 
case review decision process referral form is effective and there are 
clear escalation processes. Staff could readily refer to learning from the 
HH SCR 

 
• You have recognised the need to improve the functioning of the 

safeguarding board and have held a number of successful 
development events. We thought that the joint meeting with the 
Children’s Partnership was a very productive initiative, and heard 
reports that the CSE event was very useful 

 
• Your statutory core membership is compliant with regulations 

 
• The proposed induction arrangements and training/mentoring for Board 

members is a very positive step forward to maximise effective 
participation in the work of the Board and we also welcome the training 
initiative to improve councillor awareness of safeguarding 

  
• The buddy system to embed challenge in the way you undertake 

Section 11 audits is a very positive improvement 
 
 
Areas requiring improvement 
 
• Although there is an established protocol between the Health and 

Wellbeing Board and HSCB, this needs to be strengthened and 
brought up to date and include the Adults Safeguarding Board, the 
Children’s Partnership and the Community Safety Partnership; terms of 
reference do not yet effectively delineate these key strategic 
relationships 
  

• You undertook Section 11 audits in 2013 to hold partners to account 
and drive improvement but the impact of these has been diluted by not 
being able to evidence effective follow up. At that time, some agencies 
didn’t have clear statement of responsibility towards children, and a 
number of agencies reported that safeguarding needs to be a standing 
item at senior management meetings. The discrepancy between your 
own section11 findings and the recent CQC inspection of Wye Valley 
Trust need to be investigated to ensure that all Section 11 audits are 
undertaken with the necessary rigour in the future and that the Board 
follows up progress assiduously. 

163



 
• Your S175 (maintained schools) and S157 (independent and academy 

schools) analysis needs to be carried out and any learning fed back; 
this process could help to strengthen the role of schools and 
academies on HSCB 
 

• You have some well established working  relationships with the 
education sector, and board representation - ‘they are part of the 
family’ - but equally acknowledge that this is a work in progress that 
warrants improved engagement and communication to move beyond 
those ‘already signed up’ as well as including the early years sector 
 

• We recognise that your learning and improvement framework is at an 
early stage of development. A more joined up and cohesive learning 
and improvement framework will help you to better understand the 
safeguarding system; especially if informed by service user feedback. 
HSCB attendance logs should be maintained and regularly reviewed to 
ensure reach is maximised 
 

• You could use the Annual Report more smartly to explore vulnerable 
groups of children, to identify priority areas of business and to influence 
planning and commissioning linked to Children’s Integrated Needs 
Assessment which will also reinforce a single plan. An improved focus 
in the annual report on performance reporting linked to key priorities 
and thematic audits is needed. At the moment audit is effective in what 
it sets out to do but is limited in impact on improvement because of the 
focus on remedial action to address individual learning from cases. 
Audit - and Board performance monitoring - needs to be thematic not 
case reactive 

 
• You have recognised the need to update procedures and these are 

part of your improvement plan, but in order for the HSCB to have an 
effective grip and control we think you should review the three year 
timeframe on this. HSCB will also need to endorse the Local Authority 
assessment framework as per Paragraph 62 (Chapter1) of Working 
Together 2013 

 
• In Working Together 2013 early help is a key feature. This was not 

within our remit for the diagnostic so we are unable to form a view on 
this.  

 
 
Board effectiveness 

 
Strengths 
 
• Good will, ambition, willingness to work together 
 
• Drive and ambition within the sub groups, the strategic board and the 

steering group 

164



 
• Intent to create structure to achieve coordination across the Community 

Safety Partnership, Children’s Partnership and Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

  
• Case review learning processes involving front line practitioners 

provide a line of sight to the frontline 
 
• QA process 

 
• Delivery of training strategy based on needs analysis 

  
 

Areas requiring improvement 
 

• Pause and take time to know yourself. You have had to undertake a 
very considerable improvement journey. We think now is the time to 
take stock of where you are, identify what you do well, and where you 
have to be more effective, and focus on getting it right all the time. That 
will make you an effective forum for challenge and oversight, a function 
that will be all the more important if the Intervention Notice is shortly to 
be lifted 

 
• Learn to trust your own judgement. You are very used to receiving 

external definitions of your areas for development, and have used 
those judgements well to drive improvement. To achieve your own 
ambition of ‘good by 2016’ you will have to become an effective 
learning organisation that consistently is self aware on both success 
and failure and continuously monitors its own working arrangements 
and progress on key goals. At the moment you are beginning this 
process and your May 2014 self assessment provides the basis for 
stepping up to the challenge if it is used smartly to regularly reassess 
how you are performing. A simple review of progress against the self 
assessment would be a useful way to conclude board meetings and 
could be incorporated as a standing final item on the agenda, focussing 
on a small set of easily understandable questions such as how  much 
have we done to address deficits and improve our own working as well 
as frontline practice, how well have we done it, and what difference 
have we made today against each of our priorities? 

 
• One plan to take you forward, focus on making a difference. You are all 

working hard on many fronts but need to focus all that activity upon 
what is most important At present the HSCB does not have a small and 
consistent set of key priorities that inform its work from strategic board 
to sub groups, nor do other strategic plans yet align fully across with 
your own. Success will only come with a consistent focus for your and 
others’ activities on those small number of factors that will make a 
difference now, that the HSCB monitors regularly and challenges when 
necessary. A golden thread needs to link across all strategic fora and 
within the HSCB from the strategic board down through the steering 

165



group to each and every sub group; all need to share the same work 
programme with their own work stream clearly linked to the overarching 
priorities and feeding into to them 

 
• Project management. The Children of Herefordshire Improvement 

Partnership Programme has proved that you have effective project 
managers within the partnership. Use this expertise to improve rigour 
and robustness within the Board. Using a project management 
approach, and a smaller but clearly delineated set of common priorities, 
will help to improve rigour and robustness of performance monitoring 
and subsequent holding to account for under performance 

  
• Pace up. You are ambitious to take over from the Improvement Board 

their responsibilities. This will require increased responsibility and 
oversight by HSCB to ensure the pace of improvement is maintained. 
You are planning how you will achieve this increase in responsibility 
and oversight at the next HSCB meeting. This meeting provides a good 
opportunity to start to employ a project management approach to plan 
for and take through to conclusion this transition. You are aware that 
you may need to put in place transitional arrangements and 
support/mentoring and are investigating who is best placed to provide 
this. It is equally important that you develop a risk register, for the wider 
improvement journey, as well as for the transition to taking over from 
the improvement board and use this to move forward effectively; and 
contingency plan to minimise deficit and failure. Key questions to take 
you forward include; do you know where you are in getting to good? 
Are you clear what taking on the scrutiny role post the Improvement 
Board actually means in practice for the HSCB? What are the risks and 
what is needed to be put in place to secure this role for the HSCB 
going forward? 

 
• Where does the real power lie and how does this impact on wider 

engagement? We heard the steering group described as the engine 
room but this group is chaired by the Assistant Director, Children’s 
Safeguarding and Family Support and not by the HSCB Independent 
Chair. If this is the engine room we feel it should be chaired by the 
Independent Chair; and if indeed it is to continue as the engine room, 
what implications does this have for the strategic board, is the strategic 
board to become just a rubber stamp for the steering group, and, if so, 
how will that impact on engagement and ownership of improvement 
across the wider partnership on that strategic board? The messages 
given out by how your structure is actually perceived to work in practice 
will influence how well engaged all partners are with the Board 
 

• You have good police attendance at the Board but the current 
arrangements put in place by the merged police forces (the strategic 
alliance) may not best serve the Board; we think this is an issue that 
needs to be raised on a pan regional basis and would advise that this is 
taken forward in conjunction with your neighbouring Boards through the 

166



developing arrangements in which the Chair of the HSCB and the DCS 
are engaged.   

 
• The voice of the child, and family, is not very well developed at Board 

level. You acknowledge this and are planning to address this in the 
near future. The views of young people and families can inform HSCB 
business priorities and provide effective challenge on improvement 
through user feedback 

 
Evidence of challenge and holding to account 
 
Strengths 
 
• The HSCB now operates with a stronger degree of challenge. There is 

more honest discussion of for example the deficits revealed by the 
case audits and the need for the partnership as a whole to work 
smarter. We were told that there is now much greater transparency in 
partnership discussions when it is identified that things have gone 
wrong 

  
• The two recently appointed lay members are reported to add significant 

value to the work of the Board and to have enhanced challenge within 
Board meetings 

 
• HSCB can be proud of a number of ‘challenge successes’. These 

include taking on the findings from the programme of multi agency 
audits, challenging the Children’s Partnership to include the voice of 
the child within the children’s partnership plan, and negotiating for the 
Children’s Integrated Needs Analysis to supplement for the lack of a 
children’s safeguarding focus within the JSNA 

 
• Case specific escalation via the QA sub group has been very effective 

in raising case specific deficits at Board level and is a good first step to 
a successful QA sub group 

 
• There is widespread recognition of the need to produce a data set that 

is fit for purpose and work is ongoing to achieve this linked to the 
ongoing transformation programme for the Frameworki computer 
system in social care 

 
 
Areas requiring improvement 
 
• Increase in data quality and evidence of impact. You are working to 

improve data quality but the focus is on producing better quality and fit 
for purpose quantitative data. A positive enhancement of the data set 
would be to include qualitative measures, including user and family 
feedback. This has begun with the most recent feedback from families 
and professionals on the effectiveness of child protection conferences. 
  

167



• HSCB should prioritise establishing a set of indicators against each 
Board priority and have these set out in regularly updated performance 
scorecards. This would help to give assurance to the Board that 
frontline practice improvements were being embedded and sustained. 

 
• A strengthened QA sub group is needed to drive development. The QA 

subgroup is very active and has raised many useful issues but at heart 
it is reactive to the deficits of individual cases. The sub group needs to 
move to looking at findings from individual cases as a pointer to wider 
thematic issues that hold back improvement and move from individual 
case review to thematic practice based audit. The group meets monthly 
but only four multi agency audits were undertaken last year. A more 
focused and productive work programme needs to be developed that 
will feed in to the newly revised key priorities of the Board 

 
• Much smarter QA reporting would provide the Board with the 

information it needs to challenge on its priorities. HSCB is already 
aware of a number of potential thematic and practice focussed issues 
e.g. the waiting times for CAMHs and the Speech and Language 
Service. Currently, although well known practice issues, there has been 
little escalation or challenge via HSCB on either of these. There is 
potential here for the QA subgroup to focus on these areas as an 
exemplar of future working practices which will also enable the Board 
to drive improvement across the multi-agency partnership. 

 
 
Capacity training and managing resources 

 
Strengths 
 
• You have recognised that you need to increase capacity of the 

business unit, and that synergies can be obtained by coordinating 
business support across other fora. A plan is in place to enhance 
business support and negotiate a sustainable multi agency funding 
stream 
 

• We saw evidence of an effective training cycle in operation, one recent 
good example of which was the development and commissioning of DV 
training on the back of this being flagged as an issue in the staff survey 

   
• We heard lots of positive feedback on the training and development 

events delivered by the Board and you looking at implementing 
evaluation of impact 

 
• Learning from the HH SCR was evidenced in our discussions with 

frontline staff 
 
 
Areas requiring improvement 
 

168



• In the post Improvement Board world HSCB will have to work much 
smarter. One obvious example is in the regular use of performance 
management techniques to drive forward improvement. This can be 
brought in e.g. by consulting with colleagues who have employed this 
successfully within the Children of Herefordshire Improvement 
Partnership Programme. 

  
• You are planning to look at how you put in transition arrangements to 

support the Board in the immediate period following the lifting of the 
Intervention Notice and to do this successfully you need to undertake 
risk analysis, contingency plan and put in place the kind of transitional 
leadership support that we set out below  

 
• You need to secure the future funding across partner agencies for a 

strengthened business unit as without that the work of HSCB will be 
compromised. The business unit is not resourced effectively at the 
present time and struggles to provide the high standard that it sets itself 
in terms of support to the two safeguarding Boards 

  
• It would be useful to set out clearly what the next year will look like in 

terms of the Board. What does a 3, 6, 12 month trajectory on HSCB 
improvement look like? What are the milestones that you need to see 
and the actions necessary to achieve the step change in oversight that 
HSCB is aiming for, and how will you report on and know you are 
making progress? Setting these out clearly and simply and agreeing 
them with the whole partnership will start to make your work more 
outcome focused and provide focus for the work of the various sub 
groups. It will help to identify skill deficits within the Board so these can 
be addressed in a systematic and timely way 

 
• There is a wider capacity issue that HSCB needs to address, namely 

capacity and fitness for purpose of the children’s workforce in the 
widest sense. We have mentioned above access to specialist services 
such as CAMHS and Speech and Language Services but there are 
other capacity issues where the board needs to secure improvement 
e.g. management oversight and decision making as well as stability of 
the children’s workforce. These require analysis, holding to account 
and challenge at Board level. Again these provide a good starting point 
for effective project management of key issues and priorities and are 
examples of the work which the Safeguarding Children Board will be 
taking over from the Improvement Board.   
 

 
Vision strategy and leadership 

 
Strengths 
 
• Excellent progress has been made since the peer review 14 months 

ago, and there is coordinated and effective working with key players to 
identify improvement targets and to address deficits 

169



 
• You are ambitious and are committed to achieving the improvements 

necessary to have articulated what ‘good’ is in Herefordshire, and be 
judged ‘good’ by Ofsted by 2016/17 

 
• There is strong cross party political commitment to the safeguarding  

agenda, and a clear prioritisation of the children’s agenda within HCC 
 
• We saw a strong commitment to corporate parenting which is to be 

strengthened by mandatory councillor training which will continue after 
the 2015 elections 

 
• The detailed analysis of need provided by the new Children’s 

Integrated Needs Assessment will help to focus attention on achieving 
improved outcomes 

 
• You are working well to address local and regional CSE issues 

 
• The HSCB Chair has regular meetings with the Chief Executive, the 

Director of Children’s Services, the Portfolio Holder and the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 

 
Areas requiring improvement 
 
• You are aware you need to increase the current pace depth and 

relevance of the Board to secure the handover from the Improvement 
Board of their responsibilities – we would advice a programme of 
coaching and mentoring for key players to maintain progress in what 
could be a risky period. 

 
• You need a simplified and coordinated shared vision of the 

safeguarding priorities that drives the work of the partnership and 
informs the challenge function of the Board. This should include 
continued work to achieve and maintain the culture shift that 
safeguarding is not just a local authority responsibility 

  
• You need an HSCB identity, and for the HSCB to become more 

influential and visible  
 
• Simple clear roles and priorities for the HSCB would help to define its 

true purpose – you need to avoid the current blurring of Board roles, to 
help you to distinguish between what is HSCB and what is Children’s 
Services 

 
• If you continue with this structure we are strongly of the belief that the 

Independent Chair should chair and drive the steering group. This will 
enable the Independent Chair to have increased oversight of the work 
being taken forward in the sub groups and to ensure that the work of 
the sub groups reflects and aligns with HSCB priorities 

170



 
• We were not convinced that there is clarity, discussed and agreed 

across the partnership, on the role and remit of the steering group, nor 
its relationship to the strategic board. There is a fundamental question 
to answer here, namely where do you want your power house to be, 
and who do you want to lead it? At the moment this is unclear to us, 
and this lack of clarity may well be shared with others 

 
• Current MASH governance via a HSCB sub group is an example of the 

blurred roles we discuss above. We know why you chose this 
arrangement initially; nevertheless this is an operational delivery 
function and with the MASH reinvigorated do you still need governance 
via HSCB? 

 
• Capture and gather the voice of the child and feedback from families– 

the voice of children and families should be at the heart of everything 
HSCB does and a major influence on how HSCB pushes for change 

 
• Police regularly attend the Board meetings; however, we do believe 

that it would be worth exploring with your police representatives firstly,  
how police plans interact across the Protecting Vulnerable People Plan, 
the local delivery plan and the CSE strategy to deliver better 
safeguarding outcomes and, secondly, whether current arrangements 
for Board representation by the Police deliver local knowledge and 
focus 

 
• We feel that current arrangements for meetings between the 

Independent Chair and key senior managers, politicians and 
stakeholders should be formalised with a clear, set agenda that 
includes performance reporting and holding to account through the 
Annual Report 

 
Audit validation - commentary on the findings of four cases 
 
The audit validation was bespoke and focused on a safeguarding system 
approach to child protection planning and working together, to achieve 
improved outcomes. 
 
Strengths 
 
• Staff were engaged and appeared to communicate with each other 
 
• Staff were aware that practice needs to improve in order to improve 

outcomes for children subject to Child Protection Plans 
 
• Staff acknowledge a range of issues that currently impact on 

performance e.g. turnover of staff 
 
• Staff welcome further training to improve practice; they were reflective 

in the focus groups and would welcome more time for case reflection  

171



 
Areas requiring improvement 

• Plans were not robust – neither SMART nor linked to outcomes 

 

• We saw a lack of contingency planning 

 

• Expectations on parents were not made clear 

 

• Managers did not consistently attend conferences and core groups. 
Effective management oversight is key to ensuring progression of Child 
Protection Plans 

 

• There was some evidence of drift in both assessment and intervention; 
a major cause of this was the high number of changes of social worker 

 

• We saw numerous changes in social worker between conferences 

 

• The parenting assessments we saw were neither robust nor timely 

 

• There was a lack of escalation from all partner agencies when progress 
was not made on plans by any agency 

 

• Decision making wasn’t clearly recorded with the rationale and the risk 
management clearly set  

 

• Multi agency training on conferencing needs further developing 
 

 
CSE 
• You have put in place a strategy and action plan, there is a 

reinvigorated structure, a specialist CSE unit has been established, 
there is currently a new specialist social worker in this unit, to be joined 
by a police post in the next financial year 

  
• The new strategy complies with national recommendation and is based 

on national guidelines 
 
• The action plan is a positive step forward, however, it has numerous 

actions but no real outcomes. It is lengthy, and there is a real need to 
prioritise the priorities! With so many outcomes it is unrealistic for them 
all to be completed. A focus on a smaller number of key priorities in the 
immediate term is needed, with consideration of how additional 
priorities can be rolled out over time. As yet the action plan has not 
been effectively disseminated 

172



 
• The new CSE team (that was only in place during the week of our visit) 

have been very quick off the mark and reports from other frontline staff 
are positive, which is very impressive for such a new development. 
There is the potential that demand will swamp this new provision so 
there is a need for tightly controlled and managed referrals to the unit 
 

• The police are committed to increase their involvement and resources 
over the coming twelve to twenty four months 

 
• The Board structure is now clear with a CSE group and an operational 

group below this  
 
Recommendations 
 

You might wish to consider the following recommendations. These are 
based on what the team has read, seen and heard over the course of the 
LSCB diagnostic. 

 
• Identify a small number of HSCB priorities aligned across other 

strategic fora - and stick with them, when refining your priorities decide 
which are immediate priorities to be put in place now and what are 
aspirations for the longer term 

 
• Fund and implement a reinvigorated and fit for purpose business unit 

 
• Review the Board structure in the light of your priorities and statutory 

requirements and streamline the steering group and make this a chair 
of chairs group 

 
• Make sure all members of the strategic board are fully engaged and 

understand their relationship between being on the Board, improving 
agency practice and achieving impact on outcomes for children 

 
• Make all agencies accountable for what they have committed to at the 

Board 
 
• Locate MASH governance within Children’s Services operational 

management structure 
 
• Use formal challenge by HSCB to other agencies to escalate concerns 

revealed through audit and feedback from the staff and families 
 
• Evidence impact of HSCB challenge and the better outcomes that 

HSCB has achieved 
 
• Project manage everything especially the transition from the 

Improvement Board 
 

173



• You are seeking tangible improvement in children’s lives and need an 
outcome focus to ensure that what you do achieves this 

 
• User voice will give the Board confidence and understanding of what 

has and has not made an impact 
 
 
Throughout this letter we have sought to outline the strengths of the LSCB 
arrangements in Herefordshire, along with areas for consideration and 
improvement.  You and your colleagues will no doubt now wish to reflect on 
the team’s findings and consider how our findings might inform future plans 
and activities.  
 
For further improvement support you can contact the LGA’s Principal Adviser 
for the West Midlands region, Howard Davis, who can be contacted via 
howard.davis@local.gov.uk or on 07920 006 1971 . In addition, you can 
contact Claire Burgess, LGA Children’s Improvement Adviser covering the 
South West Region for specialist support. Claire can be contacted via 
claire.burgess23@gmail.com or on 07854 407337. 
  
Once again, thank you for participating in the LSCB pilot diagnostic and 
please pass on our gratitude to everyone involved.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
Peter Rentell 
Programme Manager (Children’s Services) 
Local Government Association 
 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 - Audit validation  - initial plans 
 

174



Appendix 1 – Audit validation initial plans 

175



LGA LSCB pilot diagnostic Herefordshire County Council 
LGA peer: Jonathan Williams 
Date: 17-19 November 2014 
 
 
Audit validation – initial plans - summary 
 
Five cases were looked at; four of these involved meeting with a focus group 
and two of these involved the inclusion of a parent. The fifth case was linked 
to the observation of a CP conference. It was unfortunate that the conference 
could not be observed because the parent did not consent. A telephone 
conversation later took place with the CP chair. 
 
Notes about the individual cases are outlined below 
 
Strengths 
 

· Staff were engaged and appeared to communicate with each other 
· Staff were aware that practice needs to improve in order to improve 

outcomes for children subject to CP Plans 
· Staff acknowledge a range of issues that currently impact on 

performance e.g. turnover of staff 
· Staff would welcome training to improve practice; they were reflective 

in the focus groups and would welcome more time for case reflection  
 
Areas requiring improvement 

· Plans were not robust – neither SMART nor linked to outcomes 

· We saw a lack of contingency planning 

· Expectations on parents were not made clear 

· Managers did not consistently attend conferences and core groups. 
Effective management oversight is key to ensuring progression of CP 
plans 

· There was drift in both assessment and intervention 

· We saw numerous changes in social worker between ICPC and RCPC 

· Parenting assessments were neither robust nor timely 

· There was a lack of escalation from all partner agencies when progress 
was not made on plans 

· Some decisions made could have made children vulnerable and left 
organisations at risk 

· Multi agency training on conferencing needs developing 

 

It would appear that the main focus of improving plans has been linked to the 
redesign of Framework I and the reformatting of the iitial plan layout. Only one 
of the cases had this plan in place as it had only been introduced in the last 
two weeks; the plan did look better.  

176



However a systems approach to approving plans may be required.in addition 
to the newly introduced format; this would entail for instance asking the 
following questions from a multi-agency perspective - how much have we 
done, how well have we done it and has it made a difference? 

 

During the audit validation we saw a number of issues that impacted on 
effective planning 

  

· Changes of social worker (one case had four changes of social worker 
in the period from assessment to first review); 

· Lack of risk analysis (often there were blanket risk statements, eg 
mother smokes cannabis. It did not state how much, when, frequency, 
storage, whether the child was present etc. – there was little connection 
with the impact on the child);  

· Poor management oversight (little evidence of managers attending CP 
conferences or core groups) – is this linked to capacity, managing high 
caseloads and frequent changes of staff? Managers from focus groups 
seemed engaged, intelligent, insightful and reflective with a genuine 
aim of improving outcomes for children. Therefore wider issues need to 
be explored 

· Ineffective plans. It is the role of the Chair to steer, facilitate and 
provide guidance and leadership. However partner agencies need to 
own the plan and contribute to it at conference. There is a lack of 
training and direction in relation to the model of conference. There are 
snippets of strengthening families being used but this is only by Social 
Care. The LSCB could take a view on what model needs to be taken 
forward and develop it accordingly, including the commissioning of 
training. 

· All participants need to be responsible for escalation of issues, 
especially when there is drift on case because of agencies’ 
ineffectiveness to provide a service. The two parents who attended the 
ICPC’s were not given copies of the complaint procedure in relation to 
agencies where progression of the case was being hindered because 
of agency engagement. In addition, agencies did not escalate when 
there were changes in social workers, when actions were not 
completed, when services were not being delivered; this is not solely 
an issue for social care and the chair. 

 

A number of key questions arise from the audit validation in relation to 
oversight by the LSCB.  

 

First is a series of questions in relation to oversight of performance and 
practice 

 

177



· The LSCB could use the above analysis as a starting point to 
investigate how far what has emerged from our findings is leading to an 
increase in CP plans 

 

· Are the issues raised in the audit validation exercise currently being 
measured by the LSCB, and, if so, in what way do you need to amend 
or improve oversight, and, if not, how is the LSCB to investigate further 
the findings of the audit validation exercise? 

 

· Is the current method of scrutiny of the LSCB data set and associated 
quality assurance activity via the sub group fit for purpose so as to 
reassure the Board that front line practice is – and will continue to be - 
safe and effective? 

 
Second how the work of the LSCB links with improving front line practice  
 
With regards to the front line staff’s view of the LSCB, staff from focus groups 
demonstrated the following 
 

· Learning from the recent SCR HH – staff understood the issues. There 
was some query about delay of the Framework I LAC notification being 
put on the system. 

· Good training for multi-agency staff at operational level including 
learning from the HH SCR e.g. CSE, Framework I and Domestic 
Abuse.  

· Training is not as relevant for middle and senior managers 
· The threshold document is understood by partner agencies 
· Referral pathways have improved, especially since there have been 

developments in the MASH 

 

178



Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 1
3 

 

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 W
el

lb
ei

n
g

 D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 

T
h

e 
Jo

u
rn

ey
 t

o
 G

o
o

d
 –

 P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

ep
o

rt
 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

2 
to

 D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
4 

 

1.
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
1.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ha

ve
 t

he
 a

m
bi

tio
n 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
go

od
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 b
y 

20
16

/1
7.

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t 

se
ts

 o
ut

 t
he

 j
ou

rn
ey

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
an

d 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 j

ud
ge

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 b
e 

in
ad

eq
ua

te
; c

ur
re

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fe

at
ur

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n 
to

 g
et

 to
 g

oo
d.

 

1.
2.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

er
e 

cl
ea

r 
in

 2
01

2 
th

at
 t

he
 O

fs
te

d 
ju

dg
em

en
t 

w
as

 f
ai

r 
an

d 
th

at
 t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

te
n 

ye
ar

 
pr

of
ile

 o
f 

ad
eq

ua
te

/in
ad

eq
ua

te
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

as
 u

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e.

 T
he

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
da

te
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
ta

ge
d 

to
 

en
su

re
 th

er
e 

is
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

ha
ng

e 
w

hi
ch

 e
st

ab
lis

he
s 

th
e 

rig
ht

 c
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 s

ta
ff 

ca
n 

gi
ve

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
be

st
. 

1.
3.

 
A

t 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 d
ay

, 
w

e 
al

l 
w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
ou

tc
om

es
. G

oo
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
is

 a
t t

he
 c

or
e 

of
 o

ur
 

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, a

nd
 o

ur
 p

la
n 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is
 r

es
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f: 

o
 

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ch

ild
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
pr

ac
tic

e 
 

o
 

D
ire

ct
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 u

si
ng

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
d 

th
eo

re
tic

al
 m

od
el

s 
of

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

1.
4.

 
O

ur
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

fo
cu

ss
es

 o
n 

th
e 

be
lie

f 
th

at
 f

am
ili

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 b

rin
g 

up
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

be
st

. 
T

hr
ou

gh
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 w
e 

w
ill

: 

A
pp

en
di

x 
3

179



Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 1
3 

 

o
 

U
nd

er
st

an
d 

ou
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
 o

ur
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s 

ea
rly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
ro

ug
h 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 d
at

a 
an

d 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
o

 
U

se
 th

e 
as

se
ts

 in
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 fa
m

ili
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 v

ol
un

te
er

s 
o

 
G

iv
e 

fa
m

ili
es

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, c
ho

ic
e 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 s

tr
en

gt
hs

 
o

 
W

he
re

 fa
m

ili
es

 c
an

no
t l

oo
k 

af
te

r 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ch
ild

re
n,

 w
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 fa
m

ily
 b

as
ed

 m
od

el
s 

of
 c

ar
e 

o
 

O
ve

r 
tim

e,
 

m
ov

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fr
om

 
ex

pe
ns

iv
e,

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

lis
ed

 
fo

rm
s 

of
 

su
pp

or
t 

to
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

ba
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 
o

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 p

at
hw

ay
s 

of
 s

up
po

rt
 s

o 
th

at
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

se
am

le
ss

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
s,

 
w

he
re

ve
r 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
co

m
es

 fr
om

 
 2.

 
H

O
W

 W
E

 W
E

R
E

: 
S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
01

2 
– 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
3 

2.
1.

 
In

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

, 
O

fs
te

d 
fo

un
d 

an
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
sy

st
em

. 
T

hi
s 

w
as

 t
yp

ifi
ed

 b
y 

a 
sy

st
em

 w
hi

ch
 d

id
 n

ot
 

kn
ow

 i
ts

el
f 

w
el

l, 
di

d 
no

t 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 w
ha

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
as

, 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 f
ra

gm
en

te
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
. C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
er

e 
no

t a
 p

rio
rit

y 
an

d,
 d

es
pi

te
 in

ve
st

m
en

t, 
so

m
e 

ch
ild

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
er

e 
in

 t
he

 b
ot

to
m

 q
ua

rt
ile

 o
f 

fu
nd

in
g 

na
tio

na
lly

 d
es

pi
te

 h
av

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 o

ut
st

rip
pe

d 
st

at
is

tic
al

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s.

 

2.
2.

 
In

 c
on

tr
as

t, 
ea

rly
 h

el
p 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
er

e 
w

el
l 

or
ga

ni
se

d 
an

d 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 w
el

l 
re

so
ur

ce
d;

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 g

ro
up

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
vi

de
nc

ed
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

fo
cu

s 
on

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 t

og
et

he
r 

as
 

ag
en

ci
es

. 

2.
3.

 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 w
as

 w
ea

k 
ov

er
al

l, 
an

d 
w

hi
ls

t 
pe

op
le

 w
er

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 e

xt
re

m
el

y 
ha

rd
, 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
ad

 b
ec

om
e 

co
m

pl
ac

en
t, 

ag
ai

ns
t 

a 
ba

ck
dr

op
 o

f 
te

n 
ye

ar
s 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
ju

dg
ed

 a
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 o
r 

in
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

t 
va

rio
us

 
st

ag
es

. 

2.
4.

 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
ju

dg
em

en
t, 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

fo
ur

 th
in

gs
: 

o
 

T
he

 ju
dg

em
en

t w
as

 fa
ir 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

ha
d 

to
 b

e 
on

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s,

 n
ot

 d
ef

en
di

ng
 th

e 
in

de
fe

ns
ib

le
 

180



Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 1
3 

 

o
 

T
hi

s 
w

as
 a

 s
ys

te
m

 w
id

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y,

 n
ot

 ju
st

 a
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
on

e 
to

 p
ut

 r
ig

ht
 

o
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ne
ed

ed
 t

o 
be

 r
ap

id
, 

bu
t 

al
so

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

. 
T

hi
s 

m
ea

nt
 g

et
tin

g 
un

de
rn

e
at

h 
al

l t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
up

 fr
om

 th
e 

ba
si

cs
 a

ga
in

. 
o

 
T

he
 c

ul
tu

re
 h

ad
 t

o 
ch

an
ge

  
- 

to
 b

e 
an

 h
on

es
t, 

le
ar

ni
ng

 c
ul

tu
re

, 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 f

ro
m

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r, 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
ou

tc
om

es
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 s

tr
en

gt
hs

 

2.
5.

 
T

he
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
ra

je
ct

or
y 

w
as

 s
et

 –
 a

de
qu

at
e/

re
qu

ire
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t b

y 
20

14
/1

5 
an

d 
go

od
 b

y 
20

16
/1

7.
 

2.
6.

 
T

hi
ng

s 
w

e 
di

d 
w

el
l: 

 

o
 T

ak
in

g 
ra

pi
d 

st
ep

s 
to

 s
et

 u
p 

an
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 c

ha
ire

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t b
oa

rd
 a

nd
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
o

 N
ot

 w
as

tin
g 

tim
e 

on
 d

en
ia

l 
o

 S
ec

ur
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

ou
nc

il 
re

so
ur

ci
ng

 fo
r 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 
o

 E
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
as

 th
e 

to
p 

pr
io

rit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

o
 C

ha
ng

in
g 

th
e 

po
lit

ic
al

 a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 d
is

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
th

e 
P

eo
pl

e 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
an

d 
m

em
be

r 
ro

le
 a

nd
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
de

di
ca

te
d 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

an
d 

se
ni

or
 o

ffi
ce

r 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

o
 E

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 t

he
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 c
ul

tu
re

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 a
ud

iti
ng

 o
f 

ov
er

 1
00

0 
ca

se
s,

 d
ra

w
in

g 
ou

t 
th

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 th

at
 a

nd
 th

e 
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t o

f a
 s

m
al

l q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
o

 E
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 th
e 

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
hu

b 
o

 E
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 th
e 

S
oc

ia
l W

or
k 

A
ca

de
m

y 
o

 U
np

ic
ki

ng
 th

e 
da

ta
 

o
 E

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 th

e 
ea

rly
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 a
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

ul
tu

re
 

o
 S

ec
ur

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l c
ha

lle
ng

e,
 w

ith
 e

xt
er

na
lly

 m
on

ito
re

d 
st

ag
in

g 
po

in
ts

 to
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 w
e 

w
er

e 
m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
an

d 
no

t s
lip

pi
ng

 b
ac

k 

2.
7.

 
T

hi
ng

s 
w

hi
ch

 d
id

n’
t g

o 
so

 w
el

l: 

o
 

T
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t d

es
ta

bi
lis

at
io

n 
of

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
k 

st
af

fin
g 

– 
4%

 a
ge

nc
y 

to
 4

0%
 a

ge
nc

y 
st

af
f i

n 
9 

m
on

th
s 

o
 

N
ot

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 th
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 c

le
ar

ly
 e

no
ug

h 
w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

o
 

S
lo

w
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

w
ith

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 a
t e

ve
ry

 le
ve

l 

181



Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 1
3 

 

o
 

D
iff

ic
ul

t s
ta

rt
 to

 th
e 

M
A

S
H

 e
vi

de
nc

in
g 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

o
 

A
n 

ov
er

am
bi

tio
us

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
 p

rio
rit

is
ed

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pl
an

 –
 o

n 
re

fle
ct

io
n,

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
er

e 
to

o 
fo

cu
ss

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 a
nd

 in
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
da

y 
to

 d
ay

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
o

 
S

lo
w

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ith
 i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 w
hi

ch
 a

ls
o 

ca
us

ed
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

 w
ith

 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 

2.
8.

 
T

he
 e

nd
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

hi
s 

w
as

  p
ra

ct
ic

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 to
o 

sl
ow

. 

2.
9.

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 t

he
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
, 

w
er

e 
cl

ea
r 

at
 t

he
 

ou
ts

et
 t

ha
t f

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
to

 b
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e,
 w

e 
ne

ed
ed

 e
xt

er
na

l m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

at
 s

et
 p

oi
nt

s.
 A

s 
w

e 
w

er
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

 a
 d

ec
ad

e 
of

 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
, 

w
e 

kn
ew

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
m

os
t 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

th
in

gs
 t

o 
ch

an
ge

 a
re

 o
ld

 h
ab

its
; 

an
d 

th
at

 
so

un
d 

ju
dg

em
en

t t
ak

es
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

to
 g

et
 r

ig
ht

. 

2.
10

. T
he

re
fo

re
, 

tw
el

ve
 m

on
th

s 
af

te
r 

th
is

 i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3 

a 
P

ee
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 t
oo

k 
pl

ac
e,

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 t
he

 H
S

C
B

 v
ia

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
ev

al
ua

te
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 T
hi

s 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 t
ha

t 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

ad
 s

ta
rt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
jo

ur
ne

y 
bu

t 
th

at
 t

he
 p

ac
e 

ha
d 

be
en

 s
lo

w
. 

T
he

 r
ev

ie
w

 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 th
es

e 
w

er
e 

ea
rly

 d
ay

s.
  

2.
11

. “
Y

ou
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
fa

ili
ng

s 
in

 s
oc

ia
l 

w
or

k 
pr

ac
tic

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 h

ow
ev

er
, 

de
sp

ite
 a

ct
io

n 
on

 
th

is
; 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 t

ea
m

 f
ou

nd
 t

ha
t 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
te

am
s 

is
 n

ot
 y

et
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 t
he

 
re

qu
ire

d 
le

ve
ls

 o
f q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y.
” 

– 
P

ee
r 

re
vi

ew
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 le

tte
r 

23
rd

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3 

2.
12

. E
qu

al
ly

, 
th

e 
pe

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 f

ee
db

ac
k 

al
so

 r
ei

nf
or

ce
d 

th
at

 t
he

 f
un

da
m

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
 f

or
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 t
o 

re
so

lv
e 

lie
s 

in
 t

he
 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t, 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 s

ta
ff,

 n
ow

 a
nd

 fo
r 

th
e 

fo
re

se
ea

b
le

 fu
tu

re
. 

3.
 

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
3 

- 
M

A
Y

 2
01

4 

3.
1.

 
T

he
 P

ee
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 w
as

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t s
ta

gi
ng

 p
os

t f
or

 u
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
a 

re
-f

oc
us

si
ng

 o
f t

he
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 b
ei

ng
 a

do
pt

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 n

ex
t 

st
ag

e 
of

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
 W

hi
ls

t 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 w
ha

t 
w

as
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 t
o 

w
or

k 
w

el
l, 

it 
w

as
 a

pp
re

ci
at

ed
 th

at
 a

 d
iff

er
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

if 
th

e 
go

al
 o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 o

ur
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 o
f a

 g
oo

d 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

y 
20

16
 is

 to
 b

e 
re

al
is

ed
. 

182



Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 1
3 

 3.
2.

 
T

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ta
ke

n 
si

nc
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3 
co

m
pr

is
ed

:: 

o
 

A
 r

ec
on

fig
ur

ed
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 w

ith
 n

ew
 p

er
so

nn
el

 le
ad

in
g:

 

Ø
 

 A
 s

tr
ea

m
lin

ed
 a

nd
 r

ef
oc

us
ed

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

us
ed

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
dr

iv
er

 fo
r 

ch
an

ge
 w

ith
in

 n
ew

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 

Ø
 

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

go
od

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 k

ey
 s

oc
ia

l w
or

k 
ta

sk
s 

w
ith

 c
le

a
r 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

pr
ac

tic
e.

  
Ø

 
 E

m
be

dd
in

g 
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
cu

ltu
re

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t, 
w

ith
 

th
e 

em
ph

as
is

 
on

 
se

lf-
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y,

 r
el

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
ho

ne
st

 a
na

ly
si

s.
  

Ø
 

 In
cr

ea
si

ng
 t

he
 s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 M
A

S
H

 a
nd

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

S
oc

ia
l 

C
ar

e 
te

am
s 

to
 t

ak
e 

a 
m

uc
h 

st
ro

ng
er

 l
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

ro
le

, 
re

as
se

rt
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

as
 l

ea
d 

ag
en

cy
 fo

r 
ch

ild
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
 

o
 

T
he

 o
ng

oi
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

rio
rit

is
at

io
n 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 b
ot

h 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
ed

 fo
r 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
as

 fa
r 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
au

st
er

ity
 m

ea
su

re
s.

 

o
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

: 

Ø
 

 M
A

S
H

, 1
6+

, C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s,
 F

os
te

rin
g,

 A
do

pt
io

n 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 N

ee
d 

se
rv

ic
es

  
Ø

 
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

, I
R

O
 a

nd
 C

P
C

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ø
 

 A
 c

om
pl

et
el

y 
ne

w
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
pu

te
r 

sy
st

em
 F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

Ø
 

 C
hi

ld
 S

ex
ua

l E
xp

lo
ita

tio
n 

Ø
 

 T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

 (
P

M
O

) 
to

 o
ve

rs
ee

 th
e 

br
oa

de
r 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 d

ire
ct

or
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

, 
T

hi
s 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 b
ra

nd
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
of

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
an

d 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(C
H

IP
P

).
 

o
 

T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f: 

183



Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 1
3 

 

Ø
 

 L
oc

al
 fa

m
ily

 b
as

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

as
 a

 d
ire

ct
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 u
si

ng
 c

os
tly

 a
nd

 in
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
st

itu
tio

na
l f

or
m

s 
of

 
ca

re
. 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 a

ch
ie

ve
 b

et
te

r 
ou

tc
om

es
 f

or
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

al
so

 f
re

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 i

nv
es

t 
in

 
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
di

re
ct

 w
or

k 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Ø
 

 A
 

su
ite

 
of

 
di

re
ct

 
w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
es

 
to

 
w

or
k 

al
on

gs
id

e 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
es

 
us

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

d 
ba

se
d 

th
er

ap
eu

tic
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
st

at
ut

or
y 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

. 
Ø

 
 T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

ov
er

 t
im

e,
 o

f 
7 

da
y 

pe
r 

w
ee

k 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
od

el
s 

in
 M

A
S

H
, 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
C

W
D

. 

4.
 

S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E
 W

O
R

K
F

O
R

C
E

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 

4.
1.

 
U

nd
er

pi
nn

in
g 

al
l 

th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

is
 

a 
re

va
m

pe
d 

S
oc

ia
l 

C
ar

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
S

ta
ff 

ne
ed

 
th

e 
rig

ht
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
 th

ei
r 

be
st

. T
he

 fo
cu

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 o

n:
 

o
 

 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
o

 
 

m
an

ag
in

g 
po

or
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
,  

o
 

 
en

ha
nc

ed
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

 to
 jo

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 to
 s

ta
y 

he
re

, 
o

 
 

m
or

e 
N

Q
S

W
s 

so
 th

at
 w

e 
gr

ow
 o

ur
 o

w
n 

hi
gh

 c
al

ib
re

 s
ta

ff 
ov

er
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 
o

 
 

S
oc

ia
l w

or
k 

ac
ad

em
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

  f
irs

t t
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 o
f a

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 c

ar
ee

r 
o

 
 

en
ha

nc
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

o
 

 
re

du
ce

d 
ca

se
lo

ad
s 

– 
no

w
 a

ve
ra

gi
ng

 1
6 

fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 3
0 

o
 

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 w

or
ki

ng
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 

4.
2.

 
T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 h
as

 s
ho

w
n 

so
m

e 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
si

gn
s 

as
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 f
ro

m
 a

 P
ee

r 
R

ev
ie

w
 F

ol
lo

w
-u

p 
E

xe
rc

is
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 i
n 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

14
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 t
he

 M
A

S
H

 a
nd

 r
el

at
ed

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 “

C
le

ar
 e

ffo
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

by
 t

he
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
te

am
 a

nd
 w

hi
ls

t 
ve

ry
 e

ar
ly

 d
a

ys
 t

he
 n

ew
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 l

oo
k 

pr
om

is
in

g.
 T

he
re

 i
s 

ev
id

en
ce

 t
ha

t 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 h
av

e 
ta

ke
n 

po
si

tiv
e 

st
ep

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 t
he

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 is
su

es
 in

 th
e 

M
A

S
H

; n
ew

 s
ys

te
m

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
, t

he
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

lo
ok

s 
rig

ht
 a

lth
ou

gh
 it

 is
 e

ar
ly

 d
ay

s”
 

184



Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 1
3 

 4.
3.

 
In

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4,

 t
he

 D
fE

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

a 
12

-m
on

th
 f

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
re

vi
ew

. 
T

hi
s 

re
vi

ew
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 t
ha

t 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

w
er

e 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
th

ei
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t j

ou
rn

ey
 a

nd
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

  

o
 

P
os

iti
ve

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

o
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 M

A
S

H
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 

o
 

Lo
w

er
 C

as
el

oa
ds

 
o

 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

m
or

al
e 

o
 

S
ta

bi
lit

y 
in

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
 

G
oo

d 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
o

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
k 

ne
ed

s 
m

or
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 

5.
 

O
F

S
T

E
D

 S
IN

G
L

E
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 F

R
A

M
E

W
O

R
K

 IN
S

P
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
9 

A
P

R
IL

 –
 2

1 
M

A
Y

 2
01

4 

5.
1.

 
T

he
 w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

bo
ve

 p
la

ce
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 p

os
iti

o
n 

to
 r

is
e 

to
 th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

of
 d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

to
 O

fs
te

d 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 t
o 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

. 
T

he
 o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 t

he
 i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
w

as
 t

ha
t 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

ot
h 

in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

H
S

C
B

 w
er

e 
ju

dg
ed

 a
s 

‘re
qu

iri
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t’ 

ov
er

al
l..

 

5.
2.

 
T

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

18
 m

on
th

s,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 i
n 

M
A

S
H

, 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

di
re

ct
 w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

nd
 t

he
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 t

he
 c

hi
ld

’s
 v

oi
ce

 o
n 

a 
ca

se
 b

y 
ca

se
 b

as
is

. D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f t
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n,
 n

o 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

un
sa

fe
. 

5.
3.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
ey

 a
ls

o 
co

m
m

en
te

d 
on

 t
he

 r
el

at
iv

e 
in

fa
nc

y 
of

 s
om

e 
of

 t
he

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
an

d 
th

at
 m

or
e 

tim
e 

w
as

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
ei

r 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y.

 

o
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
cl

ea
rly

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

o
 

B
ec

om
in

g 
go

od
 is

 a
 g

ol
de

n 
th

re
ad

 
o

 
E

le
ct

ed
 M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 d

ili
ge

nt
 a

nd
 w

el
l e

ng
ag

ed
 

o
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 g

oo
d 

re
lia

bl
e 

da
ta

 n
ee

ds
 m

uc
h 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

o
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 u

se
 o

f d
at

a 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

to
 in

fo
rm

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 n

ee
ds

 im
pr

ov
in

g 

185



Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 1
3 

 5.
4.

 
P

le
as

in
gl

y,
 O

fs
te

d 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

as
 a

n 
ea

rly
 g

ro
w

in
g 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 a

m
on

gs
t t

he
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

. 

6.
 

M
A

Y
 2

01
4 

- 
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

 

6.
1.

 
T

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ew

 f
ou

nd
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 w
ith

in
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 g
iv

in
g 

ad
de

d 
im

pe
tu

s 
to

 t
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
be

in
g 

m
ad

e.
 W

hi
ls

t 
th

er
e 

is
 s

til
l s

ig
ni

fic
an

t w
or

k 
to

 d
o 

to
 r

ea
ch

 a
 s

ec
ur

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f g

oo
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 –
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 y

et
 

fu
lly

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 a

nd
 t

he
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 s

itu
at

io
n 

is
 s

til
l r

el
at

iv
el

y 
fr

ag
ile

 -
 t

he
 f

ou
nd

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 la
id

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
ca

n 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
 b

ui
ld

 a
nd

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 t

he
 c

hi
ld

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
an

d 
ra

di
ca

lly
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.  

6.
2.

 
T

he
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

P
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 f

ur
th

er
 r

ef
re

sh
ed

 t
o 

bu
ild

 i
n 

th
e 

ne
w

 O
fs

te
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

fo
cu

s 
on

 th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d.
 S

in
ce

 M
ay

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 h

av
e 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e:

 

o
 P

er
m

an
en

t s
ta

ffi
ng

 h
as

 s
ta

bi
lis

ed
 fu

rt
he

r,
 w

ith
 o

nl
y 

on
e 

pe
rm

an
en

t s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

r 
le

av
in

g 
si

nc
e 

A
pr

il 
20

14
 

o
 A

ge
nc

y 
so

ci
al

 w
or

ke
r 

pr
of

ile
 h

as
 r

ed
uc

ed
 to

 3
1%

 o
f t

he
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t 

o
 C

as
el

oa
ds

 h
av

e 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

at
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 1
6 

o
 T

he
 fi

rs
t c

oh
or

t o
f N

Q
S

W
s 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

ei
r 

A
Y

S
E

 
o

 T
he

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

ca
se

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 
is

 
75

%
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e,

 
sa

vi
ng

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 t
im

e 
fo

r 
so

ci
al

 w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 t
he

 a
cc

ur
ac

y 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n
 a

nd
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f c
as

ew
or

k 
re

co
rd

ed
 

o
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 h

av
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 a

 n
ew

 In
te

ns
iv

e 
pl

ac
em

en
t s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

hi
ch

 g
oe

s 
liv

e 
in

 
sp

rin
g 

20
15

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
m

ul
ti-

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

7 
da

y 
pe

r 
w

ee
k 

th
er

ap
eu

tic
 s

up
po

rt
 f

or
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ca

re
rs

 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
eg

in
 th

e 
m

ov
e 

fr
om

 in
st

itu
tio

na
l f

or
m

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
to

 fa
m

ily
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 
o

 T
he

 M
A

S
H

 h
as

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 w
el

l a
nd

 h
as

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 it
s 

fir
st

 s
pe

ci
al

is
m

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f c
hi

ld
 

se
xu

al
 e

xp
lo

ita
tio

n 
o

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 h
as

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

an
d 

st
ab

ili
se

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l k

ey
 m

ea
su

re
s.

 

  

186



Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 1
3 

 7.
 

L
G

A
 P

E
E

R
 D

IA
G

N
O

S
T

IC
  

7.
1.

 
T

he
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ow
 in

 p
la

ce
, p

la
ce

s 
va

lu
e 

on
 s

pe
ci

fic
 e

xt
er

na
l s

cr
ut

in
y.

 T
he

 H
S

C
B

 
w

as
 o

ne
 o

f 
fiv

e 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 t

o 
pi

lo
t 

th
e 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
P

ee
r 

D
ia

gn
os

tic
 f

or
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
B

oa
rd

s 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

15
, 

T
hi

s 
w

as
 p

la
nn

ed
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 i

n 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

, 
to

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 t

o 
ta

ki
ng

 o
n 

fr
om

 t
he

 I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
B

oa
rd

 t
he

 f
ul

l 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ul
ti 

ag
en

cy
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 

7.
2.

 
T

he
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
re

in
fo

rc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

er
e:

 

o
 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 a

nd
 it

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 k

no
w

 o
ur

se
lv

es
 w

el
l 

o
 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
M

ay
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

o
 

th
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 s

tr
en

gt
h 

of
 th

e 
M

A
S

H
 a

nd
 o

ur
 C

S
E

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
.  

7.
3.

 
T

he
 p

ee
r 

re
vi

ew
 a

ls
o 

ur
ge

d 
us

 to
 tr

us
t o

ur
 o

w
n 

ju
dg

em
en

t 

7.
4.

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 b
oa

rd
 in

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 it
s 

fu
ll 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
e;

 

o
 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

al
ig

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

st
ic

k 
w

ith
 t

he
m

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

ev
er

y 
el

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 B
oa

rd
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 

o
 

F
un

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 r
ei

nv
ig

or
at

ed
 a

nd
 fi

t f
or

 p
ur

po
se

 b
us

in
es

s 
un

it 
o

 
M

ak
e 

su
re

 a
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
bo

ar
d 

ar
e 

fu
lly

 e
ng

ag
ed

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
ei

r 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
be

in
g 

on
 th

e 
bo

ar
d 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
fr

on
tli

ne
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ou

tc
om

es
 

o
 

M
ak

e 
al

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
fo

r 
w

ha
t t

he
y 

ha
ve

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 
o

 
U

se
 fo

rm
al

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
an

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 it

s 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f b
et

te
r 

ou
tc

om
es

 
o

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 b
oa

rd
 

 8.
 

G
E

T
T

IN
G

 T
O

 G
O

O
D

 B
Y

 2
01

6 
 8.

1.
 

In
 2

01
2,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

ha
d 

no
 c

le
ar

 o
r 

co
nf

id
en

t v
is

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

ty
pe

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

it 
w

is
he

d 
to

 s
ec

ur
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

 
 

187



Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 1

3 

 8.
2.

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 m
os

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 is

 th
e 

ab
so

lu
te

 in
te

nt
 to

 b
e 

go
od

 b
y 

20
16

/1
7.

 T
he

 r
oa

d 
ah

ea
d 

w
ill

 n
ot

 a
ll 

be
 p

la
in

 
sa

ili
ng

, 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

st
ill

 is
su

es
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 k
no

ck
 t

hi
ng

s 
of

f 
co

ur
se

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 is
 t

he
re

 t
ha

t 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

an
d 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

fo
r 

ch
an

ge
 i

s 
im

pr
ov

ed
, 

th
e 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

is
 

be
tte

r 
an

d 
w

he
n 

th
in

gs
 d

o 
no

t p
ro

gr
es

s 
as

 p
la

nn
ed

, w
e 

kn
ow

 th
at

 fo
r 

ou
rs

el
ve

s 
an

d 
ca

n 
pu

t i
t r

ig
ht

. 
 8.

3.
 

G
et

tin
g 

to
 g

oo
d 

w
ill

 r
el

y 
on

 a
 u

ni
fie

d,
 m

or
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
se

rv
ic

e 
ch

an
ge

, 
w

hi
ch

 t
ac

kl
es

 t
he

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

ca
us

es
 o

f h
ar

m
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
a 

re
le

nt
le

ss
 fo

cu
s 

on
 b

as
ic

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 O

ur
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

fo
r 

th
is

 is
 e

nc
ap

su
la

te
d 

in
 o

ur
 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e,

 C
H

IP
P

 (
C

hi
ld

re
n 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

an
d 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e)

 w
hi

ch
 is

 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

di
ag

ra
m

: 
 

188



Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 1

3 

 

 

189



Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 1

3 

  8.
4.

 
A

 r
ef

re
sh

ed
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

a 
ne

w
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
P

la
n 

ar
e 

un
de

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
dr

aw
in

g 
fr

o
m

 t
he

 
JS

N
A

 a
nd

 th
e 

be
sp

ok
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. T

he
se

 p
la

ns
 w

ill
 

se
cu

re
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 s
ys

te
m

 w
id

e 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
gr

ow
 u

p 
in

 c
ar

in
g 

fa
m

ili
es

 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

T
he

 
B

oa
rd

s 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

m
ak

in
g 

th
es

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
ar

e 
m

uc
h 

cl
ea

re
r 

ab
ou

t 
th

ei
r 

ro
le

 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y,

 a
nd

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f o

ur
 fo

cu
s.

 
 8.

5.
 

T
he

 r
is

ks
 to

 th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

re
la

te
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 to
: 

 
o

 
R

ec
ru

iti
ng

, r
et

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 s

ta
ff 

– 
no

t j
us

t s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
, b

ut
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff 

in
 o

th
er

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
ns

 
o

 
D

el
ay

 i
n 

m
ak

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

ch
an

ge
 i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l 

bu
dg

et
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

, 
w

hi
ch

 c
re

at
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 w
hi

ch
 r

eq
ui

re
 u

rg
en

t a
nd

 u
np

la
nn

ed
 b

ud
ge

t c
ut

s 
o

 
A

 la
ck

 o
f c

on
fid

en
ce

 o
r 

be
lie

f i
n 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 to

 d
riv

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
ch

an
ge

. 
 8.

6.
 

F
or

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
ris

ks
 w

e 
ha

ve
 p

la
ns

 in
 p

la
ce

: 
 

o
 

O
ur

 s
oc

ia
l 

ca
re

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 p

la
n 

is
 r

ob
us

t 
an

d 
w

e 
ar

e 
w

el
l 

on
 c

ou
rs

e 
fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t 
of

 n
ew

 a
nd

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 s
oc

ia
l 

w
or

ke
rs

 d
ur

in
g 

th
is

 y
ea

r.
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
fe

w
 l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

na
tio

na
lly

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 r

ev
is

in
g 

its
  

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

w
e 

ha
ve

 r
ob

us
t 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 p

la
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

. 
o

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 i

nt
ro

du
ce

d 
a 

st
ro

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
, 

in
iti

al
ly

 t
hr

ou
gh

 C
H

IP
P

, 
an

d 
no

w
 e

xt
en

di
ng

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
H

S
C

B
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
br

in
gi

ng
 t

he
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 a
nd

 m
om

en
tu

m
 

be
hi

nd
 a

ct
ua

l d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

ls
o.

 
o

 
C

on
fid

en
ce

 is
 g

ro
w

in
g,

 a
nd

 is
 b

ac
ke

d 
up

 b
y 

th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 M

ul
ti-

A
ge

nc
y 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
H

ub
, 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 c
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 t
he

 i
m

pa
ct

 o
f 

th
e 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

ac
ad

em
y 

on
 n

ew
ly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
so

ci
al

 
w

or
ke

rs
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

en
ha

nc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 H
IP

S
S

 a
nd

 T
IS

S
. T

he
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

an
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

ca
n 

be
 h

on
es

t 
ab

ou
t 

w
ha

t 
th

ey
 w

an
t 

to
 s

ee
, 

ca
n 

ha
ve

 d
iff

ic
ul

t 
co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
 a

nd
 r

ea
ch

 d
iff

ic
ul

t d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

an
 p

re
di

ct
 a

nd
 m

iti
ga

te
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

be
fo

re
 th

ey
 o

cc
ur

. 
 9.

 
M

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

tly
 th

ou
gh

, t
he

 w
or

k 
w

e 
ar

e 
do

in
g 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 d

o,
 is

 d
on

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
le

ar
ni

ng
 c

ul
tu

re
. 

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 g

et
 t

hi
ng

s 
rig

ht
 a

ll 
th

e 
tim

e,
 b

ut
 w

e 
le

ar
n 

by
 d

oi
ng

. 
W

e 
be

co
m

e 
st

ro
ng

er
 a

s 
a 

sy
st

em
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 t
ha

t 
le

ar
ni

ng
. 

190



Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 1

3 

  10
. 

F
in

al
ly

, o
ur

 r
ol

e 
is

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 b

rin
g 

up
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
el

l, 
an

d 
th

at
 th

os
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

ha
ve

 g
oo

d 
ou

tc
om

es
. W

e 
kn

ow
 f

ro
m

 d
ire

ct
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

, t
ha

t w
he

n 
w

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
em

, b
ui

ld
 

on
 t

he
ir 

st
re

ng
th

s 
an

d 
cr

ea
te

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

ho
ne

st
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 t
he

m
, 

th
at

 w
e 

cr
ea

te
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

to
 p

ut
 r

ig
ht

 th
ei

r 
is

su
es

, a
nd

 m
ov

e 
on

. E
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

t e
ve

ry
 le

ve
l o

f t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

ha
t t

hi
ng

s 
ar

e 
lik

e 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 is
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

l t
o 

ou
r 

ne
xt

 s
te

p 
of

 g
et

tin
g 

to
 g

oo
d.

  

191



192



  Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

 

 

O
FS

TE
D

 IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N

 M
A

Y 
20

14
 - 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 

K
ey

:  
 

· 
O

fs
te

d 
P

ar
a 

N
um

be
r 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

A
re

a 
of

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

O
ut

co
m

e 
of

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4
 

· 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

an
d 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(C
H

IP
P

) 
is

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

th
e 

O
fs

te
d 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
. 

  
E

ac
h 

ar
ea

 f
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
cl

ea
r 

le
ad

 a
nd

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 it

s 
de

liv
er

y.
   

· 
A

n 
ev

id
en

ce
 li

br
ar

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

re
at

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
e 

ca
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 im
pa

ct
 a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

ar
ea

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t.

  

 N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

1.
 

 1
7.

  

(5
7,

 
13

8)
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
as

el
oa

ds
 in

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 n
ee

d 
an

d 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

te
am

s 
re

m
ai

n 
m

an
ag

ea
bl

e 
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

D
ire

ct
or

, 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

F
am

ily
 

S
up

po
rt

 (
P

M
) 

C
as

el
oa

ds
 fo

r 
C

iN
 a

nd
 L

A
C

 te
am

s 
re

m
ai

n 
at

 1
6-

18
 c

as
es

 o
n 

av
er

ag
e 

pe
r 

so
ci

al
 w

or
ke

r  

O
ng

oi
ng

 
W

ee
kl

y 
ca

se
 lo

ad
s 

re
po

rt
s 

ar
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
is

.  
  

Lo
w

er
 c

as
e 

lo
ad

s 
im

pa
ct

 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

on
 ti

m
el

in
es

s 
of

 
C

P
 a

nd
 L

A
C

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

vi
si

ts
.  

 
W

ee
kl

y 
ca

se
lo

ad
 r

ep
or

ts
 a

re
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

t S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
m

ee
tin

g.
   

  

C
as

el
oa

ds
 a

nd
 ti

m
el

in
es

s 
of

 C
P

 a
nd

 
LA

C
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 v
is

its
 fo

rm
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 
m

on
th

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 r

ep
or

t. 
  T

he
 

re
po

rt
 is

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 b

y 
te

am
s 

w
ith

in
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

, 
H

S
C

B
 a

nd
 m

on
th

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

If 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

ip
s 

w
ith

ou
t a

n 
ad

eq
ua

te
 e

xp
la

na
tio

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

se
 

fr
om

 le
ad

 o
ffi

ce
r,

 H
S

C
B

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ch
ai

r 
w

ill
 e

sc
al

at
e 

to
 D

ire
ct

or
 fo

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

.  
  

2.
 

  
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

D
ire

ct
or

, 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

F
am

ily
 

S
up

po
rt

 (
P

M
) 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f M

ed
ic

ar
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

.  
A

ug
us

t 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

A
ll 

ca
se

s 
no

w
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
ba

ck
 to

 
th

e 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

te
am

s  

G
 

W
ee

kl
y 

ca
se

lo
ad

 r
ep

or
ts

.  
  

M
on

th
ly

 r
ep

or
ts

 to
 M

on
th

ly
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 L

ea
de

r,
 C

X
, C

ab
in

et
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
4

193



  Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

M
em

be
r 

an
d 

G
ro

up
 L

ea
de

rs
.  

 

3.
 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
(K

P
) 

P
ro

fil
e 

ca
se

lo
ad

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
w

ha
t 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 c
as

el
oa

d 
w

ou
ld

 lo
ok

 
lik

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
W

ee
kl

y 
re

po
rt

s 
no

w
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

tr
en

d 
an

al
ys

is
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

ac
tio

n 
ca

n 
be

 ta
ke

n 
qu

ic
kl

y 
if 

pe
ak

s 
em

er
ge

. 
P

ilo
t o

f C
as

el
oa

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t t
oo

l 
(w

ei
gh

tin
g)

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

du
rin

g 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
 a

nd
 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 c
as

e 
lo

ad
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 b

e 
at

 a
 

m
an

ag
ea

bl
e 

le
ve

l -
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

   
 

G
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

4.
 

  
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

D
ire

ct
or

: 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

&
 F

am
ily

 
S

up
po

rt
 

F
or

ec
as

tin
g 

of
 s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

at
a 

to
 in

fo
rm

 d
ire

ct
 

w
or

k 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

at
a 

in
 

pr
og

re
ss

 

G
 

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

H
IP

P
.  

  

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
an

d 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

5.
 

  
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

D
ire

ct
or

: 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

&
 F

am
ily

 
S

up
po

rt
 (

P
M

) 

A
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
w

he
th

er
 

th
e 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 r
ig

ht
 a

nd
 to

 
in

fo
rm

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 a
nd

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
.  

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
  

G
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

 

  C
H

IP
P

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

 

6.
 

 1
7.

  

(1
38

) 

 

R
ed

uc
e 

ca
se

lo
ad

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
so

 th
at

 a
ll 

so
ci

al
 w

or
ke

rs
 h

av
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
im

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f s
er

vi
ce

 th
ey

 
re

qu
ire

. 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

T
w

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

oc
ia

l w
or

ke
rs

 to
 b

e 
em

pl
oy

ed
 in

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 a
s 

at
 J

un
e 

20
14

 
G

 
 

194



  Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

7.
 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

A
n 

in
te

rim
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 C
W

D
 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 c

ap
ac

ity
 in

 li
gh

t o
f 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
F

am
ili

es
 A

ct
 2

01
4 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ar

e 
A

ct
 2

01
4 

 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

A
 fu

rt
he

r 
fiv

e 
so

ci
al

 
w

or
ke

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
re

cr
ui

te
d 

to
 th

e 
C

W
D

 
te

am
 a

s 
fr

om
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
14

.  
 A

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 
pe

rm
an

en
t  

te
am

 
m

an
ag

er
 h

as
 n

ow
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 w

ho
 h

as
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l c

hi
ld

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
  

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

8.
 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

A
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 

C
W

D
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 

ov
er

 a
 1

2 
m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

to
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 a

n 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

od
el

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f  

th
e 

C
ar

e 
A

ct
 2

01
4 

an
d 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

an
d 

F
am

ili
es

 A
ct

; t
he

 in
no

va
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 p

er
so

na
liz

at
io

n,
 a

du
lts

 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

an
d 

he
al

th
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 

m
od

el
.  

 

.  
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 
T

hi
s 

re
vi

ew
  i

s 
no

w
 a

 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ith

in
 C

H
IP

P
 a

nd
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t m
an

ag
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

ap
po

in
te

d.
   

G
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 

C
ab

in
et

 

9.
 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

T
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 C

W
D

 r
ev

ie
w

, 
ex

te
rn

al
 e

xp
er

tis
e 

an
d/

or
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
.  

T
he

 
le

ad
 m

an
ag

er
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

W
D

 r
ev

ie
w

 
w

ill
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

to
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

. 

D
ec

em
be

r 
 

20
14

 
T

he
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
O

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r 

Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
ex

te
rn

al
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 r
ep

or
t 

w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
C

W
D

 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
  

V
is

its
 to

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 to

 lo
ok

 a
t b

es
t 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

on
go

in
g 

an
d 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 th
e 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
T

ea
m

 M
an

ag
er

 fo
r 

C
W

D
.  

  

G
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
  

195



  Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

10
. 

 1
8.

  

(9
6,

 
12

2,
 

13
0,

 
13

1,
13

2
, 1

33
) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
 c

as
e 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 in

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

  

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

(M
G

) 
in

 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
  S

er
vi

ce
 

M
an

ag
er

 –
 

IC
T

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
(D

L)
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 is
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n,
 w

ith
 fu

ll 
sy

st
em

 
re

vi
si

on
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
en

d 
20

14
/1

5.
   

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f F

W
I 

an
d 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 d

at
a 

sh
ar

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 

he
al

th
, s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 
he

al
th

.  
.D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 

up
gr

ad
es

 o
f F

W
I w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

  
.  

Ju
ne

 2
01

5 
T

he
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
of

 
fr

am
ew

or
ki

 is
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 

on
 s

ch
ed

ul
e.

   
 

 T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

-
ba

se
d 

lin
e 

to
 fi

ni
sh

 in
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

5 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

fo
cu

s 
on

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

  
 W

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 s

pi
ke

 o
r 

di
p 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
, t

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

w
hy

 is
 g

iv
en

.  
  

 T
he

re
 a

re
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

w
ith

 
op

er
at

io
na

l m
an

ag
er

s 
as

 
to

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f d
at

a 
be

in
g 

en
te

re
d 

in
to

 F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
 C

om
pa

ra
to

r 
da

ta
 v

ia
 th

e 
W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

C
on

so
rt

iu
m

 is
 u

se
d 

to
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
w

he
th

er
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 is

 w
ith

in
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 it
s 

co
m

pa
ra

to
rs

.  
  

    

G
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t r
ep

or
ts

 w
ill

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
im

pa
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
 to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 IC

T
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

T
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 a

na
ly

si
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
en

ta
ry

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 r
ep

or
t g

iv
es

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 

to
 H

S
C

B
, m

on
th

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

as
 to

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f 

da
ta

.  
 

11
. 

  
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 in

 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
  S

er
vi

ce
 

M
an

ag
er

 –
 

A
s 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
re

ac
hi

ng
 c

lo
su

re
 a

 
be

ne
fit

s 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

e 
sy

st
em

  

A
pr

il 
20

15
 

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
re

ba
si

ng
 o

f t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
th

is
 w

ill
 n

ow
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

by
 A

pr
il 

20
15

.  

A
 

C
H

IP
P

 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

  

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 IC

T
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

196



  Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

IC
T

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 

12
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) /

H
S

C
B

 
B

us
in

es
s 

M
an

ag
er

  

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

Q
A

 a
nd

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
H

S
C

B
’s

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
jo

ur
ne

y 
of

 
th

e 
ch

ild
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
its

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
 

13
. 

 1
9.

  

(1
34

) 

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ud

it 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
s 

ro
bu

st
ly

 a
nd

 r
ou

tin
el

y 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

m
an

ag
er

s 
ac

ro
ss

 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 is
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

us
ed

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f p

ra
ct

ic
e.

   

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

Q
A

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

is
 b

ei
ng

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

  A
ny

 
irr

eg
ul

ar
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
re

po
rt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ro

ut
in

el
y 

au
di

te
d 

by
 

th
e 

Q
A

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

T
ea

m
 a

nd
 

re
le

va
nt

 c
or

re
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ta

ke
n.

   

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 D

LT
.  

 A
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 d
ef

ic
it 

is
su

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

re
po

rt
.  

Le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 a
ud

it 
to

 in
fo

rm
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
ee

ds
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 Q
A

 
an

d 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
T

ea
m

 w
ith

 S
oc

ia
l 

W
or

k 
A

ca
de

m
y  

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

   S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

O
w

in
g 

to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t o

f s
om

e 
ne

w
 

te
am

 m
an

ag
er

s 
th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
om

e 
sl

ip
pa

ge
 in

 
au

di
t c

om
pl

et
io

n 
by

 te
am

 
m

an
ag

er
s.

   
H

ea
ds

 o
f 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

sc
us

si
ng

 th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 te

am
 

m
an

ag
er

s.
   

Q
A

 a
nd

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
th

e 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

th
e 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 
T

ea
m

 M
an

ag
er

s.
   

 

D
ue

 to
 c

ap
ac

ity
 is

su
es

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

di
vi

si
on

, i
t h

as
 

be
en

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 
S

up
po

rt
 H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

th
at

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

au
di

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ed

uc
ed

 b
y 

50
%

 fo
r 

a 
th

re
e 

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d.
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 A

ud
it 

Is
su

es
 

Lo
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 

so
 th

at
 th

em
es

 c
an

 b
e 

A
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
&

 F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

ab
in

et
 

R
ep

or
ts

 

 

197



  Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 fr
om

 m
on

th
ly

 
ca

se
 a

ud
it 

ac
tiv

ity
. T

he
 

lo
g 

is
 u

pd
at

ed
 o

n 
a 

m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
 a

nd
 

re
vi

ew
ed

.  

14
. 

 2
0.

  

(5
8,

 
12

8)
 

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
on

si
st

en
t a

nd
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 fo

rm
al

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

 o
f 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

st
af

f i
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
nd

 
th

at
 a

ll 
st

af
f h

av
e 

re
gu

la
r 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
re

fle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ch
al

le
ng

e.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ll 

m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 b
e 

tr
ai

ne
d 

in
 

re
fle

ct
iv

e 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
po

lic
y.

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 

 S
up

er
vi

si
on

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 w
ill

 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 

A
dv

an
ce

d 
P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
s 

fo
r 

al
l n

ew
 m

an
ag

er
s.

   
  

A
n 

au
di

t o
f s

up
er

vi
si

on
 

w
ill

 th
en

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 
Ju

ly
 / 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
5 

to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 e

m
be

dm
en

t. 
 

 

A
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

15
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
)  

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 

w
ith

 B
ris

to
l U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 
in

 J
un

e 
20

14
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
to

 C
hi

ld
ca

re
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 jo

in
t s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
 C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
   

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

16
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 A
ud

it 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

nn
ua

l 
cy

cl
e 

of
 a

ud
its

 is
 d

ue
 to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 

in
  J

ul
y/

A
ug

us
t 2

01
4,

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
in

 
S

ep
t 2

01
4.

  A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 o

ut
co

m
e,

 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
s 

to
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 fu

rt
he

r 
au

di
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

.  
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 G
ro

up
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

 

17
. 

 2
1.

  

(1
34

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
eg

ul
ar

 c
as

e 
fil

e 
au

di
ts

 a
nd

 r
e-

au
di

ts
 w

ith
in

 s
oc

ia
l 

w
or

k 
te

am
s 

ar
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

nd
 

ar
e 

us
ed

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 

st
re

ng
th

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 to
 

m
ea

su
re

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 fo

r 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

fr
es

he
d 

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
.  

Ju
ly

 2
01

4 
 T

he
 Q

A
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
w

ill
 

be
 r

ef
re

sh
ed

 in
 A

pr
il 

fo
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 b
y 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 

A
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 

198



  Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

ac
tio

ns
 ta

ke
n 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
.  

(D
C

) 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 a

ud
it 

to
 in

fo
rm

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t n

ee
ds

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 Q

A
 

an
d 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

T
ea

m
 w

ith
 S

oc
ia

l 
W

or
k 

A
ca

de
m

y 
is

 u
nd

er
w

ay
. 

 

D
LT

, H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

.  
  

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
&

 F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 

18
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

 

Q
A

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 in
cr

ea
se

d.
   

 

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
G

 
 

19
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

T
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 le

ad
 

m
an

ag
er

 w
ill

 o
ve

rs
ee

 Q
A

 a
nd

 th
e 

S
oc

ia
l W

or
k 

A
ca

de
m

y 
in

te
gr

at
io

n,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
its

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t f
un

ct
io

n.
   

T
hi

s 
po

st
 

ho
ld

er
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

le
ad

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 r

ev
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

w
ill

 tr
ac

k 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
Q

A
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

.  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
G

 
H

S
C

B
 Q

A
 G

ro
up

 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

 

20
. 

 2
2.

  

(4
8,

 5
0,

 
52

, 5
4)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
 fo

r 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 

un
de

rs
to

od
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

tly
 

ap
pl

ie
d 

by
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

st
af

f 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

r 
ag

en
ci

es
, s

o 
th

at
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 g
et

 th
e 

rig
ht

 
he

lp
 a

t t
he

 r
ig

ht
 ti

m
e.

   

 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

 

E
m

be
dd

in
g 

le
ve

ls
 o

f n
ee

ds
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
in

 in
du

ct
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 s
ta

ff 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

   
 

 

 
 

 
     

21
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ud

it 
ac

tiv
ity

 in
cl

ud
es

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 
le

ve
ls

 o
f n

ee
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 b
ei

ng
 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

to
 r

ef
er

 
to

 M
A

S
H

 

 
 

 
T

he
 Q

A
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
H

S
C

B
.  

199



  Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

(D
C

) 

22
. 

  
 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 r

ev
is

io
n 

of
 L

ev
el

s 
of

 
N

ee
d 

/  
th

re
sh

ol
ds

 g
ui

da
nc

e 

.  
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
G

 
H

S
C

B
 P

&
P

 G
ro

up
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd
  

 

23
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

La
un

ch
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 

gu
id

an
ce

.  
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 –

 
M

ar
ch

 
20

15
 

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
he

ld
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
O

ct
ob

er
 to

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

to
 

la
un

ch
 th

e 
ne

w
 g

ui
da

nc
e.

   

G
 

H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 

H
S

C
B

 M
A

S
H

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

G
ro

up
 

24
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
)  

R
eg

ul
ar

 th
em

at
ic

 a
ud

its
 w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

em
be

dd
in

g 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
.  

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
R

eg
ul

ar
 th

em
at

ic
 a

ud
its

 
pl

an
ne

d 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

25
. 

 2
3.

 

(5
5,

 5
6)

  

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
of

fic
er

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

m
an

ag
e 

ch
ild

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

an
d 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
pa

re
nt

al
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
.  

T
he

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 w

ill
 b

e 
an

al
ys

ed
 a

nd
 u

se
d 

to
 in

fo
rm

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y.
   

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

al
so

 e
na

bl
e 

an
 o

ng
oi

ng
 c

he
ck

 b
ac

k 
as

 to
 th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

s 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
C

P
 P

la
ns

 d
et

ai
le

d 
be

lo
w

.  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

D
at

a 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

fr
om

 
pa

re
nt

al
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 w

ill
 

co
nt

in
ue

 a
nd

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 th
at

 d
at

a 
w

ill
 b

e 
an

al
ys

ed
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 a
nd

 
th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 to

 
ch

ild
ca

re
 m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

H
S

C
B

.  
A

ny
 fi

nd
in

gs
 w

ill
 

th
en

 fe
ed

 in
to

 a
ny

 
le

ar
ni

ng
.  

  

T
he

 n
ex

t q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 to

 H
S

C
B

 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 
M

an
ag

er
s.

   
 

 

200



  Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 3
7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V

7 
2 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

an
d 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 H
ea

ds
 in

 
A

pr
il 

20
15

.  
   

 

26
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 ti

m
e 

lim
ite

d 
ag

en
cy

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

.  
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
cr

iti
ca

l f
ee

db
ac

k 
on

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 C

P
 

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

st
ro

ng
 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 a

ny
 is

su
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
pi

np
oi

nt
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
l n

ee
ds

.  
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

  

T
im

e 
lim

ite
d 

ag
en

cy
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
fo

r 
on

e 
m

on
th

 
on

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 b

as
is

 
(N

ov
em

be
r)

.  
 

T
he

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

w
ill

 th
en

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
to

 c
hi

ld
ca

re
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
H

S
C

B
.  

   
 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 
M

an
ag

er
s.

 

27
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 
fo

rm
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

O
ut

lin
e 

C
P

 P
la

n 
by

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 w

ha
t a

 g
oo

d 
“O

ut
lin

e”
 C

P
 P

la
n 

fr
om

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  

A
 s

am
pl

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 

ne
w

 o
ut

lin
e 

C
P

 p
la

n 
w

ill
 

ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 
em

be
dd

ed
.  

 A
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

by
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

fo
r 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
at

 th
e 

M
ay

 H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

.  

W
or

k 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 

S
M

A
R

T
 C

P
 p

la
n 

co
nt

in
ue

 
to

 im
pr

ov
e.

   
T

hi
s 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
gu

la
r 

di
p 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
w

ith
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

es
si

on
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
P

 c
ha

irs
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
pr

ac
tic

e.
   

  

G
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
s 

201



  Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

   
  

28
. 

  
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

(M
G

) 

Im
pr

ov
e 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 to
 b

et
te

r 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 fo
rm

ul
at

io
n 

of
 a

 q
ua

lit
y 

O
ut

lin
e 

C
P

 P
la

n 
at

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
  

G
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 

29
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
)  

D
ire

ct
 o

bs
er

va
tio

ns
 o

f c
on

fe
re

nc
e 

by
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 k

ey
 

pa
rt

ne
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 (
N

am
ed

 N
ur

se
) 

 

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

D
ire

ct
 o

bs
er

va
tio

n 
by

 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 

na
m

ed
 n

ur
se

 h
as

 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
an

d 
it 

is
 

pl
an

ne
d 

th
at

 1
0 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
ob

se
rv

ed
 a

nd
 a

 r
ep

or
t 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 
S

ub
 G

ro
up

.  

T
he

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 

ob
se

rv
at

io
ns

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e 

du
rin

g 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
an

d 
a 

re
po

rt
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 

fo
r 

th
e 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
gr

ou
p 

fo
r 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5.

  

 

A
 

 H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 

30
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
)  

T
he

 H
S

C
B

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
LG

A
 to

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ab
ov

e.
   

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
he

 L
G

A
 h

av
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
th

ei
r 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 th

e 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
re

po
rt

 o
n 

4 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

.  

E
xt

ra
or

di
na

ry
 M

ee
tin

g 
of

 
H

S
C

B
 to

ok
 p

la
ce

 o
n 

2nd
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 
th

e 
fin

di
ng

s,
 w

hi
ch

 in
fo

rm
 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 a
s 

to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 H

S
C

B
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
at

 it
’s

 J
an

ua
ry

 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

202



  Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

m
ee

tin
g 

 

31
. 

 2
3.

 

(6
7?

, 
80

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

, p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t R

ev
ie

w
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
se

rv
ic

e.
   

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 s
er

vi
ce

 (
in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 c

ha
irs

 a
nd

 IR
O

s)
 

un
de

rw
ay

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 a
s 

ab
ov

e 
to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
  

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
.T

he
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 s

co
pi

ng
 

ex
er

ci
se

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 

pl
an

 w
ill

 b
e 

dr
aw

n 
up

 to
 

su
pp

or
t i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
as

 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 C
H

IP
P

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
   

 

A
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

 

C
H

IP
P

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

B
oa

rd
 

32
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

 

T
he

 b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
 fo

r 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

th
e 

is
su

es
 a

re
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

la
n.

  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

G
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

33
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 r

ec
ru

itm
en

t t
o 

cu
rr

en
t 

va
ca

nc
y 

un
de

rw
ay

.  
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
G

 
  

34
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
)  

S
ec

on
dm

en
t o

f S
M

 in
to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t e

xp
er

tis
e 

in
 L

A
C

 
fr

om
 A

ug
us

t. 

 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

  
G

 
 

35
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

 

Se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ag
ai

ns
t 

IR
O

 
H

an
db

oo
k 

an
d 

C
ar

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 t
o 

be
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
to

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

w
he

re
 t

he
 g

ap
s 

ar
e 

an
d 

to
 p

rio
rit

is
e 

th
e 

ac
tio

ns
 n

ee
de

d 
in

 
or

de
r 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t.
 

A
pr

il 
20

15
 

S
E

F
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ke
y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
pr

io
rit

y 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 a

nd
 s

co
pi

ng
 

do
cu

m
en

t f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
   

   

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

C
H

IP
P

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
oa

rd
 

  

36
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 

Im
pr

ov
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
ro

ce
ss

 s
o 

th
at

 
m

in
ut

es
 a

re
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 a
gr

ee
d 

tim
es

ca
le

s 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
 F

ul
l 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
as

 fr
om

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

14
.  

 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 n

ow
 

G
 

M
on

th
ly

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 

m
ee

tin
g 

ta
ke

s 
pl

ac
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

, S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 
an

d 
B

us
in

es
s 

S
up

po
rt

  t
o 

re
vi

ew
 

203



  Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

(J
R

) 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e.

  
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

, t
ra

ck
in

g 
of

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

 r
em

ed
ia

l 
ac

tio
n 

w
he

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
  

If 
an

 im
pa

ss
e 

is
 r

ea
ch

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 

B
us

in
es

s 
S

up
po

rt
, t

he
 is

su
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

es
ca

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 

fo
r 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 fo

r 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

 

T
he

re
 w

ill
 b

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f C
P

 c
as

es
 

no
t d

rif
tin

g 
an

d 
m

in
ut

es
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 

w
ith

in
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s 

an
d 

th
at

 
C

P
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

in
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
tim

es
ca

le
s.

  

 

37
. 

 2
4.

  

(6
6)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 a
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
kn

ow
n 

to
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 r

ig
or

ou
sl

y 
as

se
ss

ed
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

ei
r 

ne
ed

s 
ar

e 
m

et
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 

fu
lfi

lli
ng

 it
s 

st
at

ut
or

y 
fu

nc
tio

ns
.  

  

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

A
n 

au
di

t o
f a

ll 
hi

gh
 c

os
t p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 

is
 b

ei
ng

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
at

 
ne

ed
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

rr
ec

tly
 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
   

T
he

 o
ut

co
m

e 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 p

rio
ris

at
io

n 
as

 to
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

is
su

es
 a

nd
 a

ny
 r

el
ev

an
t 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 

 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 

T
he

 fi
nd

in
gs

 fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t w
ill

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

C
W

D
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ith
in

 
C

H
IP

P
.  

 

G
 

C
om

pl
ex

 N
ee

ds
 P

an
el

 

Jo
in

t G
ro

up
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

 

 

38
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

A
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 

C
W

D
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 in

 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f  

th
e 

C
ar

e 
A

ct
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
an

d 
F

am
ili

es
 A

ct
; A

du
lts

 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
; h

ea
lth

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
;  

th
e 

in
no

va
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 

pe
rs

on
al

iz
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 

m
od

el
. .

  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 
T

hi
s 

is
 n

ow
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ith

 
th

e 
C

H
IP

P
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
 w

ill
 

be
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

  

G
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
  

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 

C
ab

in
et

 

204



  Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

 

39
. 

 2
5.

  

(6
2,

 6
4,

 
65

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 g

o 
m

is
si

ng
 is

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
sh

ar
ed

 a
nd

 r
ob

us
tly

 
an

al
ys

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

pa
rt

ne
r 

ag
en

ci
es

.  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

D
ev

el
op

 H
S

C
B

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r 
th

e 
on

go
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f 

co
or

di
na

te
d 

m
ul

ti -
ag

en
cy

 
re

sp
on

se
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ho

 g
o 

m
is

si
ng

.  
 T

he
 C

S
A

R
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

 w
ill

 
en

su
re

 th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f m

is
si

ng
 

ch
ild

re
n 

da
ta

 a
nd

 id
en

tif
y 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

th
em

es
, g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
tr

en
ds

 w
hi

ch
 

m
ay

 id
en

tif
y 

ris
k 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 r

eg
io

na
lly

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 r
es

po
ns

e.
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
M

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
gr

ou
p 

is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 
sh

ar
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 id
en

tif
y 

th
em

es
 a

nd
 tr

en
ds

 to
 

re
sp

on
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 –
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

ut
 fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

on
 e

m
be

dd
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

an
d 

th
e 

da
ta

 
se

t c
on

tin
ue

s 
w

ith
in

 th
is

 
gr

ou
p 

   

G
 

H
S

C
B

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

20
14

/1
5 

 

H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 

H
S

C
B

 S
ex

ua
l E

xp
lo

ita
tio

n 
an

d 
T

ra
ffi

ck
in

g 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

up
 

40
. 

  
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

(M
G

) 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 

w
ith

in
 fr

am
ew

or
ki

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
be

st
 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 

re
sp

ec
t o

f m
is

si
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
en

ab
le

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
tu

rn
 in

te
rv

ie
w

 
ou

tc
om

es
.  

  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

A
 d

et
ai

le
d 

an
d 

su
m

m
ar

y 
re

po
rt

 is
 p

ro
du

ce
d.

 A
nd

 is
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

A
S

H
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
an

d 
H

S
C

B
 

C
S

A
R

 O
pe

ra
tio

n 
G

ro
up

.  

  

G
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 

41
. 

 2
6.

  

(6
8)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 n

ot
ify

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f p

riv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

.  

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
 

T
ra

in
in

g 
of

 fr
on

tli
ne

 s
ta

ff 
ar

ou
nd

 
pr

iv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g.

 

R
ef

re
sh

 o
f p

riv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ra

is
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
. T

hi
s 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

lo
ca

l p
re

ss
, s

ch
oo

ls
 

(e
xc

ha
ng

e 
st

ud
en

ts
) 

an
d 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
ce

nt
re

s 
ea

rly
 y

ea
rs

 s
et

tin
gs

 a
nd

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

t l
ar

ge
.  

Ju
ly

 2
01

5 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
dr

af
te

d 
by

 H
ea

d 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

D
C

) 
w

hi
ch

 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

si
gn

ed
 o

ff.
 

W
or

k 
pa

ck
ag

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
C

H
IP

P
 to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 fa
m

ily
 

an
d 

fr
ie

nd
s 

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g.

  
T

ra
in

in
g 

to
 fr

on
tli

ne
 s

ta
ff 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
rt

 o
f t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

  

A
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

S
cr

ut
in

y 

205



  Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

42
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
R

ef
re

sh
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 p
os

te
rs

 a
nd

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
le

af
le

ts
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
id

er
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

as
 to

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

an
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
sh

ar
in

g.
   

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

43
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 d

at
a 

fr
om

 c
om

pa
ra

to
r 

an
d 

go
od

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
 a

s 
to

 w
ha

t n
um

be
r 

of
 p

riv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 le
ar

n 
fr

om
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 th

ey
 ta

ke
.  

A
pr

il 
20

15
 

P
riv

at
e 

fo
st

er
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 th

e 
ki

ns
hi

p 
an

d 
S

G
O

 h
ub

 s
o 

th
at

 
th

er
e 

is
 g

re
at

er
 o

ut
si

gh
t. 

 
C

om
pa

ra
tiv

e 
da

ta
 w

ill
 b

e 
on

e 
of

 th
ei

r 
pr

im
ar

y 
ta

sk
s.

 

A
lis

on
 F

or
sh

aw
 is

 d
ue

 to
 

m
ee

t w
ith

 M
A

S
H

 to
 r

ev
ie

w
 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 
be

in
g 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

to
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
S

G
O

 a
nd

 K
in

sh
ip

 H
ub

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

6 
w

ee
kl

y 
vi

si
ts

 
ca

n 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
. 

W
or

k 
pa

ck
ag

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
C

H
IP

P
 to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 fa
m

ily
 

an
d 

fr
ie

nd
s 

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g.

  
T

ra
in

in
g 

to
 fr

on
tli

ne
 s

ta
ff 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
rt

 o
f t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

  

 

G
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
  

44
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
C

la
rif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 w

ha
t a

 p
riv

at
e 

fo
st

er
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t i
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f 
th

e 
pr

ac
tic

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r 

ki
ns

hi
p 

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 d

ra
fte

d.
  W

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

ur
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
 W

or
ce

st
er

 to
 tr

y 
an

d 
br

in
g 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

ar
ou

nd
 

ki
ns

hi
p 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t 

he
ar

d 
in

 c
ou

rt
.  

T
hi

s 
ha

s 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

ed
 jo

in
t t

ra
in

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 k

in
sh

ip
 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
.  

A
 

In
te

rn
al

 P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

P
ro

ce
du

re
s 

G
ro

up
  

206



  Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

W
or

k 
pa

ck
ag

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
C

H
IP

P
 to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 fa
m

ily
 

an
d 

fr
ie

nd
s 

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g.

  
T

ra
in

in
g 

to
 fr

on
tli

ne
 s

ta
ff 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
rt

 o
f t

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

  

45
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
t l

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
bo

ve
 a

ct
io

ns
, 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

to
 

m
ov

e 
in

to
 th

e 
K

in
sh

ip
 a

nd
 S

G
O

 
hu

b 

A
pr

il 
20

15
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 P
riv

at
e 

fo
st

er
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

dd
ed

 
to

 th
e 

ro
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 S
G

O
 

an
d 

K
in

sh
ip

 T
ea

m
 

M
an

ag
er

, w
ho

 w
ill

  r
ep

or
t 

to
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 
 

si
x 

m
on

th
ly

. .
 . 

A
lis

on
 F

or
sh

aw
 is

 d
ue

 to
 

m
ee

t w
ith

 M
A

S
H

 to
 r

ev
ie

w
 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ef
er

ra
ls

 
be

in
g 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

to
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
S

G
O

 a
nd

 K
in

sh
ip

 H
ub

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

6 
w

ee
kl

y 
vi

si
ts

 
ca

n 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
. 

T
ea

m
 is

 n
ow

 a
t f

ul
l 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

su
pp

or
t t

hi
s 

w
or

k 
be

in
g 

ta
ke

n 
fo

rw
ar

d.
 

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

m
on

th
ly

 

46
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
U

pd
at

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

w
or

kf
lo

w
 

on
 fr

am
ew

or
ki

 a
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 n
ot

 fi
t 

fo
r 

pu
rp

os
e 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

re
po

rt
in

g 
of

 s
uc

h 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.  

  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
ki

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n.

  

. 

A
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 

47
. 

 2
7.

  
(7

0)
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

D
ut

y 
T

ea
m

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

su
pp

or
ts

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 h

el
d 

in
 p

ol
ic

e 
cu

st
od

y 
ou

t 
of

 h
ou

rs
 a

nd
 th

at
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

is
 

 H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
(K

P
) 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f E

D
T

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 
Le

ad
 C

om
m

is
si

on
er

, H
oS

 
LA

C
 a

nd
 H

oS
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
ha

ve
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

pr
ot

oc
ol

.  
 U

pd
at

ed
 d

ra
ft 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
ha

re
d 

w
ith

 

A
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

s 
H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

207



  Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 b

ei
ng

 h
el

d 
in

 p
ol

ic
e 

cu
st

od
y 

ov
er

ni
gh

t. 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 a

nd
 in

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
st

ag
e.

 
R

ev
ie

w
 M

ee
tin

g 
sc

he
du

le
d 

bi
-m

on
th

ly
. 

N
ex

t M
ee

tin
g 

to
 ta

ke
 

pl
ac

e 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

an
d 

th
e 

fin
al

 
do

cu
m

en
t/p

ro
to

co
l w

ill
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 H

O
S

 a
nd

 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
S

ub
 G

ro
up

 fo
r 

si
gn

 o
ff.

  
 A

 n
ew

 E
D

T
 in

ci
de

nt
 a

nd
 

ev
en

t r
ef

er
ra

l r
ec

or
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

is
ed

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
   

 
   

48
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
(K

P
) 

R
ev

ie
w

 w
ith

 Y
O

S
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

e 
co

lle
ag

ue
s 

as
 to

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

Y
O

S
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g,
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 M

an
ag

er
 is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

is
su

es
  a

ro
un

d 
ov

er
ni

gh
t 

de
te

nt
io

n 
of

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

E
D

T
s.

 

A
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
Y

O
S

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 

49
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
(K

P
)  

Id
en

tif
y 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
14

 
E

xp
lo

rin
g 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
’s

 e
xi

st
in

g 
“S

af
e 

B
as

e”
 c

on
tr

ac
t a

s 
a 

po
te

nt
ia

l m
od

el
 to

 fo
llo

w
, 

or
 a

s 
an

 o
pt

io
n 

th
e 

E
D

T
 

sh
ou

ld
 a

lre
ad

y 
ha

ve
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

.  

A
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

s 

50
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
an

d 
H

ea
d 

of
 

F
ie

ld
w

or
k 

(K
P

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 p
ol

ic
e 

 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

C
as

es
 w

he
re

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 h

el
d 

in
 c

us
to

dy
 

ov
er

ni
gh

t a
re

 n
ow

 fl
ag

ge
d 

by
 th

e 
E

D
T

 d
ut

y 
m

an
ag

er
 

an
d 

th
e 

du
ty

 H
O

S
 is

 
co

nt
ac

te
d 

w
er

e 
ag

re
em

en
t/ 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
is

 
br

ou
gh

t a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

te
rm

s 

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

208



  Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

fo
r 

th
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

 
be

in
g 

he
ld

 a
nd

 w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t t

he
y 

sh
ou

ld
 r

et
ur

n 
to

 
pl

ac
em

en
t. 

  
51

. 
  

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 

C
hi

ld
re

n  

D
ev

el
op

 c
le

ar
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ith

 p
ol

ic
e 

to
 tr

ou
bl

e 
sh

oo
t s

uc
h 

is
su

es
 lo

ca
lly

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f ‘

se
cu

re
’. 

  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

R
em

an
d 

P
ro

to
co

l h
as

 
be

en
 s

ha
re

d 
at

 H
O

S
 le

ve
l 

an
d 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

.  
 P

et
er

 M
er

ry
 h

as
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

a 
ve

ry
 g

oo
d 

 r
ep

or
t 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
po

lic
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 
at

 r
ec

og
ni

zi
ng

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
un

de
r 

18
 a

s 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

cu
st

od
y 

su
it 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
in

 H
er

ef
or

d.
  T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

gr
ea

te
r 

cl
ar

ity
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
te

rm
 ‘s

ec
ur

e’
 a

nd
 h

ow
 th

is
 

is
 u

se
d.

  O
ng

oi
ng

 M
ee

tin
g 

he
ld

 J
an

 2
01

5 
– 

w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
w

ith
 th

e 
po

lic
e.

 
 

A
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

52
. 

  
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

D
ev

el
op

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

in
 

re
du

ci
ng

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
of

 u
se

 o
f 

cu
st

od
y 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
.  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
he

 E
D

T
 e

pi
so

de
 is

 n
ow

 
liv

e 
in

 F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 a
nd

 w
ill

 
ca

pt
ur

e 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 d
at

a 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 n
ot

 r
ep

or
ta

bl
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

re
as

on
 w

hy
 

a 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
 is

 a
t t

he
 

po
l ic

e 
st

at
io

n.
  

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
’s

 E
D

T
 

st
af

f s
til

l n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

tr
ai

ne
d 

on
 th

e 
ne

w
 

ep
is

od
e.

   
It 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 

th
at

 th
is

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
.  

  

A
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
Y

O
S

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 

209



  Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

53
. 

 2
8.

  

(7
3)

 

F
ul

ly
 u

til
is

e 
F

am
ily

 G
ro

up
 

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 in

fo
rm

 c
ar

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 w

he
re

 c
ar

e 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
.  

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
(K

P
) 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
es

ou
rc

e 
F

G
C

 s
er

vi
ce

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ro
bu

st
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f P

ub
lic

 L
aw

 O
ut

lin
e,

 
an

d 
ca

se
 la

w
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
.  

  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

A
ll 

ca
se

s 
th

at
 a

re
 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 L
eg

al
 

G
at

ew
ay

 (
ne

w
 n

am
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

m
ee

tin
g)

 n
ow

 h
av

e 
an

 
ac

tio
n 

to
 c

on
ve

ne
 a

 F
G

C
.  

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

54
. 

  
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

(M
G

) 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
on

 F
G

C
 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 o

ut
co

m
es

 d
ev

el
op

ed
.  

  
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
14

 
 W

or
k 

on
 th

is
 m

od
ul

e 
w

ill
 

co
m

m
en

ce
 w

he
n 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

ha
t 

th
ei

r 
re

po
rt

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e.

   

A
 

C
H

IP
P

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
oa

rd
 

55
. 

 2
9.

  

(5
1 

, 
14

7)
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 
th

e 
et

hn
ic

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l i
de

nt
ity

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

re
 

th
or

ou
gh

ly
 a

ss
es

se
d 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
   

H
ea

d 
of

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
N

ee
ds

 (
LK

) 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
id

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e 
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s.

   
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
A

 m
ee

tin
g 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 N
ee

ds
.  

  

A
n 

au
di

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

w
hi

ch
 lo

ok
s 

at
 

go
od

 a
nd

 b
ad

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
W

D
 a

nd
 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 

lia
is

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

is
 m

at
te

r 
is

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 p
la

n  

G
 

C
ab

in
et

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 

 

56
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

E
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 E
qu

al
iti

es
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

di
ve

rs
ity

 
is

su
es

 a
re

 fu
lly

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
en

co
m

pa
ss

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 p
l a

n.
  

G
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 

57
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 

D
ev

el
op

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

Q
A

 o
f a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

5 
A

n 
au

di
t w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 to
 

id
en

tif
y 

go
od

 a
nd

 b
ad

 
pr

ac
tic

e.
   

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 th

en
 

G
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

210



  Pa
ge

 1
9 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

is
su

es
 to

 in
fo

rm
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

.  
  

in
fo

rm
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

 fo
r 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 a
nd

 fa
m

ily
 

su
pp

or
t. 

 

58
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 w

he
re

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 is

su
es

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

th
or

ou
gh

ly
 c

on
si

de
re

d.
   

Ju
ne

 2
01

5 
T

he
 a

ud
it 

of
 c

as
es

 w
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e.
  

G
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

 

59
. 

30
.  

 

 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
nd

 m
on

ito
r 

a 
ro

bu
st

 
sy

st
em

 fo
r 

m
ak

in
g 

tim
el

y 
de

ci
si

on
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 

de
la

ys
 in

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
he

n 
th

ey
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
an

d 
H

ea
d 

of
 

F
ie

ld
w

or
k 

(K
P

)  

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

ro
ce

ss
es

 fo
r 

de
ci

si
on

 
m

ak
in

g 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

 p
an

el
, 

le
ga

l p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
C

N
S

. 

 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

Le
ga

l g
at

ew
ay

 te
rm

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 

C
N

S
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
an

d 
 s

ig
ne

d 
of

f N
ov

 2
01

4.
 

T
O

R
 fo

r 
re

so
ur

ce
 p

an
el

/ 
pl

ac
em

en
t p

an
el

 h
as

 n
ow

 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 a

nd
 

ci
rc

ul
at

ed
 to

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
ag

re
em

en
t t

o  
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

a 
ch

ild
 is

 
no

w
 b

ei
ng

 r
ai

se
d 

at
 

as
si

st
an

t d
ire

ct
or

 le
ve

l 
an

d 
si

gn
ed

 o
ff 

w
he

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.  
T

he
 

pl
ac

em
en

t a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 o
ut

 to
 a

ll 
st

af
f  

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

  

60
. 

 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f r

ev
ie

w
, r

ep
or

tin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 

ev
id

en
ce

 ti
m

el
in

es
s 

of
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 
an

d 
es

ca
la

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

if 
de

la
y 

is
 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

W
or

k 
on

 th
e 

 lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
or

kf
lo

w
 is

 n
ot

 
ye

t i
n 

FW
i. 

T
he

 p
er

m
an

en
ce

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
fo

r 
LA

C
 is

 b
ei

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
 C

H
IP

P
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

is
 a

ls
o 

be
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

IR
O

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
ro

un
d 

th
ei

r 

A
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

211



  Pa
ge

 2
0 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

ro
le

 in
 e

sc
al

at
in

g 
ca

se
s.

 

61
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
C

on
tin

ue
d 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
E

dg
e 

of
 C

ar
e 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 p
an

el
.  

D
ire

ct
 w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 e

dg
e 

of
 c

ar
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l a
ct

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 ta

ke
n 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ch

ild
 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fa
m

ily
.  

  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

A
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
fr

om
 

fa
m

ily
 s

up
po

rt
 h

as
 n

ow
 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 

pr
es

en
t a

 r
ep

or
t a

t 
re

so
ur

ce
 p

an
el

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

m
on

ito
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 o
n 

th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f c

ar
e.

 

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

C
H

IP
P

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
oa

rd
 

62
. 

 3
1.

  

(7
8)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 p
la

ns
 fo

r 
pe

rm
an

en
cy

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
an

d 
cl

ea
rly

 r
ec

or
de

d 
at

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

se
co

nd
 lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
re

vi
ew

 in
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l g
ui

da
nc

e.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 r
ol

l o
ut

 o
f 

pe
rm

an
en

cy
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
its

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

   
  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

P
er

m
an

en
ce

 p
ol

ic
y 

is
 in

 
dr

af
t b

ut
 h

as
 to

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 

by
 a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 g
ro

up
 

be
fo

re
 b

ei
ng

 s
ig

ne
d 

of
f. 

 
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

lo
ok

ed
 a

t a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f C

H
IP

P
.  

 

A
 

P
ol

ic
y 

ap
pr

ov
al

:  
C

ab
in

et
/C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

be
r 

 

63
. 

  
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
  

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t r
ep

or
ts

 
to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
 

1 
A

pr
il 

20
15

 
T

he
 L

A
C

 m
od

ul
e 

is
 n

ow
 

be
in

g 
bu

ilt
 a

nd
 it

 is
 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
m

od
ul

e 
w

ill
 g

o 
liv

e 
on

 1
 

A
pr

il 
20

15
 

A
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 to
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
br

oa
de

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

64
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

 

S
ec

on
dm

en
t o

f S
M

 in
to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t e

xp
er

tis
e 

in
 L

A
C

 w
ill

 
le

ad
 o

n 
se

lf-
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
ga

in
st

 
C

ar
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 L
A

C
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
ro

ce
ss

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ag
en

da
. 

 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
G

 
 

65
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(J

R
) 

 

R
ev

is
ed

 L
A

C
R

 R
ec

or
ds

 d
ra

fte
d 

an
d 

du
e 

to
 b

e 
tr

ia
le

d 
– 

th
es

e 
gi

ve
 

gr
ea

te
r 

fo
cu

s 
to

 p
er

m
an

en
ce

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 b

et
te

r 
ev

id
en

ce
 Q

A
 

by
 IR

O
s 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 

an
d 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
tr

ia
le

d.
  

W
or

k 
on

 th
e 

LA
C

 m
od

ul
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

5  

G
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

66
. 

 3
2.

  
D

ev
el

op
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
m

et
ho

ds
 to

 in
fo

rm
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 
ab

ou
t w

he
th

er
 s

ib
lin

gs
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
R

ef
re

sh
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
sh

ar
e 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
S

ib
lin

g 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

be
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ad
va

nc
ed

 p
ra

ct
iti

on
er

 

G
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

212



  Pa
ge

 2
1 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

(8
1)

 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

 p
la

ce
d 

to
ge

th
er

 o
r 

ap
ar

t. 
R

ec
or

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
in

 d
et

ai
l t

o 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 b

ei
ng

 
m

ad
e.

  

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
   

 

 

se
rv

ic
e.

  C
le

ar
 m

at
ch

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

t a
lre

ad
y 

be
in

g 
us

ed
 to

 m
at

ch
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

to
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
. 

67
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
) 

E
ns

ur
e 

Q
A

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f i
m

pa
ct

 o
f u

se
 o

f t
hi

s 
gu

id
an

ce
 in

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
ou

tc
om

es
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
15

 
T

he
 a

ud
it 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

LA
C

 a
ud

it 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 d
ur

in
g 

20
15

/1
6.

 

A
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

68
. 

 3
3.

  

(7
9)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
eg

ul
ar

 a
na

ly
si

s 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
ac

cu
ra

te
 

ac
co

un
t o

f e
m

er
gi

ng
 th

em
es

.  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
(P

G
) 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 c

on
tr

ac
t t

o 
en

su
re

 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ga

th
er

ed
 

in
fo

rm
s 

fu
tu

re
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g,
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

an
d 

m
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
ns

 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 

A
gr

ee
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

th
at

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 h
as

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

ch
ild

 

 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
on

tr
ac

t i
s 

fo
rm

al
ly

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

on
 a

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

ba
si

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
id

er
. 

C
on

tin
uo

us
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 

ab
ou

t o
pe

ra
tio

na
l a

sp
ec

ts
, 

an
d 

th
em

es
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
O

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ha

ve
 

no
w

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

– 
re

po
rt

in
g 

on
 th

es
e 

is
 s

til
l i

n 
its

 in
fa

nc
y 

an
d 

th
e 

fa
ct

 it
 is

 o
nl

y 
on

 a
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 b
as

is
   

 

 

A
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

  

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

69
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
(P

G
) 

S
pe

ci
fic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 o

f a
dv

oc
ac

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
yo

un
ge

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
C

W
D

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f c

on
tr

ac
t 

re
fr

es
h.

   
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

yo
un

ge
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

C
W

D
 is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
; t

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 s
ta

ff 
m

ad
e 

aw
ar

e 

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

70
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 o
f v

oi
ce

 o
f 

N
ov

em
be

r 
A

w
ar

de
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
P

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

213



  Pa
ge

 2
2 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ch
ild

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
20

14
 

st
ar

t d
at

e 
of

 A
pr

il 
20

15
   

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

71
. 

 3
4.

  

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

vi
rt

ua
l s

ch
oo

l 
de

ve
lo

ps
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ts

 a
 

st
ra

te
gy

 to
 n

ar
ro

w
 th

e 
ga

p 
in

 
at

ta
in

m
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
al

l o
th

er
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.  

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
ur

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l n
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 
LA

C
 c

oh
or

t t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

  t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

st
re

ng
th

s 
an

d 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 c
or

e 
cu

rr
ic

ul
um

 s
ub

je
ct

s.
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

  

A
na

ly
si

s 
se

ss
io

n 
w

ith
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Li

ai
so

n 
fo

r 
LA

C
 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r 

12
th
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r  

S
es

si
on

 h
el

d 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 

sh
ee

t b
ei

ng
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

te
am

 m
em

be
rs

 

A
na

ly
si

s 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t  
se

ss
io

n 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r 
27

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

w
ith

 S
en

io
r 

LA
C

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r 

In
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 b
ei

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f e

m
ot

io
na

l 
he

al
th

 o
f p

rim
ar

y 
ag

ed
 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

 T
ria

l 
de

liv
er

y 
no

w
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

72
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

or
e 

da
ta

 p
ac

ka
ge

 fo
r 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Li

ai
so

n 
fo

r 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 le

ar
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 c
hi

ld
 c

om
in

g 
in

 to
 th

e 
ca

re
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 g
at

he
re

d 
an

d 
us

ed
 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

of
 

su
pp

or
t.  

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

D
at

a 
G

at
he

rin
g 

sh
ee

t  
no

w
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

lfo
r 

w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
na

ly
si

s 
da

ta
. 

G
 

 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

73
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
rit

ic
al

 fr
ie

nd
 to

 a
ct

 
as

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ro
bu

st
 

st
ra

te
gy

.  
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

  
G

 
Jo

in
t S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

74
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

C
on

du
ct

  r
ev

ie
w

 o
f E

LL
 S

er
vi

ce
 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 w

or
kl

oa
ds

, 
O

ct
ob

er
 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

un
de

rw
ay

 w
ith

 
se

ni
or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
A

 
Jo

in
t S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 

214



  Pa
ge

 2
3 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

pl
or

at
io

n 
of

 e
xt

en
di

ng
 

re
m

it 
of

 V
irt

ua
l S

ch
oo

l f
ro

m
 0

 –
 2

5.
 

20
14

 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

75
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

D
ev

el
op

 IC
T

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
to

 a
llo

w
 

cl
os

er
 tr

ac
ki

ng
 o

f p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

d 
at

te
nd

an
ce

. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

al
l 

en
ga

ge
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
pl

ac
ed

 o
ut

 o
f 

co
un

ty
. S

et
 u

p 
m

ee
tin

g 
ar

ra
ng

ed
 fo

r 
w

ee
k 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 1
4th

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
al

l n
ow

 
co

lle
ct

in
g 

O
ut

 C
ou

nt
y 

D
at

a 
he

ld
 w

ith
 e

G
ov

 
D

ig
ita

l t
o 

lo
ok

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

P
E

P
s 

as
 a

 w
ay

 o
f 

ga
th

er
in

g 
da

ta
.. 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
al

l n
ow

 
co

lle
ct

in
g 

in
 c

ou
nt

y 
da

ta
. 

T
hi

s 
no

w
 in

cl
ud

es
 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 a
tta

in
m

en
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

eP
E

P
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
in

 
re

vi
ew

 p
ap

er
.  

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

76
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

D
ev

el
op

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

t 
co

un
ty

, s
ch

oo
l, 

gr
ou

p 
an

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 le
ve

l  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 fr

om
 s

es
si

on
 o

n 
12

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r.
 

T
ea

m
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 m
ak

in
g 

us
e 

of
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

E
nd

ow
m

en
t 

F
un

d 
w

eb
si

te
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

E
m

ot
io

na
l h

ea
lth

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
in

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

77
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

U
se

 o
f E

P
 ti

m
e,

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 w

ith
 

P
up

il 
P

re
m

iu
m

 m
on

ey
 to

 h
el

p 
w

ith
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fo

r 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

N
o 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 a

nd
 a

 
fu

rt
he

r 
ad

ve
rt

 p
la

ce
d.

 
G

 
Jo

in
t S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 

215



  Pa
ge

 2
4 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

th
os

e 
LA

C
 w

ith
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
T

w
o 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

cu
rr

en
t 

te
am

 m
em

be
rs

. 

E
P

 r
ec

ru
ite

d,
 s

ta
rt

 d
at

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
s 

20
/0

4/
01

5 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

78
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

D
ev

el
op

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

t 
co

un
ty

, s
ch

oo
l, 

gr
ou

p 
an

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 le
ve

l 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
In

iti
al

 tr
aw

l o
f s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 te

am
 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r 

se
ss

io
n 

on
 

12
th

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 

S
es

si
on

 h
el

d,
 fo

llo
w

 u
p 

to
 

be
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 D
es

ig
na

te
d 

T
ea

ch
er

s 
du

rin
g 

N
ov

em
be

r 
ne

tw
or

k 
m

ee
tin

g  
(p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r 
12

 
N

ov
em

be
r)

 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

te
ac

he
rs

 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r 

27
 

M
ar

ch
, w

ill
 lo

ok
 a

t c
lo

si
ng

 
th

e 
ga

p.
 

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

79
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

D
ev

el
op

 d
at

a 
on

 c
om

pa
ra

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 b
y 

de
m

on
st

ra
tin

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 
in

 c
ho

ic
e 

of
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 fo

r 
LA

C
. 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
us

in
g 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
E

nd
ow

m
en

t 
F

un
d 

w
eb

si
te

. 

D
is

cu
ss

ed
 a

t d
es

ig
na

te
d 

te
ac

he
r 

m
ee

tin
g 

in
 

D
ec

em
be

r,
 w

ill
 b

e 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 in
 M

ar
ch

. 

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

80
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

D
em

on
st

ra
te

 g
oo

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 fo

r 
al

l 
an

d 
ac

ce
le

ra
te

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 fo

r 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

da
ta

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
A

 
Jo

in
t S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

81
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

A
ss

es
s 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 im

pa
ct

 o
f 

Le
tte

rb
ox

 C
lu

b 
on

 in
iti

al
 c

oh
or

t  
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
14

 
P

ro
je

ct
 to

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

to
 

T
ra

in
ee

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l 

P
sy

ch
ol

og
is

t w
he

n 
sh

e 
st

ar
ts

.  

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

216



  Pa
ge

 2
5 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

T
ra

in
ee

 E
P

 is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

. 

. E
va

lu
at

io
n 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 

82
. 

 3
5.

  

(8
7,

 8
8,

 
89

)  

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 m
ak

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 g

oo
d 

or
 b

et
te

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

t e
ve

ry
 s

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
ir 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
cl

os
e 

th
e 

at
ta

in
m

en
t g

ap
 b

et
w

ee
n 

lo
ok

ed
 

af
te

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
al

l c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 (
S

L)
 

A
na

ly
se

 c
ur

re
nt

 L
A

C
 c

oh
or

t t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
st

re
ng

th
s 

an
d 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 c

or
e 

cu
rr

ic
ul

um
 

su
bj

ec
ts

. 

 
A

na
ly

si
s 

se
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

Li
ai

so
n 

fo
r 

LA
C

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r 
12

th
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 

A
s 

ab
ov

e 

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

83
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l 

H
ea

dt
ea

ch
er

 
A

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t t

o 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 o

n 
LA

C
 a

tta
in

m
en

t 

 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

R
ep

or
t p

re
pa

re
d.

 
G

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

84
. 

  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 
D

ev
el

op
 te

rm
ly

 r
ep

or
t f

or
 L

oo
ke

d 
af

te
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
P

la
ce

m
en

t O
pe

ra
tio

n 
G

ro
up

 (
LA

C
P

O
G

) 
to

 s
ho

w
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

n 
ke

y 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 k

ey
 c

as
es

 c
au

si
ng

 
co

nc
er

n 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

R
ep

or
t p

re
pa

re
d 

an
d 

up
da

te
d 

on
 a

 m
on

th
ly

 
ba

si
s.

 

G
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

85
. 

 3
6.

  
E

ns
ur

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 
w

ith
 th

e 
po

lic
e 

an
d 

yo
ut

h 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 r

ou
tin

el
y 

re
co

rd
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

se
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t l

oo
ke

d 
af

te
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 o

ffe
nd

in
g  

be
ha

vi
ou

r.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
A

ud
it 

of
 c

oh
or

t o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f o

ffe
nd

in
g 

an
d 

re
of

fe
nd

in
g.

 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

T
hi

s 
ta

sk
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

st
ar

te
d 

bu
t i

s 
st

ill
 o

ng
oi

ng
.  

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 ta
sk

 li
nk

ed
 to

 
w

or
k 

be
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
w

ith
in

 C
Y

P
P

. 

A
 

Y
O

S
 B

oa
rd

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

86
. 

  
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

(P
G

) 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f r

ec
or

di
ng

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ro
bu

st
 a

nd
 

re
gu

la
r 

re
po

rt
in

g 
an

d 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 
is

su
es

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 
to

 li
ai

se
 w

ith
 th

e 
po

lic
e 

an
d 

Y
O

S
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ro

bu
st

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
.  

 

A
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

217



  Pa
ge

 2
6 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
lin

ke
d 

to
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 L

A
C

 m
od

ul
e 

w
ith

in
 F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 w

hi
ch

 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
in

 A
ug

us
t. 

  
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 n
ow

 b
e 

liv
e 

as
 

fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

5.
 

E
du

ca
tio

n,
 Y

O
S

 a
nd

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 M

an
ag

er
 w

ill
 

m
ee

t b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
to

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.  

   

 

87
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
 

S
co

pi
ng

 o
f P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
er

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 L

A
C

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
11

+ 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 
T

hi
s 

is
 b

ei
ng

 lo
ok

ed
 a

t a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f i

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
yo

ut
h 

ap
pr

oa
ch

.  
Jo

in
t m

ee
tin

gs
 

ha
ve

 ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

Y
O

S
, 1

6+
 a

nd
 y

ou
th

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s.

 

A
 

Y
O

S
 B

oa
rd

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

88
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f  
N

or
th

um
be

rla
nd

 
R

is
k 

M
od

el
. 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

te
rm

s 
of

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

no
w

 a
gr

ee
d.

  
N

ee
d 

to
 a

gr
ee

 p
an

el
 

co
m

po
si

tio
n 

an
d 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
of

 m
ee

tin
gs

.  
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

be
in

g 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

C
S

E
 g

ro
up

 
he

ar
in

g 
th

es
e 

ca
se

s 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

se
ni

or
 o

ffi
ce

r 
ou

ts
ig

ht
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

ac
tio

ns
.  

D
ra

ft 
pl

an
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pi
le

d 
by

 A
ng

el
a 

R
ob

in
so

n 
an

d 
sh

ar
ed

 w
ith

 
H

S
C

B
.  

A
 

Y
O

S
 B

oa
rd

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

89
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f I

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
yo

ut
h 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ith

 Y
O

S
/ 1

6+
/ Y

ou
th

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 ta
sk

.  
A

ng
el

a 
R

ob
in

so
n 

ha
s 

dr
af

te
d 

a 
A

 
C

H
IP

P
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

oa
rd

 

218



  Pa
ge

 2
7 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

(J
K

) 
C

on
tr

ac
t/P

ol
ic

e/
 H

ea
lth

. 

 

20
14

 
pr

op
os

al
 b

ut
 th

is
 is

 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

di
sc

us
si

on
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

is
 li

nk
ed

 to
 w

or
k 

be
in

g 
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
w

ith
in

 
C

H
IP

P
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 a
ls

o 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
ith

in
 

Y
O

S
. 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 

C
ab

in
et

 

90
. 

 3
7.

  

(9
3)

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t w
or

ki
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l C

hi
ld

 
an

d 
A

do
le

sc
en

t M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 
S

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
be

tte
r 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
or

 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n.
  

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

D
ire

ct
or

: 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

&
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

(C
B

)  

R
ef

re
sh

 o
f C

A
M

H
S

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ill
 th

en
 fe

ed
 in

to
 w

id
er

 
re

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

se
rv

ic
es

.  
S

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ill

 c
on

ta
in

 
ac

tio
ns

 fo
r 

12
 m

on
th

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

em
ot

io
na

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

E
m

ot
io

na
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
ag

re
ed

 
at

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

s h
ip

 O
ct

 
20

14
, i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 
be

 o
ve

rs
ee

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
st

ee
rin

g 
gr

ou
p.

  

H
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 a
t h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 b
oa

rd
 N

ov
 

20
14

. 

R
ev

ie
w

 m
ee

tin
g 

ta
ki

ng
 

pl
ac

e 
w

/c
 1

9 
Ja

n 
20

15
 

A
 

C
ab

in
et

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 

91
. 

  
 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

D
ire

ct
or

: 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

&
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

(C
B

)  

E
ns

ur
e 

C
A

M
H

S
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

in
cl

ud
es

 
ea

rly
 y

ea
rs

 c
om

po
ne

nt
  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
  

G
 

C
ab

in
et

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 

92
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
E

ns
ur

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
C

A
M

H
S

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

th
e 

H
IP

P
S

 a
nd

 T
IS

S
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
cl

ea
rly

 d
ef

in
ed

.  
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

M
ee

tin
g 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 C
A

M
H

S
 lo

ca
l o

ffi
ce

 
(M

ar
k 

H
em

m
in

g)
 a

nd
 

ag
re

ed
 th

at
 w

e 
ne

ed
 a

 
re

la
un

ch
 o

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 in
 

th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f a

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ev

en
t a

nd
 c

la
rit

y 
ar

ou
nd

 
cr

ite
ria

 fo
r 

re
fe

rr
in

g 
ca

se
s.

  
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 d

at
a 

G
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 

Jo
in

t C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
  

219



  Pa
ge

 2
8 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

re
qu

es
te

d 
fr

om
 C

A
M

H
S

. 

C
A

M
H

S
 a

re
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
H

IP
S

S
 s

te
er

in
g 

gr
ou

p 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 

si
gn

 p
os

te
d 

to
 th

e 
rig

ht
 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

93
. 

 3
8.

 

(9
4)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e,

 is
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
ha

s 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
gr

ou
p.

  

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 (
JK

),
 c

ha
ir 

of
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g,

 c
ha

ir 
of

 C
iC

 
co

un
ci

l a
nd

 c
ar

e 
le

av
er

s 
ch

am
pi

on
  

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
  i

nf
or

m
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
 C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
 R

ev
ie

w
 to

 
as

se
ss

 im
pa

ct
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 

pl
ac

e 
in

 
A

ug
us

t/S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 

G
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

94
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
A

s 
fr

om
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

14
, y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

  
co

rp
or

at
e 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
pa

ne
ls

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
G

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
P

an
el

 

95
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 (
JK

) 
to

 b
e 

se
nt

 m
in

ut
e 

fr
om

 C
iC

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
tio

n 
w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
G

 
 

96
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
A

do
pt

 a
nd

 p
ub

lis
h 

th
e 

P
le

dg
e 

fo
r 

Lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n,
 a

s 
a 

de
m

on
st

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

of
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
t t

o 
ou

r 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n.

 

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

. 
G

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
P

an
el

 

97
. 

  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
D

ev
el

op
 C

iC
C

 w
eb

si
te

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
of

 th
e 

vo
ic

e 
of

 o
ur

 
LA

C
 a

nd
 is

 a
 u

se
fu

l r
es

ou
rc

e 
fo

r 
th

em
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

S
uc

ce
ss

fu
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

da
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 d

ra
ft 

w
eb

 s
ite

 n
ow

 in
 p

la
ce

.  
N

ex
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t  

da
y 

is
 

du
e 

to
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 A

pr
il 

20
15

. 

A
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
  

98
. 

 3
9.

  

(1
25

, 

E
ns

ur
e 

al
l l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
el

ec
te

d 
m

em
be

rs
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
 a

s 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
M

em
be

rs
’ S

em
in

ar
 in

 
O

ct
ob

er
/N

ov
em

be
r 

re
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

. 
G

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
P

an
el

 

220



  Pa
ge

 2
9 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

13
6)

 
a 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pa

re
nt

.  
 

P
ar

en
tin

g.
   

 
Jo

in
t S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 

99
. 

  
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

B
us

in
es

s 
In

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 M

em
be

rs
’ S

em
in

ar
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 u
p 

un
til

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
.  

 
N

ew
 r

ol
lin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
af

te
r 

20
15

 lo
ca

l 
el

ec
tio

ns
.  

 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

O
ng

oi
ng

.  
H

av
e 

al
so

 
ag

re
ed

 to
 s

en
d 

bi
 m

on
th

ly
 

up
da

te
s 

on
 h

ow
 a

re
 L

A
C

 
co

ho
rt

 a
re

 g
et

tin
g 

on
 a

nd
 

an
y 

pa
tte

rn
s 

or
 tr

en
ds

 
w

hi
ch

 m
em

be
rs

 c
ou

ld
 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
ad

dr
es

s.
 

G
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

10
0.

 
  

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 
(J

K
) 

S
ur

ve
y 

of
 M

em
be

rs
’ u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 
of

 th
ei

r 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
ro

le
 to

 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

an
d 

re
pe

at
ed

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 s

em
in

ar
s 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

im
pa

ct
.  

  

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
F

ol
lo

w
 u

p 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
 to

 
be

 s
en

t p
rio

r 
to

 M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

se
m

in
ar

. 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

  

G
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 

10
1.

 
  

 
C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

be
r:

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(J
M

) 

W
or

k 
be

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

be
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 to

 
m

ak
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 th
e 

G
ro

up
 

Le
ad

er
s 

re
 m

an
da

to
ry

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r 

al
l C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
at

 th
e 

st
ar

t o
f e

ac
h 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

ye
ar

 to
 a

tte
nd

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 c

or
po

ra
te

 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

se
m

in
ar

s.
  T

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l 

w
ill

 r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

  f
ai

lu
re

 to
 

at
te

nd
 w

ill
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

m
em

be
rs

 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s 
no

t b
ei

ng
 p

ai
d.

   

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 w
ith

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

 
fr

om
 M

ay
 

20
15

 

N
ot

e 
to

 G
ro

up
 L

ea
de

rs
 

ha
d 

be
en

 d
ra

fte
d 

an
d 

is
 to

 
be

 a
gr

ee
d.

  

G
 

C
ab

in
et

 

10
2.

 
  

 
C

ab
in

et
 

S
up

po
rt

 
M

em
be

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

(J
M

) 

C
ab

in
et

 S
up

po
rt

 M
em

be
r 

is
 li

ai
si

ng
 

w
ith

 v
ar

io
us

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

s 
le

ad
er

s 
ab

ou
t a

pp
re

nt
ic

es
hi

ps
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
fo

r 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n.
  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

B
ei

ng
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 w
ith

in
 

co
nt

ex
t o

f w
id

er
 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

p 
an

d 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 to

 w
or

k 
pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ith
in

 C
H

IP
P

 

G
 

C
ab

in
et

  

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

C
H

IP
P

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
oa

rd
 

10
3.

 
 4

0.
  

(1
03

?)
 

R
ef

re
sh

 a
nd

 r
e-

la
un

ch
 th

e 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 a
do

pt
er

s 
fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ith
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 
fo

r 
la

rg
er

 s
ib

lin
g 

gr
ou

ps
.  

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t t
o 

a 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t p

os
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

an
d 

fo
st

er
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ith
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

so
ci

al
 m

ed
ia

. 
  

Ju
ly

 2
01

4 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

po
st

 in
 a

do
pt

io
n 

no
w

 
ap

po
in

te
d.

 
 F

os
te

rin
g 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t p
os

t 
ad

ve
rt

is
ed

. 

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

221



  Pa
ge

 3
0 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

10
4.

 
  

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 
(J

K
) 

T
he

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
ar

e 
du

e 
to

 b
e 

si
gn

ed
 o

ff 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
. 

G
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

10
5.

 
 4

1.
  

(1
10

, 
11

1)
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

pa
th

w
ay

 p
la

ns
 

ar
e 

up
 to

 d
at

e,
 a

re
 o

f g
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

, a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

ro
bu

st
 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f n

ee
d,

 w
ith

 c
le

ar
 a

nd
 

ag
re

ed
 g

oa
ls

 a
nd

 a
re

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 

re
vi

ew
ed

.  

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

)  
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f P
at

hw
ay

 p
la

n 
w

ith
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
 

Ju
ly

 2
01

4.
 

P
at

hw
ay

 p
la

n 
is

 n
ow

 a
t 

po
in

t o
f s

ig
n 

of
f t

hr
ou

gh
 

C
or

iu
s.

 

T
ra

in
in

g 
de

liv
er

ed
 N

ov
 

20
14

 

G
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

10
6.

 
  

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(D
C

)  

A
ud

it 
ac

tiv
ity

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 p

at
hw

ay
 

pl
an

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

Q
A

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
an

d 
an

y 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

.  
  

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

   
 

G
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

10
7.

 
  

 
M

en
to

rin
g 

an
d 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
O

ffi
ce

r 
(D

B
) 

In
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

a 
su

rv
ey

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pa

th
w

ay
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

   

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
O

n 
tr

ac
k 

G
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

10
8.

 
 4

2.
 

(1
12

) 

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

ca
re

 le
av

er
s 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

ir 
he

al
th

 
re

co
rd

s.
   

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f h
ea

lth
 p

as
sp

or
t f

or
 

ca
re

 le
av

er
s.

  
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

15
 

B
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ex

am
pl

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

be
in

g 
ad

ap
te

d 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.  
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 m
ov

in
g 

fr
om

 fo
st

er
 

ca
re

 a
re

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 u
se

 
th

e 
fu

ll 
he

al
th

 p
as

sp
or

t, 
ca

re
 le

av
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

or
e 

co
nd

en
se

d 
bu

t w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 m

ed
ic

at
io

n 
de

ta
ils

 fo
r 

lif
e 

lim
iti

ng
 

ill
ne

ss
es

. 

T
hi

s 
is

 n
ot

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
t t

hi
s 

st
ag

e 
du

e 
to

 p
re

ss
ur

es
 w

ith
in

 

A
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 C

ar
e 

M
an

ag
er

s 
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

222



  Pa
ge

 3
1 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

/A
/G

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

th
e 

16
+ 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

10
9.

 
 4

3.
  

(8
2,

 
11

7,
 

13
7)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

ca
re

 le
av

er
s 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

ei
r 

rig
ht

s,
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
, 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 r

ea
lis

e 
th

em
.  

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

(J
K

) 
R

ef
re

sh
 o

f C
or

po
ra

te
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

, 
in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l c
hi

ld
re

n 
ar

e 
en

ab
le

d 
to

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
ei

r 
rig

ht
s.

   
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 to

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

fo
r 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

. 

A
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
  

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 L

A
C

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f f

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

m
od

ul
e 

an
d 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
lin

k 
to

 th
e 

V
oi

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
hi

ld
 

G
ro

up
.  

R
ig

ht
s 

of
 th

e 
ch

ild
 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
fe

at
ur

e 
on

 th
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
eb

si
te

. 

G
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

11
0.

 
 4

4.
  

(1
35

) 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

an
d 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 

fr
om

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
, 

pa
re

nt
s 

an
d 

ca
re

rs
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 

us
er

s 
is

 s
ys

te
m

at
ic

al
ly

 c
ol

la
te

d 
an

d  
an

al
ys

ed
 a

nd
 is

 u
se

d 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(D

C
)  

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Q

A
 a

nd
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 to

 
st

re
ng

th
en

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
ili

ty
, 

kn
ow

le
dg

e,
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

, l
ea

rn
in

g 
an

d 
di

ss
em

in
at

io
n 

of
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

 

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
a 

re
ce

nt
 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f c

om
pl

ai
nt

s,
 

fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

an
ce

 n
ee

ds
 to

 
be

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

th
at

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t i
nv

es
tig

at
in

g 
of

fic
er

s 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 D
at

a 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
is

 
no

t b
re

ac
he

d 
an

d 
w

ha
t 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
.  

   
  

G
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 H
ea

ds
 o

f 
S

er
vi

ce
 

H
al

f y
ea

rly
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

Jo
in

t S
M

T
 a

nd
 

m
em

be
rs

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 A
nn

ua
l C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
R

ep
or

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 fo

r 
ye

ar
 e

nd
 M

ar
ch

 
20

15
 a

nd
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, H

S
C

B
 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

11
1.

 
  

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(D
C

) 

N
ew

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 Q

A
 a

nd
 S

W
 

ac
ad

em
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 

in
to

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

n.
   

 M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

  
G

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

 

223



  Pa
ge

 3
2 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

H
S

C
B

 O
F

S
T

E
D

 IN
S

P
E

C
T

IO
N

 M
A

Y
 2

01
4 
–
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
 

K
ey

:  
 

· 
H

S
C

B
 is

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

B
oa

rd
 

· 
O

fs
te

d 
P

ar
a 

N
um

be
r 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

A
re

a 
of

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

O
ut

co
m

e 
of

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4
 

 

 
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 

R
ef

er
en

c
e 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

A
G

 
R

at
in

g
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
an

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

1.
 

 
14

9 
4.

1 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

LS
C

B
 a

nd
 th

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
B

oa
rd

 a
re

 c
la

rif
ie

d.
  

In
de

pe
nd

en
t C

ha
ir 

of
 H

S
C

B
 

A
gr

ee
 p

ro
to

co
l w

hi
ch

 s
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
S

C
B

  a
nd

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t B

oa
rd

.  

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

P
ro

to
co

l s
ig

ne
d 

ag
re

ed
 a

t t
he

 O
ct

ob
er

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
.  

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

G
 

C
ha

irs
 o

f 
H

S
C

B
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

B
oa

rd
  

2.
 

 
15

0 
2.

2 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 L

S
C

B
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

re
 u

p 
to

 d
at

e 
an

d 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
is

su
es

 s
pe

ci
fic

 to
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
r

es
 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t c

ha
irs

 to
 

ag
re

e 
su

b 
re

gi
on

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

nd
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r 

re
vi

si
on

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

   
 M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
pe

er
s 

w
as

 p
os

tp
on

ed
 a

nd
 d

ue
 to

 b
e 

re
-

ar
ra

ng
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

ne
w

 y
ea

r.
   

A
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

3.
 

 
 

2.
2 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

P
ro

ce
du

r
es

 

In
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 T

ri-
x,

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
 

tim
et

ab
le

 to
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 o
n 

a 
re

gi
on

al
 

ba
si

s 
fo

r 
a 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 

up
da

te
 o

f b
es

po
ke

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n.

  T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

cu
rr

en
t, 

an
d 

kn
ow

n 
ab

ou
t f

ut
ur

e,
 n

at
io

na
l a

nd
 

lo
ca

l p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
pe

er
s 

w
as

 
po

st
po

ne
d 

an
d 

du
e 

to
 b

e 
r e

-a
rr

an
ge

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
ne

w
 y

ea
r.

   

A
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

4.
 

 
 

2.
2 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

P
ro

ce
du

r
es

 

P
rio

rit
y 

to
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 c

hi
ld

 s
ex

ua
l 

ex
pl

oi
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
M

is
si

ng
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 O

fs
te

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
.  

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
ce

ss
es

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
in

 M
A

S
H

 
fr

om
 5

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

to
 th

e 
C

S
A

R
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l a
nd

 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
gr

ou
p 

ha
s 

no
w

 c
om

m
en

ce
d.

   
G

 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

5.
 

 
15

1 
1.

4 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
LS

C
B

 r
ec

ei
ve

s 
ac

cu
ra

te
 a

nd
 r

el
ev

an
t 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

it 
to

 
as

su
re

 it
se

lf 
on

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
th

e 
Q

A
 

S
ub

 
G

ro
up

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 c

hi
ld

’s
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

sc
or

ec
ar

d.
   

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 c

le
ar

ly
 

de
fin

e 
w

ha
t d

at
a 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

, t
he

 
fo

rm
at

 a
nd

 th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y.
   

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
T

he
 c

on
te

nt
s 

of
 a

 d
ra

ft 
sc

or
ec

ar
d 

ha
s 

 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

ag
ai

ns
t i

t i
s 

st
ill

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

  T
hi

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 a

ny
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

fr
om

 th
e 

LG
A

 p
ee

r 
di

ag
no

st
ic

 o
n 

th
e 

A
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
   

224



  Pa
ge

 3
3 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

 
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 

R
ef

er
en

c
e 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

A
G

 
R

at
in

g
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
an

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 w
or

k.
  

H
S

C
B

 p
la

nn
in

g 
da

y 
in

 F
eb

 / 
M

ar
 2

01
5 

6.
 

 
 

1.
4 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

 

E
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 a
ud

it 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 
be

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

n 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

at
a.

 

F
eb

ru
a

ry
 2

01
5 

R
ev

ie
w

 to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

Q
A

 s
ub

 
gr

ou
p 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
. 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
   

7.
 

 
15

2 
4.

1 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
LS

C
B

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l g

ro
up

s 
is

 
m

an
ag

ea
bl

e 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

. 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

T
er

m
s 

of
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 fo
r 

th
e 

st
ee

rin
g 

gr
ou

p 
an

d 
su

b 
gr

ou
ps

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

pr
io

ris
at

io
n.

  

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

.  
R

at
ifi

ed
 a

t t
o 

Ju
ly

's
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 
an

d 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n,
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

do
w

nl
oa

d 
on

 
th

e 
A

bo
ut

 H
S

C
B

 w
eb

pa
ge

. 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
B

oa
rd

  

8.
 

 
 

4.
1 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

qu
ar

te
rly

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
 c

ha
irs

 
m

ee
tin

g 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

ar
e 

in
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
 p

rio
rit

iz
ed

 a
nd

 
st

ee
rin

g 
gr

ou
p 

di
re

ct
iv

es
.  

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

 Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

an
d 

th
e 

fir
st

 m
ee

tin
g 

to
ok

 p
la

ce
 o

n 
8 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.  
G

 

H
S

C
B

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
B

oa
rd

 

9.
 

 
 

4.
1 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

S
up

po
rt

 th
e 

ch
ai

rs
 o

f t
he

 s
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

su
b 

gr
ou

p 
to

 s
et

 a
ge

nd
as

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 te
rm

s 
of

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

an
d 

B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

/ O
fs

te
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

rio
rit

ie
s.

   

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

C
om

pl
et

e.
  A

ll 
H

S
C

B
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

re
 

ag
en

de
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t o
f t

he
 

B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t w

ith
 th

ou
gh

t g
iv

en
 to

 
en

su
rin

g 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

's
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
. 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

10
.  

15
3 

1.
4 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 c
as

e 
au

di
ts

 is
 a

ct
io

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 is

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
pe

at
 a

ud
its

.  

C
ha

ir 
of

 
Q

A
 S

ub
 

G
ro

up
  

Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 is

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

its
 w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

an
d 

th
e 

H
S

C
B

 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

vi
se

d 
da

ta
 s

et
 a

nd
 s

co
re

ca
rd

, t
o 

en
su

re
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 

au
di

ts
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

pr
og

re
ss

.  
  

F
eb

ru
a

ry
 2

01
5 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 b

ut
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
an

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
LG

A
 p

ee
r 

di
ag

no
st

ic
.  

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

11
.  

 
1.

4 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
Q

A
 S

ub
 

G
ro

up
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 g
en

er
at

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
Q

A
 s

ub
 

gr
ou

p 
to

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 w

ho
 w

ill
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
  

ve
hi

cl
e 

fo
r 

sh
ar

in
g 

th
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
ac

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
.  

 

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
al

l 
su

b 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

m
or

e 
ro

bu
st

 w
ith

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

tim
e 

in
 a

ll 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 
m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
su

b 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 
pr

og
re

ss
 to

w
ar

ds
 H

S
C

B
’s

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
  

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 is
 e

xe
rc

is
in

g 
its

 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

225



  Pa
ge

 3
4 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

 
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 

R
ef

er
en

c
e 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

A
G

 
R

at
in

g
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
an

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 r

ol
e.

   

12
.  

15
4 

3.
2 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
ob

us
t s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
an

d 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 g
ro

up
s 

ar
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 in

 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 m
is

si
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
th

os
e 

at
 r

is
k 

of
 c

hi
ld

 s
ex

ua
l 

ex
pl

oi
ta

tio
n.

 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

at
 

S
pe

ci
fic

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
R

is
k 

 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 s
el

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

ga
in

st
 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f t
he

 N
at

io
na

l S
E

T
 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
. 

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

T
he

 s
el

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

an
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 it
 h

as
 in

fo
rm

ed
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l p
ro

ce
ss

es
 b

ei
ng

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
   

  

A
dd

iti
on

al
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 a

 C
S

E
 s

en
io

r 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r,
 fa

m
ily

 
su

pp
or

t w
or

ke
r 

an
d 

co
-o

rd
in

at
or

 in
 p

os
t t

o 
be

 s
up

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ol
ic

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fr
om

 J
an

ua
ry

.  
  

 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
  

13
.  

 
3.

2 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

at
 

S
pe

ci
fic

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
R

is
k 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 n

ew
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
an

d 
D

is
ru

pt
io

n 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
  

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

14
.  

 
3.

2 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

at
 

S
pe

ci
fic

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
R

is
k 

 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

C
S

A
R

 O
pe

ra
tio

na
l G

ro
up

 
to

 d
riv

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
S

E
T

 a
ge

nd
a 

in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n.
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
  

15
.  

 
3.

3 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
r

di
ng

 a
nd

 
R

ev
ie

w
  

H
S

C
B

 is
 ta

ki
ng

 a
 le

ad
in

g 
ro

le
 a

nd
 

en
su

rin
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

Jo
in

t P
ro

to
co

l 
on

 M
is

si
ng

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e.
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
P

an
 W

es
t-

M
er

ci
a 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 r

em
ai

n 
in

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 B
oa

rd
s 

in
 th

e 
ne

w
 y

ea
r.

   
A

 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

16
.  

 
3.

3 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
ch

ild
re

n 
at

 s
pe

ci
fic

 

H
S

C
B

's
 M

is
si

ng
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

jo
in

ed
 u

p 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

M
is

si
ng

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
A

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

be
in

g 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f i

te
m

s 
ar

e 
G

 
H

S
C

B
 

S
te

er
in

g 

226



  Pa
ge

 3
5 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

 
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 

R
ef

er
en

c
e 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

A
G

 
R

at
in

g
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
an

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
ris

k 
 

in
ci

de
nc

es
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
m

is
si

ng
 fr

om
 

ca
re

 o
r 

ho
m

e.
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
or

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
de

liv
er

y.
   

 
G

ro
up

  

17
.  

 
3.

3 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
ch

ild
re

n 
at

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

ris
k 

D
ev

el
op

 H
S

C
B

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r 
th

e 
on

go
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f c

o -
or

di
na

te
d 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 r
es

po
ns

es
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 g

o 
m

is
si

ng
.  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
  

18
.  

 
 

 
F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
i 

T
ra

ns
fo

r
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
P

er
fo

rm
a

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 r

ob
us

t r
ep

or
tin

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
w

hi
ch

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
m

is
si

ng
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ho

 a
re

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 C

S
E

 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

P
an

 W
es

t-
M

er
ci

a 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 r
em

ai
n 

in
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 B

oa
rd

s 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 y
ea

r.
  

Lo
ca

l r
ep

or
tin

g 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l i

n 
ad

va
nc

e 
of

 p
an

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

ag
re

em
en

t. 
  

G
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 
S

ub
 G

ro
up

 

19
.  

15
5 

4.
5 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 is

 
su

ffi
ci

en
t, 

ta
ke

n 
up

 b
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 
an

d 
is

 r
ob

us
tly

 e
va

lu
at

ed
.  

C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t  

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 c

ou
rs

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
se

s,
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
to

 H
S

C
B

 to
 

in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f i

ts
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
ffe

r.
 

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

w
or

k 
is

 p
ro

gr
es

si
ng

.  
Im

m
ed

ia
te

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

qu
es

tio
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

fin
al

is
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 O

ct
ob

er
 a

nd
 w

ill
 

be
 b

ui
lt 

in
to

 a
ll 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 c
ou

rs
es

 in
 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r.

 
C

ur
re

nt
 w

or
k 

is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
de

liv
er

y 
to

 
tim

es
ca

le
. 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

20
.  

 
4.

5 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t  

Im
pa

ct
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
H

S
C

B
 

T
ra

in
in

g,
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
to

 H
S

C
B

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
ra

in
in

g 
on

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
an

d 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f i

ts
 m

ul
ti -

ag
en

cy
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
ffe

r.
 

F
eb

ru
a

ry
 2

01
5 

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
w

id
er

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

 
C

ur
re

nt
 w

or
k 

is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
de

liv
e r

y 
to

 ti
m

es
ca

le
. 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

21
.  

 
4.

5 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

ag
en

cy
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
cy

 o
f H

S
C

B
's

 m
ul

ti -
ag

en
cy

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

ffe
r.

 

A
pr

il 
20

15
 

N
ot

 y
et

 in
 ti

m
es

ca
le

. 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
hi

s 
is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 u

po
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
un

it 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 fu
nd

in
g 

ha
s 

no
w

 b
ee

n 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

227



  Pa
ge

 3
6 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

 
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 

R
ef

er
en

c
e 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

A
G

 
R

at
in

g
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
an

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

m
en

t 
ag

re
ed

.  
 In

te
rim

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ow
 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e.

   
 

 

22
.  

 
4.

5 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t  

T
he

 b
oa

rd
 w

ill
 c

om
m

it 
to

 a
 p

er
io

di
c 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

co
ur

se
s 

le
d 

by
 th

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
A

dv
is

or
 (

or
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t p
os

t)
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
en

ga
gi

ng
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

.  

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
 In

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 w

ith
 th

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

U
ni

t r
ev

ie
w

 a
w

ai
tin

g 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

fr
om

 
A

pr
il 

20
15

 it
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 

re
cr

ui
t t

o 
th

e 
po

st
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

th
is

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
by

 H
S

C
B

’s
 p

ar
t 

tim
e 

M
ul

ti -
A

ge
nc

y 
T

ra
in

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

an
d 

is
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
no

t r
un

ni
ng

 to
 s

ch
ed

ul
e.

  
  

S
ys

te
m

at
ic

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
H

S
C

B
 

N
eg

le
ct

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 in
iti

al
 

fin
di

ng
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

15
 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
  

23
.  

 
4.

5 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t  

A
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

en
ga

gi
ng

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
H

S
C

B
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
us

ed
 to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 a
nd

 th
en

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 o

th
er

 c
ou

rs
es

 la
te

r 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

.  

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
N

ot
 y

et
 in

 ti
m

es
ca

le
. 

  
G

 

H
S

C
B

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
  

24
.  

15
6 

4.
3 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

LS
C

B
 b

us
in

es
s 

un
it 

is
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
ab

le
 to

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

LS
C

B
. 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
r

di
ng

 a
nd

 
R

ev
ie

w
/H

ea
d 

of
 

A
du

lts
 

S
af

eg
ua

r
di

ng
  

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 B

us
in

es
s 

U
ni

t, 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 u

po
n 

it,
 a

nd
 

th
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 it
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

it 
is

 a
bl

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

B
oa

rd
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
B

oa
rd

  

25
.  

 
4.

3 
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t C

ha
ir 

of
 th

e 
H

S
C

B
 &

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

A
gr

ee
 th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

re
po

rt
 

en
su

rin
g 

an
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

 is
 in

 
pl

ac
e.

 

O
ct

ob
e

r 
20

14
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
.  

 

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
B

oa
rd

 

228



  Pa
ge

 3
7 

of
 3

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
7 

2 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

5 

 

 
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 

R
ef

er
en

c
e 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
R

A
G

 
R

at
in

g
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
an

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

H
S

A
B

 

26
.  

 
4.

3 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
r

di
ng

 a
nd

 
R

ev
ie

w
  

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 a
gr

ee
d 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

, e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t i

s 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

F
eb

ru
a

ry
 2

01
5 

F
un

di
ng

 b
ei

ng
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 

ad
ve

rt
is

in
g 

fo
r 

po
st

s 
w

ill
 b

eg
in

 in
 J

an
 

20
15

 w
ith

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 to

 m
os

t r
ol

es
 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
15

. I
nt

er
im

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
as

 fr
om

 
1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 in
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 u

ni
t t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
  

G
 

H
S

C
B

 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

B
oa

rd
 

  

229



230



 

 

 

 
Health & Wellbeing Board Briefing Note 

Joint Commissioning Arrangements for Primary Care 
Herefordshire CCG and NHS England (West Midlands) 

12 March 2015 
 

Background 
 
Simon Stevens, the Chief Executive of NHS England announced on 1 May 2014 that NHS England 
was inviting Clinical Commissioning Groups to expand their role in primary care commissioning and 
submit expressions of interest setting out the CCGs preference for how it would like to exercise 
expanded primary medical care commissioning functions.  Options were to remain the same, to opt 
for joint commissioning arrangements and to opt for delegated responsibility – moving the primary 
medical budgets fully to the designated CCG. 
 
The NHS Herefordshire CCG Governing Body opted to apply for the joint commissioning function and 
we received confirmation in February 2015 that the application had been successful.  These joint 
arrangements will commence from 1 April 2015. 
 
This will mean that the CCG will take joint responsibility with NHS England (West Midlands) for:- 
 

• GMS (General Medical Services), PMS (Personal Medical Services) and APMS (Alternative 
provider medical service) contracts (including the design of PMS and APMS contracts, 
monitoring of contracts, taking contractual action such as issuing branch/remedial notices, 
and removing a contract); 

 
• Newly designed enhanced services (“Local Enhanced Services” and “Directed Enhanced 

Services”); 
 

• Decision making on whether to establish new GP practices in an area; 
 

• Approving practice mergers; and 
 

• Making decisions on ‘discretionary’ payment (e.g., returner/retainer schemes). 
 
NHS Herefordshire CCG and NHS England (West Midlands) are required to establish a Joint 
Committee to oversee the joint commissioning functions.  The key responsibility of the committee will 
be to carry out the functions relating to the commissioning of primary care medical services under 
section 83 of the NHS Act excepting those relating to the individual GP performance management 
which have been reserved to NHS England.  Contractual responsibility for other primary care 
providers (Dentists, Optometrists, Community Pharmacy and Eye Care) will be retained by NHS 
England.  Those enhanced services currently commissioned by Public Health on behalf of the Local 
Authority from GP practices (childhood immunisation, health checks, sexual health services etc) will 
remain the responsibility of the local authority. 
 
 
 

231



 

 

Actions for the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
NHS Herefordshire CCG and NHS England (West Midlands) would like to invite representation from 
the Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board to attend the Joint Committee meetings as observers, 
in order to further strengthen collaborative working.  Provisional dates for these meetings are 
attached to the end of this report. 
 
In addition we will be required to share the details of the Joint Primary Care Strategy and 
Implementation Plan which will follow from the first meeting once this has been approved.  This will 
be subject to regular update. 
 
Community Impact 
 
Joint commissioning will enable Herefordshire CCG to work closely with NHS England to commission 
seamless, integrated out of hospital services which meet the local needs of the people of 
Herefordshire.  The joint commissioning will also drive the development of new models of care such 
as multidisciplinary community care providers and primary and acute care systems. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
Joint commissioning (moving to delegated commissioning) responsibility will allow the pooling of 
primary care resources and management of budgets across the CCG and NHS England and allow us 
to further demonstrate value for money and invest in services which move care closer to home and 
reduce dependency on secondary care. 
 
Rebecca Thornley 
Head of Primary Care Quality and Development 
NHS Herefordshire CCG 
12 March 2015 
Rebecca.thornley@herefordshireccg.nhs.uk 
07770-444025 
 
Proposed dates of Joint Commissioning Meetings 

Date Time Room 

Thursday 23rd April 2015 (TBC) 2.30 – 4.00 pm Kington Room, Plough Lane  

Thursday 18th June 2015 2.30 – 4.00 pm Kington Room, Plough Lane 

Thursday 20th August 2015 2.30 – 4.00  pm Kington Room, Plough Lane 

Thursday 29th October 2015 2.30 – 4.00 pm Mordiford Room, Plough Lane 

Thursday 26th November 2015 2.30 – 4.00 pm Mordiford Room, Plough Lane 

Thursday 21st January 2016 2.30 – 4.00 pm Kington Room, Plough Lane 

Thursday 24th March 2016 2.30 – 4.00 pm Kington Room, Plough Lane 

 

232



 

1 
 

 
 

 
NHS HEREFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 

 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
Integrated Urgent Care Pathway Project 

 
 
 
 

Subject: 
 
Integrated Urgent Care Pathway Project 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
To inform the Board of progress with NHS Herefordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group plans to commission an integrated urgent care 
pathway. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD 
 
 
The Board is asked to receive the report for information. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

233



 

2 
 

 
 
 

Briefing for the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

Integrated Urgent Care Pathway Project 
 

NHS Herefordshire CCG 
 
 
 
1. The Case for Change 

 
Herefordshire CCG (HCCG) began work on a review of urgent care services in summer 
2013 due to recognition of a number of challenges within the current urgent care system. 
There are summarised below: 

• The current urgent care system is inefficient and confusing for local people 

• The current system is failing to meet performance targets 

• Inequalities in access and outcomes are not being effectively addressed 

• The current urgent care pathway is fragmented and is a barrier to demand control and 
establishing effective alternatives to A&E attendance. 

• The development of an integrated urgent care pathway is a significant part of the 
solution to the challenges faced by WVT 

• Existing contracts for elements of the service will expire in 2016/17 

 
The pressures on the system, and operational challenges experienced by Wye Valley 
NHS Trust (WVT), particularly coinciding with the CQC inspection have provided further 
evidence of the need for change.  
 
HCCG undertook an extensive engagement process from September 2013 to June 2014 
to find out the views of local people, clinicians and other stakeholders about the changes 
that are needed in local urgent care services and what people want to see these 
services delivering to meet local needs. In total more than 540 patient experiences were 
captured that involved 372.5 hours of co-design work with the local community. There 
was a clear mandate for change. 
 
As a result of the engagement programme the following patient experience outcomes 
were agreed. Transformation of the urgent care system must deliver these outcomes for 
patients: 

 
• I feel informed and clear about available and appropriate Urgent Care Services; 

• I feel confident and knowledgeable about managing my condition and prepared to 
deal with and anticipate future urgent care issues; 

• I feel reassured and happy as a result of my urgent care experience and ‘known’ 
and treated like a person by Urgent Care Services; 

• I want to be helped, and when I am in need of care it is safe, effective and efficient; 

• I want to live for as long as possible independently and in my home with the best 
quality of life wherever possible. 

 

 

234



 

3 
 

 
2. Moving to an outcomes based approach 
 

Following the review and the feedback from local people, HCCG decided to change how 
it commissions urgent care services by introducing an outcomes approach to 
commissioning and contracting. Outcomes Based Commissioning (OBC) aims to shift 
the emphasis from the services a provider offers, to the outcomes they achieve for 
patients. This moves the focus from activities to results, and from how a service 
operates, to the benefits a service realises for patients. By using this approach important 
factors such as patient experience and the quality and safety of services will be built into 
future contracts. 

 
Delivery of this programme supports achievement of Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. HCCGs ambitions are that through this change programme we can: 

• Reduce inconsistencies in the outcomes that patients receive 

• Encourage investment in preventive care, to reduce unnecessary and inefficient use 
of treatment services 

• Change the way that patients currently access the urgent care system 

• Provide a service that is designed so that patients receive the care that is right for 
them, at the right place and at the right time 

• Encourage behavioural change in provision by aligning incentives and outcomes so 
patients get the right treatment in the right place 

• Encourage behavioural change in patients by ensuring they know how to  
 self- care, access urgent care in the right place (e.g. pharmacy vs A/E) and navigate 

the system 

• Reduce overall system costs and encourage service integration 

• Deliver the national vision for urgent care in Herefordshire 

 
The current CCG commissioned functions within scope as part of this new approach are 
as follows:  
 
• Accident and Emergency and Clinical Assessment Unit services, up to the point of 

hospital admission 
• Primary care out of hours services 
• Minor injury functions 
• The Walk-in Centre functions 
• Mental health activities supporting individual crises and Rapid Assessment, the 

Accident and Emergency Interface and Discharge service (psychiatric liaison). 
• Minor ailments scheme 
• NHS 111  

 
HCCG believes that an integrated solution to the provision of urgent care services is the 
best way to improve the quality and efficiency of these services and address the 
fragmentation of the urgent care pathway.  
 
HCCG identified Wye Valley NHS Trust (WVT) as being best placed to both develop a 
potential solution and to take forward the role as potential Accountable Lead Provider. 
Wye Valley NHS Trust was offered and accepted the opportunity to develop a proposal 
in November 2014. HCCG issued to WVT a set of documentation describing HCCG’s 
requirements against which WVT must shape the proposals. 

 
 

235



 

4 
 

 
3. Current Position 

 
Wye Valley NHS Trust has over the last few months been developing its proposals in 
discussion with a range of local service providers.  
 
Three Dialogue Meetings have been held between HCCG and WVT to provide 
clarification on the CCGs requirements, for WVT to share thinking and to provide 
assurance that work is moving forward as required. This stage is similar to the stage of 
procurement when providers are preparing their tender submission. WVT will submit its 
proposals to HCCG on the 27th March 2015. 

 
 
4. Next Steps 

 
Following the submission of the proposed solution an evaluation process will be 
undertaken. A nominee from Herefordshire County Council Adult Social Care is a 
member of the evaluation panel. This evaluation will determine if the solution is 
acceptable to HCCG and will deliver a fundamentally improved urgent care service for 
Herefordshire residents.  
 
Alongside the evaluation HCCG will be assembling evidence and the business case to 
support the internal and external service change assurance process. This includes for 
example undertaking an integrated impact assessment to identify any positive or 
negative impacts on health outcomes or equalities for the local population. During this 
period the communication and engagement process, and, if appropriate, a formal 
consultation process will be planned. 
 
HCCG will also be seeking external assurance from clinical experts and NHSE that the 
proposals are in line with best clinical practice and evidence nationally.  
 
 It is anticipated that if Wye Valley NHS Trust proposals are successful and are 
assessed as meeting the CCGs requirements the aim will be to begin implementing 
changes from Autumn 2015.  

 
 

236



Health & Wellbeing Board Briefing Note.
HWB INA/JSNA STEERING GROUP 

1. The need to improve the effectiveness of integrated needs assessments and ultimately 
their use for intelligent commissioning and better outcomes for those who live and work in 
Herefordshire was highlighted to the Health and Wellbeing Board
Intelligence Team.   

2. The HWBB approved the establishment of a
Steering Group in October 2014 to provide more effective governance and steer to INAs 
and the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

3. The INA Steering Group, operating under 
INAs and the JSNA are adequately resourced, managed and fit for purpose. 

4. The Group’s membership comprises assistant directors from the
(including Public Health), with representation from Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group, and hvoss.   

5. The first meeting of the Group took place on 5
presented here.  

6. The JSNA known locally 
Herefordshire, and the Group considered 
Work has already commence

7. The refresh will describe key new data and 
production in 2014.  It will include information and data on the 
needs of the people who live in Herefordshire, as well as report on 
for specific population groups. 

8. Understanding Herefordshire
an enabling tool to help planners and commissioners to shape evidence based services to 
address local need, potentially driving innovation and better ways of working. 

9. Alongside the production of
enhanced following migration to a new and improved platform
and used.  Steps are also being undertaken towards delivering the ambition of a gold 
standard JSNA product and process. 

10. The INA Steering Group will meet regularly
integrated needs assessments as and when they are developed.  
 

 

 

 
Health & Wellbeing Board Briefing Note. 
HWB INA/JSNA STEERING GROUP UPDATE 

 

improve the effectiveness of integrated needs assessments and ultimately 
their use for intelligent commissioning and better outcomes for those who live and work in 

was highlighted to the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) 

approved the establishment of an Integrated Needs A
Steering Group in October 2014 to provide more effective governance and steer to INAs 
and the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).  

, operating under its own Terms of Reference
INAs and the JSNA are adequately resourced, managed and fit for purpose. 

The Group’s membership comprises assistant directors from the three council directorates 
lic Health), with representation from Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning 

The first meeting of the Group took place on 5th March 2015. Minutes of this meeting are 

locally as Understanding Herefordshire is refreshed annually in 
, and the Group considered further areas for inclusion in the 2015 refresh

Work has already commenced by the Strategic Intelligence Team.  

describe key new data and report on other intelligence since 
It will include information and data on the health and wellbeing 

eople who live in Herefordshire, as well as report on the local inequalities 
specific population groups.  

Understanding Herefordshire is a shared resource. It has been increasingly successful as 
an enabling tool to help planners and commissioners to shape evidence based services to 
address local need, potentially driving innovation and better ways of working. 

Alongside the production of the JSNA, the online integrated evidence base (IEB) is to 
enhanced following migration to a new and improved platform, so that it is useful, usable 

Steps are also being undertaken towards delivering the ambition of a gold 
and process.  

The INA Steering Group will meet regularly (monthly) to provide a steer on other 
integrated needs assessments as and when they are developed.   

 

12 March 2015 

improve the effectiveness of integrated needs assessments and ultimately 
their use for intelligent commissioning and better outcomes for those who live and work in 

(HWBB) by the Strategic 

Needs Assessment (INA) 
Steering Group in October 2014 to provide more effective governance and steer to INAs 

its own Terms of Reference, will ensure that 
INAs and the JSNA are adequately resourced, managed and fit for purpose.  

council directorates 
lic Health), with representation from Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning 

Minutes of this meeting are 

is refreshed annually in 
areas for inclusion in the 2015 refresh. 

report on other intelligence since its last 
health and wellbeing 
the local inequalities 

has been increasingly successful as 
an enabling tool to help planners and commissioners to shape evidence based services to 
address local need, potentially driving innovation and better ways of working.  

the JSNA, the online integrated evidence base (IEB) is to 
, so that it is useful, usable 

Steps are also being undertaken towards delivering the ambition of a gold 

to provide a steer on other 

237



238



 

Minutes of 05.03.15/HWB INA Steering Group/LU v.02 Page 1 

 

 

Minutes  
 
 

Health & Wellbeing Board INA/JSNA Steering Group 
 

Minutes of the meeting of 5 March 2015 
 
 
Present: Jo Robbins, Stephen Vickers, Paul Meredith, Dr. Alison Talbot-Smith, Latha 

Unny, Helen Coombes (for Agenda item 1) 
 
Apologies: Richard Ball, Andrew Ashcroft, Chris Baird, Rob Vickers, Nick Read (hvoss) 
 
 
Item  Topic  

 
Key points  Action By  

1 Welcome & 
Setting the 
Scene  

 
Helen Coombes opened the meeting. She confirmed the need to 
critically evaluate INAs and JSNA for quality assurance so that it’s fit 
for purpose and informs the JHWS.  
 

 

3 
 

Terms of 
Reference 

ToR signed off.   

4 
 

JSNA  Children 
 

· LU to contact Dr. Henri Giller, the consultant who is 
producing the Children’s Plan.  

 
· Updates on key areas of CINA are required (LAC, CIN, CPP 

numbers). Agreed PM will arrange provision. 
 

· DVA – high level of impact on CYP. Alex Thompson has 
undertaken a QA case audit on a random sample of 10-12 
cases. Might be helpful to capture this.  

 
· 39 case reviews held – there are key messages for JSNA   

 
· Children’s INA key data is being considered by the CYP 

partnership.  
 

 
Adults  
 
SV to discuss with Paul Harris, Performance Lead,  and feed back.  

 
The online Integrated Evidence Base (IEB)  
The Understanding Herefordshire website is to be enhanced 
following migration to a new platform. Suggestions were made for 
improvement.  
 

 
 
 

LU 
 

PM 
 
 
 

PM 
 
 

PM 
 
PM 

 
 
 
 
 

 
SV 

 
LU 
 
 
 
 

239



 

Minutes of 05.03.15/HWB INA Steering Group/LU v.02 Page 2 

 

JSNA refresh:  Areas for consideration  

Social isolation (identifying support structures) captured in any 
qualitative data. 

Transitions – a neglected area.  

Impact of uncertainty in Herefordshire. 

Sustainability of health care services 

Integration of health and social care 

Obvious cross overs across the system – poor outcomes, 
inequalities, emerging threats.  
 

Health Inequalities 

-Inequalities along the life course, outcome based 

- Joint up approach to the various indicator frameworks  (PHOF, 

SCOF etc.) to identify areas where we need to work together to 
improve inequalities and reduce outcomes.  

-Weight management linked to inequalities 
-Access linked to inequalities  
 
New migration patterns, such as BMEGS, who are at particular 
risk of social isolation as no existing networks locally 
 
Ensuring we get qualitative data as well – such as third sector 
and intelligence from staff of commissioners. Especially with 
regard to emerging issues 
 
Health issues: 

o Urgent care 
o Resilience 
o Workforce 
o Major causes ill health and death, – top 10s as 

well as new themes 
o Where are prevention opportunities 
o Substance misuse, drugs and alcohol 
o Sexual health  
o Migrant health  

 
 
Unintentional injuries in children and young people 

Carers  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

240



 

Minutes of 05.03.15/HWB INA Steering Group/LU v.02 Page 3 

 

 
Developing the JSNA process: 
 

· Work out a development agenda that is more strategic & 
thoughtful.  

· Suggestion to approach each head of service for emerging 
issues in their area. 

· JSNA to reflect the culture shift needed in the council  
· LU has presented JSNA development to the management 

board to achieve the gold standard – needs resourcing.  
· A communication and engagement plan will be developed 

to support the JSNA.  
 
JSNA 2015/2016 programme - suggestions 
 

· Use 2015 report to make recommendations for deep 
dives/in depth focus areas 
 

· LD INA is a priority, maybe part of the CCG core offer.  
  

· Need a dedicated focus on inequalities – may need to 
be a future deep dive 

o Rural issues such as access 
o Outcomes such as CVD 

 
· Community based assets /voluntary sector support. 

 
 

 
   

5 Mental Health 
Needs 
Assessment  
 
 

Key points from presentation by Jade Brooks: 
 

· CAMHS is a priority – transition is not working well. 
Stepping down and pressure points need to be addressed. 

· MHNA did not include LD/autistic spectrum 
· Housing programmes need to support people living in the 

community.  
· There are no clear care pathways at present.  

Discussion points: 
· Safeguarding cuts across all MH areas. 
· Issue of self neglect resulting in homelessness and 

antisocial behaviour. We need an approach to address 
these.  

· Institutionalised adults are disempowered. Need to have a 
community based approach/preventative agenda.   

· Management of urgent care is priority & public health 
agenda within primary care.  
 

 

6  
 
 

PNA & 
Stakeholder 
management  
 

Rolled over  

 

241



242



Further information on the subject of this Report is available from 
David Penrose on Tel (01432) 383690 

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

MEETING DATE: 25 MARCH 

TITLE OF REPORT: Health and Wellbeing Board Work Plan 
REPORT BY: Director of Children’s Wellbeing  

 

 

1. Classification  
 Open 

 

2. Key Decision  

 This is not an executive decision  
 

3. Wards Affected 

 County-wide  

 
4. Purpose 
4.1 To seek the views of the Board and finalise the quarterly forward plan 

5. Recommendations 

 THAT: The report be noted 
 

6. Appendices 
 Appendix 1 - An outline work programme for the Committee. 

7. Background Papers 

 None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 16

243



244



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
 

WORK PLAN MARCH 2015 TO MAY 2016 
 

TIMELINE OF ACTIVITIES AND DECISIONS UPDATED 
 
 

March 2015 
 

 
 

DATES 
 

 
BOARD MEETINGS 

 

 

 

June 2015 • Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 

• BCF Submission Update 

• Herefordshire Safeguarding Children and Adults Business Plan 2015-16 

• Engagement Gateway 

• HCCG integrated urgent care pathway project 

• Obesity  - Herefordshire Position 

• Health Protection Update 
 

 

July 2015 • BCF Submission Update 

• System Wide Transformation 
 

September 2015 • Safeguarding Adults – Progress Report 

• BCF Submission Update 

• Public Health Commissioning Progress update 

• Care Act Implementation 

• System Wide Transformation 
 

November 2015 • BCF Submission Update 

• Safeguarding Children – Progress Report 
 

January 2016 • BCF Submission Update 
 

March 2016 • Local Authority Adults and Children’s Well Being Commissioning Plans 
2016/17 

• CCG Commissioning Plans 2016/17 

• Public Health Annual Report 
 

May 2016 •  

 
 

 

245



246


	Agenda
	
	PublicInformationfireinfo

	4 MINUTES
	6 HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY
	Health and Wellbeing Strategy Appendix

	7 HEREFORDSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP OPERATIONAL PLANS 2015/16
	Attachment1HWBBsummary2015
	Attachement2HCCGOperational Plan 2015v2

	8 COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS 2015/16
	9 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT
	Director of Public Health Annual Report_Mar2015_FINAL

	10 ASSESSING READINESS FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF BETTER CARE FUND PLANS IN 2015-2016
	11 MENTAL HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT REPORT
	12 AUTISM SELF-ASSESSMENT 2014
	HWBB 02 Autism self-assessment 2014
	03 Autism SAF Direction of Travel 2013 and 2014
	04 2014 Autism SAF as submitted

	13 JOINT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE LEARNING DISABILITY SELF-ASSESSMENT FRAMEWORK 2014
	02 HWBB LD self-assessment 2014
	04 LD SAF Comparing 2013 and 2104
	03 LD SAF Submission

	14 MENTAL HEALTH CRISIS CONCORDAT
	15 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION
	004a DfE Letter - Herefordshire Council 18 month review letter
	004b LGA Letter
	004c Journey to Good progress update Jan 2015
	004d Ofsted Action Plan
	HWBB - Update Briefing Note - Joint Commissioning Herefordshire CCG FINAL
	HWBB_briefing_integrated_urgent_care_pathway Final
	HWBB INA Steering Group Brief 050315
	HWB INA SG - 5 March 2015 meeting minutes  v.02

	16 WORK PROGRAMME
	27 Timeline - March 2015 to May 2016


